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Preface

ne of my first cases of child sexual abuse was velating to the rape of a

fosur year old givl. The accused had been acquitted due w lack of evidence.

The father of this child came ro me for asistance. He was a construction

worker and was just about literate. The child was in a home and was

undergoing therapy. She was shy and was not comfortable to talk about her

experience. Her father said, she had begun to develop high fever frequently

and he was ot sure if that harrowing incident had anything vo do with it.
Obuiously, the child was fighting to get over it.

As I went through the documents, | noticed that he had signed a statement
wherein be pad declared that he does not want bis daughter to go through
the medical examination. [ was surprised and asked him for an explanation,
He was shocked to realize what be had signed. He was not told at the time
of signing. The child had described in her statement before the Magistrate
what had happened 1o her in a way a four year child would describe.

At the time of trial, she was two years older. She knew to express better. Her
explanation which was more articulate was rermed tutoving and the
prosecutor declared her hostile. Probably, she was declared hostile in order to
enable the prosecutor to cross-examine her. Howewer, this decision of the
prosecutor fwrned fatal to the cuse. As there was no medical evidence, the
principal witness had been declared hostile, the accused got acquirted on the
benefit of the doubt.

Since the State had not filed an appeal, 1 filed a revision before the High
Court. The heaving in the High Court was quite shocking. [ was rold if the
medical examination was not conducted, it is not the fault of the accused.
True, But is it the fuult of the victim? The judge remarked that if a 25 year
old man lay on top of a four year old girl, the girl would ger crushed and die
and dismissed my petition. He scoffed at my attempt to refer to State of
Haryana versus Lekbraj. He said I should sry using that Judgement some
other time.

Strangely when [ was preparing to file an appeal before the Supreme Court,
the accused died. Divine justice?

Most judges do not realize that a prosecutrix bas no control over the
preparation of her case. After she files the complaint and the initial




LIVestigaLion like the MILC etc. wthe place, the next time the police get in
touch with ber for the case is when it is time for evidence. Sometimnes, it may
take as long as a year or more. Since she is wtally out of touch, she may not
recall the incident as she bad remembered at the time she had made ber first
statement. snt it normal for her to generally remember the incident and
not remember the exact time and the chronology? Can a slight variation in
ber version at the time of her evidence be taken as contradicting from ber
original statement? Can any novmal human being remember every word of
what bas been said on a j).fzrzicufm' day even the next day? Is it fair to
confront the victim then with her original statement made a year or more
earlier, and thrive on her minor contradictions especially, when she had not
seen whal was written i her statenent?

I witnessed many such experiences working with childven who have been
subjected to sexual abuse. Having been practicing in the Supreme Court,
where mere technicalities are not given undue importance, [ was intrigned
at the manner in which the judges at the lower court were passing judgements.
In one of the training sessions for judges and prosecurors on vape luws, the
Judges expressed to me that they are bound by the law and they are not in a
position to alter rules which perhaps a judge in the Supreme Court or a

High Courr can do.

It was rhen that I thought of this manual. [ had come across a large number
of jucgements of the Supreme Court where the Cowrt had beld thar a statement
of a victim cannot be brushed aside on mere technicalities and a radical,
pro-victim approach was taken. Perhaps, the judges in lower courts do not
have access to these judgements. Or there may be other veasons. I believe it is
the former. So this manual, which coniains abour 40 judgements of the
Supreme Court of India passed in 50 years which has laid down some of
most spectacitlar guidelines on the manner in which a case of rape ought to

be tried.
1 hope ir is found wusefil.

Aparna Bhat
New Delb:
November 2003
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44 A murderer destroys the physical body of his victim, a rapist degrades

the very soul of the helpless female™

Rape is the worst form of violence on womc. Perhaps worse than
killing her. Unfortunately, a victim gocs through the rauma all over again
during the wial of her case. Tn most cases, she fecls as i she is on rrial
for the crime. Many parents do not come forward to file complaints of
rape and sexual abuse due o the double trauma that the vicdm goes
through in the trial.

The criminal justice system reform is perhaps slowest when it comes
to dealing with protection of vietims. While it is true that there are
serious human rights violation of the accused persons in various cases, in
a rape wial, as in most cases of offences against women and children, the
system makes a complete turn and the victim is subject to extreme stress
and wauma before and during the wial.

The Supreme Courr of India has over a period of time laid down
guidclines to be followed by the Session Judges in cases of rape. These
guidelines have taken into consideration the fact thac any victim of rape
would not make a faise allegarion when accusing of rape. 1t has been held
in many cases that when a woman complains of rape and identifics the
accused, it would be sufficient to convicr the accused on the basis of her
statement alone cven if the medical evidence is noc conclusive,

The traditional conservarive approach attaching undue imporrance to
the anrecedents of the woman, previous animosity between the two parties
has now been set aside and i being strongly disapproved. The Supreme
Courr has also given adequate rights to the complainant. The Complainant
today is entitied to:

L Right to representation;
L Right to counselling;

O Compensation;

" Quore from Sraie of Punjab versus Gurmic Singh and others 1996 {2) SCC 384




VICTIM’S ANTECEDENTS:

ln Sheikh Zakir versus State of Bihar , the Supreme Court set aside
the practice of looking at the antecedents of the vicrim and held that the
same has no consequence. This was followed in State of Haryana versus
Premchand and others. 1nfact, in this case, the Supreme Court reconfirmed
that although it had reduced the sentence in the facts of the case, it was
upholding the view that the conduct of the victim is irrelevant.’  Similar
was the view taken in State of Maharashtra and another versus Madbiukar

Navayan Mardikar.”

QOne of the landmark judgements in the history of Supreme Court
relating to rape is the case of Delhi Domestic Working Women's Forum
versus Union of India and others” This casc laid down parameters under
which a case of rape has to be tried. Tt took into consideration the plight
of the victims during and after the trial. The parameters suggested by the
Court at paragraph 15 of the judgement are:

1. The Complainants of sexual assaulr cases should be provided with
legal representation. Ic is important to have someone who is well
acquainted with the criminal justice system. The role of the victim’s advocate
would not only be to explain to the victim the nature of the proceedings.
to prepare her for the case and ro assist her in the police sration and in
court but ro provide her with guidance as to how she might obtain help
of different nature from other agencies, for example, mind counseling or
medical assistance. Tt is important to secure continuity of assistance by
ensuring that the same person who looked after the complainant’s interesrs
in the police station represent her il the end of the case;

2. Legal assistance will have to be provided ac the police station since
the victim of sexual assaule might a very well be in a distressed state upon
arrival at the police station, the guidance and support of a lawyer ac this
stage and whilst she was being questioned would be of great assistance to

her:

21983 (4) $CC 10
5 1990(1) SCC 249
41991 (1) SCC 57
51995 (1) SCC 14




3. The police should be under a duty 1o inform the vicim of her right
to representation before any guestions were asked of her and chat rhe
police report should state thar the vietim was so informed;

4. A list of advocates willing to act in these cases should be kepr ar che
police station for victims who did not have pardcular lawyer in mind or
whose own lawyer was unavailable;

5. The advocate shall be appointed by the court, upen application by
the police at the earliest convenient moment, buc in order to ensure that
victims were questioned without undue delay, advocates would be
authorized to act at the police station before leave of the court was sought
or obtained;

6. In rape trials anonymity of the vicdim must be maintained, as far as
necessary.

7. 1t is necessary , having regard to the Ddrective Principles contained
under 38 (1) of the Constitution of India to ser up Criminal injuries
Compensarion Board, Rape victims frequently incur substandal substantial
financial loss. Some, for example, are too rraumatized to continue in
employment.

8. Compensation for victims shall be awarded by rhe court on
conviction of the offender and by the Criminal Injuries Compensation
Board whether or not a conviction has taken place. The Board will take
into account pain, suffering and shock as well as foss of earnings due o
pregnancy and the expenses of child birch if rhis occurred as a result of

the rape.”
COMPENSATION

The principle of compensation was also applied in In  PRathinam
versus Union of India and others®, the Supreme Court granted interim
compensation to the victim while the trial was pending. The Courr alsa
held chac che victim can apply for moere compensation if required.

“ 1989 Supp (2) SCC 716




ROLE OF THE JUDGES

An important case in this regard is the judgement in Stare of Punjab
versus Gurmir Singh'® where the Supreme Court ser aside the acquictal
and convicred the accused. 1t was in this case thac the Supreme Court
held thar holding of trials in camera in these cases are mandlatory. Tr also
held thar it was desirable char these cases are heard by lady judges as far
as possible.,

The Supreme Court further held that the court (judge) should not be a
silene spectator while the vietim of the erime i being cross-examined by
the defence. It must effectively control the recording of evidence in the
court. The court must ensure that chrough cross examination the victim
is not [wrther harassed, humiliated and craumatized.

Surprised and disuessed by the manner in which the High Court had
keid in favour of the accused in a case, in State of Andbra Pradesh versus
Gangula Satya Murthy'' the Supreme Court held thar:

«w

.Courts arc expected to show great responsibility while trying an
accused on charges of rape. They must deal with such cases with utmost
sensitivity. The Courts should examine the broader probabilities of a case
and nor get swayed by minor contradictions or insignificant discrepancics
in the statement of the witnesses, which are not of a faral narure to throw
our allegations of rape. This is all the more important because of late
crime against women in gencral and rape in particular 15 on the increase.
It is an irony rthat while we arc celebrating woman's rights in all spheres,
we show litcde or no concern for her honour. Tt is a sad reflection and we
must emphasise that che courts must deal with rape cases in parricular
with utmost sensitivicy and appreciate the evidence in the roulity of the
background of the entire case and not in isolation”.

In State of Rajasthan versus NK, the Courr held that even the High
Court while acquitting the accused on benefit of doubt should be cautious

1983 {(4) SCC 10
199001 SCC 249
Y991 (1) SCC 57
W Supra (1)

T 1996 (10} SC 350
=200 (5) SCC 30




to see that the doubt should be a reasonable doube. 1t should NOLreverse
the findings of guilt on the basis of irrelevant Circumstances or nlere
rechnicalities.

TORTS-VICARIOUS LIABILITY

In 2000, following rape by ratlway officials in the Howral railway
station, the Supreme Cowrr held thar compensation can be paid on a
petition liled by a third party in public interest. The Court appreciaced
the fact chat rape is an offence which violates the fundamencal tight
guaraniced under Arricle 21 and held that the railway board was vicariously
liable to pay compensation for the rape which ook place in the premises
which is under irts control. By this judgement, che Supreme Court excended
the “tort” principle of vicarious liabilicy even to a case of rape. '

DELAY IN ELR.

One of the standard defences used by the accused in rape cases especially
cases relating o rape of the child is the delay in the lodging of the FIR,
The Supreme Court has held in many such cases that delay is not faral o
the case. In Harpal Singh and another versus State of Himachal Pradesh™
the Supreme Court held:

.......... The occurrence according to the prosecurrix ook place on
the night intervening August 20 and 21,1972, The first information report
was lodged on August 31,1972, The complaiant had given reasonable
explanation for lodging it after ren days of the occurrence. She stared (hat
as honour of the family was involved, its members had to decide whether
to take the matter to the court or not. It is not uncommon that such
considerations delay action on the part of the near relations of a young
gitl who is raped.”

ROLE OF THE DOQCTORS

Medical evidence is crucial for a rape trial. Doctors have ro be sensirive
as well in handling chese cases. In Staze of Karnataka versus Manjanna'®
the court disapproved refusal of government hospital doctors to conduct

" Chairman, Raitway Board and other versns Chandrima 13as and odher 2000 (2} SCC 465
Y1981 (1) SCC 560
TO2000 (6) SCC 18R
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the medical examination of rape viciims unless they are referred by the
police.

LOCUS STANDI

The standard objection taken whenever the Complainant ties 1o
intervene in the Court proceedings dircedy is of her locus standi. It
appears as if she is not important ar all to che trial. She is very rarely
consulted. In most cases, she is not given the papers. She is not advised
of the basic information relating to her case. She does nor even know the
Court where the cascs are tried and whar stage the case is.

The Dethi Domestic Warkers' Forum'® case laid down the principle of
providing legal aid to the vicim. However, this is not followed in most
cases. While the role of the prosecutor assumes importance in these cases,
the Complainant alse has rights to be able to represent herself through

her lawyer.
AGE OF CONSENT

Child according to accepted standards and the main legislation relaced
to children in the country is any person upto the age of 18 years. However,
the age of consent in the Indian Penal Code is 16 years. In most cases,
this becomes a strong ground for the defence.

There are cases where this has been explained and it has also been
held thar in case of doubt it should be held in favour of the victim.
However, even the police do not use it in favour of the victim. There are
cases in which bail has been granted on this account.

In State of Karnataka versus Manjanna', the defence was that the
prosecution had not proved thar the victim was below 16 years. The
sessions judge did not accept this argument and convicred the accused.
The High Court on appeal reversed the same. The Supreme Court held
on the basis of the stacement of the victim about her date of birth, the
age could not have been disbelieved.

% supra

17

supra




Delhi Domestic Working Women’s Forum ... Petitioner

Versus

Union of India and Others ... Respondents
This public interest litigation - Kerkeua (4) Rosy Kerkeoa 1
invokes the benign provision of o Remis Kerkerea (5) Nilli Ross
Article 32 of the Constiturion of D/o Boas Minz was uavelling
India, act che instance of che | in SHI Coach. [ slept on Berth
petitioner Delhi Domestic Working Na. 50, Our friend, Shanu,
Women's forum to espouse the wolke up and rold thar some
pathetic plight of four domesric - persons were  teasing  her.
servants who were subject to When 1 and my remaining
indecent sexual assault by seven friends got up, we saw that
army personnci. abour 7/8 army ‘jawans’ had
: come near us. 'hen we all

2. The incident, with a filmy friends got up and sac on our
background, has ouclassed even the respective seats. Then all those
movics. On 10-2-1993, six women, army men began to molest us.
by name, Usha Minz, Shanti, | First they — two Sikhs and 6
Josphine Kerkerra, Rosy Kerketta, clean-shaved men made me
Nilli and Lili, domestic servants, | and my five friends sit on lower
were travelling by the Muri Express. seats and then kissed and
The journey was from Ranch o hugged us and lured on our
Delhi. One of the victims Miss Lili body and breasts, On our
described the incidence graphically objection they caught us from

as follows - our hair and began to beat us.

) When we tried 1o cry, they shut
“l was coming from mv home out mouths. Then they
town to Delhi by the Muri
Express, On 10-2-1993 ar
abour 11.00 p.m., the Muri

Express was at Khurja Railway

threatened me and my friends
that in case we wil! make any
hue and cry they will throw us
out of the running train and will

Station. At that time, I along kill us. On this we got

with my village girls (1) Usha
Minz B John Minz (2) Shanu
D/o Siri Anuas Minz {3)
Josphine Kerketta D/o Junus

frightened and sat there. From
these 8§ army men — two

Sikhs and 6 clean-shaved, one

m:Vemfs lﬁzzafzoflndm cmd Oz/aers . 9



Sardar and ene clean-shaved
man forcibly made me 1o lic
down on the lower berth and
on the other adjacent Tower
berth another Sardar took
another girl and one clean-
shaved fauji took Rosy 1o
bathroom, Two other army men
made Shanti to lie down on the
nearby seat. Another two men
tried to rake Usha and Nilli bur
both sac under the seat o hide
themsclves. Thereafter, first
Sardar fauji {whose name has
been disclosed in the court as
Dhir singh Sfo Puran singh,
PO : Dosepur, PS + Kalanaur,
Disrricr Gurdaspur, Punjab)
forcibly put off my clothes and
removed underwear, raped me.
Alter him, anocher clean-shaved
fauji, whose face is round and
height is about 587 raped me.
My friends, Shant and Raosy
were also fercibly raped by
remaining army men.
Thereafter, we tried o lodge a
report with the police on the
way, but nobody listened to us.
When the train sropped at New
Dethi Railway Station, then |
and my friends attempred to
catch these persons. They all
got down and ran here and
there. However, 1 and my

fricnds could catch hold of

aforcsaid Sardar Dhir Singh,

- Delbs Domestic Working Womien's Forun Vrsus Union of Fudia and: Obers.

who had raped me, We all
caught him. [n the meanwhile,
some persons gachered there.
Some army  oflicers  and
policemen everpowered him
and took him o MY office.
Then after a while they came
in Station and handed over
Sardar Dhir Singh ro you.
Sardar Dhir Singh has raped
me and his colleagues have

raped miy friends.”

3. This {formed the basis ol the
first informadion report for offences
under Section 376-B read with
341 19C

registered at the Police Statien,

Secrion which  was
New Delhi Ratlway Staton {Crime
& Railways) as No. 049 of 1993 u
G35 am. on 11-2-1993. [t appears
after registering the FIR che six rape
victims were sent for medical

check-up.

4. The members of the perioner-
forum went in groups ro all the
addresses given by the police ro
meet the victims In none of che
places they were allowed o meet
the victims though the employers
admitted gaining knewledge about
the rape and the victims were with
them. The pedioner-forum is very
much concerned as the vicrims are
its members, to ger the needed
social, culrural and legal protection.
Further, the victims are helpless




tribal women belonging ro che State
of Bihar at the mercy of the
employers and the police. They are
vulnerable o inoimidation.
Notwwithstanding the occurrence of
such barbaric assault on the person
and dignity of women necither the
Central government nor the Srace
Government has bestowed any
serious attention as to the need for
provision of rehabilitacory and
compensatory justice for women.
In such matters chis court has been
affording relief. 1t is in this context
the wric perition under Article 32
of the Constitution of India is
moved. The grounds urged in
support of the writ perition are as
tollows :

5. Speedy trial is one of the
essential requisites of law. Tn a case
of this character such a trial cannot
be frustrated by prolongarion of
investigation. Therefore, this Court
has to spell out the paramerers of
expeditious conduct and
investigation of trial; otherwisc the
rights puaranteed under Articles 14
and 21 of the Constitution will be

meaningless.

6. This Court ordered notice o
respondents on 18-11-1993,

7. A counter-affidavit was filed
onn behalf of Respondents 2 and 4

stating, on the statement of Kumari

Lili, FIIR No. 042/93 under Section
376-B read with Scciion 34, Indian
Penal code, was regisiered. Accused
Dhir Singh was arrested and sent
to judicial custody. The case-report
under Section 173 CrPC had been
filed in the Court of the Chiel

- Judicial Magistrace, Aligarh on 13-
. £ £

8-1993 against the accused persons,
namely Dhir Singh and Mikhail
Heranj. The case is pending trial
before the District and Sessions
Court, Aligarh.

8. It appears, apart from these
two accused, others could nor be
identified. Two other accused,
Pharsem Singh and B. Kajoor were
discharged. Three other police
personnel, namely, Head Constable
Ranjeer, constable Naresh Singh
and constable Shiv Sarup singh werc
arrested as they were on guard duty
in the Muri Express crain at the
time of incident and failed ro
provide necessary protection to the
tribal The

prosccution Is in progress and it is

women/victims.

stated that the case is likely ro be
commiitted.

9. At one stage of the case, the
Court was informed chat the victims
could not be traced. This sratement
caused dismay in us. Therefore, a
direction was issued to the State of
Utrtar Pradesh to trace the vicrims.
This Court doubred whether the




police were av all serious in this
case. On our parg, we could not
telerate this nonchalanc arrirude.
Fortunartely, the victims have been
traced. As such we think the
prosecution will go on with duc
diligenice and the law be allowed (o

take 15 course.

10, While the marter stands chus,
as to the prayer of the petitioner
that Respondents 1 o 3 will have
to engage themselves in {raming an
appropriate scheme to provide inter
alia compensation and
rehabilitation to the victims of such
crimes of violence, the submissions
are as under :

11, The National Commission
for Women is righcly engaged in the
evaluation and suggestion of
changes in various legislations
pertaining to women, Yer steps arc
o be raken as regards framing of
scheme for compensation and
rehabilitation to ensure justice 1o
vicims of such ¢rimes of violence,
Vicrims of such wviolence, by and
large belong o weaker sections of
the sociery. They are not in a
position to secure justce through
civil courts. No doubt, the Tndian
Penzl Code and the Indian Evidence
Act have been amended. Tn spite
of ir, vicums of such violence are
not able to get adequate remedy in

securing justice. Therefore, the first

- Nittonal

Commission {or Women must be

{sic third) respondent

called upon o engage ieself in the
exercise of drafiing such a scheme
and impress upen the Union of
India to frame a scheme as arly

as possible.

12, This stand is opposcd by the
third respondent. It is stated (ha
the Nadonal Commission for
Women was constituted by the
National Commission lor Women
Act, 1990 (hereinalier referred o
as ‘the Act’). This Act came into
torce on 31-1-1992, as per
Notification Noo SO 99(E) daced
31-1-1992. The functions of the
Commission are set our in Chapeer
I of the Act. The prayer thar the
Commission must engage itsclf in
framing appropriate schemes and
measures is beyond the mandate
given o the National Commission
for Women.

13, We have given our careful
cousideration to the above. It 1s
rather unforrunace that in recent
times, there has been an increase
in violence against women causing
serious concern. Rape does indeed
pose a serics of problems for the
criminal justice svstem. There are
cries for harshest penalties, burt
often times such cries eclipse the
real plight of the victim. Rape is
an experience which shakes the




foundations of the lives of the
vietims, For many, trs cllcer is a
long-term one, impairing their
capacity for personal relationships,
altering their behaviour and values
and generating endless fear. In
addition to the rrauma of rhe rape
iesell, victims have had o sulfer
further  agony  during  legal
proceedings.

1. We will only point out the
defeets of the existing syscem.
Firstly, complaints are handled
roughly and are not given such
attention as 15 warranted. The
victims, more often than nort, are
humiiiated by che police. The
victims have invariably found rape
trials 2 traumatic experience, The
expericnce of giving evidence in
court has been negative and
destructive. The viciims often say,
they considered the ordeal to be
cven worse than the rape irself.
Undoubredly, the court proceedings
added to and prolonged che
psychological stress they had o
suffer as a result of the rape itself.
As stated in Modern Legal Studies
— Rape and the Legal Process by
Jennifer Temkin, 1987 Edition,
page 7:

“It would appear thar a radical

change in the actitude of |

defence counsel and judges o
sexual assault is also required.

p 'Déf._h__i 'D_t_)meé‘tz't: ._ﬂ’:/qf_*ki?zg Wﬁméfz’s .Ep}f3}}1:%ri':as;: Uizzonofﬁzdmﬂnd Ot/aezs :

Continuing education
programmes for judees should
include re-educarion about
sexual assault. Changes in the
substantive law might also be
helpful in producing new ways
of thinking about this type of

crime.”

Kelly writes

“The most common crics were
for more compensation and
personal trearment from police
ofticers. Victims remarked
thar, while they recognised
officers had many cases to
handle, they felt the officers
did not seem sufficienty
concerned with their partcular
case and trauma.”

Shapland concludes -

“T'he changes in the criminal
justice systcnl necessary ro
approximate more closely o
the prescnt expectarions of
victims are not major or
structural. They are primarily
attitudinal,  they  invelve
training  the professional
participants in the criminal
justice system that the vietim
is to be rreated courtcously,
kept informed and consulred
about all the stages of the
process, They invelve treating




the victim as a more equal
partner ... this might include a
shift in working practices ol the
professional participants tha
might initially appear 1o involve
more work, more difficulty and
more effore, buc paradoxically
may result in easier detection,

a  higher  standard  of

prosecution evidence and fewer
cases thrown our at court.”

(O Reilly stress the articudinal

training thus

“We are noe Vicoim-
oriented and have zken an
acrive role in getting the
entire helping network —
lawyers, docrors, nurses,
social workers, rape crises
centre workers — 1o talk
and o interact together ...
We arc then in a position
to concenirate fully on the
primary goal that unites us

all — helping victims of
£

sexual assault to ger their
lives bacl rogether.”
e

13, {n this background, we think

it necessary (o indicate the broad
parameters in assisting the victims
of rape.

(1} The complainants of sexual

assault  cases  should be

provided with legal
2

representation. It s important
to have someone who is well
acquainred with the criminal
justice system. The role of the
victim's advocate would not
only be to explain o the victim
the nature of the proceedings,
to prepare her for the case and
ro assist her in the police
stadion and in court but to
provide her with guidance as
to how she might obmain help
of a different nature front other
agencics, for example, mind
counsclling  or  medical
assistance. [t 1s imporant to
secure continuity of assistance
by ensuring that the same
person who locked after the
complainants interests in che
police station represent he till
the end of the case.

(2) Lepal assistance will have to
be provided at the police
station since the vicrim of
sexual assaule might very well
be in a distressed state upon
arrival ar the police station, the
guidance and supporc of a
lawyer at this stage and whilst
she was being questioned would
be of grear assistance to her.

(3) The police should be under
a duty ro inform the victim of
her right 1o represenration
before any guestion were asked
from her and thae the police

4. Del/nf Do_me.:tic %Jkn;'g %;}zé}i?-For_'zz'r.n-_Ve.rsm'Unioiz of India and _Odaéré



report should srare char rhe

victint was so informed.

(4) A list of advocates willing
ro act in these cases should be
kept at the police station for
victims who did not have a
pardicular fawyer in mind or
whose  own  lawyer  was

unavailable,

(9} The advocate shail be
appointed by the court, upon
application by the police ar dhe
carliest convenient mement,
but in order to ensure rhur
victims  were  questioned
withour undue delay, advocares
would be authorised to act at
the police station before leave
of the court was sought or
obtained.

{6) Tn all rape trials anonymity
of the victim must be

maintained, as far as necessary.

(7) It 1s nccessary, having
regard  to  the Directive
Principles conrained under
Article 38(1) of the constitution
of India to set up Criminal
Injuries compensation Board.
Rape vicdms frequendy incur
substantial financial foss, Some,
tor  example, are too
traumarcised to continue in
employment.

(8} compensation for victims
shalt be awarded by the count
on the conviction of rhe
offender and by the Criminad
Injuries compensation Board
whether or not a conviction
has eaken place. The Board will
take  into account  pain,
suffering and shock as well as
loss  of carnings due 1o
pregnancy and the expenses of
child birth if chis occurred as
a result of the rape.

16. On this aspecet of the marter
we can usefully refer o the
following passuge from The Oxford
Handbook of Criminology (1994
Hdn.} ar pages 1237-38 as to the
position in Lngland :

“compensation payable by the
offender was introduced in che
Criminal Juscice Acr, 1972
which gave the Courts powers
to make an ancillary order for
compensation 1n addition ro
the main penalrty in cases where
‘Injury, loss, or damage’ had
resulted. The Criminal Justice
“Act, 1982 made it possible for
the first time ro make a
compensation order as the sole
penalty. It also required that in
cases  where fines and
compensation orders were
given together, the payment of
compensation should take
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priority over the fine, These
developments significd & major
shitt in penological thinking,
reflecting

the growing

importance  attached  ro
restitution and reparation over
the more narrowly retributive
()F
punishment. The Criminal
Justice Acr, 1988 furthered

this shift. It required cours to

aims conventional

consider the making of a
compensation order in cvery
case of dearh, injury, loss or
damage and. where such an
order was not given, imposc
duty on the courr to give
reasons for not deing so. Tt also
extended the range of injuries
eligible for compensation.
‘These new requirements mean
thar if the court fails ro make
a compensation order it must
turnish reasons. Where reasons
are given, the vicdm may apply
tor these ro be subject to
fudicial review

The 1991 Criminal Justice Act
of

provisions which directly or

contains 4 numl)er

indirectly encourage an cven
greater role {or compensadon.”

17. Scction 10 of the Act staces

bothat che Nadonal cominission Tor

Women shall perfornt all or any of
the following functinns, namely

{(a) {nvestigate the examine all

matrers  relating we rhe
safeguards provided tor women
under the Constitution and

orther laws.

{b) Call for special scudics or
investigation into  specific
problems or situations arising
cut of discriminaction and
atrocities against women and
identily the constraints so as to
recommend strategics for cheir

removal,

18. Having regard to the above
provisions, the third respondent
will have to evelve such scheme as
to wipe out the tears of such
unfortunace victims. Such a scheme
shall be prepared wichin six months
from the date of this judgment.
Thereupon. the Union of India, will
examine the same and shall take
necessary for the
implementation of the scheme at

steps

the earliest.

19. The writ petiton is disposed
of subject to above dircctions.

{Also reported in 1995 (1) SCC 14)
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P Rathinam

Appellant

Versies

Union of India and Others

1. The State has filed an affidavic
pursuant to the notice indicating
therein rhar four of che police
officers of the different grades said
to be involved in the incident of
rape have since been suspended
from service, raken into cusrody
and are being proceeded against.
The matcer is under investigation
and learned counsel assures us char
as soon as investigation is over if a
prima facic case is found, charge-
sheer shall be submirced without
delay. We find rthar the accused
persons are in custody, their bail
having been cancelied by the High
Court.

2. The vicrim Kalpana Sumanthi
in our view has become entitled to
reasonable compensarion. She has
undergone treatment for a long

Respondents

period away from house and ar a
place out of the State; she has
undergone a lor of suffering —
physical and mental. An interim
compensation of Rs 20,000 s
directed 1o be paid te her by rhe
State within two weeks hence.
Whether she would be entided o
E{ﬂy Fl“’th(‘:l' Suim ()F COIHPCIlSzl[i()I'I

is left open (o be decided and leave

s granted to the petitioner to apply
to this Court afrer the criminal wial
reaches finality ar the wial stage.
The payment o Kalpana shall be
made by the District Magistrare of
Dharampura ecither personally or
through a competent officer to
ensure actual payment and a report
of compliance shall be made o the
Registry of this Court. Writ petition
is disposed of accordingly.

{Also reported in 1989 Supp. (2) SCC 7168)

P Rathinam Versus Univin

India and Others .




State of Haryana

Petitioner

Versis

Prem Chand and Others

1. It is very unfortunare that a
controversy has arisen following the
judgment sought to be reviewed in
Criminal Appeal Nos. 544-45 of
1980 rendered by this bench on
january 31, 1989" whereby this
Court  while confirming  rhe
conviction of both the respondents/
accused reduced the sentence of
umprisonment 1n respect of each of
the respondents from 10 years to 5
vears by invoking the proviso o
Section 376(2) of the Indian Penal
Code observing “the peculiar facts
and circumstances of this casc
coupled with the conduct of the
victim girl, in our view do not call
for
prescribed under Section 376(2)."
The State of Haryana has filed che

the minimum sencence as

above petitions seeking review of
the judgment and ro “pass such
other or furdher order(s) as may be
necessary in the circumstances of
the case.”

Pl Ac this juncrure, we would
like to point out that the very
confirmation of the conviction
accepting the sole testimony of the
victim Suman Rani rejecting the
arguments of the defence counsel
is itselt a clear indication thac this

Respondents

Court was of the view thar the
characrer or reputarion of the
victim has no bearing or relevance
cither in the matrer of ;‘:djudging
the guilt of the acensed or imposing
Punishmcm under Secrion 376 1PC.
We would like to state with all
emphasis that such factors are
wholly alien o the very scope and
object of Section 376 and can never
serve cither as mitigating or
extenuating circumstances for
imposing the sub-minimum
sentence with the aid of the proviso
to Section 376(2) of the [PC. In
fact, we have expressed our views
in the judgment iisell stating “No
doubr an offence of this natere has
to be viewed very seriously and has

to be dealc with  condign
punishment.”
12. We have ncither

characrerised the vicrim, Suman
Rani as a woman of guestionable
character and easy virtue nor made
any reference to her character or
reputation in any part of our
judgment but used the expression
“conduct” in the lexigraphical
meaning for the limited purpose of
showing as to how Suman Rani had
behaved or conducred herself in not




telling anyone for about 5 days
abour the sexual assaule perpetrated
on her till she was examined on
March 28 1984 by che Sub
Inspector of Police (PW 20) in
connection with the complainc
given by Ram Lal (PW 14) on
March 22, 1984 against Ravi
Shankar. In this connection, we
make it further clear char we have
nor used the word “conduct”™ with
reference to the character or
reputation of the vietim — Suman

Rani.

(Also reported in (1990) (1) SCC 249)

13. Before parcing wich chis
martter, we would ke to expross
that this court is second o none in
uphalding rhe decency and dignity
of womanhood and we have not
expressed any view m our judgment
that character, repuration or swmtus
of a raped vicrim is a relevanr
factor for consideration by the
court while awarding the sentence

10 a rapist,

14. With the above observations,

we dismiss the review peritions.




State of Maharashtra Others

Appellant

Versus

Madhukar Narayan Mardikar

The respondent, Madhukar
Narayan Mardikar, was serving as
a Police Inspector, Bhiwandi rown
Palice Station in District Thana of
Maharashtra State 1in November
1965, On November 13, 19065,
between &.15 and 843 p.m. he
allegediy visited the huoment of one
Babu

uniform and demanded to have

Banuhi w/o Skeikh in
sexual inrercourse with her. On her
refusing he wied to have her by
force. She resisted his attempr and
raised a hue and ary. Her husband
and neighbours collecred ourside
the hurment. the hutment was about
a furlong away from rhe police
station and about 100 yards from
Kuwari’s bunglow. After people
from che vicinity collected at the
olace of occurrence the respondent
pushed to Kuwari’s bungalow and
telephoned the police staton to
rush police aid. PS! Ghosalkar who
received the phone call rushed o
the place of occurrence in a police
jeep accompanied by 1S Wadekar
and other policemen. On reaching
the scene of occurrence they found
the respondent in uniform standing
at some distance from the hutment
of Banubi. They also saw as
agitated Banubi near her huiment.

Respondent

The respondent directed thac the
wonun be taken o the pelice
station by Head Constable Kulkarni
and Police Constable Desale. The
respondent and others returned 1o
the police station m the jeep.

2. 1t appers thar on Novermber
15 1965 Banubi made a written
complaint about the incident to the
District Superintendent of Police,
A preliminary  enquiry was
instituted. In the couarse of the
preliminary  enquiry  deailed
statements of several wirnesses
including Banubt were recorded.
The statement of the respondent
was  also  recorded. On o the
conclusion of the preliminary
enquiry the respondent was charge-
sheeted. The charge of perverse
conduct was levelled against him on
the following owoe grounds, namely:

“{1) On November 13, 1965
between 20,15 to 20.45 hours, vou,
Shri M.N.

attached o

Police Inspector
Mardikar,
Bhiwandt Town Police Station
{Thana District) visited alone the

chen

house of the one Banubt w/o Babu
Sheikhk for the purpose of having
illicit intercourse with her.
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(2) In order to suppress the
above fact, you prepared false
documents and made entries in the
Station Diary with the help of your
suboridinates to show that you had
carried out a prohibition raid in
and near her house around that
time.”

The Superintendent of Police,
Thana was appointed an Inquiry
Officer to  conduct  the
Departmental Enquiry. The
respondent filed a detailed written
statement in answer to the charges
levelled against him. Oral as well
as documentary evidence was
adduced by the department as well
as the respondent. On the
conclusion of the said proceedings
the Inquiry Office submitted a
detailed report holding both the
charges as  proved  and
recommended the dismissal of the
respondent. The Inspector General
of Police on an examination of the
report prima facie concurred with
the findings recorded by the Inquiry
Officer and directed notice to issue
to the respondent to show cause
why he should not be dismissed
from service. The respondent filed
a detailed reply to the second show
cause notice. After taking the same
into consideration the Inspector
General of Police ordered his
dismissal. The respondent filed an
appeal against the said order of

dismissal which was partly allowed.
It was held that having regard to
the length of service put in by the
respondent, the punishment of
dismissal from service should be
replaced by removal from service.
[t was also stated that if the
respondent so desired he could
apply for compassionate pension.
Feeling aggrieved by this order the
respondent approached the High
court of Bombay, Nagpur Bench,
Nagpur with a Writ Petition, Special
Civil Application No. 300 of 1968,
under Articles 226/227 of the
Constititution. The Division
Benach of the High court quashed
the impunged order of removal on
the ground that the respondent was
denied a reasonable opportunity to
meet the charges levelled against
him as the department had failed
to supply him with copies of certain
important documents having a
bearing on the charges levelled
against him. The Division Bench
also observed: “...on the material
on record it does not appear to us
that reasonably a finding of guilt in
respect of the charges framed
against the petitioner could be
arrived at.” The impunged order of
removal was thus quashed. The

State of Maharashtra feeling

aggrived by the said order has
approached this Court by way of
special leave under Article 136 of
the Constitution.

State of Maharashtra Others Versus Madhukar Narayan Mardikar 21




3. As stated earlier the case
against the respondent was that he
had visited the hutment of Banubi
on the night of November 13, 1965
all alone in police uniform and had
tried to ravish her. The respondent’s
version was that he had raided her
hutment on receipt of information
that she was dealing in illicit liquor
and although nothing incriminating
was found from her house, some
artictes like a rubber tube, a bortle,
clc. containing country liquor were
found from a nearby place which
were  attached  as  unclaimed
property. In the course of evidence
rccorded at the departmental
enquiry it was also brought out that
Banubi was a woman of easy virtue
and was having extra-marical
refationship with one Behram {rani,
the Manager of Bhiwandi Talkies.
She admirted thar she was the
mistress of thar person. Evidence
was also led o show that she was
known as an ‘awara’ (vagrant) in the
locality. The find of liquor from near
her hutment had upset her and in

order to escape from the clutches

of law she had filed a false
complaint  against him on
November 19, 1965, The

respondent further contended that
2 woman with such antecedents
could stoop to any level and it would
be hazardous to rely on her version.

4. Ar the departimental enquiry
several wirnesses including Banubi
and her husband were examined.
Banubi and her busband stuck o
their version and no serious
mfirmicy could be brought ouc in
The

Inquiry Officer was of the view that

their  cross-examinarion.
there was no reason or morive for
Banubi o falsely involve the
respondent. Since Banubi was a
woman of questionable repute she
would be slow re falsely implicare
a police officer and thereby incur
the wrath of the entire police force
of the Bhiwandi Town DPolice
Station within whase jurisdicrion
she resided. If she and her hushand
were bootleggers as alleged by the
respondent we find ic difficult wo
belicve that she would falsely
involve a police officer who had not
made out any case against her. If
nothing incriminating was found
from her hutment during the raid
there was ne reason for her to
abuse the respondent and create a
scene afrracring a crowd. g,
therefore, does not appeal to reason
ro hold that Banubi had falscly
implicated the respondnt. The
learned counsel for the appellant
State was, therefore, right in
contendng that this was not a casc
of no evidence and the High Court
ought not to have interfered with

the finding as if it were a court of
appeal.




5. The evidence tendered ar dhe
enquiry also shows that PSI
Wadekar was on patrolling duy
berween 7 pam. and 8 p.m. wich
Police consrables Desale, Kadam,
Kumbhar, Jadhao and Sakpal. They
had raided the
Jagdambaprashad Ramadhar Pande
on Kalyan Read at abour 7.30 p.m.

house of one

and had attached two bortles of

liguor. After completing  the
formalicies of that case chey
returned to the Bhiwandi Police
Station at abour § or 8.15 p.m. PSI
Ghosalkar was sitting cutside the
police station while the roll call was
being raken when he received a
phone call from the respondent
asking him to rush with a police
party o Kuwari’s bungalow as there
was “some serious trouble”. He
along with PSI Wadckar and others,
namely, Patl, Kulkarni, Desale,
Bahiram and Sakpal left in a jeep
for the scene of eccurrence. On
reaching there they found a crowd
with Banubi abusing the respondent
who was standing at some distance
all alone. On sceing the police party
the respondenc direcred thar Banubi
be taken to the police stardon. She
was taken to the police statien on
foot by head Constable Kulkarni
and Police Constable Desale. Two
things clearly emerge from the
above evidence, namely, (i) that the
police jeep was not available for use
by the respondent till it returned

vashira Qe Versus Mdbulsr Neriyin Mol

from Kalyan ac abour 8.15 p.m.,
and (i1) when the police parey
comprising I'51 Ghosallar and
others reached the scene of
occurrence they found a crowd near
the hurmene of Banubi with che
respondent standing at some
distance all alone, This 15 clear from
the evidence of Sub-Inspectors
Ghosallkar and Wadekar and their
Paril, Kulkarni,
Desale, Bahiram, Sakpal and jeep

subordinates

driver Shinde. It is also clear from
their version that Police Constables
Desale, Kadam and others had
accompanied PSI Ghosalkar in the
jeep towards Kalyan road and had
returned to the police station ar
abour 8.00 p.m. or 8.15 p.m. by
which time the respondent had left.
They could nor have, therefore,
accompanicd the respondent ro raid
the hurment of Banubi. This
evidence rules our the defence
version thar the respondent had
gone to the hurment of Banubi at
abour 8.15 p.m. to carry our a
prohibiton raid. An officer of the
rank of a Police Inspector would
not ordinarily go all alone to carry
out a petty prohibtion raid. It is
also difficult to believe thar Banubi
who was her self living in a glass
house would abuse the respondent
knowing fully well that she would
thereby antagonise the entire police
force which could make her life
miserable. If this part of the




evidence is believed, and we see no © concluding, that the panchnama and
reason o doubi ir, the respondents the cutrics made in the Stadon
version must be ruled our as a ¢ Diary were intended ro cover up
concoction put forward to cover his - the misdeed of the respondent anxd
misdeed. In  chat case the | were made by his subordinares ar
panchanama and the enuies in the © his behest, We, therefore, find it
Starion Dhary become suspect. o difficult o agree with the High
D Coure that on che material on
6. lvis true that initally Police © record a finding of guilt could not
Constables Desale and Kadam | reasonably be arrived at.
supported the respondent in their
statrements recorded on November 7. The High Coure, while
26, 1965 during the prefiminary | conceding that it has no
furisidiction to sit in appeal over

cnquiry, However, on their realising
that they would be in trouble if they | the decision of a domestic cribunal

supported a false version they i and is not entitled to reapprise the
subsequently made a clear breast - evidence, fell into an error in doing,

and stuck to thar version in their © jusc that under the guise of

evidence recorded during che formal | examining the cvidence o ascertain
enquiry. We have persued their ¢ if the respondent was prejudiced
evidence and we are inclined o on account of the failure of the
chink that they disclosed che truth i department o provide him with the
in their evidence. The evidence also noteboaks of Desale, Wadekar,
discloses that when the jeep Kadam and  Sakpal  dated
returned to the police station from November 13, 1965 and the
Kuwari’s bungalow it did nor carry = Logbeok of the jeep of cven date.,
any prohibition articles therein. This Tt is indeed rtrue chat rhe
also clear from the evidence of | respondent had asked for che
Head Constable Jadhao who was at aforesaid documents since the
the police staton when the jeep { commencement of the
arrived. Therefore, the story thac departmental enquiry and also in
cerrain articles containing liquor the course thereof. He was,
were arrached from near che however, informed that the original
hutment of Banubi under the notebooks of the said four
panchanama does not appear to be [ policemen as well as the logbook
correct. In view of all this evidence | of the jeep were nor rraced.

the Inquirty Officer was right in | However, copies of the extraces

upholding Banubi’s version and in | from the notebooks of the said four




policemen rtaken out earlier and
sent to the Anti-Corruption Bureau
during the preliminary enquiry
were supplied to him. As far as the
loghook is concerned evidence of
the jeep driver was tendered to show
that no entry abour the visit from
the police staton to Kuwari's
bungalow was actually made on
account of the distance being short.
Be thar as it may, the fact remains
that the respondent was furnished
with copies of extracts from the
notchooks of the said policemen
and they were also offered for
further cross-examinaton. In che
course of cross-examination of
Police Constable Desale, the witness
evaded a certain question by stating
thar “wirhourt seeing my original
notebook I cannoc say if T have
made the entries regarding the
duries performed on November 13,
1965 and November 14, 1965 in
the natchook” He,
admitted that the transeript from

however,

his norebook was correct bur he
could not say if the respondent had
countersigned the entry of
November 13, 1965. The High
Court has arrached too much
importance to this cvasive reply
given by Police Constable Desale
and has come to the conclusion that
supply of the
notebooks had prejudiced the

non original

defence. If the original notebooks
are missing and if the tanscripes

prepared by the witnesses earlier are
supplied. the department cannot bhe
accused of deliberately suppressing
evidence. [n such a situation rhe
evidence has to be evaluared bc;ll‘ing
in mind the fact thac the original
notebooks and the logbook of the
jeep are missing. The non-supply
of the original notebooks and che
loghbook  cannor, in the
circumstances, efface the
overwhelming evidence, both dircet
and crcumstantial, tendered during
the departmenral enquiry, We are
of the view that there is sufficiem
evidence on record to rerurn a
finding of guilt against the
respondent.

8. The High Court ohserves chat
since Banubi is an unchaste woman
it would be excremely unsafe to
allow the fortune and carcer of a
government official to be put in
jeopardy upon the uncorroborated
version of such a woman whao
makes no seccrer of her illicit
intimacy with another person. She
was honest enough to admit the
dark side of her life. Even a woman
of easy virtue is entitled to privacy
and no one can invade her privacy
as and when he likes. So also it is
not open te any and cvery person
to violate her person as and when
he wishes. She is entitled to protect
her person if there is an attempt to
violate it against her wish. She is




equally entitled to the protection of
law. ‘|'herefore, merely because she
is a woman of easy virrue, her
evidence cannot be  chrown
overboard. At the most the officer
catled upon to evaluate her evidence
would be required to administer
caution unto himseif before
accepting her evidence. But in the
present case we find thar her
evidence is not only corroborated
in material parciculars by the
evidence of her husband buc also
by the cvidence of PSI Ghosalkar
and other members of the police
party who had accompanied him on
receipt of a phone call from the
respondent. As pointed out earlier
Banubi who was herself living in a
considering her

lass  house

g
antccedents could never have
behaved in the manner she is
alleged to have behaved if the
respondenct had merely raided her
house and drawn up a nil
panchname. In that case she would
not have approached the District
Superinrendent of Police at the

carliest opportunity and would not

have lodged a complaint of i

mishehaviour the

respondent. We, therefore, find it

against

difficult to agree with the High
Court that merely becasue Banubi

(Also reported in 1991 SCC 57)
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is & woman of doubtful reputation
it is unsafe to rely on her testimony.
We have carcfully examined che
cvidence tendered befoe the Lnquiry
Officer and we are satisfied thar the
High Court was completely wrong
in concluding that here evidence
was nol corroborated in material

hy

evidence. We are afratd that che

particulars independent
High Court embarked wpon a
reappreciation of the evidence as
if ir were sitting in appeal againsc
the decision of the deparrmental
aurhorities. Trs reappreciation of the
evidence is also unsustainable.

9. For the above reasons we set
aside rthe order of the High Court
and restore the order of removal
from servce passed by the appellatc
authority and direct that it be given
effect to in accordance with law, We
however, make it clear thac if in
the meantime the respondent was
reinstated in service pursuant to the
High Courts order, the salary and
altowances paid for actual duty
rendered on such reinstatment shall
not be lizble to be refunded. Except
for rest of the
consequences of the removal order

the same the
will fall on the respondent. The
appeal is aliowed accordingly with
COSIS.
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State of Punjab

Appellant;

Versus

Gurmit Singh and Others

This appeal under Section 14 of
the Terrorist Affecred Areas (Special
Courts) Act, 1984 is direcred
against the judgment and order of
Additional Judge, Special Courrt,
Ludhiana dated 1-6-1985 by which
the respondents were acquitted of
the charge of abduction and rape.
From what follows, the judgment
impugned in this appeal presents a
rather disquicting and a disturbing
feature. It demonstrares lack of
sensicivity on the part of the court
by casting unjustified stigmas on 2
prosccutrix aged befow 16 years in
a rape case, by overlooking human
psychology and  behavioural
probabilities. An intrinsically wrong
approach while appreciating the
testimonial potency of rthe evidence
of the prosccurrix has resulted in
miscarriage of justice. First a brief
reference to the prosecurion case.

2. The
withheld by us), a young girl below

prosecutrix  (name
16 years of age, was studying in
the 10ch class at the relevant cime
in Government High School,
Pakhowal., The

examinations were going on art the

matriculation

material time. The examination

Respondents

centre of the prosecurrix was

locared in the Boys’ High School,
Pakhowal. On 30-3-1984 ar about
12.36 p.m, after aking her test in

H

Geography, the prosecurrix was
. going to the house of her maternal
¢ uncle, Darshan Singh, and when
she had covered a distance of about

{100 karmas from the school, a blue
| Ambassador car being driven by a
Sikh youth aged 20/25 years came
from behind. o that car Gurmit
Singh, fagjit Singh @ Bawa and
Ranjit Singh accused were sitting,
The car stopped near her. Ranjic
Singh accused came cut of the car
and caught hold of the prosecurrix
from her arm and pushed her inside
the car. Accused Jagjit Singh @
Bawa put his hand on the mouth
of the prosecutrix, while Gurmit
Singh accused threatened che
prosecutrix, thar in case she raised
an alarm she would be done to
death. All the three
(respondents herein) drove her o
the tubewell of Ranjit Singh

accused

accused. She was taken ro the
‘kotha” of the tubewell. The driver
of the car afrer leaving che

prosecurrix and chree accused

persons there went away with the




car. In the said kotha Gurmic Siagh
compelled the prosecutrix to take
liquor, misrepresenting to her that
it was juice. Her refusal did not
have any effect and she reluctantdy
consumed liquor. Gurmit Singh
then got removed her salwar and
also opened her shirt. She was
made 10 lie on a cot in the kotha
while his companions guarded the
kotha from cutside. Gurmic Singh
commitred rape upon her. She
raised alarm {roulz) as she was
suffering pain bur Guomit Singh
threatened to kill her if she
pcrsistcd in raising alarm. Due to
thac threat, she kept quict. Afier
Gurmit Singh had commirtted rape
upon her, the other two accused,
who were earlicr guarding the kotha
from outside, came in one by one
and commirtted rape upon her, Jagjit
Singh alias Bawa committed rape
on her after Gurmic Singh and
thercafter Ranjit Singh commirted
rape on her. Fach one of the
accused committed sexual
intercourse with the prosecutrix
forcibly and against her will. They
all subjected her ro sexual
intercourse once again during the
night against her will. Nexc morning
at about 6.00 z.m., the same car

arrived ar the tubewell kotha of

Ranjic Singh and chree accused
made her sit in that car and left
her near the Boys” High School,

Palkkhowal nearabour the place from
where she had been abduaed. The
prosccutrix  had 1o rake her
examination in the subjecc of
Hygicne on that dare. She, afeer
taking her examination in Hygiene,
reached her Village Nangal-Kalan,
abour noon tme and narrated the
entire story to her mother, Smt.
Gurdev Kaur PW 7. Her father
Tirlok Singh PW G was nat present
in the house at that time. He
returned from his work lare in the
evening. The mother of the
prosecutrx, Smi. Gurdev Kaur PW
7, narrated the episode to her
husband Tirfole Singh PW 6 on his
arrival. Her facher scraightaway
contacred Sarpanch Joginder Singh
of the village. A panchayar was
convened. Martter was brought to
the notice of the Sarpanch of Village
Pakhowal also. Both the Sarpanches
rried to effect 2 compromise on 1-
4-1984 but since the panchayat
could not give any justice or relief
to the prosecutrix, she along with
her father proceeded w the Police
Sration Raikor to lodge a report
about the occurrence with the
police. When they reached the bus
adda of Village Pakhowal, the police
met them and she made her
statement, Ex. PD, befare ASI
Raghubir Chand PW who made an
endorsement, Ex. PD/1 and sent

the statemenct Ex. PD of the
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prosccutrix to the Police Station
Raikot for registration of the case
on the basis of which formal FIR
Ex. PD/2 was registered by SI
Malkiar Singh. AST Raghubir
Chand then wok the prosecutrix
and her mother to the primary
health centre Pakhowal for medical
examination of the prosccutrix. She
was medically cxamined by lady
decror, Dr. Sukhwinder Kaur, PW
1, on 2-4-1984, who found that the
hymen of the prosecutrix was
lacerated with fine radiate tears,
swollen and painful. Her pubic hair
were also found marted. Accordin
PW 1

prosecutrix could be “one of the

o
o

to intercourse with the
reasons for laceration which 1
found in her hymen”. She went on
to say that the possibility could not
be ruled out that the prosecutrix
“

was not habitual of intercourse
earlier”.

of
investigation, the police tock into
possession a scaled parcel handed

3. During rthe course

over by the lady doctor containing
the salwar of the prosecutrix along
with 5 slides of vaginal smears and
one sealed .parcel containing pubic
hair of the prosecutrix, vide memo
Fx. PK. On the pointing out of the
prosceutrix, the investigating officer
prepared the rough site plan Ex. PE
of the place from where she had

been abducted. The prosecutrix also
led the investigaring officer ro the
tubewell kotha of Ranjic Singh
where she had been wronglully
confined  and  raped.  The
investigating olficer prepared a
rough site plan of the kotha Ex.
PM. A scarch was made for che
accused on 2-4-1984 bur they were
not found, They were also nor
traceable on 3-4-1984, in spite of
a raid being conducted at cheir
Louses by the ASTL On 5-4-1984

. Jagjir Singh alias Bawa and Ranjic

. m;d();};gm

Singh were produced before che
investigating, officer by Gurbachan
Singh PW 8 and were placed under
arrest. Both Ranjic Singh and Jagjic
Singh on che same day were
produced before Pr. B.I. Bansal
PW 3 for medical examination. T'he
doctor opined thar boch rthe accused
fic

intercourse.

perform  scxual

Gurmit

were o
Singh
respondent was arrested on 9-4-
1984 by ST Malkiat Singh. He was
also gor medically examined on 9-
4-1984 by Dr. B.L. Bansal PW 3
who opined that Gurmit Singh was
fit

intercourse. The sealed parcels

also to perform  sexual
containing the slides of vaginal
smears, the pubic hair and the
salwar of the prosccutriz, were sent
to the chemical examiner. The
report of the chemical examiner

revealed that semen was found on




the slides of vaginal smear though
no spermatozoa was found either
on the pubic hair or the salwar of
the prosecurrix. On completion of
the investigation respondents were
challaned and were charged for
offences under Section 363, 366,

368 and 376 IPC.

4. With a view to connect the
respondents with the crime, the
examined Dr.
Sukhwinder Kaur, PW 1;
prosecutrix, PW 2; Dr B.L. Bansal,
PYW 3; Tirlok Singh, father of the
prosecutrix, PW 6; Gurdev Kaur,
mother of the prosecurrix, PW 7;
Gurbachan Singh, PW 8; Malkiat
Singh; PW 9 and 51 Raghubir

Chand, PW 10, besides, some

prosecurion

formal witnesses like the draftsman
ete. The prosecution tendered in
evidence affidavits of some of the
constables, whose evidence was of
a formal nature as also che report
of the chemical examiner Ex. PM.
In their statements recorded under
Secerion 313 CrPC the respondents
denied the prosecution allegations
Jagjit

respondent stated thart it was a false

against  them. Singh
case foisted on him en account of
his enmity with the Sarpanch of
Village Pakhowal. He stated that he
had married a Canadian girl in the
village gurdwara, which was not
liked by Sarpanch

the and

therefore, the Sarpanch was hostile
to him and has got him falscly
implicared in this case. Gurmic
Singh respondent took the siand
that he had been falsely implicated
in the case on account of enmity
berween his father and Tirlok
Singh, PW 06, father of the
prosccuirix. He stated that there
was long-standing litigation going on
between his father and the father
of the prosecutrix and their family
]ﬂClﬂbC['S were not even on
speaking terms with each other. He
went on o add that on 1-4-1984
he was given a beating by Tirlok
Singh, PW 6, on grounds of
suspicion chat ke might have
instigated some persons to abduct
his daughrer and in rewaliation he
and his elder brother on the next
day had given a beating to Tirlok
singh, PW 6 and also abused him
and on that account Tirlok Singh
PV, in consultation with the police
had got him falsely implicated in
the case. Ranjit Singh respondent
also alleged false implicaton but
gave no reasons for having been
falsely implicated. Jagjit Singh alias
Bawa produced DW 1 Kaldip Singh
and DW 2 MHC, Amarjit Singh
in defence and tendered in evidence
Ex. DC, a photostat copy of his
passport and Ex. DD copy of a
cerrtificate of his marriage with the

Canadian girl. He also rendered




into cvidence photographs marked
‘Coand (DY, cevidencing his
marriage with the Canadian girk
The other two accused however did
not lead any defence evidence.

5. The trial court first dealt with
the prosecution case relating o the
abduction of the prosecurrix by rhe
respondents and observed :

“I'he  first  point  for
appreciation belore me would
arise whether this part of the
prosecution  story  stands
fortified by any cogent or
reliable evidence or nor. There

is a bald allegation only of

(prosecutrix - name omitred)
that she was forcibly abducted
in a car. [n the FIR she stated
that she was abducted in an
Ambassador car of blue colour.
After going through the
evidence, [ am of cthe view that
this thing has been introduced
by the prosecutrix or by her
father or by the thanedar just
to give the gravity of offence.
(prosecutrix - name omitted)
was tested about the particulars
of the car and she is so
ignorant about the make etc.
of the car that entire story that
she was abducted in the car
becomes doubtful. She stated
in her cross-examination ar
page 8 that the make of the

State of Lrinjab Nexsus Gurmst Singh and Others.

car was  Master. She was
pertinently asked whether the
make of the Car was
Ambassador or Fiac. The
witness replied that she cannot
rell the make of the car but
when she was asked as to the
difference  berween  Fiat,
Ambassador or Master car she
was unable to explain the
difference amongst  these
vehicles. So, it appears thac the
allegations  that she was
abducted in a Fiat car by all
the three accused and the
driver is an imaginary srory
which has been given either by
the thanedar or by the father
of the prosecutrix.

If the three known accused are
in the clurches of the police, it
is noc difficule for the 1O to
come to know abour the car,
the name of its driver etc., but
strange cnough, S1 Raghubir
Chand has shown pitiable
negligence when he could not
find out the car driver in spire
of the fact that he directed the
investigation on these lines. He
had to admit that he made
search for raking the car inro
possession allegedly used in the
occurrence. He could noc find
out the name of the driver nor




could he find our which car was
used. In these circumstances,
it looks to be improbable that
any car was also used in the
alleged abduction. {Omission of
name of the prosecutrix —ours)

T'he trial court further commented :

“On 30-3-1984 she was lorcibly
abducted by four desperate persons
who were our and out to molest he
honour, It has been admitted by the
prosccuerix that she was raken
through the bus adda of Pakhowal
via metalled road. It has come in
the evidence that it is a busy cenrre.
In spite of that fact she had not
raised any alarm, so as to artract
persons that she was being forcibly
taken. The height of her own
unnatural conduce is that she was
left by rthe accused ar rhe same
point on the next morning. The
accused would be the last persons
to extend sympathy o the
prosecutrix. Had it been so, the
natural conduct of the prosecutrix
would have been first to rush to the
house of her marternal uncle to
apprise him that she had been
forcibly abducted on the previous
day. The witess after being left at
the place of abduction lightly takes
her examination. She does not
complain to rthe lady reachers who
were deployed to keep a watch on

the girl students becanse these

students were to appear in che
centre of Boys’ School. She does
not complain e anybody nor her
friend rhat she was raped during the
previous night. She prefers her
examination rather than go w the
Louse of her parents or relations.
Thereatfter, she goes to her Village
Nagal-Kalan and informs for the
first time her mother chat she was
raped on the previous night. This
part of the prosccution story does
not look to be probable.”

thus,
of the

trial

6. The

disbelieved

court,
the version
prosecutrix basically for the reasons:
{/)"She is so ignorant about the
malke etc. of the car that entire
story that she was abducred in the
car becomes doubtful’ particulary
because she could not explain the
difference between a Fiar Car,
Ambassador car or a Master car;
(7f) the investugating officer had
“shown pitiable negligence” during
the investigation by not wacing out
the car and the driver; {77 that the
prosecurrix did nort raise any alarm
while being abducted even though
she had passed through the bus
adda of Village Pakhowal; (iv) that
the srory of the abduction © has
been introduced by the prosecutrix
or by her father or by the thanedar
just to give the gravity of offence”
and (#) that no corroboration of the




statement ol the prosecutrix was
available on the record and thar che
story that the accused had left her
near the school next morning was
not believable because the accused
could have no ‘sympathy” for her

7. The trial court also disbelieved
the version of the prosccutrix
regarding rape. It found thar the
testimony of the prosecunix did not
inspire confidence for the reasons
(/) that there had been delay in
lodging the FIR and as such the
changes of false implication of the
accused could not be ruled out.
According o the erial courr, lirlok
Singh PW 6 became certain on 1-
4-1984 that there was no outcome
of the meeting between rthe
panchayats of Nagal-Kalan and
Pakhowal, thercfore, there was ne
justification for him not to have

lodged the report on 1-4-1984 irseif

and since Tirlok Singh had “enrered
into consultations with his wife as
to whether o lodge the report or
not, it renderced the
doubtful™ (7)) that the medical
did
prosecurien case. The trial court
observed that in
examuination PW 1 lady doctor had

matter

evidence not  help  the

her  cross-
admirtted that whereas intercourse
with the prosccutrix could be one
of the reasons for the laceration of
the hymen “there could be other

i Vessus Grmit Singh and Others

reasons also for that laceration™.
The trial court noticed that the lady
docror had inserted a vaginal
speculum for wking swabs from the
posterior vaginal fornix of the
prosecutrix for preparing slides and
since the wideh of the specalum was
about (two fingers, the possibility
that the prosecurrix was habituated
ro sexual intercourse could not be
ruled our”. The trial court observed
that the prosecutrix was “flighring
her tmagination in order (o rope
in the accused persons” and thac
implicit reliance could nec be
placed on the testimony “of such a
git]™s (747} there was no independent
corroboration of her testimony and
{(/z) thar the accused had been
implicated on account of enmity zs
alleged by the accused in (heir
statements recorded under Section

313 CrPCL

8. The grounds on which the
trial court disbelieved the version
of the prosecutrix are not ac all
sound. The findings recorded by the
wrial court rebel against realism and
lose their sanctity and credibilicy.
The court lost sight of the fact that
the prosecutrix is a village girl. She
was a student of Xch class. [t was
wholly irrelevant and immarterial
whether she was ignoranc of the
difference berween a Flar, an
Ambassador or a Master car. Again




the statement of the prosecuirix at
the vrial that she did not remember
the colour of the car, though she
had given the colour of the car in
the FIR was of no material effect
on the reliability of her restimony.
No faulr could also be found with
[}]C l)]'{_)SCCLlri()]1 VCI‘SiOn an [hc
ground chat the prosecutrix had not
rajsed an alarm while being
abducted. The prosecutrix in her
statement categorically asserted that
as soon as she was pushed inside
the car she was threatened by the
accused to keep quite and not to
raise any alarm, otherwise she
would be killed.
clircumsrances

Under these
tao discredir the
prosecutrix for not raising an alarm
while the car was passing through
the bus adda is a travesty of justice.
The court overlooked the siruation
in which a poer helpless minor girl
had found herself in the company
of three desperate young men who
were threatening her and preventing
her from raising any alarm. Again,
if’ the investigating officer did not
conduct the investigation properly
or was negligent in not being able
to trace out the driver or the car,
how can that become a ground to
discredir the testimony of the
prosccutrix ? The prosecutrix had
no control over the investigating
agency and the negligence of an
investigating officer could not affect
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the Cl'cdihﬂi[y of the statement ol
the prosceutrix. The orial coure fell
in crror for discrediting che
testimoeny of the prosecurrix on that
account, In our opinion there was
no delay in the lodging of the FIR
either and i ac all there was some
delay, the same has not only bueen
properly  explained by the
prosecution but in the facts and
circumstances of the case was also
nacural, The courts cannot overlook
the face char in sexual offences delay
in the lodging of the FIR can be
due o variery of reasons particularly
the reluctance of the prosecutrix or
her family members to go to the
police and complain about the
incident which concerns the
repuration of the prosecutrix and
the honour of her family, Tt is only
afrer giving it a cool thoughr thar a
complaine of sexual offence is
generally lodged. The prosecution
has cxplained that as soon as Tirlok
Singh PW 6, of rhe
prosecutrix came to know from his
wile, PW 7 abour the incident he

father

went to the village Sarpanch and
complained to him. The Sarpanch
of the village also got in touch with
the Sarpanch of Village Pakhowal,
where in the tbewell kotha of
Ranjic Singh rape was committed,
and an efforr was made by the
panchayats of the two villages to sit
together and scrde the marcer. [c was




only when the Panchayats failed to
provide any relict or render any
justice to the prosecucrix, chac she
and her family decided o report
the matier to the police and before
doing that naturally the farther and
mother of the prosecutrix discussed
whether or not to lodge a report
with the police in view of the
repercussions it might have on the
reputation and future prospects of
the marriage erc. of their daugheer.
Tirlok Singh PW 6 truchfully
admitred thar he entered into
consultation with his wife as ro
whether to lodge a report or not
and the trial court appears to have
misunderstood the reasons and
justification for the consultation
between Tirlok singh and his wife
it found the said
circumsrance had rendered che

when that
version of the prosecutrix doubcful.
Her statement about the manner in
which she was abducted and again
left near the school in the early
hours of next morning has a ring
of truth. It appears thar the rrial
court searched for contradictions
and variations in the statement of
the prosecutrix microscopically, so
as to disbelieve her version. The
observations of the wial court that
the story of the prosecutrix that she
was left near the examination centre

next morning at aboutr 6 a.m. was
“not believable” as “the accused

would be the last persons o extend
sympathy o the proseccurrix™ are
not at all intelligible. The accused
were not showing “any sympathy”
to the prosecutrix while driving her
ac 6.00 a.m. nexr moming o che
place {from where she had been
abducted but on che other hand
were removing her from the Korha
of Ranjit Singh and lcaving her
ncar the examination centre so (o
avold being derected. The criticism
by the trial court ol the evidence
of the prosccurrix as o why she
did not complain o che lady
teachers or to other girl students
when she appeared for  the
examination at cthe centre and
walted tifl she went home and
narrated the occurrence o her
mother is unjustified. The conduct
of the prosecurix in this regard
appears to us to be most natural.
The trial court overlooked thar a
girl, in a rradition-bound non-
permissive society in India, wouid
be exrremely reluctant even to
admit that any incident which is
likely to reflect upon her chasrity
had occurred, being conscious of
the danger of being ostracized by
the society or being looked down
by the society. Her not informing
the teachers or her friends at the
examination centre under the
circumstances cannot detract from

her reliability. In the normal course




of human cenduct, this unmarried
minor girl would not like w0 give
publicity to the traumatic
experience she had undergone and
would feel terribly embarrassed in
relation to the incident to narrate
it to her reachers and orhers
overpowered by a feeling of shame
and her nacural inclination would
be to avoid talking abour it to
anyone, lest the family name and
honour is brought into controversy.
Therefore her informing her
mother only on return to the
parental house and no one else at
the examination centre prior
thereto 1s in accord wich the narural
human conduct of a female. The
courts must, while evaluating
evidence, remain alive to the fact
that in a casc of rape, no self-
respecting woman would come
forward in a court just to make a
humiliating statement against her
honour such as is invelved 1n the
commission of rape on her. In cases
involving sexual molestarion,
supposed considerations which have
no macerial effect on the veracity
of the prosecution case or even
discrepancies in the statement of
the prosccutrix should not, unless
the discrepancics are such which
are of fatal nature, be allowed to
throw out an otherwise reliable
prosecution case. The inherent
bashfulness of the females and the
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tendency to conceal outrage of
sexual aggression are factors which
the courts should not overlook. The
testimony of the victim in such
cases is viral and uwnless chere are
compelling rcasons which
necessitate looking for carroboration
of her statement, the cours should
find no difficulty ro acc en the
testimony of a victim of sexual
assault alone to convict an accused
where her testimony  inspires
confidence and is found to be
reliable. Seeking corroboratien of
her statement before relying upon
the same. as a rule, in such cases
amounts o adding insult o injury.
Why should the evidence of a girl
or a woman who complains of rape
or sexual molestation, be viewed
with doubr, disbelicf or suspicion ?
The court while appreciating the
evidence of a prosecucrix may look
for some assurance of her statement
to satisfy its judicial conscience,
since she 1s 2 witness who s
interested in the ourcome of the
charge levelled by her, buc there is
no requirement of law to insist
upon  corroboration  of  her
statement to base conviction of an
accusedd. The evidence of a victim
of sexual assault stands almost on a
par with the evidence of an injured
wirness and to an extent is even
more reliable. Just as a wirness who
has sustained some injury in the

s Gurmit Singh and Otbirs




occurrence, which is not found to
be self-inflicted, 1s considered to be
a good witness in the sense that he
is least likkely to shield the real
culprit, the evidence of a victim of
a sexual offence Is entitled to great
weight, absence of corroboration
notwithstanding. Corroberative
evidence is nor an imperative
component of judical credence in
every casc of rape. Corroboration
as a condition for judicial reliance
on the restimony of the prosccutrix
is not a requirement of a law but a
guidance of prudence under given
circumstances. [t must not be
overlooked thar a woman or a gitl
subjected to sexual assault is not an
accomplice te the crime bur is a
victim ol another persons lust and
it is improper and undesirable to
test her evidence wich a cercain
amount of suspicion, treating her
as if she were an accomplice.
Inferences have to be drawn from
of

circumstances with realistic diversity

a glven  sct facts and
and not dead uniformiry lest that
type of rigidity in the shape of rule
of law is introduced through a new
form of testimonial tyranny making
justice @ casualty. Courts cannot
cling to a fossil formula and insisc
upon corroboration even if, raken
as a whole, the case spoken of by
the victim of sex crime strikes the
judicial mind as probable. In Szaze
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of Mabarashatra v, Chanelvapyalash
Kewalchand fain' Ahimadi, ). (As the
Lord Chiet Justice then was)
spealking for the Bench summarised
the position in the following words:

(SCC p. 599, para 16).

“A prosceutrix of a sex olfence
cannot be put on a par with
an accomplice. She is in fiet a
crime. The

victim ol the

Evidence Act nowhere says thar

her  evidence  cannot  be
accepred  unless 10 s
corroborated In  marcerial

particulars. She is undoubtedly
a competent witness under
Secrion 118 and her evidence
must receive the sanie weighe
as is attached o an injured in
cases of physical violence. The
same degree of care and
caution must artach in the
cvaluation of her evidence as
in the case of an injured
complainant or wimness and no
more. What is necessary is that
the court must be alive to and
conscious of the facr that it is
dealing with the evidence of a
person who is interested in the
outcome of the charge levelled
by her. If the court keeps this
in. mind and feels satisfied that
it can act on the evidence of
the prosecutrix, there is no rule
of law or practice incorporaced
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in the Evidence Act simifar to tmpression on our minds that she

Hustracion (4} o Section 114 1 is a reliable and truthful witness.
which requires it to look for | Her restimony suffers from no
corroboration. If for some | infirmity or blemish whawsoever,
reason the court is hesitant o @ We have no hesitation in acting
place implicic reliance on the I upon her testimony alene without

testimony of the prosecurrix it © looking for any “corroboration’.

may lool for corroboration | Iowever, in rhis case rhere iy

required in the case of an } ample corroboracion available on

accomplice. The nature of the record to lend further credence
evidence required to lend to the testimony of the prosccutrix.
assurance to the testmony of

the reliance on the wstimony 10. The medical evidence has
of the prosecutrix  musc | lent full corroboration to the
necessarily depend on the facts : testimony of the prosecurrix.
and circumstances of cach | According to PW1 lady doctor

case. Bur if a prosecucrix is an Sukhwinder Kaur she had examined
adult and of full undersranding the prosecutrix on 2-4-1984 at
the court is entitled © base a | about 7.45 .m. at the Primary
conviction on her evidence | Health Cenrre, Pakhowal, and had
unless the same is shown to be = found that “her hymen was
infirm and not cruseworthy. [f lacerared with fine radiate tears,
the totality  of  the i swollen and painful”. The pubic
circumstances appearing on the | hair were also marted. She opined
record of the case disclose thar | that  intercourse  with  the
the prosecucrix docs not have | prosccutrix could be “onc of the
a strong motive to falsely | reasons for the laceration of the
involve the person charged, the hymen” of the prosecutrix. She also
court should ordinarily have no | opined that the possibility cannot
hesitation in accepting her be ruled out that (prosecurrix) was

evidence,” not habitual to intercourse earlier

¢ to her examination by her on 2-4-

9. We arc in respectful 19847, Dwuring  her cross-
agreement  with the above examination, the lady docror
exposition of law. In the instant case | admitred thar she had not inserted
our carcful analysis of the statement | her fingers inside the vagina of the
of the prosecutrix has created an prosccurrix during the medico-legal

fag e BESETR o _ Srg_zr_(.’. of I’;t?qf;:éngfsué zerﬁﬁjf.ESir;éb dmz' Ozbeu



examination bur that she had pur 2
vaginal speculum for taking the
swabs from the posterior vaginal
fornix for preparing the slides. She
disclosed thar the size of the
speculum was about two fingers and
agreed with the suggestion made to
her during her cross-examination
that “if the hymen of a girl admits
twao fingers easily, the possibility that
such a girl was habitual to sexual
intercourse cannot be ruled out”.
However, no direct and specific
question was put by the defence to
the lady doctor whether the
prosecucrix in the present case could
be said to be habiruated to sexual
and

challenge to her statement thae the

intercoursc there was no
prosccutrix “may not have been
subjected to scxual incercourse
carlier”. No cnquiry was made
from the lady doctor about the wear
of the hymen being old. Yet, the
trial court interpreted the statement
of PW | Dr. Sukhwinder Kaur to
hold that the prosecurrix was
habituared to sexual intercourse
since the speculum could enter her
vagina ecasily and as such she was
“a girl of loose character”, There
was no warrant for such a finding
and the finding if we may say so
with  respeer, is a wholly
irresponsible finding. In the case of
the evidence of PW 1, the trial
court wrongly concluded that the

medical  evidence  had  not
supported the version of che

Prosecurrix,

1. The oial court torally ignored
the report of the chemical examiner
Ex. PM, according 1o which semen
had been found on che slides which
had been prepared by the lady
doctor Trom the vaginal secrerions
trom the posterior of the vaginal
fornix of the prosecurrix, The
presence of semen on the slides lent
authentic corroboration to the
restimoeny of the prosecutrix, This
vital evidence was forsaken by the
trial courc and as a result wholly
erroncous conclusions were arrived
at.  Thus, even though no
corrobaration is necessary to rely
upon  che  testimony ot the
pl'osecutrix, yet sufficient
corroboration from the medical
cvidence and the report of the
chemical examiner is available on
the record. Besides, her scatement
has been fully supported by the
evidence of her father, Tirlok Singh,
PW 6 and her mother Gurdev
Kaur, PW 7, to whom she had
narrated the occurrence soon after
her arrtval at her house. Moreover,
the unchalienged fact tha it was the
prosecutrix who had led the
investigating officer to the kotha of
the tubewell of Ranjit singh, where
he had been raped, lent a buil-in
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assurance thar che charge levied by
her was ‘genuine’ racher than
‘fabricated” because it is no one’s
case that she knew Ranjic Singh
earlier or had ever seen or visited
the kotha at his wbewell. The ral
court compleiely overlooked chis
aspect. ‘The trial coure did noc
disbelieve chat the prasecutrix had
been  subjected o sexual
intercourse bur without any sound
basis, observed thar the prosecurrix
might have spent the night’ in the
company of some ‘persons’ and
concocted the story on being asked
by her mother as te where she had
spent the night after her maternal
uncle, Darshan Singh, came to
Nangal-Kalan to enquire about rthe
prosecutriz. There is no basis for
the finding thar the prosceutrix had
spent the night in the company of
some “persons” and had indulged
in sexual inrercourse with them of
her own free will. The observations
were made on surmises and
conjectures — the prosecutrix was
condemned unheard.

12. The trial court was of the
opinion that it was a ‘false’ case and
that the accused had been
implicated on account of enmiry.
In that connection is observed that
since Turlok Singh PW 6 had given

a bearing to Gurmit Singh on 1-4-
1984 suspecting his hand in the

i . Smre ._of P’

abduction of his daugheer and
Gurmit Singh accused and his dder
brother had abused Firlok Singh
and given a beating 1o "lirlok Singh
PW 6 on 2-4-1984, “it was very
casy on the pare of Tirlok Singh o
persuade bis daughter 1o name
Gurmit Singh so as to 1ake
revenge”.  Indeed, Gurmit Singh
accused in his statement under
Section 313 CrPC did raise such a
plea but that plea has remained
unsubstantiated. Tirlok Singh PW
6 categorically denied that he had
any litigation with the father of
Gurmit Singh at all and went on
say that no litigation had ever raken
place berween him and Mukand
Singh, father of Gurmit Singh, over
a picce of land or otherwise, Io the
similar effect is the statement of
Gurdev Kaur PW 7 who also
categorically stated thar there had
been no litigation berween her
husband and Mukand Singh, father
of Gurmit Singh. The trial court
ignored this evidence and found
support for the plea of the accused
from the statement of che
prosecutrix in which during the
first
examination she admitted thar

sentence of her cross-
Htigation was going on between
Mukand Singh, father of Gurmic
Singh, and her father for the last
8/9 years over a plece of land. In
what context the statement was




k]

madc is not clear. Moreover, the
positive evidence of P\ 6 and PW
7 that chere was no litigazion
pending berween PW 6 and che
father of Gurmit Singh complercly
believed the plea of the accused. If
there was any civil litigation pending
between the parties as alleged by
Gurmit Singh, he could have

produced some documentary proof |

in support thereof bur none was
produced. Even Mukand Singh,
father of Gurmit Singh did not
appear in the witness-box to support
the plea taken by Gurmit Singh. The
allegation regarding any beating
given to Gurmit Singh by PW 6
and to PW 6 by Gurmit Singh and
his brother was denied by PW 6
and no material was brought forth
in suppert of that plea either and
yet the wrial court for undisclosed
reasons assumed that the story
regarding the beating was correct.
Somec stray scnrences in the
statement of the prosecurrix appear
te have been unnecessarily blown
cur of zll proportion to hold that
admiteedly’ PW 6 had been given
a bearing by Gurmir Singh accused
and that there was civil litigation
pending between the father of the
prosecutrix and che father of
Gurmit Singh to show thar the
relations berween the parties were
inimical. There is no acceptable
marterial on the record to hold that

there was any such civil lidgacion
pending botween the parries. Lven
it it be assumed for the sake of
argument that chere was some such
licigation, it could hardly be a
ground for u fachier o pur forch his
daughcer to make a wild allegation
ol rape against the son of the
opposite parey, with a view to rake
revenge.  Ju defies human
probabilitics. No father could stoop
so low as to bring forth a false
charge of rzpe on his unmarried
minor daughter with a view to rake
revenge from the father of an
accused on account of pending civil
litigation. Again, if the accused
could be falsely involved on account
ol that enmity, it was equally
possible that the accused could have
sexually assaulted che prosecutrix to
take revenge from her facher, for
after all, cnmity is a double-cdged
weapon, which may be used for
false implication as well as to take
revenge. In any case, therc is no
prool of the existence of such
enmity between W 6 and che
facher of Guarmic Singh which could
have prompted PW 6 to put up his
daughter to falsely implicace Gurmir
Singh on a charge of rape. The trial
court was in crror to hold chat
Gurmit Singh had been implicated
on account of enmicty berween the
two families and for the beating
given by Gurmit Singh and his
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brother to PW 6, in retaliation of
the beating given by PW 6 to
1-4-1984.
Similarly, so {ar as Jagjit Singh

Gurmit Singh on

respondent is concerned, the trial
court opined that he could have
been got implicated at the instance
of the Sarpanch of Village Pakhowal
who was hostile to Jagjit Singh. The
ground of hostility as given by Jagjiz
Singh against the Sarpanch of
Village Pakhowal stems out of the
fact that the Sarpanch was annoyed
with him for nurrying a Canadian
girl in the village gurdwara. There
is no evidence whatsoever on the
recard to show that the Sarpanch
of Village Pakhowal had any
relationship or connection with the
prosecutrix or her father or was in
any way i1 a position to exerc $o
much of influence on the
prosecutrix or her family, that to
settle his score Tirlok Singh PW &
would put forward his daughter ro
make a false allegacion of rape and
thercby jeopardise her own honour
and future prospecrs of her
marriage cte. The plea of Jagjic
Singh, accused was a plea of despair
not worthy of any credence. Ranjit
Singh, apart from stating rhat he
had been falsely implicated in the
case did not offer any reasons for
his false implication. Tt was at his
wbewell kotha that rape had been
commicted on the prosecutrix. She

had pointed our that kotha o the
police during investigation. No
ostensibie  reason has been
suggested as to why the prosccursix
would falsely involve Ranjie Singh
in the commission of such a
heinous crime and nominace his
kotha as the place where she had
been  subjected 1o sexual
molestation by the respondents, The
wrial court ignored that i is almost
inconceivable chat an unmarried girl
and her parenes would go o the
extent of staking their reputation
and furure in order to falsely set
up a case of rape to sertle peuy
scores as alleged by Jagjic Singh and
Gurmit Singh - respondents.

13. From the statement of the
prosecutrix, it clearly emerges that
she was abducted and forcibly
subjected to sexual intercourse by
the three respondents without her
consent and against her will. 1o chis
factual sitnation the question of age
of the prosccutrix would pale inro
insignificance. However, in the
present case, there is evidence on
the record to establish that on the
date of the occurrence, the
prosecutrix was below 16 years of
age. The prosecutrix herself and her
parents deposed at the trial that her
age was less than 16 years on the
date of the occurrence. Their
evidence is supported by the birth
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certilicate Lx. P, Both Tirlok Singh
PW 6 and Gurdev Kaur PW 7, the
father  and  mother of the
prosccuerix respectively, explained
that nitially they had named their
daughrer, the prosecutrix, as
Mahinder Kaur bur her name was
changed to... (name omirred), as
according o the Holy Gura Granth
Sahib her name was required ro
start with the word ‘chacha’ and
therefore in the school-leaving
certificate her name was correctly
given. There was nothing ro
disbelieve the explanation given by
Tirlok Singh and Gurdev Kaur in
that behaif. ‘The trial court ignored
the explanation given by the parents
observing that “it could not be
swallowed being a belared one™.
The trial court was in error. The
first occasion for inquiring from
Titlok Singh PW 6 abour the
change of the name of the
prosccutrix was only ar the rrial
when he was asked about Ex. PJ
and there had been no earlier
occasion for him o have made any
such statement. It was, therefore,
not a helared explanation. Thar
apart, even according to the {ady
doctor W 1, the

examination of the prosecutrix

clinical

established that she was less than
16 years of age on the date of the
occurrence. The birth certificate
Ex. PJ was not only supported by

the oral wstimony ol TirJok Singh
PV 6 and Gurdey Kawr PYW 7 but
also by that of the school-leaving,
cerrificate marked "B With a view
to do complere justice, rhe trial
court could have summoned the
official concerned Trom the school
(o prove virious cntfies in che
school-leaving certilicare. From the
matcrial an che record, we have
come 1o an unhesitating conclusion
that the prosccutrix was less than
16 years of age when she was made
a viceim of the Tust of the
respondents in the manner deposed
to by her againse her will and
withous her consent. The rrial court
did not rerurn any positve finding
as o whether or not the prosecutrix
was below 10 years of age on 30-
3-1984 and instead went on ro
obscrve that “even assuming for the
sake  of argument thar  che
prosecutris was less than 16 years
of age on 30-3-1984, it could stll
not help the case as she was not a
reliable witness and was attempting
to shield her own conducr by
indulging in falschood ro implicate
the respondents”. The entire
approach of the trial court in
appreciating  the prosecution
evidence and drawing inferences
therefrom was erroneous.

14 The wrial court not only

erroneously  disbelieved  the



prosecutrix, but quire uncharicably
and unjustifiably even characterised
her as “a girl of loose morals™ or
“such type of a girl™

15. What has shocked our
judicial conscience all the more is
the inference drawn by the court,
hased on no evidence and nor even
on a denicd suggestion, to the
effect:

“I'he more probability is that
{prosecutrix) was a girl of loose
character. She wanted o dupe
her parents that she resided for
one night at the house of her
maternal uncle, but for reasons
best know to her, she did not
do so and she preferred o give
company Lo some persons.”

16, We must express our strong
disapproval of the approach of the
trial court and its casting a stigma
on the character of the prosccurrix.
The observations lack sobriery
expected of a Judge. Like such
stigmas have the potenrial of not
only discouraging an even otherwise
reluctant victim of sexual assault to

bring forth complaint for trial of |

criminals, thereby making the
society suffer by letting the criminal
escape even a trial. The courts are
expected to use self-reseraint while
recording such findings which have
larger repercussions so far as the

future of the victim of che sex crime
is concerned and even wider
implications on the society as a
whole — where the victim of crime
is discouraged — the criminal
encouraged and in i crime pers
rewarded ! Even in cases, unlilke rhe
PI'(’.\'C“[ Case, \-\’hC{‘C [hL’f‘L‘ jS some
acceptable material on the record
to show thar che victim was
habituaced to sexual intercourse, no
such inference like the vietim being
a girl of “loose moral character” is
permissible to be drawn from that
circumstance alone. Even if the
prosccutrix, in a given case, las
been promiscuous in her sexual
behaviour earlier, she has a nght
to refuse to submit herself ro sexual
intercourse to anyone and cveryone
because she is not a vulnerable
object or prey for being sexually
assaulted by anyone and everyone.
No stigma, like the one as cast in
the present case should be case
against such a wirness by the
courts, for alter all ic is the accused
and nort the victim of sex crime who

is on rrial in the court.

17. As a result of the aforesaid

discussion, we find chat the
prosecutrix has made a truthful
statement and the prosecution has
cstablished the case againse the
respondents beyond every
reasonable doubt. The trial courr

fell in error in acquirting them of
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the charges levelled against them.
The appreciation of evidence by the
trial court i not only unreasonable
but perverse. The cenclusions
arrived ar by the wrial courr are
untenable and in the established
facts and circumstances of the case,
the view expressed by it is not a
possible view. We, accordingly, sct
aside the judgment of the trial court
and convicr all  the three
respondents for offences under
Section 363/366/368 and 376 1PC.
So far as the sentence is concerned,
the court has to serike a juse
balance. in this case the occurrence
took place on 30-3-1984 (more than
11 years ago). The respondents

were aged between 21-24 years of

age at the time when the offence
was committed. We are informed
that the respondents have not been
involved in any other offence after
they were acquitted by the trial
court on [-6-1985, more than a
decade ago. All the respondents as
well as the prosccutrix musc have
by now got married and setded
down in life. These are some of the
factors which we need o rake into
consideration while imposing an
appropriate sentence on rhe

respondenis.  We accordingly

sentence the respondents for the
offence under Secdon 376 TPC 1o
undergo five years' Rl each and to
pay a fine of Rs. 5000 each and in

defautt of payment of fne o |
yearss Rl cach. For the offence
under Section 363 1PC we senrence
them to undergo three years' RI
cach but imposc no separate
sentence for the offence under
366/368 11C.

SCNCeNCes of

Scctions The
substantive
imprisonment shall, however, run

conourren T[y

18. This Delhi
Damestic Working Womens Forum v.

Court , In

{iion r;_‘/.]h‘ﬂ/ftl" had suggcsted, on
the formulation of a scheme, that
at the time of conviction of a
persen found guilty of having
commiteed the offence or rape the
court shall award compensation.

19. In cthis case, we have, while
convicting the respondents,
imposed, for reasons already sct out
above, the sentence of 3 years, RI
with fine of Rs. 5000 and in defaulc
of payment of fine furcher RI for
one year on cach of the respondents
for the offence under Section 376
1PC. Therefore, we do not, in the
instant case, for those very reasons,
consider it desirable to award any
compensation, in addition to the
fine already imposed, particularly
as no scheme also appears ro have
been drawn up as yer.

20. Before parting with the case,
there is onc other aspect which we
would like to advert ro.




21. Of late, crime against women
1

[

general and rape in particular is
on the increase. Io is an irony that
while we are celebrating woman’s
rights in all spheres, we show lirde
or no concern for her honour. Tt is

a said reflection on the acticude of |

indifference of the soclety towards

the violation of human dignity of

the vicrims of sex crimes. We must
rememiber thar a rapist nor only
violates che victim's privacy and
personal integrity, but inevirably
causes serious psychological as well
as physical harm in the process.
Rape is not merely a physical assaulc
— it is often destrucrive of che
whele personality of che victum. A
murderer descroys the physical body
of his victim, a rapist deprades the
very soul of the helpless female. The
courts, thercfore, shoulder a great
responsibility while trying an
accused on charges of rape. They
must deal with such cases wich
urmost sensitivity. The courts should
examine the broader probabilices
of a case and not get swayed by
minor concradictions or
insignificant discrepancies in the
stacement of the prosecurrix, which
are not of a fawal nature, to throw
out an otherwise reliable
prosccution casc. 1f evidence of the
prosccutrix inspires confidence, it
relied without

must be upon

seeking corroborating of her

statemenc in marerial pardculars. Tf
for some reason the court finds 1
difficult 1o place mplicic reliance
on her testimony, it may ook for
evidence which may lend assierance
to  her rtestimony, shore of
corroboration requited in the case
of an accomplice. The westimony of
the prosccutrix must be appreciated
in the background of the entire
case and rthe orial courr must be
alive ro its responsibility and be
sensitive while dealing with cases

involving scxual molestations.

22, There has been lately, ot of
criticisim of the wreacment of the
vicrims of sexual assaule in the
court  during  their cross-
examination, The provisions of
Evidence Act regarding relevancy of
facts notwithstanding, some
defence counsel adopt the scrategy
of continual questioning of the
prosecutrix as to the denails of the
rape. The victim is required rto
repeat again and again the derails
of the rape incident not so much
as to bring out the {acts on record
or to test her credibility but to test
her story for inconsistencics with a
view to artempt to twist the
interpretation of events given by her
so as to make them appear
inconsistent with her allegations.
The court, therefore, should not sit

as a silent specrator while the
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victims of crime s being cross-
examined by the defence. It must
ctfectively control the recording of
evidence in the court. While every
latitude should be given to the
accused to test the veracity of the
prosecutrix and che credibility of
her  version  through  cross-
examination, the court must also
cnstire thar cross-examination is not
made a means of harassment or
causing humiliation to the vicrim
of crime. A victin of rape, it musc
be remembered, has  abready
undergone a traumaric exporience
and if she is made to repear again
and  again, . unfamiliar
surroundings what she had been
subjecred ro, she may be roo
ashamed and even nervous or
confused o speak and her silence
or a confused stray sentence may
be wrongly interpreted  as
“discrepancies and conrradictions”

in her evidence.

23. The alarming {requency of

crime against women led Parliament
Lo enace Criminal Law
(Amendment) Act, 1983 (Acr 43 of
1983) to make the law or rape more
realistic. By the Amendment Acr,
373 and 3706

amended and certain more penal

Sections Were
provisions were incorporated for
punishing such cuscodians who
molest 1 woman under their custody

or care. Section 114-A was also
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added in che Evidence Act for
drawing a conclusive presumption
as to rhe absence of consent in
certain prosecutions for rape,
involving such custodians. Section
327 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure which deals with the
riglit ol an accused 1o an open rial
was alse amended by addition of

and 3

renumbering, the old section as sul-

sub-sections 2 after
section {1}, Sub-secrion 2 and 3 of
Secrion 327 CrPC provide as

follows :

“327. Court w be apen.—

(2} Notwithstanding anything
contained in sub-scction (1),
the inquiry into and trial of
rape or an olfence under
Secrion 3706, Scction 376-A,
Section 3706-B, Sccrion 376-C
or Section 376-1) of the Indian
Penal Code (45 of 1860) shall

be conducted in camera;

Provided that the presiding
Judge may, if he dhinks fir, or
on an application made by
cither of the partics, allow any
particular person to have
access to, or be or remain in,
the from or bulding used by
the court.

47



(3) Where any proceedings are
held under sub-section (2), 1t
shall not be lawful for any
person to princ or publish any
marter ].[1 I'ﬁ]ation TQ :1]1)’ SUCh
proceedings, except with the
previous permission of the
court,”

24. These two provisions are in
the nature of exception ta the
general rule of an open trial. In spite
of the amendment, however, it is
scen thar che trial courrs either are
not conscious of the amendment or
do nort realise its imporance for
hardly does one come across a case
where the inquiry and wrial of a
rapc case has been conducted by
the court in camera. The expression

chat the inquiry into and trial of |

rape “shall be conducted in camera”

as occurring in sub-section (2) of

Section 327 CrPC is not only
significant but very impeortant. It
casts a dity on the court to conduct
the crial of rape cases etc. invariably
“in camera”. The courts are obliged
to act in furtherance of the
intention by the
legislature and not to ignore ics

expressed

mandatc and must invariably wke

recourse to the provisions af ¢

Section 327(2) and (3) CePC and
hold the rial of rape cases in
camera. [t would enable the victim
of crime to be a litle comfortable

and answer the questons with
greater ease in not oo familiar o
surroundings. Trial in camera would
not only be in keeping with the self-
respect of the victim of crime and
in tune with the legislarive intent
but is also likely o improve che
quality of the evidence of a
prosecutrix because she would not
be so hesitant or bashful to depose
frankly as she may be in an open
cawrt, under the gaze of public. The
improved quality of her evidence
would assist the courts in arriving,
at the truth and shifting truch from
falschood. The High Courts would
theretore be well-advised to draw
the atrention of che oial coures o
the amended provisions of Section
327 CrPCand o impress upon the
Presiding Officers to invariably
hold che erial ol rape cases in
camera, rather than in the open
court as envisaged by Scction 327(2)
CrPC. When trials arce held in
camera, it would nor be lawful for
any person te print or publish any
matter  in relation  to  che
proceedings in the case, except with
the previous permission of the court
as envisaged by Secrion 327(3)
CrPC. This would save any furcher
embarrassment being caused o the
victim of scx crime. Whercever
possible, it may also be worth
considering whether it would not
be more desirable that the cases of
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sexual assaules on che females are
triecd by lady Judges, whenever
available, so that the prosccutrix can
make her statement with greater
ease and assist the courts 1o
properly discharge their duties,
without allowing the trurth o be
sacrificed at the alwar of rigid
technicalities while appreciating
evidence in such cases. The courts
far as possible, avoid

the

should, as

disclosing  the name of

prosccucrix in their orders 1o save
further embarrassment to the victim

of sex crime. The anonymigy of the

(Also reported in 1996 (2) SCC 384)

 Seate of Puma

victim of the crime niust be
maintained as far as possible
throughout. i the present case, che
trial court has repeatedly used the
name of rhe vicim in s order
under appeal, when it could have
just referred to her as che
prosecutrix. We need say no more
on this aspect and hope that che
rrial courts would take recourse to
the provisions of Sections 327(2}
and (3) CrPC liberally. Trial of rape
cases in camnera should be the rule

and an open trial in such cases an

exception.




State of Andhra Pradesh

Appellang

Versus

Gangula Satya Murthy

1. A girl of sixteen (Sarya Vani)
was raped and throriled o death.
This was the gravamen of the
charge put against respondent
Cangula Satya Murthy alias Babu.
Sessions court convicted him under
Sections 302 and 376 of the Indian
Penal Code and sentenced him to
imprisonment for lifc and rigorous
7

I'CSPL?C{iVC‘l}’ under the rwo COLINLS,

imprisonment  for years
But on appeal, a Division Bench
of the High court of Andhra
Pradesh acquitted him. This appeal
by special leave has been filed by
the State of Andhra Pradesh in

challenge of the said order of

acquirtal.

2. We shall state the facts of the

casc as  put forch by the

prosccution:

Satya Vani was a student of 10th
Standard. She was residing with her
parents in the village Talluru {Ease
Godavari Districr). Respondent
Babu, a married youngman, was
residing with his mather in their
house situated near the house of
the deceased. Satya Vani used to
visit respondent’s house to see
television programmes as there was

Respondents

no tclevision set available in her
house. Respondenr developed, in
course of rime, an infatuation for
Satya Vani, but the overtures made
by him were nor lavourably
reciprocared by her

3. On the evening of 26-11-1991
Satya Vani was sent by her parents
to the house where her grand-
parents lived with some errand.
While rerurning from there she
stepped into respondent’s house for
seeing the telecast programmes.
Respondent was all alone then in
thar house as his mother had gone
1o the town to see a cinema show,
laking advanrage of the absence of
anyone the
respondent subjecred Satya Vani o

else  in house,
sexual intercourse by forcibly
putting her on the cor. When she
threatened that she would complain
it to her parents respondents caught
hold of her neck and throttled her
to death. A firde later respondent
went out of the house bolting it
from outside.

4. As Sarya Vani did not return
home cven after a long cdme her
parents became panicky and they
made hectic enquiries for her
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When respondent’s mother reached
home by about 10 p.n., she found
Satya Vani's dead body lying on the
and  she

cot in her house,

immediately  conveyed  the
frightening news to her anxious

parcn (s.

5. Police was informed of the
macter and an FIR under Secrion
174 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure was prepared, and the
inquest on the dead body was held
by the Sub Inspector of Police.
During autopsy it was revealed thar
Sarva Vani was subjected to sexual
intercourse and her death was due
to throctling.

G. On 2-12-1991. respondent
was physically produced before the
police by two residents of the
locality (PW-6 and PW-7) on the
premise that respondent had
admitted his guile to them. A letcer
which Satya Vani had addressed to
the respondent was also delivered
o the police. After completing the
investigation respondent  was
challanged.

7. Sessions court found on

evidence, which s entirely
circumstantial, that respondent had
raped the deceased girl and killed
her by throtling. Accordingly the
respondent was convicted and

sentenced as aforesaid.
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8. The ll)”n\-ving clireumstances
were found by the sesstons court
as established firmly by the
(1) Sarya Vani was

scen entering the house of the

ProseciTion

respandenc by about 530 pamas (2)
After some time respondent was
seen going oul ol the house boling,
the door from ouside; {3) Death
of Sarya Vani ok place inside the
house of the respondent some time
berween 6 pom. and 106 pon (4)
She was subjecred to sexual
intercourse before her deach and
she died due to dhrottling: (3)
Respondent alone was present in the
house during the relevant rime
besides  the  deceased.  {0)
Extrajudicial confession was made
by the respondent to PW-6 and

PNY-7.

9. The Division Bench of the
High court of Andhra Pradesh,
however, cxpressed the view that
possibility of deceased’s death due
to consumption of poisen, could
not be ruled out in this case.
Learned Judges enrertained the
doubt that the injurics on the neck
including the fracture of the hyoid
bone could have been post-mortem
injuries. Furcher, the cxura judicial
confession spoken to by PW-6 and
PW-7 was not acted on by the High
Court due rto certain infirmitics
painted out in the judgment.




Rusulrantly, cthe High Court
rCVCI‘SC({ thC jlldgﬂ](‘lnf ()f‘ thC
sessions court and passed the order

of acquittal.....

11 D K. Trinadhrao (PN-10)
of the Government Hospital who
conducred the post-mortem
examination has recorded his
observations in the certificate as

follows -

“Injuries are anre-mortemm in
nature. Two finger pressure
abrasions were present on the
right as well as on the lett side
of the neck placed anteriorly,
which continued up to the root
level on the back of the neck.
A fresh vaginal rear on the
inner vaginal walls posterior to
labia minora, fracture of the
right  hyoid bone and
extravagation of blood on both
sides of the neck were found.
Both {ungs were congested.
Emphysematoas bullac were
present on the surface of both

the lungs.”

When the vaginal swabs collected
from the deceased were examined
under microscope, presence of
dead non-mortile spermatozoa were
observed by the docror....

13, We cannot resist cxpressing
cur distress thar the High Court

haS Chl)s(‘n o ﬂdvil”CL' i"l'ﬂgi](.'
reasons o upset a well reasoned
conclusion reached by the trial
court that the deceased was
throttled to deach. The mere fact
that witnesses present ac the inquest
had escaped noedcing the small
abrasions on the neck of the dead
bedy is roo tenuous a ground for
holding chat such abrasions would
have come into existence afrer the
inguest was held overrnling the
definite opinion of the medical man
{(who saw the injuries) that they
were ante-mortem injurics. [t is
totally incorrect to say that no
abrasion would be caused if
pressure is applicd with fingers. It
is only common scnse that if such
fingers have projecting nails,
pressure application wich such
fingers would quite possibly cause
abrasions as well. Similarly the
observation of the High courr cthac
no bleeding was noticed at the site
of the fracture of the hyoid bone is
not factually correct as PW-10 had
noted in the post-mortem certificate
that there was extravagarion of

blood on both sides of the neck.

14. 'The High
adverted to vet another reason for

Court  has

holding thar death might not have
been caused due to throttling. The
vomited material found on the cor
and mouth of the dead body was
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not sent for chemical examinacion,
and  henee the High Court
concluded char “it is also possible
that death might have been caused
due o asphyxia by potsoning.” We
arc disturbed very much as the High
Courr has overlooked, if nort
ignored, the evidence of Dr.
Trinadharao (PW-10) that viscera
comprising of stomach concents,
intestine, piece of lever and also a
kidney had been forwarded o the
chemical laboratory for analysis and

PW-10 had

opinion till he got the result of such

reserved his final
analysis. When he later received the
chemical examination report he
pronounced his final opinion chat
the death was due to asphyxia as
no poison was detected in the
viscera, The report of the chemical
examiner 1s available in the records.
Secrion 293 of the Code would
enable the courr to use the said
document in evidence. Tnspite of
such unasszilable marterials the
High Court has arrived at the
finding thac “in the facts and
circumstances of the case it cannot
be ruled outr in its enrirety thart
death
poisoning.”

was not caused due ro

15. One of the circumstances
relied on by the prosecution is that
respondent had confessed the guile

to PW-6 and PW-7. In other

words, prosccution relied on che
exrra judicial confession of the
respondent spoken to by the said
two witnesses. fn thelr deposition
they said that on 2.12.1991, they
butconholed the respondent and
confronred him wich certain
questions pertaining to the death of
the deccased and then respondent
had blurted out to them of what
happenced.  Witnesses  further
deposed that respondent ook out
a letrer and showed it to them.
Witnesses thereupon reok him tw
the police station where thar letzer
was also produced. PW-14 - Sub
Tnspector of Police confirmed char
those twao witnesses brought the
respondent to the police station and

pr()duccd Ext. P-13 letter

16. Truth of the evidence of PYW/-
6 and PW-7 stands vouchsafed by
Ext. P-13 letter as the same was
proved to be a letter written by the
deceased to the respondent. PW-12

Assistant Dircctor Forensic Science

Laboratory, who was also a
Handwriting Expert examined the
handwriting on the letter with the
admitted handwriting of the
deceased found in some answer
sheets (which police collected from
the Principal of the School where
Sarya Vani studied - PW-13) PW-

12 gave Ccogent reasons FO!' his
=

conclusion that both were written




by the same person. A reading of
the conrenes in that fecrer adniirs
of no doubr thar it was addressed
to the respondent in chis casce

17. The aforesaid extra judicial
confession was relied on by the rial
court by the High Courr did not
act on it for two reasons. First is a
secming disparity beeween the time
of making the confession as spoken
to by the witaesses and che time
mentioned by the police on rhe
strength ot station records. The
second reason is that the said extra
judicial confession was reduced o
writing as Lxe. P-7, inside the
police station and hence it is hit
by Section 26 of the Evidence Act.

18. [t is truc thar in the
deposition PW-6 and PW-7 have
said thar it was at 7 a.m. thae the
respondent made the confession o
them. But the Sub Tnspecror said
that accused was produced in the
police station at 7.30 p.m. We
think that much should not have
been made out of that disparity as
there could be a possibility of
making an crror in recording the
time a.m. for p.m. We say this
because both PW-6 and PW-7
uniformly said chat they took the
respondent to the police station
situated about 3 kilomerters away.
As the police records show thar

is only inferencial that respondent
would have made the confession on
the evening and not during mormning
hours. At any rawe i s not proper
to jerrison on otherwise sturdy
piece of evidence of extra judicial
confession on the ground of such a
rickery premise.

19. The other reasoning based
on Scction 26 of the Evidence Act
is also fallacious. It is truc any
confession made to a police officer
is inadmissible under Section 25 of
the Acc and that ban is furcher
strerched through Secrion 26 to the
confession made to any ocher
person also if the confessor was
then in police custody. Such
“custody” need not necessarily be
post arrest custody. The word
“custody” used in Sccdon 26 is to
be understood in a pragmaric scnse.
If any accused is within the ken of
surveillance of the police during
which his movements are restricted
then it can be regarded as custodial
surveillance for the purpose of the
Section. If he makes any confession
during that period to any person
be he not a police officer. such
confession would also be hedged
hanned
Section 26 of the

within the CONEOUTS
outlined in

Evidence Act.

20. Buc the confession made by

they produced him ar 7.30 p.m. it ¢ the respondent to PW-6 and PW-7
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was nor made while he was
anywhere near the preciners of the
police srarion or during  rthe
surveillance of the police. Though
Ext, -7 would have been recorded
inside the police station irs conwents
were disclosed long before they
were reduced to writing, We are
only cencerned with the inculpatory
statement which respondent had
made o PW-6 and PW-7 before
they rook him to the police station.
So the mere facr that the confession
spoken to these witnesses was later
put in black and white is no reason

to cover it with the wrapper of

inadmissibility. We find that the
High Court has wrongly sidelined
the extra judicial confession.

21. The fact that body of (Satya
Vani) was found on the cor inside
the house of the respondent is a
very telling circumstance againsr
him. Respondent owed a duty wo
explain as to how a dead body
which was resultant of 2 homicide
happened to be in his house. In
the absence of any such explanation
from him the implicacdion of the
said circumstances is delinitely
adverse to the respondent.

22. High Court has cxtricated the
appellant from the indictment of
rape on the erroncous assumption
that it would have been a consented
copulation. Learned Judges have

- State. of Andllra: Pradesh. Versus Gungula. Satya Murth

relied on two circumstances in
support of the said assumprion.
One is chat there was no nail mack
on the breast or face or rhigh or
private parts of the deceased for
indicating resistance offered by her
Sceond is thar PW-10 doctor did
not notice any hymen for rhe
deceased. In chat realm alse the
High court commicted serious error
in skipping the contenss of Fxo. -
13 lereer and also the injury on the
right side of the posterior labia
mincera, (we have mentioned it
supra). Of course chat injury by
itselt is not conclusive proof of
resistance but it cannot be ignored
altogether. In Exc. P-13 letter, she
cautioned the respendent not ta
She
deprecared in her lewer the idea of

have a leering on  her.
a marricd man enjoying another
lady by werming it an act of “grave
si”. Further, in his extra judicial
confession made to PW-6 and PW-
7, respondent had said that he ook
the girl by force and kept her on
the cot as he was leng nurturing
the lust o enjoy her. The doctor
had found fresh vaginal tear on the
right side of the inner vaginal wall
posterior. This injury is indicative

of forcible sexual intercourse.

¢ According o the medical opinion

also the presence of fresh vaginal
tear showed rthat the deceased had
been subjected to sexual intercourse




prior to her death. The very facr
thar the sexual intercourse was soon
followed, if not centemporancous
with, by the act of throuling is
strongly suggestive of a vchement
resistance offered by the female
victim.

23. We have absolutely no doubt
thar the above circumstances are
suilicient to reach the irresistible
inference that she was ravished by
the respondent despite her refusal,

24, The High court afrer
considering the medical evidence,
while dealing with the question of
rape opined :

“I'’here 1s no direcr evidence
to show thar the accused alone
had sexual intercourse with
her. The deceased was aged 16
years.”

25. We are rather distressed on
this comment. Bur using the word
“alone” the High Court almost cast
a stigma on the prosccutrix as if,
apart from the appellant, there were
other persons also who had sexual
intercourse wicth her. There is no
basis ar all for such an assumption.
There was no warrant for recording
such a finding and if we may say
so, with respect, the finding is an
irresponsible finding. We express
our strong disapproval of the

approach of the High Court and
its casting a stiwma on the characrer
of the deceased prosecutrix. Even
if the Courr formed an opinion,
from the absence of hymen, chat
the vicrim had sexual intercourse
prior to the time when she was
subjected to rape by the appellant,
she had every right ro refuse to
submit herself to sexual intercourse
by the appellant, as she cerrainly
was not 4 vulnerable object or prey
tor being sexually assaulred by
anyone and this position becomes
all the more clear from the contents
of the letter Ex. 13, as already
noticed.

26. We, therefore, conclude chat
the High Court erred substantially
in upserting the convicrion and
sentence passed by the Scssions
Judge supported by sound and
sturdy reasons. We, thercfore, allow
this appeal and set aside the order
of acquittal. We restore the
conviction and sentence passed on
the respondent/accused by the trial
court. The bail bond shall stand
cancelled. The respondent shall be
taken into custody forthwith to
undergo the remaining part of the
sertence.

27. Before parting with the case,
we would like to point out that the
Courrs are cxpected w0 show great

responsibility while trying an




accused on charges of rape. They
must deal with such cases with
urmost sensitivity. The courts
should examine rthe broader
probabilities of a case and not vet
swayed by minor contradictions or
insignificant discrepaacies in the
statement of the witnesses, which
are not of a fatal nature o throw
out allegations of rape. This is all
the more important because of lare
crime against women in gencral and
rape in particular is on the increase.
It is an irony that while we are
celebrating woman’s rights in all
spheres, we show little or no
concern for her honour. Tt is a sad
reflection and we must emphasise

that the courts must deal with rape

H

cases in parcicutar with urmost
sensitivity and appreciare the
evidence in the rowlity of the
background of the entire case and
not in isolation. One of us {Dr,
Anand J.) has observed in Sware of
Punjaly v, Gurmit Singh and others
(1990) 2 SCC 384 thus:

“The Courts, therefore,
shoulder a great responsibilicy
while trying an accused on
charges of rape. They must
deal with such cases with
utmost sensitivity.”

28. We think it is appropriate
to reiterate thosc observations in
this case.

{Also reported in JT 1996 (10) SCC 550)

- State of Andbria Pradeshs Versus Gingula Satya Mirily




-
fxe e

Chairman, Railway Board and Others ...

Appellants;

Versus

Chandrima Das (Mrs) and Others

2. Mrs Chandrima Das, a
practising advocate of the Calcurta
High Court filed a petition under
Article 226 of the Constitution
against the Chairman of Railway
Board; General Manager, Eastemn
Railway; Divisional Railway and
State of West Bengal through the
Chief Secretary; Home Secretary,
Government of West Bengal;
Superintendent of Police
(Ratlways),
Superintendent of Police, Howrah;

Howrah;

Direcror General of Police, West
Bengal and many other officers
Depury High
Republic  of
Bangladesh; claiming compensation
Smt Hanuifa
Khatoon, a Bangladesh national who

including the
Comumissioner,

for the victim,

was gang-raped by many including
employess of the Railways in a
room at Yarri Niwas at Howrah
Station of the Easrern Railway
regarding which GRPS Case No.
19 of 1998 was registered on 27-
2-1998, Mrs Chandrima Das also
claimed several other reliefs
including a direction to rhe
respondents eradicate anti-social
and criminal activities at Howrah

Railway Station,

Respondents

3. The facis as noticed by the
High Court in the impugned
judgment are as follows -

“Respondents Railways and the
Union of India have admirted that
amongst the main accused you are
employees of the Railways and if
the prosecution version is pmvcd
in accordance with law, cthey are
perpetrators of the heinocus crime
of gang-rape repeatedly committed
upon the hapless victim Fanutta
Khatoon. It is not in dispute that
Hanuffa came from Bangladesh.
She ac the relevanr time was the
clected representative of the Union
Board.
Railway Stadon on 26th February,
1998 ac about 1400 hours to avail

She arrived at Howrah

- Jodhpar Express at 2300 hours for

paying a visit to Ajmer Sharif. With
that intent in mind, she arrived at
Calcutta on 24th February, 1998
and stayed at a hotel ac 10, Sudder
Streer, Police Staton Talrola and
came to Howrah Station on the
date and cime aforementioned. She
had, however, a wair-listed ticket
and so she approached a Train
Ticket Fxaminer at the station for
confirmation of berth against her
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ticker. T'he Train Ficker Examiner
asked her to wair in che Ladies
Waiting Room. She accordingly
came to the Ladics Waiting room
and rested there.

AL abour 1700 hours on 26ch
February, 1998 two unknown
persons (later identificd as onc
Ashoke Singh, a tour who posced
himself as a very influential person
of the Railways and Siya Ram
Singh, a railway tcker broker
having good acquaintance with
some of the railway seaff of Howrah
Station) approached her, ook her
ticker and returned the same after
confirming rescrvation in Coach
No. 5-3 (Berth No. 17} of Jodhpur
Express. At abour 2000 hours Siya
Ram Singh came again to her with
a boy named Kashi and told her o
accompany the boy to a restaurant
if she wanted w0 have food for the
night. Accordingly at abour 2100
hours she went to a nearby cacing
house with Kashi and had her meal
there. Soon after she had raken her
meal, she vomited and came back
to the Ladies Waiting Room. At
aboutr 2100 hours Ashcke Singh
along with Rafi Ahmed, a Parcel
Supervisor at Howrah Station came
Niwas beforc

to the Ladies

boarding the train, She appearcd

o have some doubr initally but on

fady

being certified by the

Raitway Board

ateendanes engaged on duty ar the
Ladies” Whaiting Room about their
credentals she accompanied them
to Yatri Niwas. Sita Ramr Singh, a
lhalasi of Elecrric Department of
Howrah Stanon joincd cheny an the
way to Yarri Niwas, She was taken
1o Room No. 102 on che firse floor
of Yarri Niwas, The room was
booked in the name of Ashok
Singh against Railway Card Pass
No. 30638 since 25th February,
1998, In Room No. 102 two other
persons viz. one Lalan Singh,
Parcel Clerk of Howrah Railway
Station and Awdesh Singh, Parcel
Clearing Agent were walting.
Hanuffa Khatoon
something amiss when Ashok

suspected

Singh forced her into the room.
Awdesh Singh bolted the room from
outside and stood on guard outside
the room. The remaining four
persons viz. Ashoke, Lalan, Rafi
and Sita Ram ook liquor inside the
room and also forcibly compelled
her to consume liquor. All the four
persons who were present inside
the room brurally violaced Hanuffz
Kharoon, who, it is said, was in a
state of shock and daze. When she
could recover she managed o
escape from the room of Yacri
Niwas and came back to the
platform where again she Siya Ram
Singh and found him talking to
Ashoke Singh. Seeing her plight
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Siya Ram Singh prerended to be
her saviour and also abused and
slapped Ashoke Singh. Since it was
well past midnight and Jodhpur
Express already departed, Siya Ram
requested Hanuffa Kharoon to
accompany him to his residence to
rest for che night with his wife and
children. He assured her to help
entrain Poorva Express on the
following morning. Thereafier Siya
Ram accompanicd by Ram Samiran
Sharma a friend Siya Ram took her
1o the rented flat of Ram Samiran
Sharma at 66, Pathuriagham Street,
Police Station Jorabagan, Calcurta.
There Siya Ram raped Hanuffa and
when she protested and resisted
violently Siya Ram and Ram
Samiran Sharma gageed her mouth
and nostrils inrending to kill her,
as a result Hanuffa bled profusely.
On being informed by the landlord
of the building following the hue
and cry raised by Hanuffa Khatoon,
she was rescued by Jorabagan
Police.”

4. Tt was on the basis of the
above facts thac the High Court had
awarded a sum of Rs 10 lakhs as
compensation for Smr Hanuffa
Khatoon as the High Court was of
the opinion that the rape was
committed at the building (Railway
Yacrri Niwas) belonging to the
Railways and was perperrated by the

!.'ail\’\’ ays 6[’11PIOYCCS.

5. In the present appeal, we are
not concerned with cthe many
dircetion wssued by the High Court.
The only question argued before us
was that the Railways would nort be
liable w pay compensation (o Sme
H anu f‘rﬂ

foreigner and was not an indian

Khatoon who was a
nacional. [t is also contended thac
commission of the offence by the
pcrs{m concerned would not make
the Railways or the Union of india
liable to pay compensation to the
victim of persons, they along would
be prosecuted and on being found
guilty would be punished and may
also be liable to pay fine or
compensation, but having regard o
the facts of this case, the Railways,
ar, for that matter, the Union of
India would not even be vicariously
Hable. L1 is also contended thar the
remedy lay in the domain of private
law and not under public law and
therefore, no compensation could
have been legally awarded by the
High Court in proceedings under
Article 226 of the Constitution and,
thar too =t the instance of a
practising advocate who, in no way,
was concerned or connected wich
the vietim.

6. We may first dispose of the
contention raised on behalf of
appellants that proceedings under
Article 226 of the Constitution




could have been legally initiated for

claiming damages from the
Railways for the offence of rape
committed Smt  Hanuffa
Khatoon and that Smt Hanuffa

Khartoon

on

herself should have
approached the cowrt in the realn
of private law so rthat all rhe
questions of fact could have been
considered on the basis of the
evidence adduced by the parties o
record a finding whether all rhe
ingredients of the commission of
“tort” against the person of Smi
Hanuffa Khateon were made our,
50 as to be centitled to the relief of
damages. We may also consider the
question of locus standi as it is

behalf of

appelfants that Mrs Chandrima

contended on the
Das, who is a pracuising advocate
of the High Court of Calcurra,
could not have legally insticuted
these proceedings.

9. Various aspects of the public
faw fcld were considered. It was
found that though initially a
petition under Arricle 226 of che
Constitution relating to contractual
matters was held nor ro lie, che law
underwent a change by subsequent
decisions and it was notified that
even though the petition may relate
essentially to conrractual muateer, it
would still be amenzble to the writ
jurisdiction of the High Court

under Article 226. The public law
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remedics have also been extended
to the realm of tort. This Courr, in
its  various  decisions, has
entertained peritions under Article
32 of the

number of occasions

Constitution on a

and has
awarded compensation to rthe
petitioners who had  suffered
personal injuries at the hands of the
officers of the Government...

I'l. Having regard to whar has
been stated above, the contention
that Smt Hanuffa Khatoon should
have approached the civil court for
damages and the matter should not
have been considered in a petition
Article 226 of
Constitution, cannot be accepred,

under the
Where public functionarics are
involved and the matter refates o
the violation of fundamental righes
or the enforcement of public duties,
the remedy would still be available
under the public law
notwithstanding that a suit could be

filed for damages under privase law.

12, In the instant case, ir is not
a mere matter of violaton of an
ordinary right of a person bur the
violation of fundamental rights
which is involved. Smr. Hanuffa
Khatoon was a victim of rape. This
court in Bodhisattwa Gautam v.
Subbra Chakraborty” has held
“rape” as an offence which is
violative of the fundamental right




of a person guaranceed under
Arricle 21 of the Constiturion. The
Court observed as under (SCC p.
500, para 10)

Rape is a crime not only against
the person of a woman, it is a crime
against the endre sociery. It
destroys the entire psychology of a
woman and pushes her into decp
emortional  crisis.  Rape s,
therefore, the maost hated crime. {t
is a crime against basic human
rights and is violative of the viccim’s
most cherished right, namely, right
to life which includes right o live
with human dignity conrained in

Arricle 21.

13. Rejecting, thercfore, the
contention of the learned counsel
for the appellant that the pertition
under public law  was not
maintainable, we now proceed to
his next contention relating w the
locus standi of the respondent, Mrs
Chandrima Das, in filing the
petition,

14, The main contenrion of the
learned counsel for the appellants
is that Mrs Chandrima Das was
only a practising advocate of the
Calcueta High court and was, In no
way, connected or related to the
victim, St Hanuffa Khatoon ard,
therefore, she could not have filed
a petiion under Article 226 for

damages or compensation being
awarded o Smt Hanuffa Khatoon
on account of the rape commirted
an her. This contention is based on
a misconception. Learned counscl
for the appeliants is under the
impression thar the petition [iled
before the Caleurta Court was only
a  petivon for damages or
compensation for Sme Hanulla
Kharoon. As a matrer of facr, the
reliefs which were claimed in the
petition included the relief for
compensation. Bur many other
relicfs, as, for example, relief for
eradicacing anti-social and criminal
activities of wvarious kinds at
Howrah Railway Station were also
claimed. The true nature of the
petition, therefore, was that of a
pecicion filed in public interest.

15. The existence of a legal right,
no doubt, is the foundation for a
peticion under Arricie 226 and a
bare interest, may be of a minimum
nature may give locus standi to a
person to file a writ petition, but
the concept of “locus standi” has
undergone a sea change, as we shall
presenty notice. In Satyanarayana
Sinha (Dr) v S Lal & Co. (P) Ltd™
it was held that the foundation for
exercising jurisdiction under Arricle
32 or Article 226 is ordinarily the
personal or individual right of the
petitioner himself. In writs like
habeas corpus and quo warranto,
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the rule has been relaxed and

modified.

17. In the conrext of public
interest hiigation, however, the
Court in its various judginents has
given the widest amplitnde and
meaning to the concept of locus

standi. In Peoples Union for

Democratic Righes v Union of

Tnelie™ it was laid down thar public
interest litigadion could be initated
not only by filing formal petitions
in the High Court but even by
sending letters and telegrams so as
ro provide easy access to court
{(See also Bandhua Muki Morcha
v. Union of India®™ and State of H.1
v. A Parent of @ Studenr of Medical
College™ on the right to approach
the court in the realm of public
interest litigatien). 1n Bangalore
Medical {rust v. B.S. Muddappa® the
Court held thar the restricted
meaning of aggrieved person and
the narrow outlock of a specific
injury has yielded in favour of a
broad and wide construction in the
wake of public interest litigation.
The Court further observed chat
public-spirited citizens having faith
in the rule of law arc rendering
great social and legal service by
espousing causes of public nature.
They

overlooked on 2

cannot be ignored or
technical or

conservative vardsrick of che rule

of locus standi or the absence of :

< Chiitmans. |

personal loss or injury. There has,
thus, been a specracular expansion
of the concepr of locus standi. The
concept is much wider and it takes
in its stride anyone who is not a

mere “busvbody”.

18, Having regard o the nature
of the petition filed by respondent
Mrs Chandrima Das and the relief
claimed therein it cannot he
doubted thar this petition was filed
in public interest which could legally
be filed by the respondent and the
argument that she could not file that
peticion as there was nothing
personal to her involved in that

petition must be rejected.

19, Tt was next contended by the
learned counsel appearing on behalf
of the appellancs that Smt Hanuffa
Khacoon was a foreign national and,
therefore, no relief under public law
could be granted to her as there was
no violation of the fundamental
rights  available  under che
Constitution. It was contended that
the fundamental rights in Pare 101
of the Constirution are available
only to citizens of this country and
since Smt Hanuffa Khatoon was a
Bangladeshi national, she cannot
complain of the violation of
fundamental rights and on that basis
she cannot be granted any relief.
This argument must also fail for two
reasons: first, on the ground of

sidyima Dias (M) il Others



domestic jurisprudence based on

constitutional  provisions  and
secondly, on the ground of human
rights jurisprudence based on the
Universal Declaration of Human
Righes, 1948, which has rhe
international recognition as the
“Moral Code of Conduct” having
been adopted by the General

Assembly of the United Nations,

20. We will come to the question

of domestic jurisprudence a lirde |

later as we intend to [irst consider

the principles and objects behind
the Universal Declaration of Human

proclaimed by the United Narions

alia, scts our as under ;

and peace in the world.

WHEREAS  disregard

and
resulred in barbarous acts which

mankind, and the advent of a world
in which human beings shall enjoy
freedom of speech and belief and
freedom from fear and want has

one

¢ been prociaimed as the highese

¢ aspiration of the common people.

21. Thereafter, the declaration

{osers out, inter alia, in various

- articles, the following -

“1. All human beings are born

» free and equal in dignity and rights.
i They arc endowed with reason and
i conscience and should act rowards

anocher in 2 spiric of

brotherhood.

2. Lveryone is entitled o all the

¢ rights and freedoms ser fordh in this
Rights, 1948, as adopted and | DcclaTatl(m\ without distincrion of
i any kind. such as race. colour, sex
General Assembly Resolution of lanfgu-:lge, religion, political or other
; oprnion,

10-12-1948. The Preamble, inter ’ )
. SOCIAL ORIGIN, PROPERTY,

. BIRTH OR OTHER STATUS.
“WHEREAS recognidion of

INHERENT DIGNITY and of the T

equal and inalienable rights of all _le.l I‘N(J,{ON L ;
members of the human family is MADh ONTHE BASIS OF THE
L ; - LT ¢ POLITICAL, JURISDICTIONAL
the foundarion of freedom, justice : :

OR INTERNATIONAIL STATUS
OF THE
TERRITORY to which a person

NATIONAL QR

NO
SHATLL BE

Furthermore,

COUNTRY OR

. . . belongs, whether it be in 1dent
contempt for human rights have | ongs, whether it be indeper ’

i otrust, non—sclﬁg()Vﬁrhing or under

. - - | any other limiration of sovereignity.
have outraged the conscience of | =~

3. Everyone has the right to life,

liberty and security of person.

* * *
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5. No one shall be subjected 1o
torturce or to cruel, inhuman or
treatment

degrading or

leHiSh[]lClH’.

7. Al are equal before the law

any

discrimination to egual protection

and are enritled wichout
of the law. All are endtled 10 equal

PI’D(CC[iOll against any

discriminarion in violation of this
and

incitement te such discrimination,

DCCla['ﬂli(}ll ’dg;lil'l.’if any

9. No one Shall be subjected 1o
arbitrary arrest, detention or exilc.”

22. Apart from the above, the
General Assembly also whilc
adopting the Declaration on the
Elimination of Violence against
Women, by its resolution dated 20-
12-1993, observed in Article 1 that;

“ violence against women’ means
any act of gender-based violence
thar results in, or is likely to resulr,
in physical, scxual or psychological
harm or suffering to women,
including threars of such acts,
coercion of arbitrary deprivation of
liberty, whether occurring in public
or in private life”.

In Arcicle 2, it was specified chat:

. vielence against women shall
be understood to encompass, but
not be limired to -

sexual  and

{a)

psychological violence occurring in
¥ ¢ &

physical,

the family including battering,
sexual abuse of female children in

the househald, dowry-relared
vioicnce, marital rape, female
genital mutilation and  other

traditional practices harmful to
women, non-spousal violence and
violence related to exploitarion;

sexual  and

(b)

psychological violence eecuring

physical,

within the general community,
including rape, sexual abuse, sexual
harassments and intimidacion at
work, in educational institutions
and elsewhere, trafficking in wonmen
and forced prostirucion;

sexual  and

(c)

psychological violence perperrared

physical

or condoned by the Stare, wherever
it occurs.”

23. In Article 3, it was specified.
that :

women are entitled o the
equal enjoyment and prorecrion of
all human rights, which would
include, inter alia:

el Others.



{a) the right to life,
(Iy) the right o equality, and

(¢) The right o iiberty and
secutisy of person.”

24, The International Covenants
and Declarations as adopred by the
United Nations
respected by all signatory States and

have o be

the meaning given to the above
words in those Declarations and
Covenants have to be such as would
help in effective implementation of
those rights. The applicability of the
Universal Declaration of Human
Rights and the principles thereot
may have to be read, if need be,
into the domestic jurisprudence.

25. Lord [hplock in Safomon v.
Commy. of Cusioms and Excise™ said
that rthere is a prima facie
presumption that Parliament does
not intend to act in breach of
international law, including specific
treaty obligations. So alse, Lord
Bridge in ‘Brind v. Secy. of Staze for
the Home Depre observed thac it
was well serdled that, In construing
any provision in  domestic
fegislation which was ambiguous in
the sense that it was capable ol a
meaning which either conforms to
or conflicts with the International
Convention, the courts would

presume that Parliament intended

to legislate in conformity with the
Convention and not 1 contlict with
1t.

26. The domestic application of
international human rights and
norms was considered by che
Judicial Colloquia {judges and
Lawyers) ac Bangalore in 1988, It
was later affirmed by the Colloquia
thar it was the vital dury of an
independent judiciary o interpret
and apply national Constitutions in
the light of those principles. Furcher
Colloguia were convened in 1994
at Zimbabwe, m 1996 ar Hong
Kong and in 1997 at Guyana and
in all chose Colloquia, the question
of domestic application of
international and regional human
rights specially in relation ro
wWomen, The
Zimbabwe Declaration 1994, inter

was considered.

alia, stated :

" Judges and lawyers have durty
ro familiarise themselves with the
growing international jurisprudence
of human rights and particularly
with the expanding material on the
protection and promotion of the
human rights of women.”

Bur this sicuation may not really
arise 1n our country.

27, Our Constitution guarantees
all the basic and fundamenta!l
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human rights set out in the
Universal Declaration of Human
Righrs, 1948, to its citzens and
other persons. The chapter dealing
with the fundamental rights is
Pare IT1 of the
Constitution. The purpose of this

contained in

Part is ¢ safeguard the basic human

rights {rom che vicissitudes of

political controversy and to place
them beyend the reach of che
political parties who, by vircue of
their majority, may come o form
the Government ar the Centre or
in the Stte.

28. The fundamenral rights are
available to all the “citizens” of the
country bur a few of them are also
available to “persons”. While Article
14, which guarantees equality before
law or the cqual protection of laws
within the cerritory of Indis, is
applicable to “person” which would
also include the “citizen” of the
country and “non-citizen”, both,
Article 15 speaks only of “citizen”
and ir is specifically provided
therein that there shall be no
discrimination against any “citizen”
on the ground only of religion, race
caste, sex, place of birth or any of
them nor shall any citizen be
subjected to any disability, liability,
restriction or condition with regard
1o to public

access shops,

restaurants, hotels and places of

._ -.C/_}z_zi;v.-md:n,::R_q;'ley EB_a:z__z_rz_f_:I_{af:rms Chandrima Das (Mys) and Others

public entertainment, or the use ol
wells, tanks, barhing ghats, roads
and places of public resorc on the
aloresaid grounds. Fundamenral
right guaranteed under Article 15
is, therefore, restricred o “citzens'.
So Article 10

guarantees L‘(]un]ir)«' ol opporeanicy

also, which
in maters of public employment is
applicable only to “citizens”. The
fundamenral righes contmined in
Article 19, which contains the right
to “basic freedoms”, namely,
freedom of speech and expression;
treedom o assemble peacefully and
without arms; freedom to form
associations or unions; freedom to
move freely throughour rthe
territory of Indias freedom ro
reside and serde in any part of the
territory of India and freedom o
practise any profession, or o carry
on any occcupation, trade or
business, arc available only o

“citizens” of the country...

31. Article 20 guaranices right
& .

of

conviction for offences. Article 21

to  protection in  respect
guarantees right to life and personal
liberty while Article 22 guarantees
right to protection against arbitrary
arrest and detention. These are
wholly in consenance with Arsicle
3, Article 7 and Article 9 of the
Universal Declaration of Human
Rights, 1948,

67,



32. The word “LIFLE” has also | or in any other capacity will be
been used prominendy in the  entided to the protection of cher
Universal Declaration of Human ¢ lives in accordance wich rhe
Rights. 1948 (See Asticle 3 quoted constitutional provisions. They also
above) The fundamental righes ~have a right to “life” in this
under the Constitution are almost | country. Thus, they also have the
in consonance with the righes  right o live, so long as they are
conrained In  the Universal here, with human dignity. Just as
Declaration of Muman Righes as © che Sware is under an obligation to
alsa the Declaration and the - protece the life of every citizen in
Covenants of Civil and Political © rthis country, so alse the State is
Rights and the Covenants of - under an obligation to protect the
Ecenomic, Social and Culrural ¢ life of the persons who are not

Righss, to which [ndia is a party | cirizens.

having ratified them, as set our by
this courr in Kubic Darusz v. Union : 30, 1t has already been poinred

of India*. That being so, since & our above that this Court in
“LIFE” is also recognised as a basic i Bodhisattiva case has already held
human right in the Universal chat “rape” amounts to violation of
Declaration of Human Righes, the fundamental right guaranteed wo

a woman under Article 21 of the

1948, it has to have the samec
meaning and interpretation as has - Constirution.

been placed on rthat word by this
37. Now, Smt Hanuffa Kharoon,

who was not the citizen of this

Court in its various decisions
relating to Ardicle 21 of the

Constitution. The meaning of che @ “OUOtY but came here as a cicizen

word “life” cannot be narrowed | ©F Bangladesh was, nevertheless,

down. According Lo the tenor of the entitled to all the constitutional

language used in Article 27, iv will rights available 10 a citizen so far

w - Spw . o
be available not only to every citizen @ 45 right to life” was concerned.

of this country, but also to a She was entitled to be protected

“person” who may not be a citizen with dignity and was also entited

of the country. to the protection of .her person as
guaranteed under Article 21 of the

34 On rhis p]'inciplc‘ even th()Sﬁ Consrtitution. As a natlonal of

who arc not citizens of this country - another country, she could nor be

and come here merely as rourists subjected ro a treatment which was

below dignity nor could she be
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subjected ro physical violence at the
hands of government cuployces
who outraged her modesty. The
right available o her under Article
21 was thus violared. Consequently,
the State was under a conscirucional
liability o pay compensation to
her. The judgement passed by the
Calcurra High court, therefore,
allowing cempensation to her for
having been gang-raped, cannot be
said to suffer from any infirmicy.

38. Learned counsel for the
appellants then contended that the
Central Government cannot be held
vicariously liable for the offence of
rape commiteed by the employees
of the Railways. 1t was contended
that the libilicy under the Taw of
rorrs would arise only when the ace
complained of was performed in
the course of official duty and since
rape canniot be said to be an official
act, the Central Government would
not be hable even under the law of
tores. The argument is wholly bad
and is contrary to the law scrded
by this Court on the guestion of
vicarious lability in its various
decisions....

41. The ctheory of sovereign
power which was propounded in
Kasturi Lal case™ has yielded to new
theories and is no longer available
in a welfare Stare. It may be

pointed out that functions of the

Government n a welfare State aie
manifold, all of which cannot be
said to be the activities relating o
exercise of sovercign powers. The
funcrions of the State not only
relate to the defence of the counrry
or the administranion of justice, buc
they extend to many other spheres
as, for example, educarion,
commercial, social, economic,
poli[ic;ﬂ and cven marital. These
acrivities cannot be said o be
refated to sovereign power.

42. Running of the Railways is
a commercial acrivity. Establishing
the Yacri Niwas at various railway
stations to provide lodging and
boarding facilizies to passengers on
payment of charges is a part of the
commercial activity of the Union
of India and this activicy cannot be
equated with the excrcise of
sovereign power. The employees of
the Union of India who are deputed
to run the Railways and to manage
the establishment, including the
railway stations and the Yauri
Niwas, are essential components of
the government machinery which
carries on the commercial activity.
If any of such employees commits
an act of tort, the Union
Government, of which they are the
employees, can, subject to other
legal requirements being saisfied,
be held vicariously liable in
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damages to the person wronged by
those cmployees. Kavinri Lal
decision™ therefore, cannot be
pressed into aid. Moreover, we are
dealing, with this case under the
public liw domain and not in a suit
institured under the private law
domain against persons who
utilising their official position, ot
a room in the Yarrn Niwas booked
in their own name when che act

complained of was commireed.

43. No other point was raised
belore us. The appeal having no
merit 1s  dismissed  wich  che
observation that the amount of
compensation shall be made over
to the High Commissioner for
Bangladesh in India for payment 1o
the victim, Smr Hanufta Khawon.
The payment w  the High
commissioner shall be made within
three months. There will be no

order as to costs.

(Also reported in (2000) 2 5CC 465)




Harpal Singh and Another .

Appellants

Versus

State of Himachal Pradesh

This appeal by special leave is
directed against the judgment of the
High Court of Himachal Pradesh.
The appellancs have been convicted
under Secrion 376 of the [ndian
Code

rigorous imprisonment for four

Penal and sentenced to
years cach. The central evidence in
the case consists of the testimony
of Saroj Kumari, the gitl who is
said (o have been raped by the
appellanes and another who was
acquitted by the trial Court. The
occurrcnce, according to  the
prosecutrix. took place on the night
intervening August 20 and 21,
1972, The first informarion report
was lodged on August 31, 1972, The
complainant had given reasonable
explanation for lodging it atter ten
days of the occurrence. She stated
that as honour of the family was
involved, its members had to decide
whether to take the marrer to the
court or not. It Is nol uncommeoen
that such considerations delay
action on the part of the near
relations of a young girl who Is
raped. The prosecunrix has narrated
her story before the Committing
Magistrate as well as Sessions Judge.

Leaving aside minor conuradictions

opal Singh and Another

Respondent

here and there her testimony s
consistent. Both the High Court
and the Sessions Judge have
believed 1t and it is corroborared
by the evidence of her own brother
and father to whom she had relared
the deails of the occurrence without
delay afrer she was rescued.

2. Mr. Hardy laid amphasis on
the circumstances that no njury
was derected on the privare parts
of the girl and thar she was found
to have been used to sexual
intercourse and argued thar it was
a case of sexual intercourse by
consent. This argument will be of
no avail to the appellants if once it
is proved that the gitl was below
16 years of age, because in that
case the question of consent
becomes wholly irrclevant.

3. In rhe instant case che

prosecution has proved the age of

the girl by overwhelming evidence.

To begin with, there is the evidence

of Dr. Jagdish Rai (PW 14) who is

a radiologist and who, after X-ray

examinarion of the girl found that

she was about 13 years of age. This
. is corroborated by Ex. PF which
L s an entry in the admission register
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maintained ar the Government
Girls

(wherein the girl was a studene) and

FMigh Scheol, Samnoli

which is proved by the Headmaster.
That enery states the date of birth
of the girl as Ocrober 13, 1957.
There is yer another document,
viz., Lx. PD, a certified copy of
the relevant entry in the birth
register which shows that Saroj
Kumari, who according to her
evidence was lknown as Ramesh
during her childhood, was born to
Lajwant wife of Daular Ram on
Novermber 11, 1957, Mr. Hardy
submirted thac in the absence of the
officer/

examination of the

Chowkidar  concerned  who

recorded  the  entry,  ic was

We

cannot agree with him lor the

inadmissible in evidence.
simple reason thae the entry was
made by the concerned official in
the discharge of his official durics,
that it is therefore clearly admissible
under Sectien 35 of the Bvidence
Act and thac it is not necessary for
the prosecurion to examine its
author, Irom whatever angle we
view the evidence, the conclusion
is inescapable that Sarof Kumari
was below 16 years of age ar the
time of the occurrence. Accordingly
we agree with judgments of the
courts below and sce no meric in
this appeal which is dismissed.

(Also reported in 1989 (1) SCC 560)
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State of Karnataka

IRy

Appellant;

Versus

Manjanna

L. "This appeal has been preferred
from rhe decision of the Karnataka
High Court
conviction and senrence of the
respondent under Section 376{1} of
the Indian Penal code (IPC).

reversing  the

2. The case of the prosecution
was that the prosecurtrix, a school
girl, was raped by the respondent
on 6-4-1988 at abour 12 noon. The
prosecutrix {PW1) was residing
with her parents at Hosahatti. The
school was at Belagur. She had
taken IXth  standard
examination in March 1988. The
results were to be announced in

April 1988,

the

3. During the st week of April
1988 there was jatra ar a village
called Kabbala. The prosecurrix’s
mother, Gowaramma (PW 10), her
father Ramaiah (PW 12) and her
brother had opened a shop in that
jatra. On 6-4-1988, the prosecutrix
and her sister Shardamma (PW 11)
were in their hause at Hosaharri.
Ac about 12 noon, the prosecurrix
left Hosahatti to go to Kabbala so
as to get her bus fare from her
parents because she wanted to go
to Belagur <o
examinadon results. While she was

ascertain  her

Respondent

on the read from Hosahattd ro
Kabbala,

following her. Suddenly, the accused

the accused starced
caught hold of the prosecutrix’s left
shoulder and dragged her into a
ditch nexr to the road. The ditch
was situated on the right side of
the road. The accused threw the
prosecutrix down, gagged her with
his rowel, raised her lehnga and
raped her. When she swuggled o
refease hersell, the accused slapped
her on her cheecks and tried o
throttle her. She sustained scratches
on the right cheek, on her chin and
on her burtocks. After raping her
the accused removed the towel from
She
immediately screamed loudly.
Yellabovi (PW 16) was going along
the road when he heard the
screaming of the prosecutrix. He
went to the spet and found the
accused on top of the prosccutrix
in the ditch. He raised hue and cry
and the accused ran away from the
spot. Yellabove took the prosecutrix
out of the ditch and made her sit
under a tamarind tree. There was
a cactus-like bush locally called
‘untarikey mullu” in the dicch. The
thorns from the bush had caught
in the hair of the prosecucrix.
Yellabove started removing the
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thorns from her hair. By this rime
Kumara (PW 4) was returning from
the jarra ar Kabbala and was on his
way to Hosahatoi. Kumara saw
Yellabovi removing che thorns from
the hair of the prosecuirix and
asked him what had happened.
Yellabove told him whact had
happened but thac he did not know
who the gitl was. The prosecutrix
who was weeping raised her head,
Kumara recognized her as the
prosccutrix. Kumar told Yellabovi
that the prosecutrix’s father had
opened a shop in the jatra at
Kabbala and asked him to inform
her parents. Yellabovi went to
Kabbala. The prosecutrix’s father
(PW 12) was available,
Yellabovi informed
Gowramma and her son abour the
incident. Gowramma and her son
went to the place described by
Yellabovi and found the prosecucrix

not
however,

sitting under a ramarind wee. They
brought the prosecutrix to the shop
in the Kabbala jatra. Gowramma
did not question the prosecutrix
about the incident then. Tt was only
husband (PW 12)
recurned in the evening that she
asked che prosecutrix whar had
happened. The prosecutrix narrated
the incident to her. The accused
was known to the victim and her
family as he used to come to their
shop at Kabbala. Gowramma
immediately told her husband what
the prosecutrix had said. The

when her

parcnts debated as to whac they
should do as the prosecutrix was
unmarried and the question of her
reputation was involved. On the
next day, e, 7-4-1988, their elder
daughter, Shardamma (PW 11) and
her husband came to Kabbala in the
morning. The prosecutrix again rold
her sister about the incident naming
the accused. The prosceurrix’s father
decided to inform the Pradhan,
Govindappa (PW 14} of Belagur
Mandal Panchayar and asked
Shardamma and her husband to
take the prosecutrix to him. At
about 9 to 10 a.m. Shardamma and
her husband took the prosecurrix
to Govindappa. The prosecutrix
again told Govindappa abour the
entire Incident. Govindappa took
them o Belagur Hospital where the
prosecutrix  was seen by Dr
Chidananda (PW 2), the Medical
Ofticer. The prosecutrix narrated
the incident to Dr Chidananda. Dr
Chidananda asked the Staff Nurse,
Sheela Meri (PW 3) to enquire o
the matrer. The Staff Nurse asked
the prosecutrix what had happened.
‘The prosecutrix narrared the
incident again to her. This was
recounted by the Staff Nurse to Dr.
Chidananda. As there was no lady
Medical Officer at Belagur
Hospital, Dr Chidananda referred
the prosecutrix to the lady Medical
Officer at Hosadurga Hospital.
Shardamma and her hushand took
the prosecutrix to Hosadurga




Hospizal and gave Dr Chidanands’s
fetter to Dr Thripulamba (PW 5).
Dr Thripulamba however declined
to examine the prosccutrix because
she had not been referred by the
police. Shardamma, her husband
and the prosecurrix then returned
to  Hosaharti and  informed
Ramaiah of Dr Thripulamba’s
refusal to examine the prosecutrix.
The next day, on 8-4-1988, PW 12
took his daughter o Srirampura
Police Station. The prosecutrix’s oral
complaint to the SHO (PW 8) of
Srirampura Poelice Station was
recorded in writing (Ext. P-1). The
writing was affirmed by the
prosecutrix by signing it. A case
was registered against the accused
under Section 376 IPC and FIR
(Ext. P-5) was sent through a
censtable (PW 9) to the Magistrace
at 8.00 p.m. Alier dispatching rhe
FIR, PV 8 sent the prosecutrix to
Hosadurga Hospital escorted by a
police constable. But the lady
Medical Ofticer at Hosadurga
Hospital was on leave. The
prosccutrix was brought back.
Whereupon the Circle Inspector
(PN 18) sent the prosecutrix to the
lady Medical Officer of the District
Hospital at Chitradurga escorted by
the same constable. The prosecucrix
was ultimately examined by Dr
Shantabai (PW 13) and a report
{(Ex. P-6) was prepared in which it
was stated that the prosecutrix had
a ¥4 inch abrasion on the left side

of he face. a ¥ inch abrasion over
the right side of her chin and 2V
inch abrasion over the righe side
of her righc hip. Tc was also
recorded -

“ conducted pelvic
examination and found whice
discharge. No external injuries
were seen around the external
genitalia. No injuries over the
thighs. The vaginal orifice
admits one finger casily.
Tenderness was present in
lower abdomen. Vagina is
warm and tender,”

4. The finzl opinion
withheld until the chemical analysis

was

report was obrained of the clothes
of the prosecutrix. The prosccutrix’s
clothes were chemically examined
{Ext.P-7) and it was found that the
lehnga worn by the prosccutrix
during the incident had semen
stains. Dr Shancabal gave her
opinion in a separate report (Ext.
P-8) in which she opined afrer
examining the prosecutrix internally
that the prosecutrix had sexual
intercourse abour four days prior
to her examination. On the next
day the investigating officer (PW
18) visited the place of occurrence
as indicated by Yellabove (PW 16)
and prepared a spor mahazar {Ext.
P-9) in the presence of
panchayardars. The accused could
not be found dil 29-4-1988 when




he was produced before the
investigating officer. The accused
was thereupon arrested. The
accused produced his cothes from
his house. These were seized (Lxt.
p-3). The accused himself was
referred to Dr. Neminatha (PW 17)
of  Srirampur Dr
Neminatha afrer examining che
accused found that the accused was
capable of sexual intercourse (Fxt.
P-11}. After this, as the accused had
obrained anticipatory bail, he was
released. His cloches which had
the

Hospital,

been seized were sent to
chemical examirer. Bangalore. The
chemical examiner’s report {Ext. P-
7) was to the effect thar no
bioodstains or semen were found

on the clothes sent.

5. In the meantime the charge-
sheer was filed. The accused in his
statement under Section313 of the
Code of Criminal Procedure (Cr
PC) denied his involvement and
said that he had been falsely
implicated because there was a
quarrel between the accused and
the father of the prosecutrix over
setring up of the shop at the
Kabbala jatra.

6. In finding rthe accused guiity
under Section 376(1) IPC, the trial
court in a carefully reasoned

judgement found that chere was no
reason to disbelieve the evidence
of the prosecutrix. The enmity

alleged by the accused for falsely
implicating him was rejected, in
our view correctly, on the ground
thar given the present soctal ethos
in this country, it was improbable
thar either che girl or her parents

up

Additionally, the evidence given by

would  ser such a case.
the prosccutrix was nor only
correborated by the
prosecution witnesses but also by
the The
prasecutrix herselt has stared that
she had sustained scratches on the
right side of her cheeks, on her
chin and on che left side of the hip
which was swollen, Her mother
(PW 10} that

prosecutrix had scrarches on her

several

medical evidence.

also  said the
cheeks and on her buttocks. These
statements are corroborated not
only by Bxws. -7 and -8 bur also
by the oral testimony of PW 13 Dr
K.M. Shantabai. According to P'W
13, the injuries found on the
prosecutrix’s face could be caused
while she was struggling to extricate
herself from the clutches of the
person commitiing rape and the
injury to her hip when she was
forcibly thrown on the ground.

7. The chemical examiner’s
report (Ext. 7) to the effect that
there were seminal stains on the
blue lehnga worn by the prosecurrix
also supported the prosecution case.
The lack of semen stains on the
clathes of the accused is natural




Erenered Priedinios

the accused was cxamined
than 23 days afrer the
incident. The narration of che

when
more

incident to so many independent
witnesses, without any discrepancy
soon after the incident was also, in
our view correctly, admitted by the
trial court under Secrion 157 of the
Evidence Act as corroborative of
the prosccutrix’s testimony :

8. The Sessions
Chitradurga  negatived
submission on behalf of the accused
that the prosecuton had not proved
that the prosecutrix was helow 16

Judge,
the

years of age when the offence was
committed on the ground that the
prosecutrix had stated in her
evidence her date of birch as 8-10-
1972, an asserrionn which was not
in her cross-examination. There
was also no challenge to Ramaiah’s
statement that his daughrer was
aged 15 years at the time of the
incident. The Sessions Judge noted
that the X-ray report to the effect
that the prosecutrix was aged above
16 years and below 18 vyears was
given by Dr Shantabai who
admirted that she was
specialist in radiology and that only
a radiologist would be able to
furnish the approximate age.

for a

9. Having held the accused guilty
under Section 376(1} IPC, because
the accused had commitred rape on
a girl below the age of 16 years the

learned Sessions Judge sentenced

the  accused to r1goros
imprisonment for seven years and
also to pay a fine of Rs 1000, in
undergo

iﬂ'lpl‘isOl’]l’llCIlt ﬁ)l’ tl1f€€ [Tl()(lfhs.

detault  to simple

10. On appeal, a learned Single
Judge of the High Court of
Karnataka reversed the findings of
the Sessions Judge. The High court
disbelieved
testimony on the tollowing grounds:

the prosecutrix’s

“1. 16 PW 1 was subjected to
rape by the appellant in a ditch
full of thorns certainly there
would be injuties on the person
of PW 1 and on the private
parts of W 1. Bur such
injuries were not found in this
case... It is significant to note
here that the evidence of PW
1 is to the effect that her legs
had come in contact with
thorns bur PW 13 had deposed
that chere were no injuries
around the external genitalia
and on the thighs.

2. ... It looks highly
improbable that a culprit will

choose such z place for

commitring rape on a woman
and if rape is commitred at
such a place the persons
walking on that road which was
situated Just at a distance of 15
feer would be attracted to the
spot due to the screaming.




3. In the wound certificate
issued by this witness at Lxt
P-6 there is no mention of the
rupture of the hymen.

4. PW 13 has made a material
improvement in her evidence
by stating that there was a
rupture of hymen. It will not
be safe to acr upon this version
as she has not mentioned in
Fxt. ’-6. For reasons best
known to her she has lied on
this point and her evidence
that there was ruprure of
hymen will have to be excluded
from consideration.

5. ... The very conduct of PWs
£, 10, 11, 12 and 14 appears
to be highly improbable and
The

reaction of a mother is to find

unnatural... natural
out what had happened to the
girl and as ro what were the
injuries sustained by her. None
of these things had been done
by PW 10.. The conduct of
PYW 1 in not telling her mother
immediaztely on secing her
when the
tamarind tree under which she
was sitting, PW 10, the mother

SI)C came  near

not enquiring as to what had
happened on that day and
keeping quite till late evening.

G. PV 1 has given her date of
birch as 8-10-1972. Even if this
taken

date of birth is

as

;
i
;

correct, she will be 16 years of
age on the date of the offence...
The evidence of PW 13 goes
to show that she was aged 16
years and below 18 years and
the birth cerdficate alleged to
have been produced by W 1
belore the police has not been
produced.

7. There is inordinate delay in
filing the complaint. The
offence had raken place on 6-
4-1988 ar 12 noon. But, the
complaine is filed by PW 1 on
8-4-1988."

11. We find the reasoning ol the
High Court entirely unacceprable.
The first ground mentions a “dicch
full of thorns™ where the incident
took place. There was no cvidence
that the ditch was [ull of thorns,
The evidence was that the ditch had
sand and thorns which got entangled
in PW 1's hair. PW 19, a witness
to the site mahazar (W 9) had said
that the ditch was 7 feet deep and
15 feer wide. To have drawn an
inference from this that the entire
ditch was gathered (sic) by thorns
was fallacious. The “contradiction”
berween the evidence of Dr
Shantabai, PW 13, with regard to
the cherns coming in contact with
her legs shows a singular lack of
anatomical knowledge.

12. The second ground for
rejecting the evidence of the victim




is equally unacceptable. According
to the 1O (PVW 18), the site had
been identified by Yeliabovi (PW
16). It was never put to the
prosecutrix by the defence thar the
place of the occurrence was nat
what she had described. In saying
that the victim’s screams would
have attracted actention, the High
Court ignored the fact that che
accused had gagged the victim with
his rowel while raping her.

13. Third ground for rejection
of the trial court’s findings ignores
Ext. P-8 altogether where it was
specifically mentioned that the
victim had been subjected to sexual
intercourse. 1o have concluded thar
the doctor, PW 13 had lied without
ar all confronting her with any
alleged contradiction with Ext. -8
was wholly erroneous.

14. In holding that, the High
Court has also ignored
unshaken unassailed evidence of the
lady doctor, M.S. Thripulamba
{PW 3), the Staff Nurse (PW 3),
Gowramma (PW 10}, Ramaiah
{(PV 12}, Shardamma {PW 11) and
the 1O (PW 18} all of whom
independendy gave evidence of the
steps taken by the parents of the
victim afrer they came te know of
the incident.

the

15. On what basis the High Court
came te the conclusien about what
the natural reaction of a rape victim

i

and her mocher would be is nor
explained. This finding as well as the
finding regatding the delay in lodging
of the FIR apart from being contrary
to the evidence has taken no account
of the nature of the offence in the
social context of this country. This
aspect of the matter has been dealt
with by this Court in Swaze of Piurjalb
v. Gurmit Singh':(SCC pp. 394 &
395, para 8)

“In our opinion, three was no
delay in rhe lodging of the FIR
either and if at all there was some
delay, the same has not only been
properly  explained by
prosecution but in the facts and

the

circumstances of the case was also
natural. The courts cannor overlook
the fac that in sexual offences delay
in the lodging of the FIR can be
due to variety of reasons particularly
the reluctance of the prosecutrix or
her family members to go to the
police and complain abourt the
incident which concerns the
reputarion of the prosecurrix and
the honour of her family. Ir is only
after giving it a cool thought that a
complaint of sexual offence is
generally lodged... the conduct of
the prosecutrix in this regard
appears to us to be most natural,
‘T'he trial court overlooked that a
girl, in a tradition-bound non-
permissive society n India, would

be extremely reluctant even to
admit that any incident which is
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likely to reflect upon her chastity
had occurred, being conscious of
the danger of being ostracized by
the saciety or being looked down
upon by the sociery. Her not
inferming the tcachers of her
friends at the examination centre
under the circumstances cannot
derract from her reliabilicy. In the
normal course of human conduct,
this unmarried minor girl, would
not like to give publicity o the
traumatic expericnce she had
undergone and would feel terribly
embarrassed in relacion te the
incident to narrate it to her teachers
and others overpowered by a felling
of

inclination would be to avoid

shame and her natural
talking about it to anyone, lest the
family name and honour is brought

into controversy.”

16. On the question of the
- prosecurrix’s date of birth, the High
Court ignored the admission by
PW 13 herself that she was not
competent to determine the age of
the victim from the X-ray report
nor did the igh Court give any
reason for disbelieving the express
statement of the victim as to the
date of her birth particatarly in the
absence of any challenge to the
same in her cross-examination,
Besides the High Court has made
an error in caleulation when it held

that if the date of birth was taken
as 8-10-1972, she would be 16
years old at the dme of the incident,
The incident ook place on 6-4-
1988, this would mean char the
victim was fiftcen-and-ahalt’ years
old when she was raped.

17. In the circumstances, we
allow the appeal of the State, se
aside the order of the High court
and restore the conviction and
sentence as Imposad by the Sessions
Judge. 1If the accused is on bail, he
shall surrender to serve out the
sentence,

18. Before parting with the case,
we wish to put on record our
disapproval of the refusal of some
government  hospital  doecrors,
particularly in rural arcas, where
hospitals are few and far hetween,

any  medical

to  conduct

examination

of a rape vicrim unless the case of
rape is referred to them by the
police. Such a refusal to conduct
the medical examination necessarily
results in a delay in the ultimate
examination of the victim, by which
time the evidence of the rape may
have been washed away by the
complainant herself or be otherwise

lost. It is expected that the appellant
State will
situation does not recur in furure.

ensure thar such a
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Eviduncc 15 extremely important in all criminal trials. In cases relating
to sexual assaults which normally have ne cye wirnesses, appreciation
of evidence gets complex. In cases of child sexual abuse, it is even mare
complicated. When very young children are the vierims, their ability o
express at the time of the incident and at the time of the trial would vary.
The Child in many cases would be able articulare beteer at che time of
the trial. Many prosecutors and session judges interprer this as changing
the police version which may not have been recorded properly in the first
instance. They also declare these wirnesses as hostle when in reality the
child has only learnt to express the same in 2 betrer way.

Many accused are also acquitted on the basis of mere technicalicics.
One of the most frustrating experiences for a complainant is the fact thar
the acquittals take place for no fuult of hers especially in view of the fact
that she does not play any role in the preparation of the case. In most
cases she has no knowledge of whar has been placed on record. She is
not aware of the medical reports. She also does nor know what has been
recorded by the police in her statement made under Section 161 of the
Code of Criminal Procedure. Interestingly, the accused invariably has all
these papers.

Onc of the carlicst cases of the Supreme Court on this aspect was
Rameshwar Kalyan Singh versus State of Rajasihan’™. In this case the
question raised was whether failure to administer oath 10 a child of seven
years of age and the non-recording of the fact thar the child was in a
position to depose was fatal to the evidence of the child. The Supreme
Court held that although it is necessary to record that the child was in a
position to understand the questions and also depose before the Court,
non-recording of the same does not render the evidence inadmissible.

FRAMING OF CHARGES:

Not mentiening the exact time and dare of the nccurrence of an offence
in the charge sheet is not fatal for the prosecution was the principle
upheld in Chittaranjan Das versus State of West Bengal ¥ {also see State
of Maharashra versus Priya Sharan Maharaj and others.)

'8 AIR 1952 SC 54
1964 (3) SUR 237

*infra




CORROBORATION:

On corroboradon it was held in Rameshwar's 2 case rhat

i. It is not necessary that there should be independent confirmation of
every material circumstance in the sense that independent cevidence in
the casc, apart from the testimony of the complainant or the accomplice
should in itself be sufficient to sustain conviction;

ii. The independent evidence must make it safe to believe and connect
the accused to the same;

iii. Corroboration must come from an independent source. Flowever,
the circumstances may be such as to make it safe ro dispense with the
nccessity of corroboration and in those special circumsrances a conviction
0 based would no be illegal;

iv. Corroboration need not be direct evidence that the accused
committed the crime. Tt is sufficient if it is merely circumstantial evidence
of his connection with the crime;

In the case of Sidheswar Ganguly versus State of West Bengal™ it was
held that a victim of rape is not an accomplice to the crime. Ir was also
held that while corroboration is desirable, it is not mandartory.

The Supreme Court went a step further in the case of fanardban Tewary
versus State of Bibar* where the Court, after finding that a wirness had
narrated the entite incident to the grand mother of the vicim and the
medical cvidence which had found that rape had been committed even
though the test was conducted two days later, upheld the conviction of
the accused by the Sessions Court. The Court overruled the argument

that the doctor cught to have smear from the vagina to see if spermatozoa
could be found. The Court held that:

“5. In this case, the first thing to see is that whether rape has been
committed or not. There is no deubs that the girl was criminally assaulied

Xl

supra
= ATR 1958 5C 143
H1971 (3) SCC 927
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and suffered severe injuries as a result. She was examined 40 hours afer
later and the injuries were found on her person. ... The wimnesses found
that clothes were stained with semen and she had suffered injuries. We
are satisfied that the girl was raped and we have only 10 find out who the
culprits were. Tn this connection, the law is that the evidence of the
prosecutrix must be corroborated in some measure t connect the accused.
Erough corroboration is available in this case from the evidence of Bir
Kumar who gave the informaton to his grand morther immediately after
the incident and also deposed on oath. Bir Kumar Singh is a young boy
aged 12 years and therefore, we have to be cautious ahour acceping his
testimony. We have read his evidence. Bir Kumar Singh was closely
questioned ra find out whether he understood nature of evidence and
whether he was capable of giving answers to the questions put to him,
The sessions judge was satisfied thar Bir Kumar was a competent wirness
and his statemenct struck us as being true”

Ic went a step further in the casc of Rafig versus State of UP¥. Rafiq’s
case followed Krishan Lal’s® case. In this case the accused counsel argued
that there was absence of corroboration of testimony of the prosecutrix
and also of injuries on the person of the woman and therefore the
convicton was unsustainable. Rejecting these conrentions, the Court held
that:

S0 i We cannot accept the argument that regardiess of the
specific circumstances of a crime and criminal milliew, some stands of
probative reasoning which appeaied to a Bench in one reported decision
must mechanically be extended ro other cases. Corroboration as a
condition for judicial reliance on the testimony of a prosecuurix is not a
matter of law, but a guidance of prudence under given circumstances.
Indeed, from place to place, from age to age, from varying lifesiyles and
behavioural complexes, inference from a given set of facts, oral and
circumstantial, may have to be drawn not with dead uniformicy bur realistic
diversity lest rigidity in the shape of rule of law in this area be introduced
through a new type of precedental tyranny. The same observation holds
good regarding the presence or absence of injuries on the person of the
aggressor or the aggressed.”

H 1980 (4) SCC 262
infra note 15

15




Perhaps the case which had lid down guidelines with respect to che
treacment of the victim’s evidence in a rape in a most direct and practical
way is the judgement in Bharwada Bhoginbbai Hirjibhai versus State of
Gujarar® . 'The court held:

“ (1) By an large 2 witness cannot be expected te possess a photographic
memory and to recall the detils of an incident. Te is not as it a video
tape is replayed on the mental sereen.

(2) Ordinarily it so happens that a witess is overtaken by events, The
wimess could not have anticipared che occurrence which so ofren has an
element of surprise. The mental faculties therefore cannot be expecred 1o
be attuned to absorb the derails.

(3) The powers of observation differ from person to person. What one
may notice, another may not. An object or movement might cmboss its
image on onc person’s mind, whereas it might go unnoticed on the part
of another.

(4) By and large people cannot accurately recall a conversation and
reproduce the very words used by them or heard by them. They can only
recall the main purpose of the conversaton. It is unrealistic to expect a

witness to be a human tape-recorded.

(5) In regard to exact rime of an incident, or the time duration of an
occurrence, usually, people make cheir estimartes by guess-work on the
spur of the moment at the dme of interrogation. And one cannor expect
people to make very precise or reliable estimares in such matters. and, it
depends on the time-sense of individuals which varics from person o
person.

(6) Ordinarily a witness cannor be expected to recall accurarcly rthe
sequence of events which takes place in rapid succession or in a short
time span. A witness is liable o get confused, ot mixed up when
interrogated later on.

* 1983{3) SCC 217




(7) A wirness, though wholly rrachful, is liable o be overawed by the
Court atmosphere and the piercing cross-examination made by counsel
and out of nervousness mix up facts, get confused regarding sequence of
events, or fill up details from imagination on the spur of the moment.
The sub-conscious mind of the witness somerimes operates on account
of the tear of locking foolish or being disbelieved though the witness is
giving a truchful and honest account of the occurrence wimessed by him
— Perhaps it is a sort of a psychological defence mechanism activated on
the spur of the moment.”

The court further held,

R AU Corroberation may be considered essential to establish a sexyal
offence in the backdrop of the social ccology of the wesiern world. Tt is
wholly unnecessary to import the said concept on a turnkey basis and o
transplant it on the Indian soil regardless of the altogether different
atmosphere, attitudes, mores, responses of the Indian socicty, and its
profile.”

This judgement was followed in State of Maharshtra versus
Chandraprakash Kewal chand Jain®. The facts are stark and reflect the
manner in which police can misuse power vested with them. At paragraphs
15 and 16, of the judgement while dealing with the aspect of necessity of
corroboration, the Court has held:

“

16. A prosecutrix of a sex offence cannot be put on par with an
accomplice. She is in facr a vicrim of the crime. The Evidence Act nowhere
says that her evidence cannot be accepted unless it is corroborated in
materiai particulars. She is undoubtedly a competent witnesss under Section
118 and her evidence must receive the same weight as is atrached to an
injured in cases of physical violence. ..... Whar is necessary is that che
court must be alive ro and conscious of the fact that it is dealing with the
cvidence of a person who is interested in the outcome of the charge
leveled by her. If the court keeps this in mind and teels sadsfied that it
can act on the evidence of the prosecutrix, there is no rule of law or
pracrice incorporated in the Fvidence Act similar ro illuseration () ro
Section 114 which requires it to look for corroboration............ If the
1990 (1) SCC 550




totality of the circumstances appearing on the record of the case disclase
that the prosecutrix does not have a strong motive to falsely involve the
person charged, the court should ordinarily have no hesitation in accepting
her evidence. We have, therefore, no doubr in our minds that ordinarily
the evidence of a prosecutrix who does not lack understanding must be

»
accepred.

The same principle was reiterated in State of Himachal Pradesh versus
Raghubir Singh™ where the Court , ater disagreeing with the High Coust
for reversing the verdict of conviction passed by the sessions judge due
to lack of corroboration, held:

“ There is no lfegal compulsion to look for corroboration of evidence
of the prosecurrix before recording an order order of conviction. Evidence
has to be weighed and not counred. Conviction can be recorded on the
sole testimony of the prosecutrix, if her evidence inspires confidence and
there is absence of circumstances which militate against her veracity”

In Gurmit Singh’s case, the Supreme Courr held chat:

“If evidence of the prosecutrix inspires confidence, it must be relied
upon without seeking corroboration of her statement in material
particulars. Tf for some reason the court finds it difficule ro place implicit
reliance on her tescimony, it may look for evidence which may lend
assurance 1o her testimony, short of corroboration required in the case of
an accomplice. The restimony of the prosecuirix must be appreciated in
the background of the entire case and the trial court must be alive to its
responsibility and be sensitive while dealing with cases involving sexual
molestations.”

This view was upheld in State of Sikkim versus Padam Lall Pradhan”

The court reiterated this in State of Rajasthan versus N.K*

H1993 (2) SCC 622
#2000 (10} SCC 112
2000 (%) sCC 30




FAULTY INVESTIGATION:

Faulty investigation, refusal o register 2 complaing, wrongful recording
of the complaine are essentially problems of (he police. Tt is not proper
for the victim to suffer for the same. In Sheikd Zakir versius State of
Bihar'' | the Supreme Court upheld @ conviction on the basis of a
complaint filed by the victim, In this case, the police had relused
register her complaint. By the dme the medical examination could be
conducted, the Complainane had barhed haselt, and betng an adulr and a
marriecd woman was accustomed to sexual incercourse. All the courrs
below (trial, High Court) as well as the Supreme Court came (o rhe
conclusion that absence of medical evidence s nor to be held against the
victim, given the circumstances. The court also held thar if 4 conviction
s solely based on the cvidence of che prosecutrix withour any
corroboration, it will not be tliegal on that sole ground. The Courr also
held that the statement made by the victim o her family member {in his
case, the husband) immediately after the incident is admissible under
scction 157% of the Indian Evidence Acr.

Similar is the case of Balweant Singh versus Stare of Punjab™ where
despite conclusive medical report of the doctor, che police had refused 1o
register the case. The vierim had filed a private complaint on the basis of
which dhe mial starced, Since the investigation was lax, as the police were
disinterested, che samples had not been sent for chemical analvsis, The
Court based on the testimony of the victim, her father and the doctors
medical report, found that rape had been committed by the named accused
and upheld the conviction. The arguments about the absence of njury on
the body of the victim was not accepted by the Court.

In the casc of Chandraprakash Kewal Jain®, the FIR was nort recorded
properly. A proper statement was recorded subsequently. The Court said
that the subsequent details can be accepted.

1983 {4y SCC 10

FO1987(28CC
* Supra
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INDEPENDENT WTNESSES:

1o Rameshwar's case™, the mother was held ro be an independens
witness. Following Rameshwars case on the aspect ol the vicum being an
accomplice, the Supreme Court in the crse of Krishan Lal versus State
of Haryana™, while reiterating the principle that the oral restimony nf
the vicrins ought o be given due importance held:

SAL G W hat gt would folst arape charge on a stanger unless a
remirkable ser of Fwcts or dearest motives were made our? The inheremnt
bashlilness, the innocent nuivere and the feminine tendency (o concedl

the outrage of masculine sexual aggression are factors which are relevant
to improbabitise the hypothesis of false implication. The injury on the
person of the vicim. especially her private parts has corroborative
value, ... And i mpe has been commirred, as counsel more or less
conceded, why, of all persons in the world, should the viciim hunt up the
petitioner and poine ar him rhe accusing finger? To foresake these vital
considerations and go by obsolescent demands for substantial corrobaration
it sacrifice common sense in favonr of an artificial concoction called
Judicial’ probabiliey. Indeed, the coure loses it credibility 16 i rebels

against realism. The law court is not an pnnasral world”

In Rafig case,” the court held:
"7, Hardly a sensivized judge who sees the conspectus ol circumstances
in i rotality and rejects the testimony of a yape vicum unless there are
very strong circumstances milicaing againse its veracity. None we see in
this case and conlirmation of the conviction by the courts helow must.
Thete be a marrer of course. Judicial response o human righes cannot be
blunted by legal bigotry”

The strement of the fucher of a victim is admissible in evidence and
relevant under Section 157 (Fvidence Act) as her [ormer statement
corroborating her testimeny as also under Section 8 of the Evidence Act

as evidence of her conduct,™

J‘ NPT
TURG (3 SUAD 15y
sUupra

S Sute of Baisthan versus NI

920



USE OF FORCE:

There are many cases which resule in aequittals merely because the
prosecurrix did net shour for help. there were no injurics on her body 1o
indicate resistance and rhat there was ne evidence w indicare use of
force, In almest all the cases mentioned above, the Supreme Coure has
held that it not necessary as the victim may be overpowered due o various
reasons. I State of Mabarashtra versus Prakash™ . (he Court held

“For the offence of rape, it is nor necessary thae chere should be actual

use of force. A threar of use of Force is suflicient.”

The judgement of the Court In State of Maharashtra versus Priva Sharan

Maharj and others™ alse follows the same principle.

bven in the case of NKY, che Courr held thac absence ol injurtes on
the body of the viciim at the sime of medical evidence is nor Fual w the

case of the prosecution.
CIRCUMSTANTIAL EVIDENCE:

An imporant judgement of the Supreme Courr on circumsrantial
evidence is the case of Laxman Naile versus State of Orvissa™ where the
Supreme Court upheld the verdict passed by cthe sessions court and che
High Court relying rotally on circumstantial evidence,

1993 Sup1) SCC 653
OLR9T (4) sce 393
Yosupra

S 1994 (3) SCC 381
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Rameshwar Kalyan Singh

. Appellant

Versus

State of Rajasthan

The appellant Rameshwar was
charged with committing rape on
a young girl Mt. Purni, eight years
of age. He was commitred to
sessions and was convicted by the
Assistant Sessions Judge Sawai
Jaipur, and sentenced to one year’s
rigorous imprisonment and a fine

of Rs. 250.

{2) An appeal was made to the
Sessions Judge at Jaipur, that being
the appropriate appellate wibunal in
that area. The learned Sessions
Judge held that the evidence was
sufficient for moral conviction but
fell short of legal proof because, in
his opinion, the law requires
corroboration of the story of the
prosccution in such cases as a
martter of precaution and the
corroborative evidence, in so far as
it sought to connect the appellant
with the crime, was legally
insufficient though morally enough.
He was satisfied however that the
girl had been raped by somebody.
Accordingly, he acquitted che
accused giving him the benchit of

the doubrt.

(3) The State of Sawat Jaipur and
Gangapur appealed against the

. Respondent

- acquittal o the High Courr ac
* Jaipur. The fearned High Court
¢ Judges held thar che law requires
- corroboration in such cases bur
held rhat the girfs statement made
tor her mother was legally admissible
as correboration and considering
that sufficient they set aside the
restored  the

acquittal and

conviction and sentence.

(4) The High Court lacer granted
leave o appeal under Arr. 134(1)
{c) of the Constitution as the case
involved question of law of general
importance.

(5) The first point taken before
us related to the admissibility of the
evidence of the girl herself. Her age
was stated o be seven or cight years
at the time of the examination by
the learned Assistant Sessions Judge
who recorded her testimony. He
that did
understand the sanctity of an oath
and accordingly did not administer
one to her. He did nort cerdify that
the child understood the duty of

certified she not

speaking the truth....

(15) The first question is whether

i the law requires corroborarion in




these cases. Now the Pyidence Act
nowhere says so. On the orher
hand, when desling with che
testimony of an accomplice, though
it says in 5114 () char the Court
may presume that an accomplice is
unworthy of crediv unless he s
corroborared in marerial
particulars, it makes iv clear in
5.133 thar ¢

“An accomplice shall be a
competent witness against an
accused person; and a conviction
is not illegal mercly because 1
proceeds upon the uncorreborated
testimony of an accomplice.”

{16} Now a woman whe has been
raped is not an accomplice. 1 she
was ravislied she is the vicoim of
an ourrage. [ she consented rhere
is no offence unless she 15 a
married woman, in which case
question of adultery may arise. Bur
adultery presupposes consent and so
is not on the same fooring as rape.
In the case of a girl who is below
the age of consent, her consenr will
not matter so far as the offence of
rape is concerned, but if she
consented  her restimony  will
naturally he as suspect as that of
an accomplice. So also in the case

of unnawural offence.

Butr in all these cases a large
volume of case law has been grown

up which treats the evidence of the
complainant semewhar along the
same lines as accomplice evidence
though often for widely dilfering
reasons and the position now
reached is thar the rule about
corroboration has hardencd into

one of Taw....

(19 The rule, which sccordingly
has hardened o one of law, is nor
that corroboration is essential
before there can be a conviction
that [h e

but necessity  of

corroboration, as a marcrer of

prudence, except where  the

circumstances make it sale to
dispense wich it, must be present
to the mind of the judge, and in
jury cuses, must find place in the
charge, betore a conviction withous

corroboration can be sustained.

‘The render years of the child.
coupled with other ciremmstances
appearing in the case, such as, for
example, as its  demeanor,
unlikelihood of tutoring and so
forth, may render correboration
unnecessary bur rhar is a question
of facr in every case. The only rule
of law is that chis rule of prudence
must be present to the mind of the
judge or the jury as the case may
be and be understood and
appreciated by him or them. There
is no rule of practice that there
case, bhe

must, 1o every
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corroharation before a conviction
can be allowed ro stand....

(21 First, i€ is nor necessary thar
there should be independent
conlirmation of every matcerial
circumstance in the sense thar the
independent evidence in dhe case,
apart from the testimonyof the
complainant or the accomplice,
should in iwself be sufficient o

sustam convicron,

(22} Secondly, the independent
evidence must nor only make ir safe
to belicve thar the crime was
commitred but must in some way
reasonably connect or wend o
connecr the accused with it by
confirming in some macerial
parficular the restimony of the
accomplice or complainant thar the
accused commirred the erime, This
does not  mean  that  rthe
corroboration as re identrty must
extend to all the circumsrances
necessary to identify che accused
with the offence. Again, all thac is
necessary is thae there should be
independent evidence which will
make it rcasonably safe to believe
the witness story that the accused
was the one, or among those, who
committed the offence.

(23) Thirdly, the corroberation
must come from independent
sources and thus ordinarily the

wstimony of one ;lr_‘u)mpfiu' would
not be sufficient to corroborare tha
ol anocher. Bur ol course the
circumstandes may beosuch as
make 10 sate o dispense with dhe
avcessity of correboration and in
those spoecial dircumstinees
conviction so based would nor be
i”cg&i. [osay chis because 1 was
contended that the mether v this
case was ner an independem

SOUrdy.

(24) Fourdhly, the corroboration
necd net be dircat evidence tha the
accused commirtted the crime. 1o s

sufficient  if 0 s merddy

circumsrtantial evidence ol his

connection with the arime.

{25) Next, | owurn o another
aspect of the case. The kearned Fligh
Courr Judges have used Mo Pumis
statement  to  her mother as
corroboration of her statement. Fhe
question arises, can the previous
starement of an accomplice, or a
complainant, be accepred  as

correboration #

(26) That the evidence is legally
admissible as evidence of conduct
is indisputable  because  of
Mustradion (j} to S, 5. Fvidence At

which is in these terms

“The question is, whether A was
ravished. The faces that shoetly afrer
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the alleged rape, she made a
complaint relaring to the crime, the
circuinstances under which, and the
tenns in which, the complaint was
made are relevanc.”

Buc that is nor the whelc
problem, for we are concerned here
not only with irs legal admissibility
and relevancy as w conduct bur as
to ity admissability for a pardeular
purpose. namely caryoboration. The
answer to thar is 1o be found in S
157, Evidence Act, which lays down
the law for India....

(29) The first question is whether
this delay fulfils the “at or about”
condition. In my opinion here also
there can be ne hard and fasc rule.
The main test is whecher che
statement was made as early as can
reasonably be expected in the
circumstances of the case and
before there was opporiunicy for
rutoring or concoction,

(30) The next question is whether
the mother can be regarded as an
‘independent” witness. So far as chis
casc 15 concerned, 1 have no doubt
on that score. It may be that all
mothers may nec be sufiiciently
tulfil  the

requirements of the corroboration

mdependent o

(Also reporied in AIR 1964 SCC 54)

rule but there is no legal bar 1o
exclude them from its operation
merely on the ground of cheir
reltionship. Independenc merely
mecans independent of source which
are tikely ro be rainted. In rhe
absence of enmity againse the
accused there is no reason why she

should implicate him falsely.

(31) The third question is
whether chere s independent
corroboration  connecring  the
accused with the crime. The only
corroboration relied on for that s
the previous statement of che child
to her mother. That might not
always be enough but this rule can
be waived in a given case just as
much as the necessity for any

corroboration at all,

In the present case the learned
High Court Judges would have
acted on rthe uncorroborated
testimony of the girl had they not
telt pressed by the corrobaration
rule. Viewing all the circumstances
[ am sacistied that the High Court
was right. | am satisfied thar & this
case, considering the conduct of the
gitl and her mocher from st o
finish, no corroboration beyond
that statement of the child to her
mother was nccessary.

96 _ e . Rameshwar Kzz{yr,z_r; 'Sif}g./?. W;xits:_.ﬁt_qtv; of :thja::._vtg}m



Chittaranjan Das

Appellant

Versus

State of West Bengal

The appellant Chitcaranjan Das
was charged wich having committed
an offence punishable under
section 370 LIXC. This charge was
framed against him on rthree
counts. It was alleged that between
November 18, 1938  and
November 21, 1958 at 29A and B,
Kailash Bose Street, Calcuta, he
committed rape on Sandhyarani
Das Gupua alias Nirmala. The
sccond  count was thar e
committed the same offence ar the
same place and in respect of the
same girl berween December 1,
1958 and December 6, 1958; and
the rhird count related 16 the
commission of the said offence
berween December 9, 1958 and
December 15, 1958 at the same
place and in respect of the same
girl. Along with the appellant,
Ganesh De was charged wich having
abetted the appellant in rhe
conunission of the said offence, the
charge framed against Ganesh De
being under section 376 read with
5.109 of the Indian Penal Code.
The learned Presidency Magiserare,
8th Court, Calcurea, held the
commitment proceedings, and was

satisfied thar the evidence adduced

Chistarajan Das Versus State of West Bengal

Respondent

by the prosccution before him
made out a prima facie case against
both the accused persons. Since the
offence in questions was eriable
exclusively by the Court of
Sessions, the learned Magisirare
commitred them to the Sessions on

May 4, 1960,

In granting certificate to the
appellant, the High Court has held
that the point which the appellant
sought ro raise in regard o the
invalidicy and illegality of the charge
was a point of substance. In facr,
it has observed that the scheme of
222 of

222 Criminal
Procedure Code seems o suggest

secrion the
that che charge framed in the
the
22201, and was

theretore, invalid. The High Court

present  case COIl[l‘ﬁVEHt‘d

requirement of s

also appears to have thoughr thar
this contention received support
from a decision of the Calcutea
High Court in Al Hyder w
Ermperon'. Tt is, therefore, necessary
to examine this argument ar the
outset. We have already set our the
3 counts of the charge formed
against the appellant and we have
noticed that in the three counts
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periods were mentioned within
which the appellane was alleged o
have commirted rape on Sandhya.
The first period was between
18.11.1958 o 21.11.1938, sccond
was 1.12.1958 10 6.12.1998 and the
third was 9.12.1998 o 15.12.1958.
The argument is that s. 212{1} Cr.
PC. requires that the charge must
specity, mter alia, the particulars as
to the nme when the offence was
commirted., and this means that ihe
precise date on which and rhe dme
at which the offence was commiried
must be stated in che charge.
Before dealing with this argument,
it is necessary rto read s.22.

“{1} The charge shall
contain such particulars as
to the time and place of
the alleged offence and the
person (il any) against
whom, or the thing (i any)
in respect of which, it was
commircred, as are
reasonably sufficient to
give the accused norice of
the matter with which he

is charged.

(2) When the accused is
charged with criminal
breach of trust or dishonest
misappropriation of
money. it shall be suthicient
to specify the gross sum in
the

respect  of which

offence is alleged o have
been committed, and rhe
dares berween which the
offence is alleged 1o have
been commirred, withour
specifying partientar items
or exact dates, and rhe
charge so (ramed shall be
deemed ro be a charge of
one offence within the

meaning of section 234 -

Provided thar the tme
included berween the lirst
and last of such daces shall

not exceed one year.”

The appellant’s contention is tha
it is only in cases under s. 222(2)

" where the prosccution is not

required to specify the precise date
and dime ar which the offence s
committed; and char means chat it
is only in respect of the offences of
breach  of

dishonesi misappropriation of

criminal trust  or
motey to which the said subsection
applies that liberty may be claimed
by the prosecution not to mention
the dare and time of the offence.
In all other cases to which 5.222
(1) applies, particulars as to the
rime and place of the alleged
offcnce musc  be  specifically
mentioned. in our opinion, this
contenton is not well founded. In
fact, Mr. Chari who appeared for
the appellant himself fairly conceded
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that in aimost every charge ro
which s. 222 {1} applies, it is usual
to siate that che particular olfence
was committed on or about a
certain date. In other words, it s
not suggested by My Chari thar the
spectfic dare and the specific dme
must necessarily be stated in che
charge in every case. I it is
permissible w say in a charge that
a particular offence was commirted
on or about a specified date,
without specilying the particular
tume, it is difficult ro hold that
because a period of four or live or
six days s indicated in the charge
within which the offence is alleped
to have been commiteed 5. 222 (1)
has been contravened. T is true that
subsection (2} specifically deals with
two kinds of offences and makes a
provision in respect of them, but
that is not e say that in every other
case, the time must be so
specifically mentioned as o
indicate precisely the date and the
time at which the offence was

committed.

It is quite clear that if the charge
mentions an unduly long period
during which an offence is alleged
to have been committed, it would
be open to the criticism char it is
too vague and general, because
there can be no dispure that rthe
requitcrnent of s. 222{1) is thar the

accused  person muse have a
reasonably sufficient notice as to the
case against him. The basic
requirement in every criminal rial
theretore, is that the charge mmust
be so framed as o give the acoused
person a fairly reasonable idea as
1o the case which he s to face, and
that validity of the charge must in
cach case be derermined by the
applicarion of the test, vz, had the
accused a reasenably sufficient
notice of the matrer with which he
was charged 7 It is quite conceivable
that in some cases by making the
charge toe vague in the marter of
the dme of the commission of the
offence an accused person may
substantially be deprived of an
apportunity to make a defence of
alibi, and so, the criminal courts
naturally take the precaution of
framing charges wich suificient
precision and particularity in order
to ensuie a fair trial; butr we do not
think it would be right to hold that
a charge is invalid solely for rhe
reason thar it does not specity the
particular date and time ar which
any offence is alleged 1o have been
commirted. In rhis connection, it
may be relevant to bear in mind
thae the requirements of procedure
are generally intended to subscrve
the ends of justice, and so, unduc
ecmphasis on mere rechnicalities in

respect of martters which are not of

. Chittaranjan Das ‘l/éf_-si;_s State.of West Bengel - . e 99



vital or important significance in a
criminal trial, may somectimes
frustrate the ends of justice. Where
the provisions prescribed by the law
of procedure are intended to he
mandatory, the legislature indicates
its intention in thar behalf clearly
such

and  contravencion of

mandatory  provisions  may
introduce a serious infirmity in the
preceedings themselves; but where
the provisions made by the law of
procedure  are nor  of viral
importance, but are, nevercheless,
intended to be abscrved, their
breach may not necessarily vitiate
the wrial unless it is shown chat the
centravention in question has
caused prejudice ro the accused.
This position 1s made clear by
scctions 535 and 537 Cr. PC.

Take, for instance, the case of
murder where the prosecution seeks
to prove its case against an accused
person mainly on circumstantial
evidence., In  such a  case,
investigation would generally begin
with an certainly gather momentum
afrer the discovery of the dead
body. In cases of circumstantial
evidence of this characrer, it would
be idie to expect the prosecution
to frame a charge specifying the
date on which
murder was committed. All that the
prosccution can do in such cases

the offence of

is 1o indicate broadly the period

- during which the murder must have

been committed. That means the
precision of the charge in respect
of the dare on which the offence is
alleged to have been commitred will
depend upon the nature of the
informacion available o the
prosecution in a given case. Where
it is possible ro specify precisely the
necessary particulars required by s.
222(1), the prosecution ought w
mention the said particulars in the
charge, but where rhe said
particulars cannot be preciscly
specified in the charge of having
regard to the narture of the
information available to the
prosecution, failure ro mention
such particulars may not invalidace

the charge.

[n rhis connecrion, it may be
uscful o refer ro the facts in the
present casc. The evidence of
Sandhya shows that she and the
members of her family had e face
the rerrible probiems posed before
the retugees in char part of the
councry, and in her anxiety to help
her desticute family in its hour of
need Sandhya was very casily
persuaded by Manibala to adopt the
course of carning money by sclling
her bedy. In such z case, if the
minor girl has been exposed to the

risk of having sexual intercourse

.:Zi"OO'.' R :_: P S 'Cbipzzijrz'mjz_j!:;z._l)_ri{%é l/éf‘s_mf. Smmaj West _Béné{dl _



with several people from rtime w
time, it 15 unreasenable ro expect
that she would be able ro specify
which

the precise dates on

particular  individuals had
intercourse with her, If it is insisted
that in a case of this kind, the
charge of rape framed against che
appellant must specify the dace on
which the offence was commireed
by him, it would really mcan that
the appellant cannot be charged with
the offence because the unfortunate
victim would, in the ordinary
course of things, not be able to
state preciscly the dates on which
she was made to submic to the
appellant. Therefore, in dealing
with the question as to whether the
charge framed in 2 criminal wial
has contravened s. 222 (1), the
Court will have to examine all dhe
relevane facts and if it appears o
the Court that having regard o
them, the charge could and ought
to have been framed more
precisely, the Court may reach that
conclusion and then enquire
whether the defective charge has led
to the prejudice of the accused.
That, in our opinion, is the
reasonable course to adoprt in
dealing with contendons like rhe
one raised by the appellant before
us. The question of prejudice did
not impress the High Court,

because it has summarily dismissed
the appeal. It is nor o mateer on
which the appellant can  be
permitted successtully to challenge
the view taken by the High Courr.
In chis coneection we ought 1o add
thac the decision in the case of Al
Hyder (') o which the High Court
has referred in granding a cerdificate
on this point does not support the

CONtention in question

The nexe ground on which che
High Court has granted certificate
to the appellanc is thar the Division
Bench should not have summarily
dismissed his appeal, and in coming
to the conclusion thar chis
argiment amounted to 2 substantial
point of law, the High Court has
referred to two decisions of this
Court in Mushrab Hussein v. The
State of Bambay (%) and Shreckuntiah
Ramayya Municipali v. Stare of
Bombay (%), In Mushrak Hussein’s
case, this Court has no doubt
observed that ic is not right for the
High Court to dismiss an appeal
preferred by the accused to rthar
Court summarily where it raises
some arguable points which require
consideration. It was also added
that in cases which prima facie raise
no arguable issue, that course is,
of course, justlied. Lo is in the light
of this conclusion that this Court
stated that it would appreciate it if




in ‘.ll'gLI’db]C Cascs th‘ stnmmary

rejection orders  give  some
indications of the views of the High

Court on the poines raised,

In the casc of Shreckaniiak

Raprayya () 1t appeared char ou ol

the two appeals field separatcly by
two different accused persons
against the same judgment, one was
summarily dismissed by one Bench
of the Fligh Coure and the other
was admitted by anocher Bench. Te
is in che light of chis somewhar
anomalous position that this Court
repeated its obscrvation made in
the case of AMushrak Hussebr (), that
summary rejection of appeals which
of substance and

raise 1ssU¢s

importance are to be disapproved.

With respect, there can be no
doubt whazever that in dealing with
criminal appeals brought before
them the High Courts should not
summarily reject them if chey raise
arguable and substantial points and

it would be srating the obvious if

we were to add that no High Court
summarily dismisses a criminal
appeal it it Is satistied that it raises
an arguable or substantial question
either of fact or law. In this
connecrion, it is, however,
necessary to bear in mind chat icis
for the High Court which deals
with the criminal appeal preferred
before it to consider whether it

raises any arguable or substandal
guesrion of fact or law, or not.

421 (1)

provides that on receiving the

Section el the Code
pettion and copy under 5. 419 or
s. 420, che appeilate court shall
persuc  the same, and, i it
considers thar chere is no sufficient
ground for interlering, e may
dismiss the appeal summarily, The
proviso to this section requires that
no appeal presented under s 419
shall he dismissed unless the
appellane or his pleader has had «
reasonable opportunity of being
heard in support of the same.
Subsecrion {2} empowers the
appeliate court to call for the record
of the case before dismissing the
appeal under subsection (1) bur it
does not make it obligartory on the
court to do so. Therefore, the
position under 5. 421 is clear and
unambiguous. When a criminal
appeal 1s brought before the High
Court, the High Court has to be

satisfied that it raises an arguable
ar substantial question; if it is so
satisfied, the appeal should be
admitred; if on the other hand, the
High Court is satisfied thar there
is no substance in the appeal and
that the view taken by the Trial
Courr is substantially correct, it can
summarily dismiss the appeal. It is
necessary to emphasis thao the
summary dismissal of the appeal
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does not mean char  before
summarily dismissing the appeal,
the High Court has not applied irs
mind to all the points raised by the
appeliant. Summary dismissal only

chat having considered the

means
merits of che appeal, the High
Court does notr chink 1t advisable
te admic the appeal because in irs
opinion, the decision appealed
against is right. Theretore, we do
not think the High Court was right
in granting certificate to the
appellant on the ground thae his
appeal should not have been
summarily dismissed by another
Division Bench of the said High
Court. If the High Court in dealing
with criminal appeals takes the view
that there is no substance in the
appeal, it 1s not nccessary that it
should record reasons for s
conclusion in summarily dismissing
it.

The third ground on which the
certificate has been granted by the
High Courr is in regard to an

g
alleged misdivection in the charge
delivered by the learned Sessions
Judge to the Jury. It appears that in
dealing with the argument of the
defence that the charge was vague

g £
and that the dates specified in dhe
charge did not correspond o the
dates given by Sandhya in her
evidence, the learned Judge tld the

Jury dhat if the statement of the girl
in her cross-examination s taken
as the basis, the dares on which the
oirl was ravished by the appellant
would not be covered by the thiee
sers of dares mentoned in the
charge, and then he add rhar “in
case you hold thar the charges are
in order, in char case you shall
proceed o consider the evidenee.”
Ie was urged by the appellant before
the Division Beneh of dhe THigh
Courr which granted the cerrificare
that the lasr starement constituced
a misdirection. The argument was
that whether or nor a charge is valid
is a question of law which the
learned Judge should have decided
himself and given a dircction to the
jury in accordance with his
decision; inasmuch as he lefr thar
question to the jury, he failed 10
exercise his jurisdiction and to
discharge his dury, and as such the
charge must be held o suffer from
This

argument appears to have appealed

a sericus misdirecrion.

teo the Division Bench which
granted the certificate and has been
pressed before us by Mr. Chari. In
our opinion, there is no substance
in this argument. We should have
stated earlier that afrer che
comumittal order was passed by the
presidency Magistrate the appellant
moved the High Court in its

revisional jurisdiction and urged
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that the charge framed againse him
was derective and mvalid and should
be quashed. The High Court
rejected chis contention and held
that the charge was valid within the
meaning of s. 222 and 5. 234 of
the Code. Therefore, the true
position is that ac the fime when
the leamned Sessions Judge delivered
his charge to the jury, e question
abour the validity ol the charge had
been considered by the High Court
and so far as rthe learned Sessions
Judge was concerned, che finding
of the Migh Courr was binding on
him, so that when che learned
Session Judge told che jury thae dhey
may consider whether the charges
were in order, he was really leaving
it open to the jury ro consider the
matter which had been decided
against the appellanc and in favour
of the prosccution. If there can be
any grievance against this part of
the charge, it would be on the side
of the prosecution and not on the
side of the appellant.

That leaves te be considered
cercain other alleged misdirection
to which Mr., Chari has referred.
Mr. Chari

explaining the true legal position

contends that in
with regard to the evidence of a
prosecutrix 1n cases of rape, the
learned Judge did not rell the jury
that in view of the conadictions

L Chinaranian Dis Verss State of Wast

brought out in the evidence of
Sandhya and in view of her past
carcer and record, her evidence
should not be belicved. Mr, Chari
argues that when criminal courts
require corroboration 1o the
evidence of the prosecutrix in such
cases, as a matter ol prudence, it
necessarily means that in the firse
instance, the prosccurrix must
appear o the court to be a reliable
witness. [t the prosecurrix does not
appear to be a reliable witmess, or
if her evidence sufters from serious
informitics, corroborations in some
particulars would not help the
prosecuden, and according o M.
Chari, this aspect of the macter was
not preperly brought to the natice
of the jury by the learned Sessions

- Judge. We do nort think there is any

substance in this contention. We
have carefully read the charge and

. we are satisfied char on the whale,

the charge has noc only been fair.
but has been more in favour of the
appellant than in favour of the
prosccution. In fact, the whole tone
of the charge indicates that the
learned Sessions Judge was nort
satishied thac the prosecution had
really made out a case against the
appellant beyond a rcasonable
doube. But in delivering charge w
the jury, the learned Sessions Judge
can never usurp the functon of the
jury. He cannot prenounce on the
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reliabilivy or otherwise of any
witness. The requirement as o
corroboration in regard to the
evidence of a prosccurrix like
Sandhya has been elaborately
explained by the Sessions Judge to
the jury. He rold them rhac the
most portant witness in the case
was Sundhya and thar there was
hardly any corroborative cvidence
to her story. He also warned them
that though it was not illegal o act
upon the evidence of a prosecutrix,
it was unsale to adopt thar course
and he said that before convicting
the appellant on the uncorreborared
testimony of Sandhya, the members
of the jury should ask themselves

whether rthey were so much

convinced abourt the rruchfulness of

the girl as o accept her evidence
in its entirety. He referred to dhe
broad and marterial contradictions
brought out in her cvidence and
asked chem to bear that facr in mind
in deciding whether they should
accept her testimony or not. Having
regard o the several statements
made by the learned Judge in his
charge on this topic we find it
difficult to accept Mr. Chari’s
grievance that the charge was
materially defective in this matter,

The nexr misdirection on which
Mr. Chari has relied is in regard

to the prosecution evidence abour

the age of the girl. The prasecution
adleged that the girl was below 16
vears ol age, whereas the defence
contended thar she was above 16
and was consenting party. As usual,
evidence  was  given by the
prosecution in suppore of 1ty case
as to the girls age. This evidence
consisted of the wstimony of the
girl’s morher Saudamini and of Dr.
Nag as well as D Saha. Having
sumimarised the muarerial evidence
fatrly and accurncely, the learned
Tudge old dhe jury thar che said
evidence was no doubt some what
conllicting and he warned them that
they have to decide as a question
of fact wherther the age of the girl
ar the relevant time was above or
below 16, Mr. Chart conwends thar
at this stage, the learned Judge
should have wold dhe jury thar the
onus to prove the fact thar the gitl
was  on  the

was bclow 16

prosccution and thac iF rhere was
any doubt about her age, the benefic
of the doubr must go 1o the
appellanc. We do noet think there is
any substance in this argument. In
the lirst part of his charge, the
learned Judge explained 1o the jury
the essential requirements which
had to be proved by the prosecution
in support of its charge under s.
376, and there the learned Judge
had made it clear to the jury that
the prosecution had o show that
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the oirl was below 16, Thac being,
son we do nor think dhar s kalare
o mentien the point abour onus
once again when he dealc wary e
aciual relevant evidence, can by
said (o constiture a misdirection,
much less a marerial misdirecrion
which muy have led to the prejudice
ol the appellant.

The last nusdirection on which
Mr. Chari las
statement of the learned Jud

relicd 15 the
ge that
the previous starcments made by the
girls which had been brought on the
record do not constinuee substantive
evidence but are intended only o
contradict rhe actual evidence given
by her in court. [t appears that on
behal{ of rhe appellane the evidence
given by the givl on a previous
oceasion had been brought out
under s.145 of the Indian Fyidence
Act. In that starement the girl had
sworn that Anil Charrerjec had
sexunl relations with her day alter
day and that she had sexual relaiion
with others also. The girl admiieed
in her cross-examination that her
statement had been recorded on a
previous  eceasion by the
Magisrrue, Alipore, but when the
contents of the statement were put
to her, she said she did not
remember whether she had made
those statements or not. Now, it is
thar when a

clear previous

SLlement i pul (o a wirness in
145 of

[ndian Lvidence Act, ns primary

cross-oxaminacion under s,

purpose is to contradict the witness
by reference o the evidence he
givey at the orial, and so. iU canmnot
be said thar the karned Judge was
wrong in law in telling the jury that
the previous statement on which
the defence relied may help the
defence o conrend that the girl was
not a straightforward witness and
was changing here story from rime
ro ume, but rhe said previous
statcment cannot be treated as

susbsiantive cvidence at the wial,

CThat is the rue lt’gzil pusition and

o gricvance can be made against
the charge for stating rhe said
positien in the terms adopred by
the learned Session  Judge.
Therefore. we do not chink char the
gricvance made by Mz Chari thar
the charge suffered from serious
misdirection is well founded.

There is one more point which
we o may mengon belore we part
with this appeal. After the verdicr
was rerurned by the jury, che
learncd Sessions Judge considered
the question as to whether he
should accept the said verdicr, or
should make a reference. In that
connection, he chserved thar the
verdier that the jury had rerurned
against the appellant, was practically
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based on the uncorroborared
testimony of the prosecutrix bur he
thought that the said course
adopred by the jury cannot be said
to be illegal and he was not
prepared o rake the view thac the
verdicr of the jury was in any way

p{‘ll'\’(‘ rse.

Mr. Chari contends that having
regard to the general tone of the
charge delivered by the learned
Judge to the jury, the learned Judge
should have weated (he verdicr as
perverse and not acred upon . We
do not think that this contendon
can be aceepted. Tn his charge, the
learned judge no doubt indicared
thar the evidence ol the girl was not
satisfacrory, that It was not
corroborated and that there werce
ather circumstances which showed
that the prosecution case niight be
improbable, but having done his
duty, the learned Judge had o leave

{Also reporfed in 1964 (3) S5CC 237)

i o the juey o consider wheder
the prosecurion had eseablished s
charge against the appelfant beyond
reasonable deubt or not. The jury
apparently censidered the mareer
for an hour and half and returned
the unanimous verdicr of suilty. In
the circumsiances of this case, we
Mr.

argument that the Sessions Judge

cannotr accede to Chari's
was required by faw to trear the
said verdice as perverse. In a jury
triah where questions of fact are left
jury,

sometimes the verdicrs returned by

to rthe wverdict ol the
the jury may cause a disagreeable
surprise to the Judge, bue thae sl
can he ne  justification  for
c.]mrncrcl'ising the verdier as
perverse,

[y the result, the appeal fails and
is dismissed, the appellant o

surrender to his bail bond.

Appeal dismissed.
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Sideshwar Ganguly -

Appelant

Versus

State of West Bengal ..

This appeal on a certificate
granted by the Fligh Court at
Caleucta under Are. 1340130 ol the
Counstitution, is dirccted againse the
order of a Division Bench ol char
Court, dared lebruary 15, 1955,
summarily dismissing an appeal
from the judgent and order dated
January 22, 1955, passed by the
learned Sccond Additional Sessions
Judge of Alipore, accepting the
unanimous  verdict  of  guilty
returned by che jury, holding the
appellant guilty vunder 5. 376 of the
Indian Pepal Code, for having
committed rape on a young girl,
named Sudharani Roy said 10 be
about 14-15 yecars ol age. The
learned erial judge, accepting the
unanimous verdict of the jury and
agreeing wich it imposed a
“deterrent punishment”™ of rigorous
unprisonment for 5 years, in view
of the Fact chat he was in local
parentis o the large number of girls
who were the mmates of the Nari
Kalyan Ashram of which rhe
appellant had been the secretary for
a prewy long tme...

(4} In order o appreciare the
srounds raised in support of the

108

Respondent

appeal by the learned counsel For
the appellant, i is necessary to stare
the following faces: The appellant
was the honorary secretary of a
farge institution for receiving, and
looking afrer voung girls and
women who had no homes of their
own or had gone astray. [t is called
the 'Nari Kalyan Ashram’ and is
located in one of the quarters of
the city of Calcutta, The appellant
in his capacity as the secretary, used
o come to the Ashrany daily in the
evening at about 7 p.m., & sty
cill
midnight. In jus office reom, there

there midnight or  past
was a bedstead with a bedding
spread thereon, He used o occupy
the bed and requisition the services
of girls to massage his body.
Berween January and April, 1954,
the accused whio was in the habir
of calling the girls named
Sudharani, Narmaya, Kalyani and
others, for that purpose, is said to
have commirsed rape on those girls.
The subject-matter of the charge in
this case is the offence of rape said
o have been commitred on the two
girls Narmaya and Sudharani, onc
alter the other, on the night of April

20, 1954, On April 29, 1954 at
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abour 10 p.m., the officer-in-charge
of the Manikrala police station
accompanied by Sub-Inspector
Nirmal Chandra Kar, went e the
Ashram in connection with
collecting information regarding
the escape of some gitls from the
Ashram. Narmaya and Sudharani
are said to have given information
to the said officer-in-charge of che
police station, alieging rape on
them. They also poinred our a steel
locker in the room of the secrerary,
where, it was alleged, he used w0
keep rubber sheaths used by him
before hie had sexual intercourse
with cach of them. The police
officers aforesaid obrained the key
from the eppellant, with which the
steel focker was opened and a
feather bag inside the locker was
pointed out by the girls. The bag
was found to have contained a
rubber sheath along with orher
Afrer

information, the police officer-in-

arricles. recording the
charge of the Manikula pelice
station, investigated the case and
submitted a charge-sheet against
the appeliant. After the preliminary
inquiry by a Magistrate, rthe
appellant was commited for trial
to the Court of Session on a charge
of rape upon the two gitls, under

S. 376, Indian Penal Code.

(51 The defence of the appellant
was that the case against him was

complerely false and had been
concocted by the police with the
help of the inmares of the Ashram
and the Assistant Scoretary, Tarun
Kumar Sarkar who was one of the
prosecution wimnesses. At the trial
the prosecution examined 23
wirnesses, in support of the case
against the accused. The (wo
victims of the alleged ourrage by the
appellant were examined, namely,
Roy, PW. 2 and
Narmaya, BW. 5 who both deposed

Sudharani

that the appellant used 1o come 1o
the Ashram in the evening abour 7
pan., and used to stay there dll after
midnight in his speciai room which
contained a bedstead and a bedding
and a steel almirah and other picces
of furniture. On dthe date of the
occurrence in o question,  firse
Narmaya was called in by che
appellasnie and then Sudharani, and
the appellant is said o have
committed rape first on Narmays
and then on Sudbarani, in the
presence of both of them against
their will and without their consent.
They further deposed thae the
appeilant had intercourse with them
alter putting on the sheath. In
berween the two acts, he had a cup
of tea with which he swallowed a
black pill which is suggested to have
been an aphrodisiac. The accused
paid them each eight annas and

warned them not to divulge those
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acts on pain of being severely deale
with, i’ they disclosed the same.
Kalyant, PW. 19, 15 another young
girl who was an nmate of che
She

1§ a gil'l who was both deal and

Ashram on the marerial dates.

dumb, and her incelligence was

Ag

feebleminded, she was not allowed

below  normal, she  was
ro continue her studies ar the
school. She has given evidence by
signs which were interpreted by the
Principal of the Deal and Dumb
School, who had rughe her au tha
schoal, Her evidence, il accepted,
would be a corroboration of the
testimony of the victims atoresaid
act of the

of the ourrageous

appellant....

Jheowill be nouced thae it the

learned Judge has made any

mistake, the mistake is in favour

of the accused and not against him
in so far as the learned Judge refers
to the evidence of the rwo girl

victims as chat of accomplices. A |

oirl who 1s a victim of an outrageous
act is, generally speaking, nor an
accomplice though the rule of
prudence requires that the evidence
of a prosccurrix should  be
corroborated before a conviction
can be based upon it. Hence, the

learired Sessions, Judge was fully

{Also reported in AIR 1958 SCC 143)

o -

sustiticd in telling the Jury chan there
was ne rule of w or pracrice tha
there must be corroboration in
every case belore convicrion for
rape. 1F the jury had been apprised
of  the necessity,  ordinanly
speaking, of corroboration of the
evidence of the prosceutrix, it is for
the jury to decide whetlier or not
]l V\“i” L'(‘ll\o’i(:[ on l’hC
uncorroborated testimony of a
prosceuerix in the  parteular
circumsranges of the case before i
tn orher words, insistence on
corroboradon is, advisable buc s
not compulsory in the cye of law,
In che instant case., apart from the
evidence, of the rwo vicrims
aforesaid, rhere was the evidence
of the two victims aforesaid, there
was the evidence of the deaf and
dumb girl‘ Kalyani, and the other
circumstantial evidence in support
of the prosccution case. tr is well
established that rhe narure and

- oxtent of cerroboration, necessary,

vary with the circumstances of case.
The nature ol the corroborative
evidence should be such as o lend
assurance that the evidence of the
prosecutrix can be safely acted

L.

{11} In our opinion, there is no
merir in the appeal, 1o is accordingly

dismissed.
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Janardan Tiwary

Appellant

Versis

State of Bihar

The two appelfants, Janardan
Tiwary and Bishwanath Singh have
been convicred under Scerion 376,
Indian Penal Code and ecach of
them has heen senrenced o six
years rigorous Imprisonment and
Rs. 500/- fine, in default ro undergo
further rigorous imprisonment for
ane year cach. They were originally
trted with two others {Chandrama
singh and Rameshwar Singh) who
were also convicred by the Coure
of Sessions but were acquirred in
the High Courr.

2. The facws of rhe case are
simple. The prosceurrix is a young
girl aged berween 14 and 16 years.
She was residing with her morher
in village Babura, which is six miles
from Barhara Police Station. The
occurrence is sald to have taken
place on January 8. 1962, berween
the hours 6 and 7 in the evening.
That evening, Ram Pyari in the
company of her nephew Bir Kumar
Siagh, DW. 2, a boy aged 12 years
went o a wmple for the purpose
of lighting agarbarties and
performing pooja. They were
recurning home after having lighted
the deyas and the agarbacties and

]anmdaﬂ .'_Hzmry' Versus-Staie_of Bihar

Respondent
were passing aloong the village
Fontpach when the Tour accused dw
s 1o sav the two appellants and
(}KI]L‘I' [REAES] \‘Vl]U hil\’(' SiﬂL'L' l)(_'L'n
acquirted suddenly appeared on the
scene and caught hold of Ram
Pyari. One of them (Rameshwar
Singh) chrust an angochhi o here
motith. She was bodily fifred and
carried o a field called Chanka
Bagicha, She was lirst thrown down
under a mango rree bur was later
picked up again and raken w
place which was more smooth and
thl‘L‘ \'\"ililt' IVI]L' l)fl‘lt‘l'.‘\ h(‘ld thc ‘Q_”i
down, each of the accused in turn
raped hert Her nephew Bir Kumar
was shown a dagger, and fed ro his
own house and informed his grand
mother that Ram Pyari had heen
caught by four persons whom he
named excepr one whom  he
described with reference o his
village. The mother imniediacely
went towards the Bagicha wking a
lantern with her. She mer Ram
Pyari on the way and found that
her clorhes were blood staimed and
there were stains of semen upon
them. Ram Pyari narraved rhe
incident to her. They wanted to ger

the help of Mulhia bur he was not
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s house. So they went o a Sub-
Inspecror {Krishna Stagh PW.11)
who was in the village on leave,
Ram Pyari narrated her story ro
him. He also saw that the clothes
of the girl were torm and wet and
that she was bleeding. He advised
them to make a report ro the
Mukhia bur he Muichia was not
available, Hence the Feporr was
made on the nexe dav, at zbout 5.
p.m. The girh was examined on
January 10, 1962, by a Lady
Docror (PW.3) Pushpa Mchra, The

Lady Docror found evidence of

rape upon the person of the girl
and from her physical appearance
and other condirions she was of the
opinion that the girl was aged
between 14 and 16. Afwer che
necessary investigation, the four

accused  in the  case  were
prosecuted with the result already

stared.. ..

5. In this case the first thing ro
see is whether rape had been
committed or nor. There is no
deubt thar the girl was criminally
assaulted and suffered severe
injurtes as a result. She was
examined 40 hours later and the
injuries were found on her person.
Mr. Q. Verma argued that the lady
docror cught ro have smear from
the vagina w see if spermarozoa

could be found. There was hardly

S112

any need. The witnesses found the
clothes stained with semen and she
had sullered injuries. We are
satisfied trac ehis girl was raped and
we have only o find out who (he
culprits were, In this connecrion,
the Taw is thar the evidence of the
prosecucrix must be corroborited
N some measure o connect the
accused. Enoungh corroboration s
available in this case from the
cvidence of Bir Kumar whe gave
the information o his grand mather
mmmediately after the incident and
also deposed on oath in Courr. Bir
Kumar Singh is a young boy aged
12 years and dherefore, we have 10
be cautious abour accepting his
testimony, We have read his
evidence. Bir Kumar Singh was
closely questioned e find out
whether he understood narure of
evidence and wherher he was
capable of giving answers o the
questions put to him. The Sessions
Judge was satisfied chat Bir Kumar
was a cempetent witness and his
statement struck us as being truc.

6. I was argued that the girl had
g
gone away in the company of one

: Jamuna Sonar to Poona for 15 to

16 days bur there is no evidence to

prove it and the High Court and

the Sessions Judge have rightly

rejected this suggestion. It was also
g

said that this is a low family. The

]armrdn’n_ Yiwmy %f;fsu;f Sm_tgf;bf-Bf&ér



mother of the girl had kept a dancer
in their house and he lived there
with his mistess. The girl admiceed
that onc dancer did live with them

ane year ago but was not then living |
) 8 g

with them. These suggestions have
no bearing on the truth or falseness
of the girl’s story. They were made
to prejudice the Court against the

(Also reporfed in 1971 (3) $CC 927)

- Javiardan Thvary Versus Stite:of Bibir.:

Cgirl's

character. These  false
accusations do not appeal ro us. On
the whole we accepr the evidence
in casc and do nor chink thae chere
s any merit in this appeal at all
and rthe other rtwo accused muse
consider rhemselves fortunate thae
they were acquitted. The appeal
fails and will be dismissed.




L ]_,ﬂ]

Petitioner

Vercues

State of Haryana

A rapist — if rhe CONCUrrent
findings of the courr below were
correct -— has chosen to seek

special leave o clm”cngc: his ¢crime
and punishment, and his counsel
has arracked  the verdict  of
cuipability and wholly unfounded.
Indeed, it is redundang, and absenr
exceptional circumstances, our of
bounds, for rhig Courr, exercising
its jurisdiction under Article 136,
to launch upon an exploracion and
reappreciation of the evidence, jrs
strengths and weaknesses with 4
view o sit in judgment over the
holdings of the High Court in
affirmance of those of the trial
Courr.

2. Briefly, we will touch upon
one or (wo clremstances withour
claiming to be exhaustive in any
manner. One Shashi Bala of Ambala
was sleeping, with her mother and
other children, outside her housc
in hor July {1975).

3. Counsel for the petitioner
persistently urged cthat the cvidence
of the prosccurrix,
subsrangial corrohoration, was
inadequate 1o rest g conviction
under Section 376, IPC, He relied
on obscrvations of this Court in
Gurcharan Singh v,
Haryand' for the proposition thar

withour

State ? / g

} Respondent

although a prosecutrix is nor an
accomplice, her evidence, ag o rule
of prudence, is viewed by courts
unl‘:lvm'al)l;\f uniess reinflorced by
corroboration “so as o satisly iry
conscience thar she is mlling rhe
truch and thatr the Persoin accused
of rape on her has not heen faisely
implicated™ Te is true thar old
English cases, followed in British-
Indian coures, had led ro 4 tendency
on the parr of the judge-made law
thar the of
corroboration should e prosent o
the mind of the Judge “excepr where
the circumstances make it safe ¢
dispense wich i, Case-law,
those days, had clearly spelt our the
fbﬂowing propositions

udvis:lbi]ity

o
Cven i

The rtender vears of child,
coupled wich other clrcumstances
appearing in the case, such, for
as s demeanaour,
unlikelihood of tirering and so
forth, may render corrobhoration
unnecessary bur chac is a question
ol fact in every case. The only rufe
of law is thar this rule of pradence
must be present to the mind of the
judge or the jury as the case may
and be understaod and
appreciated by him or them. T here
is no rule aor praceice thar there
Mmusc, in cvery  case,

example

be

be

e Krzs/’mn.lal I_é;_:éi!si_'«f;tq_iié" quéi;«gm



corroboration belore a conviction
can be allowed, o stand.

It \V(}Ul({ lC llj]})()\\llle ﬂd‘.cd
it would be dangerous 1o formulate
the kind of evidence which should,
or  would, be regarded  as
corroboration, Trs nature and excent
must vary with

circumstances of each case and also

necessarily

the
ol

to
CIrCUMstances

particular
the

according «
offence
charged.

Ohservations on pr()b:lrivc force
of circumstances are not universal
faws of narure bur guidelines and

good counsel.

4, We must bear in mind human
psychology and  behavioural
probability when assessing the
testimontal potency of the victim’s
What girl would foist a
rape charge on a seranger unless a
of ftacts or clearest
nmotives were made out ¢ The
inherent bashfulness, the innocent
naivete and the feminine rendency

Version.

remarkable set

to conceal the outrage of masculine
sexual aggression are factors which
are relevant to improbabilisics the
hyporhesis of false implication. The
injury on the person of the vietim,
especially her private pares, has
corroborative value. Her complaint |
to her parents and the presence of

(Also reporied in 1980 (3) SCC 159)

Krishan Lal __chrmv State of Haryana : -

blood her clodhes alsa
westimony which warrants credence.
More
human nature that a girl sleeping

with her mother and other children

on dre

than all, it baflles beliet in

in the open will come by blood on
her garments and injury her
private parts unless she has been
rape.
And if rape has been commicted,

subjected o the torrure of

as counsel more or less conceded,
why of all persons in the world,
should the vicrim hune up che
petioner and point at him che
accusing finger ? To forsake these
vital considerations and go by
obsolescent demands for substantial
carroboration s sacrifice
common scuse in favour of an

Lo

artificial concocrion called “Judicial’
probability. Indeed, the court loses
its LILdIbIII‘E) i it rebels against
realism. The law court is not an

unnatural world.

5. We are not satisfied thac
merely because the wial Courr has
ultracautiously acquitred someone,
the higher court chat
reasoll, acquit cvervone. Rcﬂccting
on this case we feel convinced thar
a soctally sensitized judge is a betrer
staturory armour against gender

must, for

outrage than leng clauses of a
g feng o

complex section with all che

{oprotections writ 1nto it

s



Rafiq

Petitioner

Versus

State of U.P.

This special leave petition relaes
to 4 conviction and sentence for an
offence of rape. The escalation of
such  crimes  has  reached
pl‘(}p()l‘ti()ns o a d(igl‘l:r: [hﬂ[ CXP()SCS
the pretensions of the nation’s
spiritual leadership and celluloid
censorship, purs 1o shame our
ancient cultural heritage and
humane claims and betrays a vulgar
masculine outrage on human rights
of which woman’s personal dignicy
is a scared component. We refuse
special leave and briefly state a few
reasons for doing so.

2. Draupadi, a middle-aged baf
sewika in o a village welfare
organization, was sleeping in a girls’
school where she was allegedly
raped by Raflg, the petitioner, and
three others. The offence took place
arvund 2.30 am. on August 22/
23,1971, and the next maorning the
victim refated the incident to the
mitkhya sewika of the village. A
report was made rto the police
station on August 23, 1971 ar
midday. The investigacion char
followed resulted in a charge-sheet,
a trial, and, cvenrually, in a
conviction based substantiaily on

116

Respondcnt

the testimony of the viciim,
Although some of the witnesses, in
shifred cheir

retl-tale fashion,

lovalties  and  berraved  che
prosecution case, the rrial Court
entered a finding of guilt against the
appellant, giving che benelic of
doubr o the other three oscurcly.
A 7-year sentence of rigorous
imprisonment was awarded as
justly merited, having regard to the
circumsiances. The appeal carried
High

unsuccessiul bur, undaunted, che

to the Court  proved
petioner has sought leave to appeal

to this Court....

4. Counsel contended that there
was absence of corroboration of the
testimony of the prosecurrix, that
there was absence of injuries on the
person of the woman and so the
convictlon was unsustainable, tested
on the touch-stonc of case-law.
None of these submissions has any

sustenance and we should, in the
ordinary course, have desisted from
making even a speaking order buc
counsel cited a decision of chis
Court in Pratap Misra v. State of
Orissa' and urged that absence of
injuries on the person of the victim

_Rﬂﬁq Versus State of ur.



was fatal ro the prosecution and
that corroborative evidence was an
imperative component of judicial
credence n rape cases.

5. We

argument that regardless of the

cannot accepr rthe
specific circumstances of a crime
and criminal milien, some strands
of probative reasoning which
appealed to a Bench in one reported
decision must mechanically be
extended  te other  cases.
Corroboration as a condition for
judicial reliance on the restimony
of a prosecutrix is not a matter of
law, but a guidance of prudence
under given circumstances. Indecd,
from place to place, from age o
age, from varying life-styles and
behavioural complexes, inferences
from = given set of facts, oral and
circumstantial, may have to be
drawn not with dead uniformicy bur
realistic diversity lest rigidity in the
shape of rule of law in this area be
introduced rthrough a new type of
precendential tyranny. The same
observarion holds good regarding

(Also reported in 1980 (4) SCC 262)

Rafig Versus State of U

the presence or absence of injurics

on the person on the aggressor or

the aggressed.

7. Bardly a sensitized judge whao
5CCS the conspectus of
circumstances its totality and rejects
the testimony of a rape victim unless
there are very strong circumstances
militating against its veracity. None
we see (n this case, a confirmation
of the conviction by the courts
below must. therefore be macter of
course. Judicial respouse to human
rights cannot be blunted legal
bigotry....

9. Counsel submirted thar a 7-
year scilence was oo severe, Ve
because, as we have stated carlier,
rape for a woman is deathless
shame and must be dealt with as
the gravest crime against human
digniry. No interference on the
score of culpabilicy or quantum of
punishment is called for in the

clrcumsrances.

10, We refuse special leave.
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Bharwada Bhoginbhai Hirjibhai

Appellant

Versus

State of Gujrar

2. The need of the hour is o
mould and evolve the Laws so as to
make it more scnsitive and
responsive o the demands of rhe
time in oarder o resolve the basic
problem : “Whether, when, and o
what extent corcoboration ro rhe
testimony of a vicrim of rape s
essential o establish the charge.”
And the problem has special
significance for the women in
India, for, while they have often
been idolized, adored, and even
worshipped, for ages they have also
been exploited and denicd even
handed justice — sixty crores
anxious eves of Indian women are
therefore focussed on this problem.
And to that problem we will
presently address ourselves.

3. The learned Sessions judge,
Mehsana found the appeilany, a
government servant employed in e
Sachivalaya ar Gandhinagar, guilry
of serious charges of sexual
misbehavior with rwo voung girls
1 or 12)
convicted the appellant for the

(aged about and

offence of rape, ourraging the

modesty of womei, and wrongful
confinement, The appeal carried to
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Respondent

the High Court substaniiafly failed.
The High Court affirmed dre order
of conviction under Section 342 of
che Indian Penal Code for
wronghully confining che girls, The
High court also sustained rthe order
ol conviction under Section 354 of
the Indian Penal Code (or outraging
the modesty of the two girls. With
regard to the more scrious charge
of rape on onc of the girls, the
High Court came to the conclusion
that what was established by
evidence was an offence of artempr
to commit rape and not of rape.
Accordingly che conviciion under
Section 376 was altered inte one
376

Section 511 of the Indian Penal

under Scction read with
Code. The appellant has preferred
the present appeal with special leave.

The medical  examination
disclosed that there was evidence
to show that an attempt to commit
rape on her had been made a few
days back. The Sessions Court as
well us the High Court have
accepted  rthe  evidence and
concluded that the appellant was
guilty of sexual mishehaviour with

PW 1 and PW 2 in the manner
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alleged by the prosecution and
established by the evidence of PW
1 and PW 2. Their evidence has
been considered to be worthy af
acceptance. 1t is a pure finding of
fact recorded by the Sessions Court
and affirmed by the High Court.
Such a concurrent fnding of fact
cannot be recopened in an appeal
by special leave unless it is
established : (1) that the finding is
based on no evidence or (2) thar
the finding is perverse, it being such
as no reasenable person could have
arrived at even if the evidence was
rzken ar its face value or (3) che
finding is based and built on
inadmissible evidence, which
evidence, i excluded from vision
would negate the prosecution case
or substantially discredit or impair
it or (4) some vital piece of
cvidence which would tilt the
balance in favour of the convict has
been overlooked, disregarded, or
wrongly discarded. Over much
importance cannot be attached w0
minar discrepancies. The reasons

are obvious

(1) By and large a witness
cannot be expected to possess
a photegraphic memory and to
recall the details of an incident.
le is not as if a video wpe is

replayed on the mental screen.

(2) Ordinarily 1t so happens
thar & wirtness is overtaken by
events. The wimess could not
have anticipaced the oecurrence
which so often has an clement
of  surprise. The mental
facultics theretore cannot be
expected o be atuned 1o

absorly the dewils.

(3} The powers of
observarion difter from person
ro person. Whar one may
notice, anocther may noat, An
objcct or movement might
embess s image on oac
persons mind, whereas it might
go unnoticed on the part of the

anocther.

(4) By and large people
cannot Z}C(lil"{lf(‘)i.\;’ IVCIC‘J” i
conversarion and reproduce the
very words used by chem or
heard by them. They can only
recall the main purport of the
conversation. Tt is unrealistic o
expect @ witness to be a human
rape-recorder.

(33 In regard o exact tme
of an incident, or rthe time
duration of an occurrence,
usually, people make their
estimates by guesswork on the
spur of the moment at the rime
of inrerrogation. And cne
cannot cxpect people to make
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very precise or reliable

cstimates in such matiers.
Again 1t depends on the time-
sense of individuals which

varies from person to person.

(G} Qrdinarily a wirness
cannot be expecred to recall
accurately the scquence of
evetns which rakes place in
rapid succession or in a short
rime span. A witness is liable
o get confused, or mixed up
when Interrogated later on.

{7} A wimess, though wholly
truchful, is liable (o be
overawed by the court
atmosphere and the plercing
cross-examination made by
counsel and out of nervousness
mix up facts, ger confused
regarding sequence of events,
or fill up derails from
tmagination on the spur of the
moment. The subconscious
mind of rthe witness sometimes
$0 operates on account of the
fear of looking foolish or being
disbelieved though the witness
is giving a rruchful and honest
account of the occurrence
witnessed by him -— Perhaps
it is a sort of a physiological
defence mechanism activated
on the spur of the moment.

" Bharivada Bhoginbhias Horibhas Vor

6. Discrepancies which do not
¢o to the roor of the macrer and
shape the basic version ol the
witnesses therefore cannot be
annexed with undue imporance.
More so when the all imporant
‘probabilitics lactor’ echocs in
favour of the version narrated by
the witness.

7. It is now time o wckle the
pivotal issue as regards the need for
insisting on corroboration to the
testimony of the prosccurrix in sex
offences.

9. In the Indian setting, refusal
to act on the testmony of a vicdm
of sexual assault in the abscnce of
corroboration as a rule, is adding
insult to injury. Why should the
evidence of the girl or the woman
who complains of rape or sexual
molestation be viewed with the aid
of spectacles fitced with lenscs
tinged with doubt, disbelief or
suspicion ? To do so is to justify
the charge of male chauvinism in a
male deminated sociery. We must
analyze the argument in support of
the need for cerroboration and
subject it to relentless and
remorseless cross-examination. And
we must do so with a logical and
not an opiniated, eye in the light
of probabilities with our feet firmly
planted on the soil of India and
with our eyes focussed on the




Indian horizon. We must not be
swept oft the feer by the approach
made in the western world which
has its own social miliew, its own
social mores, its own permissive
values, and its own code of life.
Corroboration may be considered
essential 1o establish a scexual
offence in the backdrop of the
social ceology of the western world.
[t is wholly unnecessary to import
the said concept on a wrnkey basis
and to transplant it on the Indian
soil regardless of the alrogether
differenc atmosphere, accitudes,
mores, responses of the [adian
society, and its profile.

10. Without the fear of making
too wide a starcment, or of
overstating the case, it can be said
that rarely will a girl or a woman
in India maice false allegarions of
sexual assault on account of any
such [actor as has been just enlisted.
The statemenc is generally true in
the context of the urban as also
rural society. 1t is also by and large
rrue  in the conrtexe of the
sophisticated, not so sophisricared,
and unsophisticated socicry, Only
very rarely can one conceivably
come ACross an exceplion or rwo
and that roo possibly from amongst
the urban elites. Because (1) a Gidl
or a woman in the tradition-bound
non-permissive sociery of India

arada: Bhoginbbai Hirjibhai Verins:

would be excremely reluctans even
o admir thac any incident which s
likely to reflect on her chastity had
ever occurred. {2) She would be
conscious of dhe danger of being
ostracized by the society or being
looked down by the sociery
including by her own family
members, relatives, {riends, and
neighbours. (3) She would have o
hrave the whole world. (4} She
would face the risk of losing the
love and respect of her own
husband and near relarives. and of
her  macrimonial  home and
happiness being sharrered. (5) If she
is unmarried, she would apprehend
thar it would be difficult ro secure
an alliance with a suitable match
from a respectable or an acceprable

6y It

inevitably and almost invariably

family. would almost

]‘L’SU].[ in mental taorture ;-'IHCI

E suffering to herself. (7) The fear of

being taunted by others will always
haunt her. {8) She would feel
extremely embarrassed in relating
the incident to others being
overpowered by a [eeling of shame
on account of the upbringing in a
tradition-bound society where by
and large sex is taboo. (9} The
natural inclination would be to
avoid giving publicity to the
incident lest the family name and
family honour is brought into
controversy. (10) The parents of an
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unmarried girl as also the husband
and members of the hushand's
family of a married woman, would
also more often than nor, want ro
avoid publicity on account of rthe
fear of social stigma on the famify
name and family honour. (11} the
fear of the victim herself being
considered ro be promiscuous or
in some way responsible for the
incident  regardless  of  her
innocence. {12} The rclucrance to
by

investigating agency, to face the

fi]Cﬂ iﬂtc‘:]‘[‘()gati()n tht‘
couzt, to face che cross-examination
by counsel for the culprir, and the
risk of being disbelieved, acts as a

deterrent.

11. In view of these factors the
victims and rtheir relatives are not
too keen to bring the culprit to
books. And when in the fact of
these factors the crime 1s brought
to light there is a built-in assurance
that the charge 1s genuine rather
than fabricated. On principle the
evidence of a victim of sexual assault
stands on par with evidence of an
injured witness. Just as a witness
who has sustained an injury (which
ts not shown or believed to be self-
inflicced) is the best witness in the
sense thar he is least likely to
exculpate the real offender, the
evidence of a victim of a sex offence
is entided to great weight, absence

of corroboration nocwithstanding,
And while corroboration in rhe
form of eyewitness account of an
independent witness may often be
forthcoming i physical assaulc
cases, such evidence cannor be
expecred in sex offences, having
regard to the very natre of the
offence. 1t would cherefore be
adding insult to injury to insist on
corroboration drawing inspiration
from the rules devised by the courts
in the western world (obeisance to
which has perhaps become a habit
presumably on account of the
We

therefore of the opinion that if the

colonial  hangover). are
evidence of the victim does not
suffer from any basic infirmity, and
the ‘probabilities factor’ does not
render it unworthy of credence, as
a general rule, there is no reason
to insist on cerroboration except
from the medical evidence, where,
having regard to the circumstances
of the case, medical evidence can
be expected to be forthcoming,
subject  to the  following
qualification:Corroboration may be
insisted upon when a woman having
attained majority is found in a
compromising positoen and there is
a likelihood of her having levelled
such an accusation on account of
the instinct of self-preservation. Or

when the ‘probabilities factor’ is

found ro be out of tune.




3. The only question thar now ¢ ovisiting his house Lmhcsiuitingly

remains o be considered is as i because of the fact thad his daughier
regards the sentence. The appellane & vas cheir friend. To have misuscd

has behaved in a Shockmg{y this posicion and o have ricked

indecent manner. The magnirude of ! them into entering che house, and

is offence car 3 rer :
his o ce cannot be ove o have taken undue advantage of

emphasised in the conrext of the . . .
, : - L the sitzation by subjecting dhem 1o
fact char he misused his position
as a ftacher of a girl friend of PW 1
and PW 2. PW ! and PW 2 were

sexual harassment, is 2 erime of

which a serious view must be raken,

{Also reported in 1983 (3) 5CC 277)
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Sheikh Zalir Appellant
Versus
State of Bihar Respondent

This appeal by special leave is
filed against the judgment dared
Seprember 17, 1974 passed 1in
Criminal Appeal No. 579 ol 1969
on the file of the High Court of
Patna confirming the conviction of
the appellant of the offence
punishable under Secrion 376 of the
Indian Penal Code and the sentence
of rigorous imprisonment for five
years imposed on  him oen
December 20, 1969 in Sessions
Trial No. 107 of 1968 on the file :
of the Assistant Sessions Judge at
Purnea in the State of Biharn

That on August 7, 1968 at abous
S p.n. the complainang, who was
a marricd woman of abour 25
years, was engaged in the work of
uprooting of the paddy seedlings on :'
her field situated on the socuthern
side of her house in Dhumra Badh
situated in Mouza Dhamdaha,
Police Station Dhamdaha, District
Purnea. There was 2 canal to the
east of the field and there were no
houses nearby. When she was
working on her field the appellant
came near her and started curting
jokes and suggested that she should
frave sexual intercourse with him.

On the complainant protwesting at

his suggestion, the appellant

suddenly caught hold of her, threw
her down on the ground, removed
her clothes and commitred rape on
her. On hearing her cry for help,
some persons arrived at the place.
The appellant immediately ran away.

Thercafter the complainant went

her house and narrated cthe incident
to her husband, Jitrai (W 4). The

complainant and her husband then

Cwent to the local Mulhiya who

asked them to file a complaint in
the court, Then they went to the
police rhana ro give informarion
aboutr the crime bur the police
officer declined to record the
information as the appellant was an
influential person. Then the
complainant went to the court on

August 8, 1968 to
complaint but as the rime for

lodge a

lodging complaint was over by the
g

fime the complaint was drafted, she
filed it on August 9, 1968 in the
court. The complaint contained the
names of some witnesses.

5. The trial
consideration of the marterial before
it found that the appellant was guilty
of rape and accordingly convicted
the appellant of the offence
punishable under Section 376 of the
Indian Penal Code and imposed on

courc on a




him a sentence of rigorous
imprisonment for five years. The
High Courc dismissed the appeal
filed by the appcllant, This appeal
by speciai leave is filed against the
judgment of the High Court. When
the appeal was heard by this court
on March 6, 1980, it was ardered
thar the rtrial court should record
the evidence of the Mukhiya,
Makbool and Chanda Kishku and

to submit the record to this court

The evidence of the Mulkhiya and
of Makbool was accerdingly
recorded and has been submicred
to this court. Chanda Kishku is
reported o be dead. The ather two
witnesses have not supported the
prosecution case. lo is nor quite
strange that some witnesses do
turn hostile but that by irself would
not prevent a court from finding
an accuscd guiley if chere is
otherwise acceptable evidence in
support of the prosecution, In the
instant case, both the crial court and
the High Courr have believed
evidence of the prosecutrix and the
evidence of the other prosecution
witnesses who had been examined
at the trial.

7. The non-examination of the
Mukhiya and the police officer who
had declined the
information alleged to have been

to record

given by the complainant and her
husband is stated to be fawal to the

prosecution. It is further stated dhat

- Sheikhy Zakir Versus State’o
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in the absence of a medical
cxamination report given by a
doctor after examining che person
of the complainant immediacely
after the occurrence it was not
possible to conclude whether the

complainant had been raped.

8. How many police officers
who have in fact not performed
their duty would come before court
as wimess and admit thar they had
failed to discharge their duty ? The
court may safely presume that
netwithstanding the allegarion of the
complainant being true she would
not have been able to secure the
evidence of such a negligent police
official. The fact remains that che
complainant has referred to this in
her complaint on the very next day
and she and her husband ran a
grave risk in making such an
allegation of dereliction of duty
against the police in the complaint.
Nothing hewever turns on the non-
examination of the said police
official in chis case. Insofar as
nonproduction
examination report and the clothes

of a medical
which contined semen, the trial
observed thatr the
complajnant being a woman who
had given birth to four children it
was likely that there would not have
been any injuries on her privare
parts. The complainanc and her
hushand being persons belonging to
a backward communiry like the

court has




Santhal cribe living in a remote arca
could not be expected ro know thac
they should rush to a doctor. Tn fact
the complainant has deposed that
she had taken bath and washed her
clothes after the incident. The
absence of any injuries on the
person of the complainant may not
by iwself discredit the statement of
the complainant. Merely because
the complainant was a2 helpless
victim who was by force prevented
from offering serious physical
resistance  she be
disbelieved. In this situation the

nonproduction of a medical repart

cannot

would nor be of much consequence
if the other evidence on record is
believable. 1t is, however, nobody’s
case that there was such a report

and it had been withheld.

9. A reading of the depositien
of the complainant shows that it
has a ring of ctruth areund it
Secrion 133 of the Indian Evidence
Act says that an accomplice shall
be a competent witness against an
accused person and a convictien is
not illegal merely because it
proceeds upon the uncorroborated
testimony of an accomplice. But
the rule of practice is that it is
prudent to look for corroboration
of the evidence of an accomplice
by other independent evidence.
This rule of practice is based on
experience  and
incorporated in Illustration {b) to

human 1s

Secrion 114 of the Indian Evidence
Act which says that an accomplice
is unworthy of credic unless he is
corroborated in marerial
particulars. Even though a vicoim
of rape cannot be treated as an
accomplice, an account of a long
line of judicial decisions rendered

in our country over a number of
vears, the evidence of the vicim
in a rape casc is treated almost Jike
the evidence of an accomplice
requiring corroboracion. Io is
accepted by the Indian courts that
the rule of corroboration in such
cases oughrt to be as enunciated by
Lord Reading, C.J. in King v.
Buaskerville'. Where the case is tried
with the aid of a jury as in England
it is necessary that a Judge should
draw the atrention of the jury to
the abave rule of practice regarding
corrcboration  wherever  such
corroborarion is needed. Bur where
a case is tried by a judge alone, as
it is now being donc in India, there
must be an indication in the course
of the judgment that the judge had
this rule in his mind when he
prepared the judgment and if in a
given case the judge finds thar there
1s no need for such corroboration
he should give rcasons for
dispensing with the necessity for
such ‘But if a
conviction 1s based on the evidence
of a prosecutrix without any
corroboration it will not be illegal

on that sole ground.’” {emphasis

corrobaration.

: mte ofBz/f'rar :



added) [n the case of a grown up
and married woman it is always safe
to insist on such corroboracion.
Whereever
necessary it should be from an
independent source bus it is not
necessary that every part of the
evidence of the victim should be
confirmed in every detail by
independent Such
corroboration can be sought from
either direct
circumstantial evidence or from
both. The trial court has in the case
before us found thar the evidence
of the complainant had been
corroborated in material pardculars
by the evidence of Sheikh Lafid
(PN 1), Juman Nadaf {PW 2} and
Jitrai (PW 4) the husband of the
complainant. The High Courr also

corroboration  is

evidence,

evidence  or

has acted on the evidence of these
witnesses. Sheikh Lafid (PYW ]) has
stated that he saw the appellant on
the body of the complainant and
that the complainant had also rold
him about the crime. Juman Nadaf
{(PW 2) has stated chat when he
heard the cry of the complainant
at the time of occurrence, he saw
the appeliant fleeing away from that
place. The trial court and the High
Court have not found any good
ground to discard their testimony.

Jitrai (PW 4) has rold the court that

§
H

e complaimant had mentioned 10
him all the dewails of the incident
within a short while after it ook
place. Rama Kant Thakur (PW 3),
the lawycer who drafred the
complaint has stated thac he had
prepared rhe complaint which
contains all the particulars of the
offence under the instructons of
the complainant. Apare from the
evidence of Sheikh Lafid (PW 1)
and Juman Nadaf (PY 2) abour
what they saw, the statement made
by the complainant to her husband
immediatcly after the incident is
admissible under Section 157 of the
Indian Evidence Act and has a
After

considering carefully the enrire

corroborative  value.
material before us including the
cvidence of the witnesses examined
pursuant to the order made by this
court earlier in che light of the
submissions made at the Bar we are
of the view that the judgment of
the High Court does not call for
any interference under Article 136
of the Constitution.

10. The appeal, therclore, fails
and it is dismissed. The appellant
whao 1s on bail is directed to
surrender and to undergo the
remaining part of the sentence
imposed on him.




State of Maharashtra

Appellant

Versus

Chandraprakash Kewalchand Jain ..

This appeal by special leave is
brought by the State of Maharashura
against the judgment of acquittal

recorded by the Nagpur Bench of

the High Court of Bombay
{Maharashtra)

conviction of the respondent

reversing the

Chandraprakash Kewalchand Jain,
a Sub Inspecror of Police, under
Section 376, IPC for having
committed rape on Shamimbanu a
girl aged about 19 or 20 years on
August 22, 1981, The learned
Addirional Sessions Judge, Nagpur,
came to the conclusion that the
prosecution had brought home the
charge under Section 3706, [PC and
sentenced the respondent to suffer
rigorous imprisonment for 5 years
and ro pay a fine of Rs 1000, in
defuult o suffer  rigorous
imprisonment for 6 months. He
was, however. acquitted of the
charge under Scction 342, IPC.
The respondent challenged his
conviction in appeal to the High
Court. The High Court set aside
the order of convicrion and
sentence imposed by the trial court
and acquitted the respondent. The
State feeling aggrieved soughrt special
leave 1o appeal. On the same being
granted this appeal is before us...

Respondent

12. T'he orial courr faund thar the
respondent had visited room No.
204 ar an odd hour and had mken
the couple to the police station
where he had misbehaved with the
girl. 1r also found char he had
E){)()I\'Cd t]lC bo)’ onoa ["l’lISC Chﬂl'gt’
and had Todged the girl in room.
No. 36 after their parents disowned
them. It dastly held thar the evidence
of the prosccutsix dearly established
that ¢he respondenc had raped her
wwice in that room. The crial court
convicted the respondenc under

Section 376, 1PC....

15. Tt is necessary at the ourset
te state what the approach of che
court should be while evaluaring the
prosccution evidence, particularty
the evidence of the prosecutrix, in
sex offence. It is essential that the
evidence of the prosccurrix should
be corroborated in  marerial
particulars before the court bases a
conviction on her testimony ? Does
the rule of prudence demand that
in all cases save the rarest of rare

should

carroboration before acting on the

the court look for
cvidence of the prosecurrix ? Let
ug sec if the Evidence Act provides
the clue. Under the said statute
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‘Evidence’ means and inciudes all
statements which the court permirs
or requires to be made before it
by witnesses, in refation tw the
matrers of fact under inquiry.
Under Section 59 all facts exceprt
the content of documents, may be
proved by oral evidence. Section
118 then tells us who may give oral
evidence. According to that section
all persons are competent to testify
unless the court considers chat chey
are prevented from understanding,
the questions put to them, or from
giving rational answers ro those
(lllesri()nﬁ, hy t@n({(ﬂf )fr:‘AI'S, extreme
old age, disease, whether of body
cr mind, or any other cause of the
same kind. Even in the case of an
accomplice Section 133 provides
that he shall be a comperent witness
against an accused person; and a
conviction is not illegal merely
because 1t proceeds upon the
uncerroborated testimony of an
accomplice. However, illustration
(6) 1o Section 114, which lays down
a rule of practice, says thar the
court ‘may presume that an
accomplice is unworthy of credi,
unless he is corroberated in
marerial pardiculars. Thus under
Section 133, which lays down a rule
of law, an accomplice is a
competent witness and a conviction
hased solely on his uncorroborated
evidence is not illegal although in

view ol Section 14, illustration (b),
courts Jo notas & naer of practice
do so and leok [or corroboration
in material particulars. This is the
conjoint effeat ol Scctions 133 and

114, illustracion {&).

16. A proscoutrix of a sex
offence cannot be pur on par with
an accomplice. She is in fact a
victim of the arime. The Lvidence
Act nowhere says that her evidence
cannot be accepted uwnless e iy
cerroborated in material
particulars. She is undoubtedly a
competent witness under Section
118 and her evidence must receive
the same weight as 1s attached to
an injured in cases of physical
violence. "The same degree of care
and caurion must arttach in the
evaluation of her evidence as in the
case of an injured complainant or
witness and no more.What is
necessary is that the court must be
alive to and conscious of the fact
that it is dealing with the evidence
of a person who is interested in the
outcome of che charge levelled by
her. 1t the court keeps this in mind
and feels sacisfied that it can act
on the evidence of the prosecucrix,
there is no rule of law or practice
incorporared in the Evidence Act
similar to illustration (£} to Section
114 which requires it to look for
corroboration. If for some reason




the court is hesitant o place |

implicit reliance on the rescinmony
of the prosecutrix it may look for
evidence whick may lend assurance
to her restimony  short  of
corroboration required in the case
of an accomplice. The nature of
evidence required o lend assurance
to the testimony of the prosecurrix
must necessarily depend on the
facts and circumstances of each
case. Bur if a prosecutrix is an adult
and of full undecstanding, the court
is entitled to base a conviction on
her evidence unless the same is

shown to be infirm and not
trustworthy. If the totlity of the
circumstances appearing on the
record of the case disclose thar the
prosccutiix does not have a strong
motive to falsely involve the person
charged, the court should ordinarily
have no hesitation in accepting her
evidence. We have, therefore, no
doubt in our minds that ordinarily
the evidence of a prasecutrix who
does not lack understanding must
be accepred. The degree of proof
required must not be higher than
is expected of an injured witness.
For the above reasons we think that
exception has rightly been taken o
the approach of the High Courr as

is reflected in the following passage:

It is only in the rarest of
rare cases if the coure finds chat

the resaimony of che prosecutrix
iS S0 rl'llﬁf\\’()l't'h}f, ti'LlT'h f“ll] JI](i
reliable thar other corroboration

may not be necessary.”

With

correctly stated. [f we may say so,

respect, the i;lW’ is not

it is just the reverse. Grdinarily the
evidence of a prosecutrix must carry
the same weight as is attached 10
an injurcd person wha s a victim
ol violence, unless there are special
circumstances which call for greacer
caurton, in which case ic would be
safe to act on her testimony if there
is independent evidence lending
assurance to her accusation,

17. We think it proper, having
regard to the increase in the
number of sex violation cascs in the
recent past, particularly cases of
moleseation and rape in custody, o
remove the notion, if it persiscs,
that the testimony of a woman who
is 2 victim of sexual violence must
ordinarily be corrcborated in
material particulars excepr in the
rarest of rare cascs. To insist on
corroboration except in che rarest
of rare cases Is to equate a woman
who is a victim of the lust of
another with an accomplice to 2
crime  and  thereby  insult
womanhood. It would be adding
nsuit to injury to tell 2 woman that
her story of woe will not be believed

unless it is corroborated i marterial
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particulars as in the case of an
accomplice to a crime. Qurs iy a
conservative society where it
concerns sexual behaviour. Ours s
NOT 2 PErMISSIVe SOCICty as i seme
of the western and Europcan
countries. Qur standard of decency
and moralicy in public life is not
the same as in those countries. It
that
respect for womanhood in our

is, howcver, unforcunare
country is on the decline and cases
of molescation and rape are steadily
growing. An Indian woman is now
required to suffer indignitics in
different forms, from lewd remarks
to eve-teasing, from melestation o
rape. Decency and morality in
public life can be promoted and
protected only if we deal strictly
with those who violate the socieral
norms. The standard of proof o
be expected by the court in such
cases must take inro accounr the
fact that such crimes are generally
committed an rthe sly and very
rarely direct evidence of a person
other than the prosecurrix is
available. Courrs must also realise
that ordinarily 2 woman, more so
a voung girl, will not stake her
reputation by levelling a false charge
concerning her chastity.

18. Bur when such a crime is
commirted by a person in
authority, c.g. a police officer,

should the court’s approach be the

siwne as inany other case involving
a private ctizen ? By our criminal
laws wide powers are conferred on
the palice officers investigaring
cognizable olfences, The
infrastructure of our criminal
investigation system recognises and
indeed protecrs the righo of a
woman o decent and dignified
treatment at rhe hands of rhe
investigating zpency. This is evident
from the proviso to sub-section (2)
of Secrion 47 of the Code which
obliges the police officer desiring
to  ecffect entry te give an
opportunicy to the woman in
occupation to withdraw from the
building. So also sub-section (2) of
Section 53 requires that whenever
a female accused is to be medically
examined such examination must be
under the supervision of a female
medical pracritioner. The proviso o
Section 160 that

whenever the presence of 2 woman

stipulates

is required as a witness the
investigating othicer will record her
statement at her own residence.
These arc just a few provisions
which reflect the concern of the
legislature to prevent harassments
and exploitation of women and
preserve their digniry.
Notwithstanding this concern, if a
police officer misuses his authority
and power while dealing with a

young helpless girl aged about 19
and 20 years, her conduct and




behavieur must be judged in the
backdrop of the sicuacion in which
she was placed. The purpose and
setting, the person and his position,
the misuse or abuse of office and
the despair of the vierim which led
ro her surrender are all relevane
factors which must be presenc in
the mind of the court while
evaluating the conduct evidence of
the prosecutrix. A person in
authaority, such as 2 police officer,
carries with him the awe of office
which is hound o0 condition the
behavicur of his viciim. The court

must not be oblivious of the

emotional  turmoil and  che

psychological  injury  thar a

prosecutrix  suffers on  being
molested or raped. She suffers 2
rremendous sense of shame and the
fear of being shunned by society
and her near reladves, including her
husband. Instead of treating her
with compassion and understanding
as one who is an injured viciim of
a crime, she is, more often then
nert, and
shunned. Tt must therefore, be

treatred as a sinner
realised that a woman who is
subjected to sex violence would
always be slow and hesitans about
disclosing her plight. The court
evaluate her

must, therefore,

evidence in the above background.

19, It is time to recall the

obscrvations of this Court made

Bheariada
(5.0 p.

not so far back in
fj'/fr)giubffmi /‘."."JA'/.'.I‘[)/:J[Hﬂ
224, para )

“In the Indian scuiing,

£
refusal to act on che restimony
of a vicum of sexual assauli in
the absence of corroboration as
a rule, s adding insule o

Why

evidence of che girl or che

injury. should  the
woman who complains of rape
or sexual molestation be
viewed  with  (he aid of
spectacles firted with lenses
tnged with doubr, dishelict or
suspicion 2 To do so is to justity
the charge of male chauvinism
in a male dominated socicty.
We must analyse the argument
in support of the need for
corroberaton and subject it ro
relentless and remorseless
cross-examination. And we
must do so with a logical, and
not an opinionated, eye in the
light of probabilities wich our
feer firmly planted on the soil
of india and wich our cyes
focussed on the Indian horizon.
We must not be swepr off the
feer by the approach made in
the western world which has ics
own socizl milieu, its own
social  mores, its  own
permissive values, and its own
code of life. Corroboration
may be considered essential to
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establish a sexual offence in the
backdrop of the social ecology
of the western world. It is
whaolly unnecessary to import
the said concept on a turnkey
basis and to transplant it on the
Indian soil regardless of the
different

aunospherc, atrirudes, mores,

alregether

responses of the Indian society,
and it profile. The idenrides
of the two worlds are different,
The solution of problems
cannot therefore be identical.”

Procceding further this
Courr said : {SCC pp. 225-26,
para 1)

“Without the lear of making
too wide a statcment, or
overstating the case, it can be
said chat rarely will a girl or a
woman in India make false
allegations of sexual assault ...
The statement is generally true
in the contexr of the urban as
also rural society. It is also by
and large true in the context
of the sophisticated, not so
saphiscicated, and
unsophisticated society. Only
very rarely can one conceivably
come across an exceprion of
two and that too possibly from
amongst the urban elites.
Because (1) A girl or 2 woman
in the cradition-bound non-

permissive society ol India
would be extremely reluctang
even to admit that any incident
which is likely to reflecr on her
chastity had ever occurred. (2)
She would be conscious of the
danger of being ostracised by
the socicty or being locked
down by the sociery including
by her own family members,
relatives, friends and
ncighbours. {3) She would have
to brave the whole world. (4)
She would face the risk of losing
ic l(}VC 'dﬂd ['CS})S(;[ ()f‘ llt'l' OWN
husband and near relarives,
and ot her marrimonial home
and happiness being shatrered.
(33 Tf she is unmarried, she
woukd apprehend thar ic would
be difficult to secure an
alliance with a suitable march
from a respecrable or an
acceprable family. (0) 1t would
almost inevitably and almost
invariably resule in mental
torrure and suffering to hersell
(7) Vhe fear of being taunted
by others will always haunt her.
(8) She would feel extremely
embarrassed in relating the
incident to others being
overpowered by a feeling of
shame on account of the
upbringing in a rradidon-bound
society where by and large sex
is taboo. (9) The narural
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inclination would be to avoid
giving publicity to the incident
lest the family name and family
honour 1s brought into
controversy. (10) The parents
of an unmarried girl as also the
hushand and members of the
husband’s family of a married
woman, would also more aften
than not, want to avoid
publicity on account of the fear
of social stigma on the family
name and family honour. (1)

The fear of the vicum hersell’

being considered to  be
promiscuous or in seme way
responsible for the inciden:
regardless of her innocence.
{12} The reluctance to face

the

lavestigating agency, to face the

ill[C[’l‘OgﬂtiGil by
s

court, to face the cross-
examinaton by counsel for the
culprit, and the risk of being
dishelieved, acts  as  a

N
deterrent.

20, We

agreement with these obscrvations.

are in complere

21. We now proceed to examine
il the High Court was justified in
upturning the order of convicrion
passed by the trial court. The High
Courr refused ro confirm the
convictien of the respondent as it
gpimf  the

prosecutrix full of contradictions

evidence of the

E e

Nersus: Chandrapriohas)

and nor consistent with medical
evidence as well as the findings
recorded by the Chemical Analyst,
indicare  the

may  first

contradictions which prompred the

High Court ro  look (or
corroboracion. They arc :
(1) the version that the

respondent had misbchaved

with her in the police starion
and had molested her could not
he believed because she did not
complain abour the same 1o the

other police officers who were

present in the police sration
main hall on die ground foor
or o her relatives who were
called to the police station;

{1i}) the conducc of the
respondent in calling her
parents and giving them an
opportunity o take her wirth
them does not smack of an evil

mind;

(1i1) the evidence of the
prosecutrix that the respondent
was inscrumental lodging her in
Anand Mahal Hotel room is
not supported by any evidence;

{iv) the conduct of rhe
prosecutrix is not informing
and seeking assistance from the
hotel management after the
first incident and even afrer the




second incident or rape in the
horel room 1s unnawral and

surprising;

{v) the find of semen stains
on the ‘salwar’ and ‘kurta of
the prosectitrix runs counter w
her evidence that on both the
ocuusions she was complerely
she was

denuded  before

ravished;

(vi) the absence of marks of
physical violence also runs
counter to her version that
when she tried to raisc an
alarm she was slapped by the
respondent;

{vii} the cvidence of PW 3
[Dr. Vijaya and the medical
report Ex. 17 do nort lend
corrohoration to the cvidence
of the prosecutrix chat the
had

with

respondent sexual

intercourse her
notwithstanding the resistance

offered by her.

(viii} the report of the
Assistant Chemical Analyst Fx.
71 shows thar neicther semen
nor spermaroroa were derected
from the vaginal smear and
slides that were forwarded for
analysis; and

(i) the evidence of PW 12
Dr. Mere and his report Ex.

41 shows that no physical
injurics were found on che
person of the respondent ro
indicate that he had forcible
sexual inrercourse shordy

betore his examinacion.

22. Before we proceed 1o deal
with these discrepancies we think
it 1s necessary to cear the ground
on the question whether the
prosccutrix had a sulficiently scrong
motive to falsely involve the
respondent and that oo a police
officer. It is possible thar she may
have felt annoyed at being dragged
outr of the horel room ar dead of
night after they had satisfied Police
Sub-Inspecror Qureishi thar they
were legally wedded only o few
hours back. PW 1 may also have
felt offended at being wrongly
booked under Sections 110/117,
Bombay Police Act. The question
is whether on account of this
annoyance both PW 1 Mohmad
Shafi and PW 2 Shamimbanu
would be prepared o stake the
reputation of the latrer 7 As pointed
out carlier ordinarily an Indian
woman would be most reluctant to
level false accusation of rape
involving her own reputation usnless
she has a very strong bias or reason
to do so. In the present case
although the couple had reason to
be annoyed with the conduct of the




respondent, the reason was not
strong cnough for Mohamad Shali
to involve his wife and soil her
reputation nor for Shamimbanu ro
do so. An Indian woman attaches
maximum importance to  her
chastity and would nor essily be a
party to any move which would
jeopardise her repuration and lower
her in the estcemn of others. There
arc, therefore, no such strong
circamsiances which would make
the court view her evidence with

suspicion.

23. The next question is wherker
the High Courc was justified in
refusing to place reliance on her
evidence in  view of che
discrepancies and inconsistencies
indicated above. It is not in dispure
thar the respendent had taken boch
PW 1 and PW 2 to the police
station at dead of night. At the
police station both of them were
scparated. She was all alone wilh
the respondenr tll abour 5.00 am.
This was her first encounter with
the police.” She must have been
nervous and considerably shaken.
She must have felt helpless as she
was all alone. She must be terribly
worried not only abour her own
fate bur also thar of her husband.
1t is during the tme she was alone
with the respondent that the latrer
is alleged to have misbehaved with

her How could she complain w the
other police ofticers in che police
starion abour the behaviour of their
collengue unless she be sure of their
response?  Having  secen che
behaviour of ane of them, how
could she place confidence in orhers
belonging to the same clan. She
may rather prefer to ignore such
behaviour than speak of it o
unknown persons. Ordinarily an
Indian woman is ashamed o speak
about such violations of her person,
more so o ol srangers abour
whose response she is not sure.
There was no point in speaking o
her parenis who had disowned her.
She

informed her hushand abour che

however, claims to have
same on his return, The omission
on the part of her husband ro make
a mention about the same cannot
discredic her. Even if we assumc
that she omitted to mention ic, the
said omission cannot weaken her
evidence as obviously she would
attach more importance ro what
happened thereafter in the hoertel
room. the respondents behaviour
in the police stadon had paled into
insignificance in view of his
subsequent misdeeds. No wonder
she would atrach greater importance
te the subsequent events racher
than dwell on advances made
carlier. We, therefore, cannot agree
with the High Court’s observaton
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that “the prosecutrix is noc only
prone to make improvements and
exaggerations, buc is also a liar
disclosing a new story altogether to
serve her interest”. This is a harsh
comment which, we think is corally
unwarranted.

24. 'The High Court has argued
that the conduct of the respondent
in sending for her parents and in
permitting her to go with them
shows that the respondent’s
intentions were not evil. In the firse
place, it must be mentioned that
the suggestion to call the parents
came from PW 1. Secondly, the
evil thought may have taken
concrete shape after the parencs
refused to take her with them. It
was then that the respondent
realised the helplessness of the girl
and chalked out a plan o sacisfy
his lust. As a part of that design he
falsely booked Mohmad Shafi and
made arrangements to lodge the girl
The

evidence of PW 4 Suresh Trivedi

in a horel of his choice,

read with the entry in rthe hotel
register and the conrtradicrion
brought on record from his police
statement leave no room for doubt
that the girl was lodged in his hotel
at the instance of the respondent.
PW 6 and PW 7 have also resiled
from their earlier versions to help
the respondent. But nowwithstanding

their denial we see no reason to

dishelicve Shamimbanu on che
point of PW 7 having lodged her
in room No. 30 of Anand Mahal
Harel as the same is corroborared
not only by the remark in the enory
Ex. 25 of the hotel register but also
by the fact thac it was 'W 7 who
informed Mohmad Shali thar she
was 1n room No. 36. We are,
therefore, of the view thar her
evidence in this behalf is supported
by

documentary evidence, How then

noet only oral bur also
could she seek help or assistance
from the hotel staff which was
under the thumb of the respondent?
The hotel was situated wichin che
jurisdiction of the respondent’s
police station. It was ar the behest
of the respondent that she was kepe
in that room. She must have
realised che furilicy of complaining
to them. Jailure to complain to the
staff the

circumstances cannot be described

horel in above

as unnacural con d uct,

25. It is crue that the prosecurrix
had deposed that on both the
occasions she was completely
denuded before the respondent
raped her. On the first occasion he
had removed her ‘kurta’ before she
was laid on the cot. Her ‘salwar’
was removed while she was lying
on the cot. Therefore the ‘salwar
may be lying on the cot iself when
the acr was commirted. [t is,




therefore, not ar all surprising to
find semen stains on the ‘salwar’.
She was wearing the same clothes
when she was ravished the second
time. On the second occasion he
first threw her on the cot and then
undressed her, Therefore, both the
‘kurta’ and the ‘salwar’ may be lying
on the cor ar the time of sexual
intercourse. Besides she had worn
the same clothes wichout washing
hersell immediately after the act on
cach wccasion. 1t is therefore, quite
possible that her clothes were
stained with semen. It must also
be remembered that this 1s not a
case where the prosccuting agency
can be charged of having concocted
evidence since the respondent is a
member of their own force. If at
all the investipating agency would
wry to help the respondent. There
is, therefore, nothing surprising that
both these garments bore semen
stains. Besides, there was no time
or occasion to manipulate semen
stains on her clothes and that wo
of the respondent’s group. Her
clothes were sent along with the
other articles attached from room
No. 36 for chemical analysis under
the requisition Ex. 67. The report
of the Assistant Chemical Analyser,
Ex. 69 shows that her clothes were
stained with human blood and
semen. The semen found on one
of her garments and on the bed-
sheer attached from the room was

of group A which s the group of
the respondent, vide Lx. 70, OF
course the ather articles, viz, the
matrress and the underwear of the
respondent bore no staing. On the
contrary the find of semen lends
corroboration, 1f correboracion s
ar all needed ro the version of the
prosecutrix. The possibility of the
semen stains being of Mohmad
Shafi is ruled out as his group was
found to be ‘B and not ‘A" In the
circumstances the absence of semen
o spermatozoa in the vaginal smear
and slides, vide report Ex. 71,
cannot cast  doubts on  rthe
creditworthiness of the prosccutrix,
The evidence of PW 3 Dr. Vijaya
Lele shows that she had taken the
vaginal smecar and the slides on
August 23, 1981 ar about 1.30 p.am.
i.e., almost afrer 24 hours. The
witness says that spermatozoa can
be found if the woman is examined
within 12 hours after intercourse,
thereafter they may be found
berween 48 and 72 hours but in
dead form. Shamimbanu may have
washed herself by then. Therefore
absence of spermatozoa cannot
discredit her evidence.

26. The absence of marks of
physical vielence on the prosecutrix
is not surprising. According to her
the respondent had slapped her and
dire

threatened her with

consequences when she tried to




resist him on both occasions. Since
she was examined almost 24 hours
after the event it would be oo
much to expect slap marks on her
person. It is, however true chat
according 1o PW 12 Dr More there
were no marks of injury on the
body of the respondent when he
was examined on the 22nd itself ac
abour 8.45 p.m. While it is true
that the version of the prosecurrix
is thar she had tried to resist him,
it musr be realised that the
respondent being a strong man was
able to overpower her and take her
by force. Besides, he was a man in
autherity in police uniform. The
prosecutrix was alone and helpless.
In the circumstances as pointed out
carlier the resistance would be
considerably dampened. But the
evidence of PW 12 Dr More who
examined the respondent on the
22nd ar 845 p.m. reveals thac he
had noticed (1) absence of smegma
around the glans penis, and (i) the
frenum rtortucus and edemartous,
indicative of the respondent having
had sexual intercourse within the
preceding 24 hours. However,
absence of marks of violence and
absence of matting of pubic hair
led the witness to state thar no
definite opinion could be given
whether or not the respondent had
sexual intercourse in the last 24
hours. In cross-examination an

attempr was made to show tha
simegma may be absent in a2 man
with clean habits; thae the freaum
may be edematous if there iy
friction with rough cloth and
tortuousness of the frenum could
be due to anything thar causes
swelling of the skin. The wirness,
however, said that he had nor scen
marks of icching thereby negativing
the suggestion. Be that as it may,
the evidence of this witness docs
show thar there was evidence
suggesting the possibility of the
respondent having had sexual
intercourse within the preceding 24
hours although the witness could
not hazard a definite opinion.
Therefore, rthe noncommicral
opinion of this witness cannor be
said o run counter to the evidence
of the prosccutrix. [c may be that
the evidence as o resistance may
have been overstated, a tendency
which is generally noticed in such
cases arising out of a fear of being
misunderstood by the sociery. That
Is not te say thar she was in any
way a consenting part. She was the
victim of brute force and che lust
of the respondent.

27. PW 1 Mohmad Shafi’s
evidence is also brushed aside on
account of so-called contradictions
set out in paragraphs 32 to 34 of
the High Courr judgment. The first




reason is the nondisclosure of details
in the Hrst oral staremenc which
was reduced to writing at Ex. 50.
That was skeleton informarion. That
is why the need to record a detailed
version Ex. 7 was fele. Therefore,
mercly because the details are not
set out in Bx. 50 it cannot be said
that the prosecurrix had not narrated
the details. We have treated Ex. 50
as FIR for deciding this case. The
previous involvement of PW 1 in a
couple of cases is not ar all relevant
because the decision of the case
mainly rests on his wifc’s evidence.
Bur even Ex. 50 shows that his wife
had told him rhat the respendent
had raped her. We, therefore, do
not sce how the evidence of PV ]
can be said to be unacceprable.

28. The fact chat the respondent
had gone o Gurudeo Lodge at an

odd hour

prosecutrix and her husband to the

and had raken rhe
police station at dead of night i
not disputed. The fact thac the
respondent refused to sign the police
visit book of the Lodge, though
requested by the Manager W 5
Manohar Dhote, on the prerext that
he was in a hurry and would sign it
later, which he never did, speaks
for irself. Then the respondent
booked Mohmad Shafi under a false
charge and pur him behind the bars
thereby isolating the prosecutrix.

We say that the charge was false
not merely because i s so found
on evidence but also because of the
report Bx. 46 daced Seprember 21,
1981

prosecution for wanrt of material o

seeking  withdrawal of

sustain  the charge. Having
cutrix
Hotel

with PW 7 who lodged her in room

successfully isolated the prose
he sent her to Anand Malat

Na. 36. The respondent, therefore,
had planned the whole thing o
satisfy his lust. The subsequent
arrempr on the part of the
respondent 1o commit suicide on
being prosecuted as evidence by the
FIR Ex. 56 berrays a guilty
conscience. We are, therefore, of
the opinion that if the prosccution
evidence is appreciated in the
correct perspective, which we are
afraid the High Court failed to do,
there can be no hesitation in
concluding that the prosecution has
succeeded in  proving the
respondent’s guile. Unfortunately che
High stigmatised the
prosecutrix on

Court
a thoroughly
crroneous appreciation of her
evidence thereby adding to her
woes. 1f the two views were
reasonably possible we would have
refrained from interfering with the
High Court’s order of acquirtal. In
our opinion the trial court had
adepred a correct approach and

had properly cvaluated the evidence




and the High Court was not
justified in interfering with the crial
courts order of conviction.

29, On the question of sentence
we can only say that when a persan
in uniform commits such a serious
crime of rape on a young gir! in
her lace reens, there is no room for
sympathy or pity. The punishment
must in such cases be exemplary.
We, therclore, do not think we
would be justified in reducing rhe

{Also reported in 1990 (1) $CC 550)
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sentence awarded by the wial court
which is not harsh.

30. In the result we allow this
appeal, sct aside the order of the
High Court  acquicting  che
respondent and restore the order of
conviction and sentence passed on
the respondent by the trial court.
The respondent will surrender
forchwith and serve out his sentence
in accordance wirh law. His bail

stand

bond  will  thereupon

cancelled.




State of Maharashtra

A.ppe"ant

Versus

Prakash and Another

This appeal is preferred by the
State of Maharashira against the
judgment of a learned Single Judge
of the Bombay High Court allowing
the criminal appeal filed by the
respondents accused herein and
acquitting them of all the charges.
The learncd Extra Additional
Sessions judge, Amravari had
convicted both the accused
respondents under Section 376 read
with Section 34 1IPC as well as
under Section 342
Section 34 IPC and sentenced them

read wirh

ro rigorous imprisonment for three
years on the first count and for two
months on the second count....

3. According to the prosecution,
on the night intervening 9/10ch
September, 1978, respondent 2
went to the house of Nirmala’s
parents at abour 2.00 a.m. and
called out PW 2. PW 2 was taken
to the house of respondent 2. After
a lictle while, PW 2 returned but
was again called out by respondent
2 saying that he was being called
by respondent 1, police constable.
PW 2 again went to the house of
. respondent 2. Respondent 1 caned
PW 2 alleging that he was going to

Respondent

. destroy the idol of Ganapati, The

respondents asked both PWs 1 and
2 to accompany them to the house
of respondent 2 where PW 1 was
asked to sign on certain papers
under a threat that her husband
would be placed in custody in case
she does not sign the papers. The
first respondent then rook TW 1
inside the house and committed the
offence of rape upon her
Thereafter, respondent 2 went
inside and he too commircred the
said offence upon her. They
threarcned PWsl and 2 nor to
report the matrer to the police.
Afraid of them, 'Ws 1 and 2 went
the house of PW 17

parcnts and spent the rest of the

back to

night there. On the morning of
September 10, PW 2 met another
constable, Kailashpuri (PW 4) and
told him of what happened on the
previous night. PW 4 asked him
to report to the police station.
Accordingly, ac 11.30 a.m. both
PWs 1 and 2 sent o the Police
Station Pathrot and gave the first
information (Ex. 10). T 3, Sub-
Inspector registered the offence,
inspected the spot, seized a carpet
and some other articles from the




scene of offence ncluding the saree
and blouse of PW 1 and sent PW
1 for medical examination. On
receipt of this medical report and
the report of the chemical analyzer,
a charge-sheet was filed againse
both the respondents. They were
committed by the learned
Magistrate to Sessions Court for
trial.

4. Seven witnesses were
examined by the prosecution. the
respondent-accused denied rthe
offence altogether claiming that
they have been falsely implicated.
The learned Sessions Judge found
them guilty and convicted and
stated

sentenced  them  as

hereinbefore.

5. At the crial, PWs 1 and 2
spoke to the presecution case.
Their evidence was corroborated by
PW 4. The said evidence was
accepted by the [earned Sessions
Judge. The learned Single fudge of
the Bombay High Court, however,
took a different view. The learned
Judge held on the basis of the first
informarion (Ex. 10) chat “there
were no threats given ro the
prosecutrix so as to make her
body to the

appellants. It is also clear chat the

surrender her

husband had left the place and yet

she went inside the room of

accused 2. It is apparent from this

eport that she did nort shout rill
entering the room, even after the
door was closed by constable
Prakash.She also did not shour dll
be police constable had removed
the uniform and underwear from
his person. For the first time, she
shoured after the appellant was
naked. She, therefore, did nor
shout even {when ?) accused |
completed the sexuzl incercourse
and went out and sudhakar came
and had sexual incercourse wich
her.,” The learned Judge rhen
compared the contents of her report
{(Ex. 10} with her oral testimany in
court and  found  cerrain
contradictions between them. On
an examination of the evidence the
learned Judge concluded that PW
1 had voluntarily went to the house
of sccond respondent and that she
was a willing partner in the act of
sexual intercourse. He referred ro
the absence of marks of violence
upon her body and concluded
therefrom that no force was used

upon her.

6. We are of the opinion thar
the lcarned Single Judge has
thoroughly erred in appreciation of
the evidence of PWs 1 and 2. PWs
I and 2 beiong to labour class.
They were poor rustic villagers
eking out their livelihood by daily
labour. Tn the middle of night, the
husband was called by the police




constable. The allegation leveled was
that he wanted to desecrate and
destroy the idol of Ganpari and for
that he would be placed in the
police remand. Under this chreat
and duress, PW 1 was made to
surrender herself to both the
accused. Tt is worthy to note that
police constable was in uniform and
en bandobast dury. By show of his
authority, he coerced PWs 1 and 2
into total abject surrender. Ir iy,
thercfore, not a case of P 1 being
a willing party to sexual incercourse.

It

surrendered herself involunrarily,

is a case where she has
under duress and threat held out
by the first accused. Both the
accused had entered into an unholy
plan and adopred a srramgem to

fulfil their illegal desires.

7. For the offence of rape, it is
not necessary that there should be
actual use of force. A threar of use
of force is sufficient. See the clause
“thirdly” in the definition of rape
in Section 375 of IPC. It reads
“Thirdly. — Wirth her consent,
when her consent has been obrained
by putting her or any person in
whom she is interested in fear of
death or of hurt.”. It is also not
suggested that W was a prostitute.
Even a prostitute has to be paid t©
make her agree to such intercourse.
It is not one’s case either that PW
1 is a prostitute or thar she was
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paid any money by the accused. [n
all the circumstances of this case,
the minor contradictions berween
her oral testimony and the report
are of licde consequence.

8, The respondents-zccused
denied che chare

bel

plea was that they have been falsely

e totally, Their only

implicated. t is nor even suggested
as ro who implicated them and why.
It is not suggested thar PW 1 and
2 had any animus or motive against
the accused. Nor is it suggesred
that they were being used by
someonc clse ro implicate the
respondents falsely. 1o the
circumstances. the mere allegadon
of false implicadon has no
significance. Not that we are basing
our finding on this score. We are
refering to this aspect only as a

HNOr Corre bO rarin ¢ aspect.

9. We have already referred o
the fact that PWs 1 and 2 were poor
rustic  villagers ecarning their
ivelihood by daily labour. They
were threarened by rhe police
constable, who was in uniform on
bandobast duty, of having attempted
to defile the Ganpari idol and
threatened with police remand and
all thar follows. The siruation tray
pethaps have been different if dhey
were cducated or at least reasonably
well-connected persons. These poor

L Smte_cha_lmf;zsbzré_:-Vérsw Pa-qléas&.and__{énaozber



rustic helpless villagers, the police

constable represents, absclure
authority. They had ne option but
to submic to his will. In all the facts
and circumsrances of the case,
therefore, we are of the opinion that
the learned Single Judge was in crror
in acquitting  the accused.
Accordingly, we set aside the
judgment of the learned Single Judge
and restore thac of the learned

Sessions Judge.

0. We are awarce that the offence
had taken place in che year 1973
and char they were acguitted by the
High Court as tar back as Augusr,
1981 and we are reversing the
acquittal after a fapse of more than
10 years but having regard to the
nature of the offence and the
circumstances in which it was
perperrared, we are of the opinion
that the respondents deserve no
mercy. They should suffer for cheir
deed.

(Also reported in 1993 Sup. (1) SCC 653)
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State of Himachal Pradesh o Appellant

Versus
Raghubir Singh Respondent
ORDER
I, On special leave beiug 5 prasecurrix had nort reached her

aranted, the Stare of Himachai | home, Nikko Ram her father after
. . -~ -

Pradesh has preferred this appeal = waiting for abour half an hour
against the judgment and order | returned rowards the field and saw
£

dated  November 16, 1983
acquitting the respondenrt of an
oftence under Section 376 1PC
earlier rccmded b", the Icarncd ; the i‘(‘spm)dﬁnt ran away C:n'rylng
©wirth him his underwear. The

the respondent lying on the top of
the prosecutrix Raksha Devi, under

the mango tree. He raised alarm and

Sessions Judge.

¢ prosccutrix was crying and was

2. Briefly stated the prosccrion bleeding per vagina, the occurrence
case is thar on August 2, 1982, the  took place at about 2.30 p.m. and
prosecutrix, Raksha Devi W 4 First Tnformation Repore Ex, L was
along with her father Nikko Ram | lodged ar the Police Station ac 5.50
PW 5 and an order sister by name fpom. the prosecutrix was got
Samti were in their fields. It started ¢ examined by the docror, who found
to rain all of a sudden and the | her hymen ruprured and slight
prosccurrix her father and her sister, ¢ bleeding coming out of the vaginal
ran rowards their house. The ¢ edges. Blood clot was also present
prosecutrix got separated from her ¢ and the excernal genitals of the
father and elder sister and was prosccutrix were found o be render
following them when the respondent © and red. The vagina admirted one
Raghubir Singh then aged about 16 ¢ finger wich difficulry, which got
years, came to her and cavght hold © smeared with blood. The doctor who
of her hand and rook her under a ¢ had examined rhe prosecurrix,
mango tree. The prosecutrix, who | namely, Dr. Urmil Gupra, Medical
was 7/8 years old at that time was | Officer Rural Hospital, Nalagarh at
waaring 2 frock and having a shawl | about 7 p.m. on the same day,
with her. The respondent spread the . appearing as PW 1 at the trial had
shaw! on the ground and making the | also  testified chat when the
prosccutrix lic on rthar shawl prosccutrix was brought o her by
committed rape on her. since, the | her father, he had also brought with
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him a shawl, which was found to be
having seme mud and blood stains.
According ro the opinion of Dr
Urmil Gupra PW 1, the prosecurrix
had been subjected to sexual
intercourse and the probable
duracion of the injuries on her
private parts, including the vagina,
was about 6 te 12 hours. During
the cross-examination, a suggestion
was put to the doctor that the
injuries found on the prosecurrix
could have been caused by a fall on
some bushes or on the stem of a
‘beree’ tree bur the docor had
categorically denied the suggestion.
It was also suggested o her thar che
vaginal injury could also be caused
by inserting a linger in cthe
vagina. The X-ray, the skiagram and
the cxamination of her teeth by Dr,
Subhash Chandra Aggarwal PW 2
established the age of the prosecurrix
ro be berween G to 8 years. The
respondent was also examined by
Docror C.L. Sharma PW 3, Medical
Officer at the Rural® Haspiral,
Nalagarh. He had lound the
respondent to be potent and capable
of sexual intercourse. IHe denied the
suggestion that Injuries would
necessarily be caused to the penis
in case of sexual intercourse by a
grown up male with a virgin when
during the act her hymen gets torn.

3. The father of the prosécutrix
Nikkoo Ram PW 5, the prosccurrix

Raksha Devi PYW 4 and Taru PW
7. who had rushed ro the scene of
occurrence on hearing the alarm
and had also scen the respondent
running away therefrom carrying
with him his underwear supported
the prosccution case in its totality.

4. The earned Sessions Judge
after a caretul appraisal of rthe
evidence on record found char the
respondent had commitred the
oftfence of rape and sentenced him
to suffer RI for o period of five
yﬂﬂl‘s F(_)I' rhc (_)FFEI1C.€ [l|1(lﬁfl' SCC[iOﬂ
376 IPC. While awarding the
sentence, the learned Sessions Judge
reok into account rthe age of the
prosecutrix, the age of the accused
and  the  other  awending
circumstances and directed that it
would be appropriate if the accused
was kept in che open air jail in
Bilaspur during the term of five
years RI. The respondent appealed
to the High Court of Himachal
Pradesh and on November 16,
1983. The High Court acquitted
him.

5. We
counsel for the parties at length and

have heard learned
have gone through the evidence on
the record. The staicment of che
prosecutrix, Raksha Devi PNV 4 is
clear, cogent and specific. The
learned Sessions Judge before
recording her statement was




conscious of her age and had
thueretare, taken all che precaurions
required by law to asceriain whether
she was capable of giving evidence
or not and on being satisfied that
she was so capable, recorded her
She
occurrence in a simple and straight

statement. narrated rthe
forward manncr. The prosccution
casc as noticed in the earlier part
of the judgment was fully supporred
by her during her statement and
nothing has been brought out in the
cross-examination from which any
doubr could be caused about her
veracity, Her statement receives
ample corroboration from the
testimony of Nikkoo Ram PW 5,
her father who cven otherwise
would be the last person o come
forward wich a false accusation of
the type of rape on his young
unmarried daughter. His rescimony
has impressed us and we find him
to be a truthtul and reliable witness.
The medical evidence of Dr. Urmil
has  supported  the
all

particulars. She has also tescified o

Gupta
prosccurrix  in material
the presence of mud and blood
stains on the shawl. The cvidence
of Taru PW 7 who had also seen
the accused running awav from the
scene of crime carrying  his
underwear [urther lends credence
to the prosccution version. The

fearned Sessions Judge, in our

- 1_'48

opiion, was therelore justificd in

relying upon  the prosection
evidence and recording an order of
conviction against the respondent
for an offence under Secrion 376
IPC. His findings were based on
proper appreciation of evidence
and were not unreasonable much

less perverse, The learned single

Judge of the High court in aur

opinion, without appreciating or
properly discussing the evidence ser
aside the findings recorded by (he
Sessions Judge. The High Courr
appears to have embarked upon a
find

contradictions in the oral cvidence

course 1o some  minor
with a view to dishelieve the
prosecution version. In the opinion
of the High Court, conviction on
the basis of uncorroborared
testimony of the prosecutrix was
not safe. We cannor agree. There
is no legal compulsion to look for
corroboration of the evidence of the
prosecutrix before recording an
order of conviction, Evidence has
to be weighed and not counted.
Conviction can be recorded on che
sole testimony of the prosccurrix,
it her evidence inspires canfidence

of

circumnstances which milirate against

and  there is  zbsence
her veracity. In the present case the
evidence of the prosecutrix is found
to be reliable and trustworthy. No
corroboration was required to be
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looked for, though encugh was
The

provided

available on the record.

medical  evidence
sufficient corroboration. The High
Court, however, while dealing with
the medical evidence obscrved as

foliows :

“Lady doctor Urmil Gupra
PW 1, who had examined rhe
prosecutrix, had admitred in so
many words towards the end
of her cross-examination thar
the injury found on the private
part of the prosecutrix and
which is the only injury found
in the instant case could be
caused by inscrtion of a finger
by a grown up person like the
parents of the prosecutrix. [t
is true that normally no
parencs would not (sic) do so
but in the peculiar
circumstances of this case, this
possibility may not be ruled
out altogether. In any case the
mere fact that the hymen of the
prosecutrix had been found
ruptured, would net prove the
prosecution version  and
connect the appellant with the

offence charged against him.”

The above approach o say the
least was highly improper. Whac
were the ‘peculiar circumstances’ of
the case from which the learned
Single Judge of the High Court

- State,of Himachal Pradesh Versis Raghubir Singh .

thought that che possibility could
not be ruled out thar the parents of
[h": I_)]'()SL‘C[[EI'iX \‘V(_)ll]d hﬂ\"L'
themselves caused mjury o the
prosecatrx by inserring ﬁngcr in
her vagina rupruring her hymen is
not at all understandable, There is
no suggestion that on acceunt of
any cnmity, the parents of the girl
would go to dhat length o falsely
implicare the respondenc. Dr
Charate, learned senior counsel was
also unable o point out any such
‘circumstances from the record
which could show that there was
any possibility of che hymen of the
prosecuirix having been ruptured in
the manner suggested by the High
Court or any reason to falsely
implicate the respondent. in fairness
to [ Chatare it must be recorded
that he did not support the
observations of the High Court
noticed above.

6. The learned Single Judge of
the High court alse drew an
inference against the prosecution
fram che face thar only two blood
stains had been found on the shawl
by the Chemical Examiner and
doubted the prosecution version on
the that account. According o the
learned Single Judge -

“In natural course if chis
shawl had been used under che
prosecutrix at the time of the




alleged offence, the same
should have been drenched
with bleod in the middle,
Moreover, this shawl should
have been full of mud as ic
remained lying on the ground
under the prosecutrix for such
a long dme and when it had
rained throughous.”

In making the above
observation, obviously the High
Court ignored the testimony of
Doctor Urmil Gupia who had
found the presence of blood stains
and mud on the shawl and who had
opined that the bleeding from the
edges of the vagina was slight and
that some amount of clowed blood
was also present. The prosecutrix
was a girl of tender age and on
account of the rape committed on
her, there was bleeding from her
vagina but to expect that the shawl
should have got “drenched wich
blood™ as if the large blood arteries
had been cut, is letting che
imagination run wild and ignoring
the circumstances of the case. The
abscnce of spermatozoa on the
vaginal slide which was also pressed
inte aid by the High Courc o
acquit the respondent, was nar
based on proper scrutiny of the
evidence. The prosccurion case
itself was that on being surprised
while the respondent was in the act

St of Himachal Prade Vosis R

of comitting sexual inwercourse on
the prosecurrix, he ran away
carrying his underwear. The
absence of spermatozoa under the
circumstances could nor be said o
be a circumstance in favour of the
respondent at all. The judgment off
the High Court, in our opinion, is
surmisces  and

based more on

conjecrures  than  on  proper
appreciation of evidence. 1t exposes
the insensitivity of the learned Judge
to the serious crime commirted
against human dignity. We are nort
impressed by the manner in which
the High court dealt with the casc.
Courts must be wary, circumspect
and  slow to inrerfere  with
reasonable and proper findings
based on appreciation of evidence
as recorded by the lower cours,
before upsetring the same and
acquitting an accused invelved in
the commission of heinous offence

of rape of hapless girl child.

7. Dr. Ghatate, learned senior
counsel  for che respondent
submitted, by reference to Rahim
Beg v. State of UL that the absence
of injuries on the penis of the
respondent should be treared as
sufficient  to  negative  che
prosecution case. We are afrald we
cannot agree. Inferences have to be
drawn in every case from the given
set of facts and circumstances.

Singh.



There 1s no inflexible axiom of law
which lays down thae the absence

of injuries on the male organ of

the accused would always be faral
to the prosccution case and would
discredit the evidence of the
prosecutrix, otherwise found to be
reliable. The presence of injuries
on the male organ may lend
support to rthe prosecution case,
but their absence is not always facal,
Rabim Beg Case' was based on its
peculiar facts and the observarions
made cherein were in a totally

and

advance the case of the respondent,

different context cannor
The obscrvations i Rabim Beg case’
cannot be mechanically pressed
inte aid in every case regardless of
the specific circumstances of the
crime and absence of the fact
situation as existing in thar casc.
Every case has to be approached
with realistic diversity based on
peculiar facts and circumstances of
that case. Doctor Sharma who had
examined the respondent had found
bim to be capable of sexual
intercourse and according to his
opinion the absence of injury on
his male organ was not suggestive
of the fact that he had not indulged
in sexual intercourse wicth the
prosccutrix, then of teader years of
age. His evidence was not ar all
challenged on this aspect by the
defence.

- State of Himdchal Prades

8. Thus, considered on the
whole, we are of the opinion thar
the judgment of the High Cour is
based on conjectural findings and
cannor be sustained. The same
deserves to be set aside and is
hereby st aside. The reasoning
given by the learned Sessions Judge
and the Endings recorded by him
on appreciation of evidence have
appealed to us and we find no
reason to rake a view differene than
the one taken by the learned
Sessious Judge.

9. We, accordingly, ser aside the
acquittal of the respondent and
hold him guilty of the offence under
Scction 376 IPC for having
committed rape on the prosecurrix,
Raksha Devi, on the date and in
the manner alleged by rthe
prosecution,

10, Having recorded  the
conviction of the respondent for the
offence under Section 376 1PC, the
next question is about the awarding
of proper sentence. The occurrence
took place on August 2, 1982, more
than a decade ago. The learnced
Sessions Judge after recording the
conviction under Section 376 [PC
had sentenced the respondent to
suffer RT for five years. The Stare
did not move the High court for
any enhancement of the sentence.
We, therefore, feel that the ends of
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justice would be met if the sentence
to be imposed on the respondent is
confined to five vears Rl as was
awarded by the learned Scssions
Judge for cogent reasons recorded
by him. We may cmphasise thar
though for such an offence a more
severe sentence would have been
desirable but we have resoricred
ourselves to the maintenance of the
sentence as imposed by the learned
Sessions Judge for the reason that
Srate  did any

¢ seuek
enhancement of the sentence by

th not
filing an appropriate peticion in the
High court or in this Court and for
over a period of seven years, while
the case has remained pending here

no notice had been issued rto che !

acquitted respondent o show cause
as to why in the event of his

acquittal being ser aside, a more ¢

dererrent sentence, than the onc
imposed by the Sessions Judge, be
not imposed upon him and without

putting him on such a netice, the
Court cannot enhance the sentence.
If the notice were to issue now, it
would further delay the disposal of
the case and we do nor consider
that to be a proper course to be
adopted. The more suringent
minimum sentence prescribed for
an offence under Section 3760 1PC
was also incorporated in the Code
by an amendment only with effect
[rom December 1982 afrer the
offence in the presenc case had
been commirtced.

11. The appeal 1s conscquentdy
allowed and the judgment of the
High Courr is set aside. The
respondent is held guilty of an
offence under Section 376 [PC and
to  suffer

sentenced rigarous

imprisonment for a pcriod of five

vears. T'he respondent shall be

taken into custody to suffer the

ern Of" i[]lp risonment.

{Also reporied in 1993 (2) SCC 622}
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Laxman Naik

Appellang

Versus

State of Orissa

The present case betore us reveals
a sordid story which teok place
sometime in che afternoon
February 17, 1990, in which the
alleged sexual assault followed by
brutal and merciless murder by the
dastardly and monstrous act of
adherent nature is said to have been
commirtted by the appeliant herein
who is none else but an agnate and
maremal uncle of the deceased
victim Nitma, a girl of the tender
age of 7 vears who fell a prey o
his lust which sends shocking waves
not only to the judicial conscience
bur ro everyone having slighrese
(]F

particularly o the blood relations

sense human  values and

and the sociery ar large.

2. The appellant Laxman Naik
was charged and tried under
Sections 376 and 302 of the Penal
Code for committing rape and soon
after murder of che victum inside
the forest know as Chhotsima
jungle, situated on the way berween
the Villages Pathkadihi and
Tangarjoda. Tearned Sessions Judge
Mayurbhanj, Banpada, relying on
the circumstantial evidence found
to be established against the

appellant, convicted him tor an

Lazcpran Naik Versus State of Ovissa

of

Respondent.

olfcence under Section 376 as well
as under Secrion 302 of rhe Penal
Case and having regard ro rhe
peculiar facrs and crcumstances of
the present case tound it to be rarest
one the rare cases and, therefore,
senrenced him o death. However,
ne separate sentence for the offence
under Scetion 376 of the Penal
Code has been awarded. The
learned Sesstons Judge made a
reference to the High Courr of
Oirissa for confirmacion of the deadh
sentence. 1 he appellant Laxman
Naik also preferred an appeal in
High of Orissa

challenging his convicuen and

the Court
sentence as aforesaid. After a carceful
and close scrutiny of the evidence
on record the High Court dismissed
the appellant’s appeal and confirmed
the death sentence awarded ro him.
This appeal, thercfore, has been
filed before this Court on being

o

granted special leave,

3. Bricfly stated the prosccution
case it turns our from the evidence
on record was that Rema Naik, PW
2 resident of Village Parckadihi has
performed funeral rizes at his house
on February 16, 1990 in which he
has invited his relatives and other

-153.



villagers. Sme. Nirma Naik, PW 3,
the mother of the present appellant
is the sister of the farher of Rema
Naik, PW 2. Smt. Niunma Naik,
PW 3, her sen the appelians
faxman and the deceased Nitma
daughter of the elder brother of the

appellant, being close relatives of
£

Rema Naik, also went from their

Village, Tanearjoda to che house of
& garj

Rema Naik ar Village Packadihi o
attend the said ceremony. T is said
thar in the afternoon of February
17, 1990 when all che rebacives
assembled in  the  ceremony
including Rema Naik, PW 2 werce
busy in the observance of the
ceremony, the appellant
commanded the deceased o
accompany him back o their village
and the deceased followed him
obedicnce of his command.
Around 4 p.m. the appellant and
the deceased were [ound o be
abscnr from funcrion. Shortly
thereafter Genada alias Ganga Ram,
DWW 1, resident of Vi“ugu‘ Parkadihi
saw the appellant and the deceased
near Chhotisma jungle, going
towards their Village Tangarjoda.
Somec time later the appellant along
reached his house in Village
Tangarjoda where on being asked
about the deceased by his clder
brother Hindu Naik, PW 4, the
father of deceased, the appellant 1
said ro have told him that the
mother and the deceased Nirma

sS4

were at the house of Rema Naik
in Village Patkadibic In the same
evening the appellant returned back
to Village Packadihi and on being
questiened by his marhier Nioma
Naik, PW 3 as ro the whereabouts
ol the deceased, the appellant wold
her chat she had safely reached her
Village Tangarjoda. Nexto morning
when the appeliants modher Nitma
Natk was

Village Tanjarjoda, she noticed the

heading rowards her
g

appellanc roaming abouwr near
Chhowsima jungle. On being asked
again as o the whercabouts of the
deccased, the appellane cold his
mother that she was there in Village
Tangarjoda. But to her utrer
surprise when Nitma Naik, PW 3,
the mother of the appellant reached
her Village Tangarjoda she did net
find the deceased there and
therefore, she rushed back to
Village Padkadibt where she told

Rema Naik, PW 2

villagers that the deceased was

and ather
missing. They therelore, including
Hindu Naik, PW 4. the father of
the deceased proceeded towards
Chhotsima jungle in search of the
deceased. The Scarching parcy
found the deceased lying in a lonely
place in Chhowsima jungle in
revealing circumstances. The said
part found the torn wearing apparel
(underwear) of the appellant near
the dead body of the victim. There
were marks of violence over the

- Laxman Naik Versus State of Ovissa



dead body of the victim and
bleeding injury in her private part,
A ribbon belonging ro the deceased
and some tamarinds were also found
lying near her dead body.

4. A ward member of Village
Patleadifit, Bhangala Majhi, PW 5
who had also gone o the jungle
with the search pare, dicrated a
report bxh, 1 to his son Apna
Majhi, P 7 which was handed
over to Rasananda Rout, PW 9,
Sub-Inspector of Police, Jharadihi
Ourpost under Tirang Police
Station. He enrered the said repore
in the station diary and sent the

report to the Qfficer-in-charge of

the DPolice Sration with  his
cndorsement and took up che
investigation. The ASI reached che
spot at about 1.30 p.m. same day
and prepared inquest report Exh.
3. He seized the frock, underwear
and ribbon belonging to the
and rmarinds

deceased sOme

under Exh. 2. He also scized a
sample of blood-smearcd earth from
the place of occurrence — Exh. 6.
He zlse recorded the smtement of
some of the wizncsses.

5. Dr. Pushp Lata, PW 11
performed an autopsy over the
dead body of rhe deceased on
February 20, 1990 who as per her
post-morterm report Exh. 11 found

the following injuries on her -

I. Abrasion over the nmiddie
ol back and over Afch lumber

\"L']'lt‘l)l'il.

2. Abrasions were noliced
on the left index finger, back
of forcarm and righv middle

finger of right hand.

1437

in the vagina extending rowards
£ g

3. Laceraced wound 1
rectuin.

4. Bruises over neck 2 cm.
x 1 c.m. over sternomasroid
muscles on right and left side,
27 below rthe angle of the
mandible.

6. On dissecting the underlying
tissues of the neck, the doctor
noticed extravasation of blood into
the subcurancous tissues as well as
in the underlying sternomastoid
muscles. The larynx and trachea
were found to be congested
containing frothy mucous. Bloody
froths were coming out from the
mouth and nostrils.

7. All the injuries detailed above,
in the opinion of the doctor were
homicidal and anti-morrem in
nature and the cause of death was
due to asphyxia by throcding. The
external and corresponding internal
injuries caused to the neck by
strangulation were found to be
sufticient in the ordinary course of




pature o cause the death of the
victim. The time of deach as given
our by the docror was also
corresponding 1o, at or abour the
time ol accurrence. Further che
doctor gave her firm opinion about
the iercible sexual assault having
been made on the deceased fus
hefore ber death. Vaginal smear of
the deceased was lifted which
indicared presence of red blood

CUI'PUHC]L’S..

8. The frock and underwear of
the deceased as well as underwear
befonging o the appellant seized
from near the place of occurrence
were  sent to the  Chemical
Examiner who as per his report
found bloed on the underwear
belonging to the appellant and
human blood on the frock and
underwear  belonging tw the
deceased. Afrer the accurrence the
appeliant had absconded and could
be apprehended only on April 5,
1991 afrer about 14 months. The
appellant In- his examination under

313

Criminal Procedure denited the

Seerion of the Code of
allegations and gave evasive replies
to some ol the questions, while
some of the facts were admiced by
him which shall be discussed by us
sometime later in this judgment.
‘The appeliant, however, adduced no
evidence i his defence.
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9. There is no ocular version of
the incident and the prosceution
entircly  based 1ts  case on
circumstantiab evidence. Learned
counsel for the appellant vigoronsly
wrged  before us char dhe
circumstances relied on by the
prosceurion  have  nor been
satisfactorily established and thar in
any cvent the circumstances said o
e established against the appellant
do not provide a complete chain
1o bring home the guilt against the
appellant, He vehemently submitted
that Ganga Naik,, PW I who is
said ro have last seen the appellant
and the deccased together did not
disclose this facr to anyone and tha
his case diary statement was
recorded after about a month and
as stch the evidence of this witess
should not be accepted as credible
and rhat though he is also a wirness
to the inquest report but this fact
is conspicuously missing in the
inquest report that he had lasr seen
the deceased and che appellant
together.  lo was, therefore,
submitred that no value can be
attached to the evidence of Gunga
Naik, PW 1. Learned counsel for
the appeliant further assailed the
evidence of Jagannath Naik, PW 8
by contending that he along with
others had consumed liquor right
from the morning and was badly

under the influence of liquor and,

therefore, he could have hardly




taken any notice of the alleged call
said ro have been given by the
appellant to the deceased 1o follow
him o the village or to see that
both of them acrually proceeded
rowards cheir village. He also
submirted that this facte was not
disclosed by the witness to the
police in his casc diary statement.
Learned counsel for the appellant
further submitted that the mere
fact thar the appellant was out from
his house for few days as usual
cannot be used as a link to the
circumstances leading to his guilt
and that in any case the said fact
cannot be used as a circumstances
against the appellant as no question
in this behal of was put to the
appellant during the course of his
examination under Section 313 of
the Code of Criminal Procedure,

10. J.eaned counsel for the
appellant also submitted that since
the appellant used to leave the house
very often for days rogether and,
therefore, his mother PW 3 and
brother PW 4 were annoyed with
him and it was for this reason dhat
both of them gave false statement
against the appellant,

11. The standard of preof
required to convict a person on
circumstantial evidence is now well
established by a series of decisions
of this Court. According to that
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standard the circumstances relicd
upon in support of the conviction
must be Tully established and the
chain of evidence furnished by
those circumstznces must be so
complete as nor ro leave any
reasonable ground tor a conclusion
consistent with che innocence of the
accused. The circumstances (rom
which the condusion of the guilr is
to be drawn have note only 1o be
fully established but also thae all the
circumsrances so established should
be of a conclusive nacure and
consistent only with the hypothesis
of the guilt of the accused and
should not ke capable of being
explained by any other hypothesis.,
except the guilt of the accused and
when  all the  circumsrances
cumulatively ken together should
fcad to rthe only irresiscible
conclusion that the accused alone
is the perpetrator of the crime. To
quote a few decisions of this Courc
in this regard a reference may be
readily made to the case of Sharad
Birdhichand Savde v. State of
Mahbarashira® and  Dhananjoy
Chatterjee v. State of WB*

12. Having regard o these
principles enunciated with regard o
the proof of guilt by circumstantial
cvidence we shall now examine the
various circumstances said to be
appearing against the appellant and
at the same time examine che
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contentions advanced by the
learned counsel for the appellant

referred o above,
{videnee of last seer.

13. Ir is an admirred facr thar
Rema Naik, PW 2 had celebrated
abscquies ceremony at his house
in Village Padkadihi on Febraary
16. 1990- in which amongst other
relatives, the appellant himself along
with his mother Smt. Nioma Nailk,
PYW 3 and her gl‘andd:lughlcr, the
deccased Nitma i.e. the niece of
the appeilant had also gone ro the
house of Rema Naik from their
viliage for participation in the said
ceremeny. Jagannath Naik, PW 8
who is father-in-law of Rema Naik,
PW 2 and resident of the same
Village Packadihi had afso acended
the said ceremony. Jagannath Naik
deposed thar in the afterncon of
Sarurday — the day of occurrence,
while he was sitting 10 the verandah
of the house of Rema Naik he
heard the appellant saying w the
deceased to accompany him o their
village and shortly thereafter he
witnessed the appellant proceeding
rowards his village wich the
deceased. The witness, Jagannach
admirted In cross-examination chat
on Saturday, rhe day of occurrence,
he had also raken Handia (liquor)
right from the morning and thac he
was badly influence by that
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intoxicant. His evidence was
therctore, sought o be assailed on
th’ gl'()ll”d I]'HH 1)Cil]f_" l||](i('l' lhl.'
influcnce of liquor he would have
hardly taken any notice ol the
alleged call having been made by
the appellint o the deceased or
woutld have in fact remembered that
he had seen the appellane and (he
dL’CCﬂSL'd Q]CTUR“‘\’ g()i”g [(]\\’21[‘(13
their village. Bur on scrutiny of the
evidence of fagannath Naik we find
thae there s no meric in the
aforesaid submission for the reason
that he emphadcally asserted that
he can definicely say char the
appellant Laxman and the deceased
Nitma were seen moving owards
their village which he had scen wich
his own cyes. He also submited
[hﬂ( rh(’,’l't’ WEere lll:ll’l)f ()[hcf Pt’lv.‘\'(}ﬂ.’\'
present when the accused had given
the call ro deceased Nirma to
accompany him te the village. We
do not find anyrthing in the
starement of dis witness to suggest
that he had lost all senses and was
not capable witnessing what was
going on or happening avround him.
Learned counsel for the appellant
furcher challenged the evidence of
this  witness  Jagannath by
contending  that he had not
disclosed to the police in his case
diary statement that he had scen the
appelfant Laxman  preceeding
towards his village with the
deceased. Bur chis argument is lable

Laxman Naik Versus State of Orissa



to be dismissed for the simple
reason ll]ﬂl [h’(‘ \Vitﬂ@ﬁ.‘i Wwias not
confronted with his case diary
statement at all nor is chere any
martcrial betore us 1o accepr the
conrention that the wirness had not
disclosed rthis fact to che police
particularly when the witness with
an emphatic denizl stared that iv is
not a fact that he did not disclose
to the police that he had seen the
appellant and the deceased moving
towards their village.

14. Apart from the evidence of

Jagannath Naik, PN 8 there is yer
another evidence of Rema Natk,
PW 2

appetlant, his mother and niece (the

who deposed that the

deccased) had also arcended the
ceremony and that the appellant

Laxman and the deceased were

found to be absent from the

funcrion. From the cvidence
discussed above it clearly turns out
thar the appellant had left the
Village Patkadihi along with che
deceased. Further Genada alias
Ganga Ram Naik, PW 1 a resident
of Village Patkadihi dlong with the
deceased. Furrther Genada alias
Ganga Ram Naik, PW I resident
of Village Patkadihi deposed thac
on the date of occurrence while he
was returning to his village at abour
4.00 p.m. he saw the appellant and
Chhotsima

the deccased near

junele and both were heading
jung g
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towards their village. Fearned
counsel lor the appellant sought o
discard the evidenee of this wirness
by contending rhav he did not
disclose this Face o anyone dll his
case diary statement was recorded
by the police atter about a mondh.
We are unable o persuade ourselves
to concede o the submission. e is
crue that the winess Ganga Ram
Naik deposed in cross-examinarion
that he has examined by the police
one month after the occurrence and
tilf then he had not disclosed this
tact. Burt this statement appears to
be due to the failure of his memaory
as the incident had occurred on
February 17, 1990 while he was
examined on Novermber 26, 1991
after about two years, therefore, he
faultered as o the dawe and time
when his statement was recorded
by the palice. The view that we are
taking of the evidence of this
witness is supported by the
evidence of rthe lovestigating
Officer, Niranjan Pareda, PW 10
who deposed that he had examined
the witness on Febroary 21, 1990
after the dead body of the deceased
was recovered from the forest. It
may also be pointed our that the
witness Ganga Naik, PW 1 is an
illiterate person and an aboriginal
belonging to Advisasi tribe and,
therefore, is not expected 1o
remember the date and time with
that exactitude as is expected from
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H “lk'ri][L‘ llnd an ﬂ\‘"CIAﬂ!L_’jC P(,’I'.\()l‘i.
In this view of the matter it cannot
be accepred char rthe police
recorded the statement of PW
after abour a month from the dare
of ocenrence. The witnesses Ganga
Ram Naik, PW 1, Rema Naik, W
2 and Jagannach Naik, PW 8§ are
all independent witnesses having no
axe o grind againse the appellane
s as to make false starement we
implicare the appellant. We aceepr
thetr version ro be crudhlul and
reliabic, [t is thus established thar
on rthe day of wsccurrence rhe
appellune had commanded the
deccased 1o accompany him to the
village and the appellant and the
deceased  had  acrually  both
PI’()CCC({L’({ H.}“;:“,ds fhtir \‘i”:lgL‘ 'J”d
while on their way the appellant and
the deceased both were last seen

together in the Chhorsima jungle,
b b

Misiepresensation and Fntertional
Jalse starement of the appellent s o
the whereabonts f)j. the deceased
Nitrut

15. Himdu Nailk, PW 4 is the real
elder brother of the appellane and
tather of the deceased Nicma whe
did not go to attend the cerensony
but had stayed back in the house
at Village Tangarjoda. Hindu Naik
deposed that rhe deceased along
with the appellant and his mother
had gone to Village Packadihi 1o the
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honse of Rema Natk o anend the
Sudhi® ceremony on Priday andd
staved there for the night. On the
following dayv i.c. on Saturday
evening the appellant came back ro
the house ar village Tangarjoda.
Hindu Nail: enguired lrom the
appellant about the deceased and
the mother Smu. Nitrma Naile and
the appellant told hiom thar they
were staving at Packadihi in (he
house of Rema Naik, [Midu Naik
father ot the deccased deposed tha
the next morning, thar s, on
Sunday he dJid not lind the
appellant in the house and ar abour
5.00 p.m. rhat day his modher
Nitma also came o the house Irom
whom he enquired abour his
deceased daughter. Ths morher wld
him thar the appellant had reporred
to her thar the decaased had already
recurned o che house. Bur Hindu
Naik informed his mocher that the
deceased had not came to the house
ar all. After this dialogue Hindu
Naile along with his mother Nitma
Natk, PW 3 ser our in scarch of
the deccased bur she could not be
traced our. Next day i.e. on
Monday they again went out in
search of the deceased and reached
the Village Patkadihi where his
mother told hiro that his daughter
has been killed in Sima Dungri
forest. if we look re the evidence
of Nitma Natk, PW 3 the mother
of the appellant, we tind thar she
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deposed that in the alicrnoon of
the dae of occurrence she searched
for the accused and the deceased
in the house of Rema Naik but
they could not be found there. In
the morning of Sunday she left
Village Parkadihi for her Village
Tangarjoda and while she was
heading rowards her village she
noticed che presence of appeliant
in the Chhotsima jungle. Nitma
Naik, PW 3, the mother of the
appellant questioned the appellanr
abour the whereabours of the
deceased to which the appellant
replied that the deceased had
Village
Tangaarjoda long before. On being
so intormed Smr. Nitma Naik

alrcady  reached  her

rushed back o Patkadihi again and
the appellant preferred to remain
near about the place of occurrence.
Bur

appellant also rerurned back o

very soon thercafrer the
Packadihi, The presence of the
appellant near abour the plce of
occurrence and absence of the
deceased in the house in Village
Tangarjeda roused suspicion in the
mind of che lady and, therefore,
she again proceeded to her Village
Tangarjoda where she did not find
the deceased. She wenr back ro
Village Patkadihi along with her
clder son Flindu Naik, PW 4 and
as she entertained scrious suspicion
on account of misrepresentation
made by the appellant about the

- Laxinan, Naik:.%rsm State of Orissa

whereabouts of the deceased, she
along with several villagers of Village
Patkadili set our in scarch of the
deceased and fTound the dead body

Iying in the Chhorsima jungle

Fuideuce reliting to injuvies on the

{I[(‘(‘('{[,\'{’(/ N

16, The search parey which
discovered the dead body of che
deccased in jungle, noticed that her
clothes were soaked with blood and
there were multiple injuries on the
person ol the deceased as are
described by D Pushp Lata PW
Il i her post-moreem reporc Ex.
11 as well as in her statement made
in the Court. There was abrasion
on the back and fifth Tumbar
vertebra, as well as on left index
finger, back of forearm. right
middle finger, there was laccrared
wound in the vagina extending
rowards reccum and bruises over
neck, right and left sternomastoid
muscles.  On  dissecting  the
underlined tissues of the neck. the
docror noriced extravasation of
blood inre subcutancous tissucs as
well as in  the underlying
sternomastoid muscles. The farynx

and

containing frothy mucous. Bloody

rrachea  were  congesred
froths were coming out from the
mouth and nostrils. This cvidence
cloquently speaks that the innocent,

helpless soul was first subjecred ro
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bruwal  and  forcible  sexual
intercourse and then mercilessly
done o death by thrording so that
there remains no direct evidence

against the culprit.

and

incrininating articles .

Discovery

17. Smt Nitma PW 3, the
mother of the appellant as well as
Hindu Naile, PW 4, the brother of
the appeltant who were amongst
those who searched out the dead
body in the jungle, have stated that
one underwear stained with blood
belonging to the appellant was lying
near the dead bedy. A ribbon
belonging to the deceased and some
rarmarinds were also found lyving by
the side of the dead bady. They also
deposed that the wearing apparels
of the deceased were completely

smeare d wil [h l)l 00 d .

1&. This brings us to the evidence
regarding scizure of the aforesaid
articles found near the dead body
and the cothes of the deceased.
Karu Majhi, PW 6, is the sen of
Bhangala Majhi, PW 5, a ward
member, who had given the written
report of the recovery of the dead
body. Karu Majhi, P\ 6, deposed
that he was guarding the dead body
in rhe jungle after its recovery il
the arrival of police at abour 4.00
p.m. He deposed thar in his
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seizure  of

presence the police had scived one
underwear stained with blood, a
picce of ribbon and some aimarinds
which were lying by the side of dead
body. Scizure memo was read over
and contents thereol were explained
to hkim and then he put his thumb
impression on the seivure memo as
a witness. The underwear belonging
to the appellant and the wearing
apparcls of the deceased seinure
from the place of vecurrence were
sent for the chemical examinarion
and also to the serologise and the
experts as per their reports Lxs, 9
and 10 found chac they were
stained with bleod. Though the
appallant disowned the bloadstained
underwear found near the dead
body at the place of occurrence bur
the same has been idencified by
none clse but by the mother of the
appellant, Smr Nitma Natk, PW 3
as well as by Hindu Naik, PW 4,
the clder brother of the appellant,
Boch of chem categorically swated
that the same underwear belonged
to the appellant,

19. Learned counsel for the
appellant, however, urged that
morther and brother of the appellant
(PN 3 and PW 4) were not happy
with the appellant because most
often he used ro disappear from the
house for days together and it was
for this rcason that they made the
statement against the appellant and
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as such no weight should be
attached 1o their westimony. Be that
as it may, it is beyand
comprchension to think chat a real
mother and real brocher would ever
thick of falsely implicating the
appellant in a heinous crime like
this before us only because the
appellant was in  habit  of
disappearing trom the town very
frequendy. The argument simply
deserves 1o be rejected without any

merilt.

20. Here, we may also refer to
the examinartion of the accused
under Section 313 of the Code of
Criminal Procedure, wherein he
denied fow allegations bur ar the
same time admitted some of the
tacts and gave evasive replies o
some of the questons. The relevant
questions put to the appellant and
answers given thereto by him may
be reproduced with advantage as
tollows :

Quest, 2. It transpires from
the evidence of the PWs that
you, vour mother, deccased
Nitma had gone w the housce
of Rema Naik of Village
Pazhadihi on lebruary 16,
1990 o attend the obsequies
ceremony observed by him in
his house, Whar have vou got
to say 7

s Lasman Naik Versus State of Orfmz_ i

Ans. Yos

Ques, 4 10 ranspires [rom
the evidence of PW 2 and
athers that on February 17,
1990 ar 4.00 p.m. you and
deceased Nirima were found
absent from the house of PW
2 at Parkadibt and on search
they could not frace you ar
Nitma What have you got to

say ¢

Ans. 1 had gone to my
house. Nitma did not go with

me.

Ques. 5 v wanspires from
the evidence of PW 1 thac he
had seen you proceeding
towards your village with
deceased  at Chharsimha
Pahada (Dungri}. Whar have
yolul got Lo say?

Ans. I do net know.

Ques. 6 Ir vanspires from
the evidence of your mother
that on the occurrence day
evening you came alonc to the
house of PW 2 and when she
asked abourt the whereagbouts of
Nitma, you falsely told her ihat
Nitma is ar vour house. Whar

have vou go o <ay 7
; :

Ans. T do not remember, |
cannot say.
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Quest. 19 The cumuladive
cffect of all the evidence
adduced in the case suggeses
that you intentionally
cammitred the murder of the
deceased by strangulation after
committing sexual intercourse
with her and inrenvonally gave
false information (o your
mother and brother by giving,
them to understand thar Nivma
had gone o Village Tangarjoda
and stays back at Patkadihi
respectively on the dare of
occurence. Whar have you got
o osay ¢

Ans. Yes, T have wold lie
ro my mother. I do not
remember, what [ have old o

my brocher.

21. A plain reading of Question
No. 5 with regard to the evidence
of Ganga Ram Naik, PW 1 that
he had scen him in Chhotsima
Dungri along with the deceased
proceeding towards his village, will
go to show that the appellant while
answering the same had o courage
to squarely deny it but gave an
evasive reply that *I do now know”.
Similarly, in reply o Question No.
6 with reference to the cvidence of
his mother chat when she asked him
abour the whereabours, of Nitma,
the appellant falscly wld o her
mother cthat Nitma was ar the
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house, the appellant again did not
deny the same but gave an evasive
reply by saving chat “1 do not
remember. [ cannot say”. But it can
be significandy poinced out that in
answer o Question No. 19 o the
fact char he had intentionally
committed the murder of the
decensed after subjecting her to
sexual intercourse, he gave false
informarion to his morther and
brother, the appeliane admirted by
saving “Yes | have told lie ro my
mother. | do not remember, what
[ have told o my brocher”™.

22. The discovery of appellant’s
underwear stained with blood lying
near the dead body and a false
represcntation made by the
appellant provides a link and may
be called in aid o lend assurance
to the court. These circumstances
directly and substanzially point the
finger at the accused-appellant to be
the perpetrator of the crime because
it is unthinkable chat the real
mother of the appellant and his real
brother would endeavour to falsely
implicare the appellanr in such a

heinous crime.

23. Thus, on a close and crirical
examination of the evidence on
record, the circumsrtances which
are f{uily established againse the
appellant are that in the afternoen
on February 17, 1990, Jagannath
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Naik, PW 8 hcard the appellant
commanding the deceased 1o
accompany him to their Village
Tangarjoda, and that on February
17, 1990, itself ar abour 4.00 p.m.
Rema Naik, PW 2 noticed the
conspicucus absence of the
appcilant and the deceased from che
funcrion at his house. immediately
before the occurrence on lebruary
17, 1990 ar abour 4.00 p.m. Ganga
Ram Nak, PW 1 had last scen the
appellant and the deceased rogether
in  Chhorsima  jungle  both
proceeding towards their village. In
the evening of February 17, 1990
the appellant went back to his
Village Tangarjoda and falsely told
his brother Hindu Naile, PW 4 that
the deceased and his mother Nirma
Naile, PW 3 were ar Patkadihi at
the house of Rema Naik. The
appeliant made a false
representation to his mother,
Nirma Naik, also thar the deceased
had reached back to her Village
Tangarjoda which the appellant
himself admitted in his statement
213,
Procedure Code rthat he had given

under Secrion Criminal
false information to his mother. In
the morning of Saturday the
appeilant was found by his mother
Nitma Naik PW 3 moving abour
near the said forest and again gave
a false information to her that the
deceased had already arrived at her

Village Tangarjoda. But when Smut.

Nitma Naik, PW 3 the morher che
appellant reached her village
Fangarjoda she did not find the
deceased in the house and the
appellanc also cscaped from the
house soon thereafrer. Thereafter on
Monday when a scarch for the
deceased was made, her dead body
was tound lying in Chhousima
jungle. The searching party found
a serious bleeding injury in her
private part and her clothes were
found smeared with  blood,
eloquenty speaking about the
monstrous sexual assault made on
her and lasdy the presence of
bloodstained underwear belonging
to the appellant near the dead body
which was seized and identified as
on helonging to the appellant and
the chemical and scrological
examination cstablished rhe

presence of blood on the same.

24. From the evidence discussed
above it is sarisfactorily and
conclusively proved thar all the links
in the chain are complete and do
not suffer from any infirmity.

aforementioned
found to be

25. The
circumstances
established against the appeliant
form a complete chain of evidence
as not to leave any reasonable
ground for a conclusion consistent
with the hypothesis of the

imnocence of the appellant bur on




the conrrary the same are of
exclusive nature consistent only
with the hypothesis of the guilt of
the appellant and conclusively lead
to irresistible conclusion that 1t was
the appellant and he alone who had
commitced murder of the girl
Nirma afrer subjecting her to
forcible sexual intercourse.

26, I'his brings us to the guestion

) g i
of sentence to be imposed upon the
appcilane for the offences for which
he has been found guilty by the two
courts below as well as by us as
discussed above. [n this connecrion
it may be pointed out that this
Court in the case of Bachan Singh
v. State of Punjal’ while discussing
the sentencing policy, also laid

g

down norms indicating the area of
imposition of death penalry raking
into consideration the agpravating
and mitigating circumstances of the
case and affirmed the view thar the
sentencing discretion is 1o be
exercised well-

judicially on

recognised  principles, after
balancing all the aggravating and
mitigating circumstances of the
crime guided by the legislative
policy discernible {rom  the
provisions of the crime guided by
the legislative policy discernible
from the provisions contained in
Sections 253(2) and 333(3) of the
Code of Criminal Procedure. In

other words, the extreme penalty

can be inflicted only 1 gravest cases
of extreme culpability and in
making choice of the senwenee, in
addirion to the circumstances of the
offender also. Having regard 1o
these principles with regard w the
imposition of the exrreme penalty
it may be noticed thar there are
absolutely e mitigating
circumstances in the present case,
On the contrary the facts of the
case disclose only aggravating
circumstances against the appellant
which we have o some extent
discussed above and ac the risk of
repetition shall deal with chat again

briefly.

27. The hard facts of the present
case are that the appellant Laxman
is the uncle of the deceased and
almaost occupicd the scatus and
position chat of a guardian.
Consequently the victim who was
aged about 7 years must have
resposed complete confidence in the
appellant and while reposing such
faith and confidence in the
appellant must have believed in Lis
bona fides and it was on account
of such a faith and belief that she
acted upon the command of the
appellant in accompanying him
under the impression that she was
being taken to her village unmindful
of the preplanned unhely designs of
the appellant. The victim was a

totally helpless child there being no
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one to protect her in the desert
where she was wken by the
appellant misusing her confidence
to fulfil his lust. It appears thac the
appellant had preplanned to commirt
the crime by resorting to diabelical
methods and it was with that object
that he took the girl w a lonely
place to execute his dastardly acr.

28. The evidence of Dr. Pushp
Lata, PW 12, who conducted the
post-mortem over the dead body of
the victim goes to show thar she
had several external and internal
injuries on her person including a
serious injury in her private parts
showing the brutality which she
was subjected w while commiting
rape on her. The vicdm of the age
of Niumna could not have even ever
resisted the acr with which she was
subjected to. The appeliant seems
to have acted in 2 beastly manner
as after satistying his lust he thought
that the vietim mighe expose him
for the commission of the offence
of forcible rape on her w the family
members and others, the appellant
with a view to screen the evidence
of his crime also pur an end o the

(Also reported in 1994 (3) SCC 381)

 Lasman Naik Versus

State of Orissiy.

lite of innocent girl who had seen
()nl)’ SCVCH suImimers. 'l‘h(_' L‘VidCHL'Lf
on record s indicarive of the facr
as (o how diabolically the appellant
had conceived of his plan and
brutally exccuted it and such a
calculared, cold-blooded and brugal
murder of a girl of a very render
age after commicing rape on her
\d\-’()[lld U“l{()lll)fl}(”y Fﬂll i]l l'fh:
caregory of rarest of the rare cases
arrracting ne punishmene other than
the capital punishment and
consequenty we confirm  the
sentence of death imposed upon the
appellam for the offence under
Scction 302 of the Penal Code. As
regards the punishment under
Secrion 376G, ncither the learned
trial Judge nor the High Court have
awarded any  separate  and
additional substantive sentence and
in view of the face thac the sentence
ol death awarded to the appellant
has been confirmed we also do not
deem it necessary to impose any
sentence on the appellant under

Section 376.

29. Tn the resule rthe appeal
preferred by the appellant fails and
is hereby dismissed.




Ram Kumar and Nain Singh ...

A[)I)C“ll]ll;

Versus

State of Himachal Pradesh

Appeals dismissed.

1. Uhis case relates to a custodial

rape. The Court of Session
acquitted the two appellants herein
on the crime bur the High Court
recorded convictions under more
than onc head, besides ‘rape’ and
sentenced substantively Nain Singh
appellant o seven years rigorous
imprisonment and Ram Kumar
appellant to two years’ rigorous
ven risc

impriscnment which has g

o these appeals,

for

respective appellants have been ar

2. Learned counsel the
pains (o urge thar the judgment of
the rcrial Judge is far more
convincing than that ol the High
Court. Tr is inevitable thar cach
court would justify ies order by
assigning appropriate reasons. We
cannot cast any preference of one
over the other. We have thus
resorted o the reading of the
stacement of the prosecucrix. She
was married to Khem Raj, PW 4
and  had been residing  ar
Chandigarh wherefrom the couple
had been fetched to Rajgarh in
Himachal Pradesh by Chuhar

Singh, PW1, brocher of Khem Raj.

Resp(_mdcm‘.

On che farctul nighe the prosceatnx
and her hushand were sleeping, in
the house of Chuhar Singh where
around midnight they were vudely
awakened by the two appetlangs; one
of whont i.c. Nain Singh was an
[nvestivating Head Constable and
the orher Ram Kumar just a
Constable posted ar Rajgarh police
Station. On the estensibie bur false
plea thac o wircless message had
been received from Chandigarh
indicating the prosccutrix 1o be an
abducred girl, she and Khem Raj,
PN 4 were forably taken by the
appeilants o the police smtion,
There they were kepr 1o separace
rooms. [n one of the rooms Nin
Singh appellant lirst brucatly hic her,
then melested her, and finally raped
her. He shricks were heard in the
room where Khem Raj PW 4, was
confined. Guarding him kept sitting
Ram kumar, appellant. He did not
react to it. His conduct right from
the act of his foreibly wking rhe
prosecutrix by the arm separately
to the police station, her separare
conlinement in a room, Nain Singh
misusing his position and having
forcibly raped her and Ram Kumar
- appellant not doing anything about

Ram K;@Izrzq;_j'a;zd-;’.\hz'u_S_z';{zgﬁv.__km_u_: Sﬁﬂ.‘{b’ af Himrzcb[;l ]_-’rrzdesb



it while keeping a watch over the

hushand, reflected 2 mind of

consistency in aiding and abetting

the commission of the ¢rime of ¢

rape. The prosecutrix is nor only a
reliable witness but her word
directed against the appellants bears
a ring of truth for no explanation
whatsoever as to why the appellants
have been accused of the offence
has been rendered. Her ward is
corroborated by the evidence of not
only her husband Khem Raj, PW
4, but her brother-in-law, Chuhar
Singh PW 1. Besides this evidence,
we have the evidence of local
people who had seen the prosecucrix
being led to the police starion and
that of Dr, Rama Nand "W 6, whao
was approached by Chuhar Singh
PW 1, to scek help because of the
illegal

prosecucrix and her husband. The

confinement  of the
entire conspectus was viewed by the
High Court in vivid detail to come
to the conclusion that the
appellancs were guilty of the crime.
The crypric judgment of the Court
of Session was rightly upser by the

High Court.

3. Por the above reasons, we find
no cause o inrerfere in the
judgment under appeal. 1t would,
however, be fzir o learned counsel
for Ram Kumar, appellant, o
highlight an argument put forth ro
the effect thar Ram Kumear should
not be held guilty of abetment of
crime of commission of rape as he
could not andcipare the designs of
Nain Singh. As stated above, his
conduct and consistency were
towards facilitating thar crime as
atherwise he would have reacred on
the hearing of the shricks of the
hapless prosecurrix who was a
voung gitl aged abour 19 a0 thar
time. His turning deal cars to her
cries was the finale on his conduct
and he must be assumed to have
had chis end in mind when he
dragged the prosecutrix torcibly to
the police station. Having come to
this view, we unhesitatingly uphold
the judgment and order of the High
Coure and dismiss these appeals.
The appellants are on bail. They are
directed to surrender forwich to
their bail bonds.

4. Ordered accordingly.




Karnel Singh

Appellang

Versus

State of M.P.

2. The appellant challenges his

conviction under Section 376, 1PC,

and the sentence and fine imposed
on him. The facts leading o the
conviction, briefly stared, are that
the prosecurrix (PW 1) Panchbai,
was working at a factory where she
had reported for duty on che
morning of 28-8-1987 around 8.00
a.m. Her job was to lift boulders
and place them within the tfaciory
premiscs. While she was working
inside the factory, another labourer
by the name Charan was also
present. ‘the appellant and his
companion Pyaru came (o the
factory premises, asked Charan o
ferch tea and on his departure the
appeliant lifted ber bodily and ook
her inside the machine room,
placed her on  the ground,
undressed her from below the waist
and had sexual inrercourse with her.
Pyaru, since acquitted, was asked
to keep a warch ousside the factory.
According to the prosecution after
the appellant had satisfied his lust
and before Pyaru could take his
turn the prosecutrix ran through the
opening in the compound wall of
the factory, scarched her husband,
a rickshaw-puller, and chereafrer
lodged the first information report
(Ex. P-1). She was sent to the
hospital for medical examination

Respondent.

i where PW 2 Dr (smt) S, Rajpoot,

examined her and prepared the
report (Ex. P-3). THer evidence has
been recorded in brief to the elfecr
that she examined the prosceurnix
en thar very night about 9.00 p.m.
and found chat she was habituared
to sexual intercourse. She did not
find any marks of injury or struggle
on the person of the prosecutrix.
However, her Saya (perticoat)
which was atrached carlier in point
of time and shown to her bore
[n her

semen  stains.

examination she stated that she did

CIrO88-

not sec any signs of forcible
intercourse on the prosecunix and
was, therefore, not in a position o
say whether or not she was the
victim of rape. The garment of the
Prosceutrix was got examined by the
Analyser,
canfirmed

which
examination the
cxistence ol semen stains. The

Chemical

prosccutrix in her cvidence has
stated that immediacely after she ran
from the place of occurrence she
met one Reza Mulranabai, a co-
labourer, and narrated to her the
incident before going in search of
her husband. Thus, at the earliest
point of time she narrated the
incident to the aforesaid person, but
unfortunately that person was not
cited and examined as a wirness,
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nor was Charan produced as 2
witness. Thus, both these wirnesses
who could have corroborated che
prosecutrix were not examined. In
the course of investigation the
undergarment (chaddi) of che
accusced is stated to have been
recovered. Dr. R.D. Sharma noted
semen like stains on the garment
and advised its cxamrination by the
Chemical Analyser. The seizure of
the ‘chaddi” was, however, held not
Surprisingly, the
investigating officer has not uttered

proved.

a word about the seizure of this
article. Therefore, this important
piece of evidence vn which the
prosecution sought to rely is of no
avail to it. The vaginal swabs had
semen stains, This is the state of
evidence. .

4. We have very carefully
scrutinized the evidence having
regard to the fact (PW 6} thar che
investigating officer had nor raken
the care expected of him. He did
not record the statements of the two
witnesses nor did he refer to the
attachment of the ‘chaddi’; in his
oral evidence. That was a very vical
piece of evidence to which licte or
no attention was paid. Tt che
seizure of thar article was properly
proved, the article with semen
stains would have lent strong
corroboration to the evidence of
the prosecutrix. There is no doubt
that the investigation was casual and
defective.  But despire these

deficiencies borh the courts below
have recorded 2 convicton. The

guestion is @ are they right ?

5. Nowwithstanding
unthappiness regarding the nature of
E

aur

investigation, we have to consider
whether the evidence on record,
even on sorict serutiny, establishes
the guile. [n cases of defective
investigation the courr has to be
circumspect in evaluating che
evidence bue i would not be right
in acquitting an accused person
solely on account of the defecr; to
do so would ranemount te playing
into the hands of the Investigaring
officer if che Investigation is
designedly defective, Any
investigating officer, in fairness to
the prosecutrix as well as the
accused, would have recorded the
statements of the two witnesses and
would have drawn up a proper
seizure-memo in regard to the
‘chaddi’. That is the reason why we
have sald that the investigation was
slipshod and defective.

6. We must admit cthat che
defective investigation gave us some
anxious mements and we were ar
first blush inclined to think that the
accused was prejudiced. Bur on
closer scrutiny we have reason to
think that the loopheles in the
investigation were left to help the
accused at the cost of the poor
prosecutrix, a labourer. To acquit
solely on thar ground would be
adding insult to injury.




7. We have carefully examined
the evidence of the prosecutrix, the
medical of  her
examination and the evidence of che

evidence

investigating officer and we are
inclined o think there is no risk
involved in accepting the version
of the prosccutrix. Her evidence
shows that she had joined the two
accused persons hardly three days
beftore the incident as a labourer
under a congracror. She
therefore, in nor roo familiar an
environment. She was the only

WAas,

female worker just out of her teens,
Besides, the two accused persons
and the prosecurrix there was one
more person by the name Charan
who was sent away to fetch tea.
Taking advanrage ot the prosecutrix
being alone in thetr company the
appellant picked her up and took
her inside the machine room, laid
her on a pile of sand, removed her
sarce and perticoar, and had sexual
intercourse with her against her
wish. After he had sasstied his lust,
he called his companion but before
the larter could have her, she ran
away and narrated the incident o
Multanabai and then went in search
of her husband, a rickshaw-puller.
Afrer narrating the incident wo him,
both of them went to the police
station and lodged the complaint,
Exhibir P-1, at about 4.10 p.m. It
was said that there was considerable
delay and sufficient time for
tutoring and theretore her evidence
could not be believed, There is no

472

merit in rhis contenuion. The
submission overlooks the facr that
in India women are slow and
hesitant to complain of such assaules
and i the prosecutrix happens o
be a married person she will not
do anything without informing her
husband. Merely because the
complaint was fodged less chan
prompely does not raise the
inference thar the complaint was
false. The reluctance t go te the
police is because of sociery’s
artitude towards such women; it
casts doubt and shame upon her
rather than comfort and sympathies
with her. Therefore, delay in
lodging complaints in such cases
does not necessarily indicare that
her version s false. The possibility
of tutoring is ruled out because the
evidence does not show that her
husband knew the appellant and his
companion betore the incident. She
too had started work hardly three
days before and therefore she had
no reason 1o falsely involve the
appellant. No such reason is cven
suggested. She was a poor labourer
hired by a contractor just a few days
back and had no enmity wich the
appellane and his companion. Nor
is there any such history so far as
her hushand 1s concerned. There s,
therefore, no reason to doubt her
word. As for cerreboration che find
ol semen stains on her ‘sava’ and
in her vagina lends sufficient
assurance to her accusarion. In
Stare ()‘/‘ Mabarashera V.

©* Karnel Sirigh Versus State Of MP



Chandrapiakash Kewalchand fain'
this Court speaking through one of
us {Ahmadi, 1) had occasion to
point out that a woman who is a
victim of sexual assaulr is not an
accomplice 1o the crime but is a
victim of another person’s use and
theretore her evidence need not be
tested with the same amounr of
suspicion as that of an accomplice,
She is not in the category of a child
witness or an accemplice and
theretore the rule of prudence that
her evidence must be corroborared
in material particulars has no
application, at the most the court
may lools for some evidence which
lends assurance....

8. Applying the above test 1o the
facts of the present case we arc
satisticd beyond any manner of
doubr thar the prosccurrix, a victim
of the crime, had absolurely no
reason whatsocver ro falsely involve
the appellant ner did her husband
have any reason to do so or wror
his wifc to irvaolve the appeliane.
No such suggestion was made to
the prosecution witnesses in cross-
examination nor is there any
cvidence on record in rthac behalf
The prosecutrix is a poor labourer
who was teiling ro earn her
livelihood to augment the family
income. She was working in the
factory since the last lew days only
and che appellant  and  his

(Also reported in 1995 (5) SCC 518)
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companion, taking advantage of the
sttuation, drove away Charan by
asking him o fetch rea and afver
he lelt the appellant violated her
person. The find of semen seains
on the perricoat and in the vagina
lend assurance to the story narrated
by the prosecutrix. The submission
that chere was delay in lodging che
complaint has 10 be stated o be
rejected for the simple reason that
mmmediately after the incident she
had to go in scarch of her husband
who was a rickshaw-pulier, narrare
to him the incident, go down to
the police station and then lodge
the complaint. She has explained
the absence of injuries by stating
that she was laid on minute sand
which was lying on the floor and,
therefore, there were no marks of
injury. The only explanacion is by
way of suggestion in the cross-
examination ot the prosecutrix wo
the effect that she was falsely
implicating the appellant in order
to grab money. Therefore, taking
an overall view of the matter we
are satisfied that it is sare to place
reliance on the testimony of the
prosecutrix. Both the courts below
relicd on her evidence and we see
no reason to rake a different view.

9. For the above reasons we see
no merit in this appeal and dismiss
the same.




State of Maharashtra

Appellant

Versus

Priya Sharan Maharaj

Respondents

OTHERS

2. Heard the learned counsel.

3.0n 11-5-1991, on
Purushortam Wasudeo Deshpande
lodged 2 complaint at the Dhantoli
Police Starion, Nagpur that his two
young, daughters, Hema and Meccra
were kidnapped by Priya Sharan
Maharaj {Respondent 1) with the
help of Suhasini (Respendent 06)
and Sharwari Drevi (Respondent 7).
On the basis of this report an
offence was registered under
363 366 1PC.

Investigation of that offence

Section and
disclosed that Kripalu Maharaj
(Respondent 2), who claims to be
a spiritual teacher and has his
ashrams ar  Vrindavan and
Mangadh, is a highly immoral
person and in order ro satisty his
lust he, with the heip of his
disciples, including Respondenrs |
and 3 to 7, used to entice young
girls and have sexual intercourse
with them against their wish.
Respondent 2, cthrough his
disciples, used to impress upon the
young that be is the
incarnation of Lord Krishna, that

girls

they should treat him as their

husband and that what he was doing
with them was in the nawre of
“Prasad” of God and by such acts
they were really blessed. The
investigadon further disclosed that
Meera, Hema and one Sulakshana
were thus subjected ro scexual
intercourse by Kripalu Maharaj.
Accordingly, the offence which was
registered against them calier under
Sections 363 and 366 1PC was
altered 1o an offence under Section
376 I1PC
respandents

and all the seven

were  shown  as

accused.

4. On being charge-sheered, they
were put up for trial before the
lecarned Second Additional Sessions

Judge, Nagpur who had framed the

following charge -

“1. That, you above-named
Accused 2, prior to 1987 at
Nilu

Chaurasia, in front of Vija
Jay

the house of one
Talkics, Nagpur, committed
rape on one Km Meera, d/o
Purusharram Deshpande, aged
26 years, /o Nagpur, against
her will and without her




consent, posing yoursell, vou
are a divine spiric of Lord
Krishna, So also, again in the
month of February 1991, you
Accused 2, posing yourself that
you are a diving spirit of Lord
Krishna, commicted rape on
said Km Meera Deshpande, at
the house of one Shrivasiava,
near Previnamee School,
Nagpur,

Again on 16¢h Day of

January, 1990, at abour 5.00
p.m. ar the housc of one
Khatri, Kadhi Chowk, Nagpur,
comiitted rape on  onc
Sulakshana d/o Shyamsundar
Pehankar, a girl aged abour 14
years, rfo juni Shukrawari,
Nagpur. Again on 14-4-1990,
at abour 5 p.m. ar the house
of one R.P. Shrivastava,
Nagpur you committed rape
on sald Km  Sulakshana,
posing yourself that you arc a
divine spirit of Lord Krishna,

Se alse in the month of
Seprember 1980, at the house
of one Chaurasia, Near Vijay
Talkics, Nagpur, you Accused
2, posing yourself you are a
divine spiric of Lord Krishna,
committed rape on one Km
Hema @  Brijgauri d/o
Purushottam Deshpande, aged
abour 19 years, against her will

s Priya Sharin Mishisra

and wichour her consenr, and
therehy  you above-named
Accused 2, commirred an
olfence punishable under
Section 376 of the Indian Penal
Code, within my cognizance.

2. Sceondly, that above-
named Accused 2, on rthe
aforesaid day. dace cime and
place. committed the offence of
rape on the said girls, and that
you zbove-named Accused
1.3,4,5,6 and 7, in furtherance
of your common intention,
abetted the said Accused 2, in
the commission of the said
offence of rape, which was
cornmitted in consequence of
your aberment. So also, you
above-named Accused 1,3 1o 7
were personally presenc ac the
time of commission of the said
offence, and that you all
thereby committed offences
punishable under Sections 109
and 114 read with Scction 34
of the Indian penal Code,
within my cognizance.”

5. Aggrieved by framing of the
charge the respondents had
preferred a revision applicadion by
the High Court declined to interfere
as it was open to the respondents
te approach the Sessions Court
itself for granting the reliefs prayed
for. The respondents, therefore,




filed vhree applications in the
Sessions Court. Exhibit 36 was not
pressed. The fearned Addicional
Sessions Judge rejected both the
applicatious for discharge.

G. Against the order passed by
the learned Addicional Session
Judge, the respondents preferred
Criminal Revision Application No.
130 of 1994 before the Nagpur
Bench of the High Court of
Bambay. The High Courr, by an
unduly {fong order running into 89
pages,
application quashed the charge

allowed the  revision
framed against the respondents and
discharged them. The High courr
was ol the view that as five acts of
rape were commicted during the
period from Seprember 1986 to
February 1991 on three different
girls, the charge as framed was in
contravention of the provisions of
219 of the
Criminal Procedure. It also held

Section Code of
that the three girls had told lies and
developed a false story against dhe
respondents and char "no prudent
man can Liill‘t' o HCCEPI or bLﬁIiCVE’“
it. The State has, therefore, filed
this appeal......

8. The law on the subjecr is now
well settled, as pointed out in
Niranjan Singh Punjabi v. Jitendra
Bijaya® that at Secuions 227 and
228 stage the Court is required o

M6 S of Mabivashin Versis Pripa Shanan Mabava]

evaluate  the  material  and
documents or record with a view
to finding ouc if the facts emerging
therefrom taken ar their face value
disclose the existence of all the
ingredients constituting the alleged
offence. The Court may, for this
timited purpose, sift the evidence
as it cannot be expected even at
thar initial stage to accept all that
the prosecution states as gospel
crurh even if it is opposed
common scnse or the broad
prababilitics of the case. Therefore,
at the stage of framing of the charge
the court has to consider the
material with a view to And our if
there is ground for presuming thar
the accused has commicred the
offence or rhac there is not
sufficient ground for proceeding
against him and not for the purpose
of arriving ac the conclusion chad it
is not likely o lead o a conviction.

9. Whar we find from rhe
judgment of the High Courr is that
the learned Judge, in order ta
ascertain the correcr legal position,
referred to various decisions and
quored extensively from them bur
did nat apply the law correctdy. The
judgment also contains some
quotations which have no relevance.
After referring to the case-law, the
learned Judge has observed as
under:




“Considering the facs and
circumstances as obtained in
the instant case, [ am
reminded of the learned

observations of their Lordshivs

while discussing or reflecting
on the criminal cases.”
and thereafter quored  the
following passage from che decision
of this Court in State of Puinjab v.
Jagir Singh'  (SCC pp. 285-80,
para 23)

“23. A Criminal trial is
not like a fairy rale wherein one
is free to give flight 1o ones
imagination and fantasy, }c
itsell
question as o whether the

CONCETRS with rhe
accused arraigned ar the trial
is guilty of the crime with
which he is charged. Crime is
an cvent in real life and is the
product of interplay of different
human emotions, In arriving at
the conclusion about the guilt
of the accused charged with
the commission of a crime, the
court has to judge the evidence
by the
probabilities, its intrinsic worth
and the animus of witnesses.
Every case in the final analysis
would have to depend upon its
own facts. Although the benefit
of every reasonable doubt

should be given ro the accused,

vardstick  of

the courts should nor ac the
same time reject evidence
which is ex facie truseworthy
on grounds which are fanciful

or m the nature of the

CORjectures.

Fhar was nor a case dealing widh
the scope and nature of enquiry at
the stage of framing of charge.
Those observacions were obviously
made in the context uf appreciation
of evidence and standard of proof
reguired for convicting che accused.
This clearly tndicares thar the
learned Judge lailed 1o apply the
COPrCCl Lest.

10. The F()Hnwing observations
again lead us to thar conclusion

“Giving conscious thought
o the rival submissions of the
learned counsel for the parties,
it is abundantly clear that
except the srarements  of
prosecuirix, there s no
evidence directly or indirectly
) cerroborace their
restimonies. According to K
Sulakshana she was molested
intcially on 16-1-1990 and
subsequently on 14-4-1990
however there 15 no disclosure
to anyenc including her
parents. Considering her age at
the relevant time, no injuries
were found as indicated by




s

Modi. Similarly though Km
Meera alleged thar she was
molested prior to 1987 and in
February 1991, instead of
disclosing  the nefarious
activities of Maharaj continued
to stay in the company of
Applicant 2 Kripaluji Maharaj
and his disciples. She not only
continued her stay with chem
but moved from place o place
to preach the teners of the cult
of Kripaluji

Similarly, though it is alleged

Maharaj.

by Km Hema that she was
melested in the month of
Scprember 1986, she too
continued to remain wich
Maharaj. Even it is noc the case
of the prosecution char rhese
rwo sisters disclosed abour the
indecenr acrivities of Kripaluji
Mahara) amongst themselves.
Meera and I'lema borh are
graduates and Km Sulakashana
was an adolescent. Tt cannot be
expected from such educared
gitls to continue to accompany
the person who according
them, proved to be a demon
and to continuc in his cult
propagating his teachings. The
conduct of all three girls not
being in consonance with
normal dispositions of prudent
human beings, correberarion
thus, becomes a necessity or

- Spare of Mabizrasheri Versus |

emiant (s7c). Taking a broad
view of the matcer, pardeularly
various infirmities  and
improbabilities, no man of
prudence  will  give any
importance  to  the srory
unfolded. It is, chus, clear that
except the bare words of these
three girls, there s no other
evidence to corroborate their
story. Such conduct can be a
corroborative plece of evidence
of her/their evidence, In other
words subsequent conduct not
only is relevant but important
and material

These three girls levelled
allegations againsc Applicant 2
Kripaluji Maharaj afrer a lapse
of considerable time 1e. afrer
months  and  years  and,
therefore, the probability as
depicred by the defence tchat it
was at the instance of
Nityanand, cannot be
overruled. It needs mention
that no report was lodged by
either of the girls av any dme.
It is also clear from the record
thar Niryanand’s statement
which was recorded on 11-5-
1991 ie. on the da_\/ on which
the FIR was lodged by
Purushettam  Deshpande.
Subsequently  only  rthe
statements of all the three




e of M

prosecutrix came to  be
recorded. Lven in the FIR
there is no whisper that at any
time, Applicant 2 had
commirtted rape on any of the
prosecutrix or on any other
disciple.

So the evidence docs not
become  reliable  merely
because it has been
carreborated by a number of
witnesses of the same brand.

In chis case, there s
unrcasonable, inordinare or
extraordinary delay in leveling
allegations  of  physical
molestation or rape
commicted, by all the three
prosecutrix against a saintly old
man of 69 years of age who
renounced the world and
became engrossed in spiritual
world. The explanation as
could be revealed from the
statermnents ol the prosceutrix
that the disciples of Kripaluji
Maharaj all the while stated
that he is an incarnation of
God and whatever happened
with them, be raken as a
“Prasad” or blessing of God
and so not to disclose to
anyone, it is difficult o digest
as the chastity is the jewel of
the Indian woman and no
woman will consider the sexual

intercourse against her will as

Prasad or blessing of Guod.

it also does not stand (o
reason that a saindy man who
has chousands/millions of
disciples all over India, direct
his own disciple and in cheir
presence will commir sexual
intercourse with the pracharak
of his cul,

Considering the overall
cffect of evidence collected by
the prosccution, there is
according to me, no ring of
truth. No prudent man can
dare to accept or helieve the
infirm  and  improbable
evidence of the prosecurrix.

All these facts go wo show
that the gitls evidendy told lies
and developed false story
against Applicant 2 and his
disciples.”

11. The above-quoted paragraphs
£

from the judgment dearly disclose
that the High Court was much
influenced by the submission made
on behalf of the defence that
Kripalu Maharaj is a saintly old
man, whoe has renounced the world,
who is engrossed in spiritual activicy
and who has thousands/millions of
disciples all over India and,
therefore, he was not likely to




indulge in the illegal acts alleged
against him. I failed to appreciate
that it is not unusual to come
across cases where the so-called
spirittal heads exploir young girls
and women who become their
disciples and come under cheir
spell. Moreover, the reasoning of
the High Ceure thar it also does
not stand to reason that a saintly
man who has thousands/millions of
disciples all over India would
commit sexual intercourse wich the
pracharak of his cult in the
presence of his disciples stands
vitiated because of the vice of
misreading the scatements. The
three girls have nowhere scared in
their statements that R-2 had sexual
intercourse wich them in the
presence of other disciples. The
High

importance to the conduct of the

Court gave too much
three victims and the delay in
disclosing those illegal acts o their
parents of such an offence will
behave would depend upon che
circummstances in which she is
placed. It often happens thar such
victims do nor complain against
such illegal aces immediately
because of facrors like fear or
shame or uncercainries abour the
reactions of their parents or
husbands in case of married girls
adverse

or women and the

consequences which, they

apprehend. would (ollow because of
disclosure of such acts. What the
three girls had stated in their
sratements was not inherendy
improbable or unnatural. They have
disclosed the reasons why they
could not immediately complain
about those illegal acts for such a
long dme. What the High Cour
has failed to appreciace is that while
making a complaint 1o the police
or giving their statements they were
not required o give derailed
explanations. As staced carlier, what
the Court has ro consider ac the
stage of framing of the charge is
whether the version of the purson
complaining together with hisfher
explanation is prima facic helievable
or not. It was, thercfore, not
proper for the Fligh Court 10 seck
independent corroboration at that
stage and to quash the charge and
discharge the accused in absence
thereof, T was also improper to
describe the version of Sulakshana
as false because no exrensive
injuries were noticed on her person
while she was examined by a doctor
on the basis of some ohservations
made in Modi's
“Medical — Jurisprudence
Toxicology” . We do not think it

textbook on
aiel

proper to say anything further as,
in the view thar we are taking, the
accused will have to face a rrial and
whatever observations we make now
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may cause some prejudice o them
at the rrial. We would not say that
the High Court was wholly wrong
in discarding the marerial placed
berore the Courc as false and
discharging che accused on that

ground.

12. Before us also the learned
counsel for the respondents had
made a grievance that the charge
as framed was not in accordance
with Section 219 of the Criminal
Procedure Code. The application,
Exhibir 36,
Sessions Court for modification of

was made to the
the charge so as to make it
consistent with Section 219, Thac
application was not pressed and the
Court was invited to dispose of the
other applications made by them
for quashing the charge and
discharging them. As we are
£

{Also reported in 1997 (4) SCC 393)

inclined e allow chis appeal the
Sessions Coure will have o now
consider afresh whether the charge
is required to bhe altered or
amended.

13, We, therefore, allow this
appead, set aside the judgment and
order passed by the High courcand
dircce the Sessions Coure to
proceed further with the crial in
accordance with law. The crial court
shall do so after re-examining the
material and hearing the learned
Public Prosecuror and the lawyer
for the accused on the question of
amending or altering the charge so
as to make it consistent with the
relevant provisions of the Code and
also after considering whether it will
be possible to try all the offences
at one trial or that they will have
to be wried separately.
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State of Rajasthan

N.K. The Accused

The State of Rajasthan has come
up in appeal feeling aggrieved by
an order of acquittal recorded by
the High Courc of Rajasthan
reversing the judgment of rhe
Sessions Court which had found che
accused-respondent guilty of an
offence punishable under Section
376 of the Indian Penal Code and
sentenced him to undergo seven
years rigorous imprisonment with
a fine of Rs. 2000 and ro a furdher

Silﬂp]ﬁ imprisonmcn[ {){ onge )"t’ill'

and nine months in default of

payment of fine.

2. According to the prosccution,
G, PW 2 the prosccuurix, was aged
15 years and was living in Village
Bhania Yana {Jaisalmer) with her
futher mother and a younger sister.
The family resided in a fonely
hutment situated in a field. On 1-
10-1993 ar about 12 noon, the
prosecutrix was alone in her hur
busy washing clothes on a water
pump. NK, the accused-respondent
was known to the prosecutrix since
before. He came to her and inidally
asked for water which she provided
in a lota. The accused then asked
for a knife for peeling the skin of a
cucumber. The prosecutrix brought

" State. of Rajasthan Versus N-K. The Accusedd:

Appellant:

Respondent

the knife and handed 1e over o him,
When the prosecutrix was about o
turn and go back, rhe accused
caughr hold of hers He ewisted her
l}l‘.l](l on hlfl' I)HCI( 1111(1 F()['L‘.il)l}" l()(_)l(
her o a nearby place called bhitian,
i.e., a place surrounded by walls.
The accused forced the prosecurrix
O llL’ (1(_)\-\/'“ an rhC gl‘(}Llnd, PU[ hiS
foot on her chest, dosed her mourh
with his palm, removed her lehenga
upwards  and  then  forcibly
commitred sexual incercourse will
Lher. The prosecutrix  offered
resistance and tried to save herselt
buc the respondent gagged her
mouth by a towel pressed against
her meuth. Having thus raped the
prosecurrix, the accused-respondent
went away to Lhane, another vi“ﬂgc

or another part of the same village.

¢ The prosceutrix reached back her

home and narrated the cutire
incident to a woman, described as
“wife of Udai Singh” and to her
father, PW 10, who had returned
by char The
accompanied by her father wanced

time. victim
to go to the police station and lodge
the first information report of the
incident but they were prevented
from doing so by several village

i people belonging to the community




of the accused who also proposed
the matrer being sertded within the
village by convening a panchyat
Fowever, the report of the incident
was lodged on 5-10-1993 ac 11.20
a.m. The offence was registered and
investigation commenced.

3. The prosecutrix was referred
for medical examination so as ro
find out the injuries on her person
as also to ascertain her age. Dr
V.D. Jetha (PW 9) the medical
officer posted at Primary Health
Cencre, Jaisalmer Examined the
prosecutrix on 6-10-1993 at about
12 noon upon a requisition made
by the investigating officer. Dr
Jetha found inner alia char the
hymen of the prosccurrix was
ruptured in muoldple radial rears,
the edges of which showed healing,
at most of places and mild
‘t'he

admitted onc finger casily with mild

tenderness. hymen hole
tenderness. Sample of vaginal swab
from posterior front of vagina was
taken and smear slide was prepared
which was sealed and sent o the
Forensic Science Laborarory for
examination. In the opinien of Dr
Jetha sexual intercourse wirh the
prosecutrix was done 5 ro 7 days
before the day of examination. He
further opined that after a lapse of
5 to 7 days, the examination of
vaginal smear and vaginal swab
could nor confirm the presence of

semen.

4. For the purpose  af
ascertaining  the age ol the
prosccutrix, x-rays of arms and
elbow joints were taken in his
presence. After examining the x-
rays he opined char the age of the

prosecutiix was 15 years,

4-11-1993 on  a

m il{lL' l)y lI]L1

5. On
requisition
investigating oflicer, Dr Jetha
NK,  the

respondent. He was found o be a

examined accuscd-
person of average build suffering
from no discase or infirmiry. His
height was 5 ft 11 inches and
weight was 01 kg He was found
fir and competent to perform scxual
intercourse. No mark of injury was

found on his person.

6. The trial court found che
incident, as alfeged, proved. In the
opinion of the learned tial judge
the testimony of the prosccutrix
inspired confidence. Tt was
corrohorated by the medical
cvidence as also by the restimony
of her father. The prosecutrix was
held to be 13 years of age on the
date of the incident. Though there
was delay in lodging the FIR bur it
was

satisfactorily  explained.

Accordingly,  the  accused-
respandent was found guilty of the
offence punishable under Section

376 IPC and sentenced as above.




7. The High Court has, in an
appeal preferred by rhe accused-
respondent,  held  thac  rhe
prosccutrix was not proved beyond
reasonable doubt to be below 16
years of age. In the opinion of the
High Court though the lactum of
the accused-respondent having
committed sexual intercourse wich
the prosecutrix was proved but the
abscnce of injuries on the person
of the prosecurrix was a material
faci not excluding the possibiliry of
the prosecutrix having been a
consenting party. The delay in
FIR

satisfacrorily explained. The delay

fodging rhe was  not
coupled with the non-cxamination
of “the wife of Udai Singh” to
incident Firste

whom the Was

narrated by the  prosccurrix
immediately afrer the occurrence
rendered the prosecution case
doubtful. Mainly on this reasoning
the High Court has allowed the
appeal and acquirted the accused-
respondent....

9. Having heard the learned
counsel for the parties we are of
the opinion that the High Ceurc
was not justified in reversing the
conviction of the respondent and
recording the order of acquirtal. Tr
is true that the golden thread which
runs throughout the cobweb of
criminal jurisprudence as
administered in India is thac nine

guilty may cscape but one innocent
should not suffer. Bur ac the same
tume o guilty should  escape
unpunished once the guiit has been
proved to hile. An unmerited
acquittal does no good to the
socicty. It the prosccution has
succeeded in making  ouc a
convincing case for recording a
finding as 1o the accused being
guilty, the court should not lean in
favour of acquittal by giving weight
to irrelevant or insignificant
circumstances or by resorting to
technicalicies or by assuming
doubts and giving benefit thercof
where none exists. A doubr, as
understoad in criminal
jurisprudence, has o he a
reasonable doubr and not an excuse
for a finding in favour of acquital.
An unmerited acquittal encourages
wolves in the sodety being on the
prowl for easy prey, more so when
the victims of crime are helpless
females. To 1s che spurc in the
number of unmerited acquirrals
recorded by criminal courts which
gives 1is¢ (o the demand for deach
scntence to the rapists. The courts
have to display a greater sense of
responsibility and to be more
sensitive while dealing with charges
of sexual assault on women. In
Bharwada Bhoginbhai Hirjibhai v.
Stare of Gujarat
observed that refusal to act on the

this Court
testimony of a victim of sexual

K The Accused



assault  in the abscoce  of
corroboration as a rule, is adding
insult to mjury. This Court

deprecated viewing evidence of

such viciim with the aid of
spectacles fitted with fenses tinted
with  doubt, disbeliet  or
suspicion....

10. The questions arising for
constderation belore us are
whether the prosecution story, as
alleged, inspires confidence of the
court on the evidence adduced ?
Whether the prosccutrix, is a
witness worthy of reliance ?
Whether the testimony of a
prosecutrix who has been a victim
of rape stands in need of
corroboration and, if so, whether
such corroboration is available in
the facts of the present case ¥ Whar
was the age of the prosecurrix ?
Wherher she was a consenting party
to the crime ? Whether there was
unexplained delay in lodging the
FIR 7

1. It is well serdded thac a
prosecutrix complaining of having
been a victim of the offence of rape
is not an accomplice after the
crime. There is no rule of law thac
her testimeny cannot be acred
without corroboration in material
particulars. Her testimony has ro
be appreciated on the principle of
probabilitics just as the testimony

NE. The Accused .

of any other witnesss « high degree
ol probebility having been shown
to exist in view ol the subject-mateer
bemg a criminal charge. However,
it che court of Tacts may [ind it
ditficult o accepr the version of the
prosecurrix on irs face value, It may
scarch for evidence, dircct or
circumstantial, which would lend
assurance  to  her  restimony,
f’\SSL“'ﬂHCC, SE}()I’[’ ar C()l‘I’()b()Iril[’i()l‘l
as understood i the context of an

accomplice would do...

12, According o Dr. V.. Jetha,
ex-ray of the left elbow and arm of
the prosecurrix were taken for
assessing her age. Though the
technician who had actually x-rayed
the prosccutrix and prepared the x-
ray places has not been examined
in the Court bur the non-
examination is of no conscquence.
According to Dr. Jetha, x-rays were
raken in his presence. Based on the
plates  he
deductions, formed an opinion

X-ray had drawn
based on standard textboolks and
prepared the report on the question
of age. e has further stated that
there was no need for prosccurrix
being referred to z radiclogist
inasmuch as what a radiologist
could have read from rhe x-ray
plates could also have been done
by him as he has done.

13. D¢ Jetha found chat top
radial was fully ossified. Olecranon
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of ulna was also fully ossified.
Distal end of radial and ulna were
not completely ossified. On the
basis of such dara he inferred the
age of the prosecutrix to be about
15 years. However , during cross-
examination he admitted that the
age of the prosecutrix could be 15
or 16 years becavse a variation of
3 on plus or minus side as
described by Modi in his Medical
Jurisprudence was possible. The
learned ccunsel for the Stace
vehemently argued that non-
ossification of rhe distal ends of
radial and ulna was a positive
indicator of the prosecutrix having
not crossed the age of 195 years and
in support of his submission he
referred to certain passages and
rabies Modis Medical
Jurisprudence. However we are not
satisfied thar only on the basis of

from

Dr Jetha's testimony, a positive
finding can be recorded that the
prosccutrix was less than 16 years
of age on the date of the incident.
In the estimate made by Dr Jetha
he himsell admits a variation of 3
years side
permissible. The prosccuirix herself
and her father are illiterate persons.
The prosecutrix has not taken any
schooling. There is no orher
satisfactory evidence as to her age
available on record. We cannot
positively hold on the basis of the
material available that she was less

on  either being

than 16 years of age on the dace of
the incident.

14, It is true that the inadent
dared 1-10-1993 was reported to the
5-10-1993.
prosecutrix was a married woman.
Her Muklana ceremony had not
taken place. Muklara ceremony is

police  on The

a rural custom prevalenc in
Rajasthan, whercunder the bride is
lefr with the parents after marriage
having been petformed and is taken
away by he husband and/or the in-
laws to live with them orly after a
lapse of time. The erigin of the
custom owes 1ts existence (o
performance of child-marriages
which are widely prevalear there.
The mukiluna was yet to ke place.
The prosecutrix was a virgin prior
to the commission of the crime and
this fact finds support from the
medical evidence. The parents of
such a prosecutrix would obviously
be chary to such an incident gaining
publicity because it would have
the

reputation of the family and also

serious  implications for
on the married life of the vicrim.
The husband and the in-laws having,
become aware of the incident may
even reluse to carry the girl w
reside with them. The incidenr if
publicised may have beer an end
to the marriage of the prosecutrix.

Added to this is the communat tinge
which was sought to be given by




the community of the accused. PW
10, the father of the prosecurrix,
the prosccurrix, PW 2 and other
witnesses have stated that while
they were about te move to the
police starion they were prevented
from doing so by the communicy
fellows of
persuaded them not to lodge a

the accused who
report with the police and instead
to have the matter sertled by
convening a panchayat of the vitlage
people. After all the family of the
victm had to live in the village In
spite of the incidens having talen
place. The explanation is nor an
afterthought. An indicarion thercof
is to be found in the FIR iwself
where the complainant has stated
— “the delay in lodging the report
is duc to village panchayar, insult
and social disrepute”. Nothing has
been broughr out in the cross-
examination of the witnesses o
doubt the truth and reasonableness
of the explanation so offered.

15. We may however stacc that

oing the FIR

fal o
cannot be a ground by isclf for

a mere delay in lod

throwing the entire prosecution
casc overboard. The court has to
seek an explanation for delay and
test the rruthfulness and plavsibility
of the reason assigned. 1f the delay
is explained to the satisfaction of
the court it cannor be counted
against the prosecution....

18. Absence of injuries on the
person of the prosecurrix has
weighed with the High Courc for
inferring consent on the part of the
prosecutrix. We are noc at all
convinced. We have already noticed
that  rhe delay in  medical
examination of the prosecutrix was
occasioned by the factum of the
lodging of the FIR having been
delayed for the reasons which we
The

prosecutrix was in her rcens. The

have already discussed.
perpetrator of the crime was an
able-bodicd youth bustling with
energy and determined ro fulfil his
lust armed with a koife in his hand
and having succeeded in forcefully
removing the victim to a secluded
place where there was nene around
to help the prosecutrix in her
defence. The injuries which rhe
prosecutrix suffered or might have
suffered in defending herseif and
offering resistance to the accused
were abrasions or bruises which
would heal up in the ordinary
course of nature within 2 w 3 days
of the incidenr. The absence of
visible marks of injuries on the
person of the prosecutrix on the
dare of her medical examinartion
would not necessarily mean that she

had nort suffered any injuries or that
she had offered to resistance ar rhe
rime of commission of the crime.
Absence of injuries on the person
of the prosecutrix is not necessarily




ARPreciitig

an cvidence of falsity of the
allegation or an evidence of consent
on the part of the prosecuurix. It
will all depend on the facts and
circumstances of cach case. In Sk
Zakir'! absence of any injuries on
the person of the prosecutrix, who
was the helpless victim of rape,
belonging to a  backward
comntunity, living in 2 remote area
not knowing the need of rushing
to a doctor after the occurrence of
the incident, was held not encugh
for discrediting the statement of the
prosecutrix if the other evidence
was believable. In Batwant Singh'’
* this Court held that every resistance
need
accompanied by some injury on the
body of the victim; the prosecutrix

not necessarily  be

being a girl of 19/20 years of age

was not in the facts and
circumstances of the case expecred
to offer such resisrance as would
cause injuries to her body. In
Karnel Singh® the prosecutrix was
made to lie down on a pile of sand.
This court held that absence of
marks of external injuries on the
person of the prosccutrix cannot be
adopred as a formula for inferring
part of rche

consent on the

prosecutrix and holding thar she
was a willing party to the act of
the sexual intercourse. It will all
depend on  che
circumstances of each case. A Judge
of facts shall have to apply a

facts and

common-sense rule while tesiing
the reasonability of the prosceution
case. The prosecutrix on account
of age or infirmity or overpowered
by fear or force may have heen
incapable of offering any resistance.
She might have sustained injuries
but on account of lapsc of time the
injuries might have healed and
marks vanished.

19. For the offence of rape as
defined in Secection 375 of the
Indian Penal Code, the sexual
intercourse should have been agains
the will of the woman or without
her consent. Consent is immaterial
in certain circumstances covered by
clauses chirdly ro sixthly, the last
one being when the woman is under
16 years of age. Based on rhese
provisions, an argument is usually
advanced on behalf of the accused
charged with rape that the absence
of proof of want of consent where
the prosecurrix is not under 16
years of age takes the assault our
of the purview of Section 375 of
the Indian Penal Code. Certainly
consent is no defence if the victim
has been proved to be under 16
years of age. If she be of 16 years
of age or above, her consent cannot
be presumed; an inference as to
consent can be drawn if only based
on evidence or probabilities of the
case. The victim of rape stating on
oath that she was forcibly subjected




Appresiarion of Evidenee

to sexual intercourse or that the act
was done without her consent, has
to be believed and accepted like
any other testimony unless there is
material available to draw an
inference as to her consent or clse
the testimeny of prosecutrix is such
as would be inherendy umnprobable.
The prosecutrix before us had just
crossed the age of 16 years. She
has clearly stared that she was
subjected to sexual intercourse
forcibly by the accused. She was
not consenting pare. She offered
resistance to the best of her ability
but she succumbed and fell victim
to the force employed by the
accused. She has narrated how she
was approached by the accused She
has narrated how she was
approached by the accused while
she was busy washing clothes near
her huc. The accused initially asked
for water in a fota. Then the
accused asked for a knife on the
pretext that it was needed for
pecling cucumber. The accused was
gaining time to ascerrain if the
prosecutrix was zlone. No sooner
the prosecutrix turned her back
uamindful of whar lay ahead, her
hand was caught held of by the
accused and twisted behind her
back. The accused pushed her to a
bbitian, a secluded place. She was
thrown on the ground. The accused

put his knee on her so as ro

overpower her. Her shouting was

throtrled by the accused who placed
his palim on her mouth and later
covered her mouth by a towel
pressed against her lips. She was
then raped. Blood oozed our from
her private parts. Having finished
his act the accused left her alone
and The
prosccutrix was weeping. She

took rto his heels.
narrated the incident to a woman
described as “the wife of Udai
Singh” and o her father in quick
succession. The statement of the
of the
corroborates her in zll marerial

facher prosecutrix
particulars and is admissible in
evidence and relevant under Section
157 former
corroborating her testimony as also
under Secrion 8 of the Evidence Act

as her statement

as evidence of her conduct. In spite
of delay in medical examination in
the circumstances already discussed
the medical evidence corroborates
the testimony of the prosecutrix.
According to Dr Jetha, he had
found the hymen ruptured in
muldple radial tears, the edges of
which showed healing at most of
the places and mild tenderness. The
prosccutrix was not used to sexual
intercourse, Pieces of broken
bangles were found at the place of
the incident and seized. The
Forensic Science Labo:‘atory has
found {vide report Ex. P-9)
presence of human semen on the
lehenga seized from the prosecurrix,




It is crue chat “the wife of Udai
Singh™ has not been examined. It
would have been beter if she would
l]ZlVC b(’:@n €X‘Jlﬂincd. I_}()WL'\"L'l', nea
dent is caused in the case of the
non-

prosecution by her

examination. She would have
repeated the same story as has been
narrated by the father of the
prosecurrix. We have found the
restimony of the prosecutrix’s father
W 10)

unembellished. The prosecurrix and

trustworthy  and
her father have both been subjecred
to lengthy cross-examination, The
trial court has found both che
witnesses reliable. We oo find no
reason 1o dishelieve their testimony.
A father would not ordinarily
subscribe to a falsc story of sexual
assault involving his own daughrer
and thereby putting at stake the
reputation of cthe family and
jeopardizing the married life of the
daughrer. We find the restimony of
the prosccutrixs father reliable and
lending support to the narration of
the incident by the prosecurtrix. No
rcason has been proved, nor even
suggested during cross-examination
of any of the witness why the
prosecutrix or any member of her
tamily would falscly implicate the
accused roping him in a false

{Also reported in 2000 (5) SCC 30)

charge of rape. We are surprised
to note how an inference as o
consent could have been drawn
against the prosecutrix and to hold
that she was a willing party w0 the
sexual assault made by the accused.
Upon an evaluadon of the evidence
availzble on record we are sadsfied
to hold that the prosecuuwix is g
witness of truch. Her restimony
inspires confidence. Orher evidence
available on record lends assuance
to her testimoeny. The wrial court
had rightly held that sexual assauls
amounting o rape was commicced
on her by rthe accused-respondent.
In spite of her having not been
proved o be under 16 years of age
the High Courr was not justified
in holding lier to be a consenting

party 1o the sexual assaule on her.

20. For the foregeing reasons, we
are of the opinion that the High
court has commirred a2 clear error
of faw in intertering with the
judgment of the crial court
regarding proof of guilt of the
accused. The appeal is allowed. The
judgment of che High Court is set
aside. We hold the accused-
respondent guilty of the offence
charge Le. under Section 376 TPC.




3
Medical Evidence






Mcdicnl evidence is crucial o the trial of a sexual abusefrape case. It
is a conclusive factor in deciding abour che offence without any
doubr. However, the manner in which medical evidence is wricten and
given is hypothetical and the judges in many cases interpret in fuvour of
the accused. Doctors say that they are trained o write medico-legal
certificates (n that manner.

One of che factors thar has to be borne in mind is that while medical
evidence is imporrant, it is not sacrosanct since there are many aspects
which the medical evidence will not reflect.

In che case of Mange versus State of Haryana'', the accused afier
having been convicted by the sessions court and confirmed by the High
Court bad approached the Supreme Court. The principle delence was
that that prosecutrix was not examined and that the medical evidence
said that the rape could not have been committed on the day as alleged in
the charge sheer. The victim was a deal and dumb girl of 13 years. She
could not make a statement. The medical evidence recorded thar duration
of the injury found on the vicrim may be about 12-28 hours and there
was no bleeding. The doctor had also said hat the hymen was torn bur
there was no swelling, redness or inflammation arcund the bruises. The
Court held that these two circumstances did nor warrant any interference
with the conviction as medical evidence had not ruled out the commicting
of rape at the time contended by the prosecution and the fact thar there
was a ruprure of the hymen and a bruise arournd the hymen was sufficient.
The Court also held that medical evidence cannot falsify an eye-witness.

In children’s cases, especially very young children and babies, the
penetration may not be as much as of an adult. In Madan Gopal Kakkad
versus Naval Dubey and another™ | the medical officer had given an opinion
that “it scems an attempt o rape has been made” and in cross examination
“I cancluded abour attempr to rape on accouar of abrasion and redness
on labia majora and minora respectively”. The doctor had alse opined
that hymen admited the fivtle finger.

‘The Supreme Court observed that the prosecutor had not put any
question to clarify her opinion in the re-examination. The Supreme Court

1979 {(4) SCC 349
1992 (3} SCC 204
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also observed that the medical officer was inexperienced and gave the
opinjorr out of her inexperience. The Court held

“Merely because the inexperienced medical officer has opined thac it
was an attempt to commit rape, probably on the ground that there was
no sign of complete penetration, we are not inclined ro zccepr PWd's
legal opinion as to the nature of the offence committed by the respondent.

A medical witness called in as an expert to assist the Court is not a
witness of fact and the evidence given by the medical officer is really of
an advisory character given on the basis of the symptoms found on
examinarion. The expert witness is expected to put before the Court all
materials inclusive of the date which induced him to come to the
conclusion and enlighten the Court on the technical aspect of the case by
explaining the terms of science so that the Court although, nor an expert,
may form its own judgement on those materials after giving due regard
o expert’s opinion because once the expert’s opinion is accepted, it is
ot the opinion of the medical officer bur of the Court.”

Eventhough there was no full penetration, there was enough to attract
the provision of section 375 IPC.

Absence of spermatozoa is nor fatal to the casc of the prosecution.
This has been held in a number of judgements. In State of Maharashtra
versus Chandrapraksh Kewalchand Jain®, the court observed thac
spemarozoa can be found if the woman is examined within 12 hours after
intercourse, thereafter they may be found berween 48 and 72 hours but
in dead form. If the prosecutrix washes herself by then, the spermarozoa
may not be found.

In Narayanamma versus State of Karnataka and others | the victim
was a minor and was gang raped. The trial court convicted all the three
accused. The High Court reversed the verdict. The High Court came to
this conclusion on the basis that the prosecutrix was not a reliable withess
and there was no medical evidence to corroborate the same. The medical
evidence revealed that hymen was ruptured, admitted two fingers, bled

47

supra

1994 (33 SCC 728




on touch, was reddish in colour and was painful and render. Tt further
revealed that there were injuries as irregular lincar contusion on both the
breasts of the prosecutrix being 3-4 in number, reddish in colour. The
vaginal smear examination did not show any spermatozoa on it

The Supreme Court held that admission of two fingers was enough
prove rape. Injuries on the breasts demonstrate dhae there was force used
on her. As regards the absence of spermatozoa, the Court held that the
victim had not made a siarcment that the accused had reached orgasm
and emitred semen. There could also be mistakes in the manner of
preservation and therefore absence of spermarozoa could not be held

against the prosecutrix.
In Ranjit Hazarvika versus State of Assam’™ the Court held that:

* The mere fact that no injury was found on the private parts of the
prosecutrix or her hymen was found to be intact does not belie the
staterment of the prosecuirix as she nowhere stated that she bled per
vagina as a result of the penetration of the penis in her vagina. ... o
constitite the offence of rape, penetration however slight, is sufficient.......
The opinion of the docror that no rape appeared to have been committed
was based only on the absence of ruprure of the hymen and injuries on
the private parts of the prosecurrix. This opinion cannot throw out an
otherwise cogent and trustworthy evidence of the prosecurrix. Besides,
the opinier of the doctor appears to be based on * no reasons™.

The same reasoning was given in State of T.N. versus Suresh and another™
where the Court held that absence of semen or spermatozoa in vaginal
swab collection does not disprove rape.

This was also followed in State of H.P versus Lekh Raj and another™ .
In chis case, it was held that the presence of spermatozoa, dead or alive
would differ from person to person and its positive presence depends
upon various circumstances. [t should be used for corroborative purposes
only.

1998 (8) S5CC 635
1998 {2) SCC 372
#2000 (1) SCC 247




In the case of State of H P! versus Mango Ram™ . the medical cvidence
was as under:

“She was a girl of average build, conscious, well oriented in place and
time, Height 47 10-1/2, weight 31 kg, breasts and papillie were clevated
as small mounds and there was enlargement of areolae’s diameter. Axiallary
hair were not developed. Pubic hair were not developed. She was referred
to dentist for examining her denral age. There were no marks of violence
over the breasts, nipples, cheeks and lips. No marks of vielence were
seen on the external genitals, perincum, abdomen, chest, back, limbs,
neck and face. Menarche not yer attained.

Perineal examination

There were no marks of injury over vulva. Hymen found intact with a
small laceration at 6 o' clock pasition. Clorred blood was seen at vaginal
orifice, which admitted tip of the finger with grear difficuley.”

The doctor’s opinion was that it was difficult to say whether intercourse
had tzken place or not.

Both the courts below acquitted the accused. The Supreme Coure held
that the medical evidence ought to be appreciated in the background of
the evidence given by the victim. It is quite likely that the clothes were
washed before chemical examination. The absence of spermatozoa was
aiso not accepted by the court as forming any conclusion abour the rape.

2000 (7) SCC 224




Mange

State of Haryana

In this appeal by special leave
the appellant has been convicred
under Section 376 of the Indian
Penal Code and sentenced to suffer
rigorous imprisonment for cthree
years and z fine of Rs. 300. The
prosecution case has been fully
narrared in the judgment of che
High Courr and the Sessions, Judge.
Iz appears that on June 10, 1972 at
about 8,00 a.m. Raj Bala the
daughter of PW 5 Jaswant Singh
was stopped by the accused while
she was coming through a ‘pag-
dandi’ and was forcibly taken into
the chamber (Kotha) of the tube-
well of the accused on which she
started crying. Her cries attracted
Mohinder Singh, PW 4, che
stepbrother of the father of Raj
Bala. Mohinder Singh entered into
the chamber of the accused and saw
the accused lying upon Raj Bala and
committing sexual intercourse with
her. On secing Mohinder Singh, rhe
appetlant left her and ran away.
Mohinder Singh then brought Raj
Bala to her house and he found chat
the ‘nalla’ of the ‘salwar’ of the girl
had been snapped and the ‘salwar’
had been brought up to her ankles

and was bloodstained. Jaswant

Appellant

Respondent

Singh, the father of Raj Bala had
Drelhi
returned the entire occurrence was
narrated to him by PW 4 Mohinder
Singh. Thereafter, Jaswant Singh

gone o and when he

went to the police station and
lodged first information reporr at
10 p.m. The police after usual
investigation submitred charge-sheer
against the appellant on the basis
of which the appellant was
convicted by the Sessions Judge, as
indicated above. The appellant filed
an appeal before the High Court
which was alse, dismissed 2nd
thereafter, he filed a petition to this
Court for grant of special leave and
after obtaining special leave, this
appeal has been placed before us.

In the first insrance, it was
contended that Raj Bala was not
examined by the prosecution and
on char ground alone the
prosecution case must fail. Ir

that Raj Bala

was a deaf and dumb girl of only

appears, however,

I3 years of age. So apart from
being a child witness, she was also
deaf and dumb and no useful
purpose would have been served by
examining her. Morcover, if there




was any infirmity in  the
prosecution case the same has been
removed by the examination of PW
4 Mohinder Singh who was a full
fledged eyewitness to the act of
rape. Once the courts below
believed the evidence of PW 4 that
had

performed sexual intercourse with

the appellant forcibly
Raj Bala there was an end of the
marter. No further corroboration
was required. Tt was then pointed
out that medical evidence does not
support thar the rape had taken
place on June 10, 1972 because the
lady doctor says that the girl may
have been subjected to intercourse
wo days before. It is true char che
lady docror who examined Raj Bala
has said thae if it was a case of a
fresh rape bleeding should have
been there and the duration of
injury found on the victim may be
Her
evidence, howcever, daes not clearly

abour 12 to 28 hours.
exclude the act of rape having been
committed on june 10, 1972 at
about 8 a.m. [t was then conrended
that the doctor found chat hymen
was torn and ruptured yet she did
not {ind any swelling, redness or
inflammation around cthe bruises
which should have normally been
found if rape had been commicted
recently. This circumstance s not
sufficienr to put the prosecution

case out of court because the fact

that there was a ruprure of the
hymenr and a bruise around the
hymen was sufficient o prove the
act of rape. [t is difficule for any
medical expert to give the exact
duration of time when the rape was
committed. More particularly when
we have the evidence of PW 4 as
to the time and date of the
occurrence, the medical evidence
can hardly be relied upon to falsity
the evidence of the evewirness
because che medical evidence s
guided by various factors based on
guess and certain calculations. We
are thercfore unable o discard che
cvidence of PW 4 on che basis ol
the starement by the lady doctor. Iy
was then contended thae PW 4 did
not narrate the occurrence to the
mother of the gitl Mst. Murd, PW
G. lo begin with, PW 4 had
undoubtedly brought the victim to
Mst. Muro in a condition from
which anybody  could have
presumed that 2 sexual intercourse
had been committed with her. PW
4 was after all the stepbrother of
Jaswant Singh and may have
thought it better to wait until his
brother returned to narrate che
derails of the occurrence lest he
miglit be misundersteod by Ms..
Murci. Her father Jaswant Singh
had gone to Delhi and he rerurned
some time in the cvening and as

soon as he recurned PW 4 narraced

Mangs Versus State:of Heryne



. i ipe g
Mediivad Fodebesicor

the occurrence to him. In these
circumstances, therefore the
omission of the witness to narrate
the incident of rape to Mst. Murti
is clearly explainable. Some other
contentions had been raised by the
learned counsel for the appellant
also which we do not find it

necessary even to mention. On a

0

(Also reported in 1979 (4) SCC 349)

T

consideration of the evidence and
circumstances, therefore, we are
satisfied that che High Court was
right in holding that the prosecuzion
casc against the appellant had been

- fully proved. We do nort sec any

force in this appeal which is

dismissed accordingly.

A




Madan Gopal Kakkad

Appellant

Versus

Naval Dubey and Another

The factual macrix leading to the
filling of this appeal which is quite
simple gives an account of a sordid
and obnoxious incident wherein the
respondent, medical practitioner
who had creazed a private hell of
his own was gratifying his animared
passions and sexual pleasure by
sexually assaulting and molesting
young girls not only in utter
disregard of the universal moral
digniry,
professional ethics and values but

code,  human his
also in fagrant violadion of the faw
of the country.

2. I'he brief facts ol chis
shameless intrigue as unraveled by
the prosccution at the trial arc as

follows :

The respondent/accused who just
then graduated from the Medical
College was staying with his family
consisting of his parents, his
brathers, his sister-in-law Smt Tara
dubey and niece Richa Dubey, who
is the daughrer of the respondent’s
stepbrather Niraj Dubey, in Adarsh
Nagar, Jabalpur. His facher
Bhagwan Dass Dubey (W 2) was
a retired Professor and his sister-

in-law Tara Dubey (DW 1) was a

Respondents

lecturer. s another clder brocher

at the relevant time of chis

gooutrrence WS \'\'()]’l(ing‘ as
Superintendent of Police in Rajgarh
District. Opposite to his house at
some distance Satish Bhasin (PW
9} and Sapna Bhasin (PW 10) were
residing with dheir minor daughter
Prici. Within the same locality 3 to
4 houses away from the house of
the respondent/accused,  rthe
appellant Madan Gopal Kakad {PW
5) was living wirth his wile, a
German lady, by name, Llesabeth
Kakad (W 6), his sister Veera (PW
7} and bis minor davghrer Tulna
Sheri (PW 13), a girl aged aboud 8
years and his younger son Pulkit.
The of
respondent and PW 5 were on

family members the

cordial  relationship  making
frequent visits to the houses of each

other.

3. Tulna Sheri (PW 13) rhe
unfortunate victim in this case was
studying in the third standard in St.
Joseph Convent aleng with her
classmate Richa Dubey. Tulna used
to come frequently o the house of
the respondent to play with Richa
Dubey and her other girlfriends.




Tarun Lata Joshi (PW 12) was living
with her father who was a tenant in

the house of PV 5,

4. According to the prosecution,
the respondent who had a crush on
young girls used to deveiop
friendship with the girls who used
to come to his house to play with
his nicce Richa Dubey by narrating
interesting stories from comic
books. On
deplorable incident, i.e. on
September 2, 1982 ar about 4 10 5
p.m. Richa Dubey called Tulna (PW
13) stacing that her mother wanred

the day of this

her. Accordingly Tulna wearing
underwear and jeans accompanied
by her younger brother Pulkic went
to the house of Richa, bur feund
none except the respondent. The
respondent found fault with Tulna
for having come chere in jeans
accompanied by her brother, When
the two girls namely, Tulna and
Richa started playing in the drawing
room, the respondent whispered
something in the ears of Richa,
who then told Tulna chat she had
been asked by her uncle {(the
respondent) to take Pulkit outside
and narrate him some storics and
that the respondent would ‘make
love’, presumably meaning thar he
would tell some lurid tales of sex

to her thereby stmulating immoral
thoughts so that Tulna mighr fall a

prey o his lewd and lascivious
behavicur.  As soon as Richa wenr

outside  taking  Pulkit,  the
respondent bolted the door from
imside. compleeely stripped of
himselt; removed the jeans and
underwear of Tulna and made her
naked and asked Tulna o do
fellario, thac is to suck his penis.
Thercafter the respondent cuddled
and pined Fulna dose o him, and
slightly inserced his penis into her
vulva and starred sucking her lips.
Within a few seconds, he ejaculaced
and freed the girl from his clutches
and thereafter put on his pyjamas
and asked Tulna 1o wear her jeans.
Again the respondent longing for
his lascivious passion, laid down
Tulna on a sofa in his drawing and
remained lying on her and closed
her mouth so chat the gitl could not
scream. A lirtle later after werring
his sexual appetite he got up;
opened the door allowed the girl to
go out. While the girl was leaving
the drawing hall, the respondent
threatened her not to disclose his
affairs to anyone, otherwise his
elder brother who is a high ranking
police officer would mercilessly
beat her parents. Tulna came out
of the roem and rold Richa as to

whar all happened inside the rocm.

5. In the evening of that day she
told her mother (PW 6) that the




respondent was a dirty fellow and

had asked her to suck his
P

insrructed net w go to the house

le
private  part, to which
of respondent thereafter.  Flowever,
Tulna did not narrate che encire
episode to her mother on the day
of the incident evidently ourt of fear.
When ‘lulna again narrated chis
incident to Richa, the latter told her
that her Chacha referring to
respondent, was like a dog and that
he used to do the same thing with
her also by scripping of her
whenever she came from the schoel
and whenever she was lying on her
bed and further told that the
respondent when asked as to why
Prici
complexion, her Chacha replied

Tulna and are in fair
thav their complexion is fair
because they sucked his male organ
and that if Richa also did the same
thing she would also become very
fair in her complexions. TW 12,
Tarun Lata joshi, who was present
nearby seeing Tulna and Richa
whispering cach other asked them
what was the marter. Tulna narrated
the incident to her and other
girlfriends. On the next day, seeing
the respondent standing near che
gate of his house Tulna repeated the
same remark to her mother (PW
). Thus on the third day, Tulna told

her mother the entire incident

which took place in the drawing hall

of the house of the respondent on
Seprember 2, 1982

6. On hearing rhis horrid
cpi.\‘()dc, PN 6 was very much
annoyed and conveyed this painful
and jarring piece of information to
PW 7 (Veera). Then PW 6, recling
under terrible shock, telephoned o
her neighbours PWs 9 and 10 and
informed them about the sexual
abuse  perpetrated by the
respondent on her daughter. At
abour 9.00 p.m. the appellant
Madan Gopal (PW 5} came to his
and

occurrence.

housec learnt aboutr the

Faced with rthe
traumatic situation, the helpless
panic sturicken parents who have
been so deeply disturbed by the
dehumanising act of the respondent
rushed wich boiling blood to the
house of the respondent
accompanied by PWs 7, 9 and 10
and searched for the respondent,
but could not find him there. They
then informed the purpose of their
visit to the elder brother and sister-
in-law of the respondent who told
PWs 5 and 6 that the respondent
had gone to a cinema hall and they
wauld send cthe respondent’s
vounger brother to ferch him. All
those including the righeful
indignanted parents of the victims
Tulna, asscmbled in the house of

the respondent, kept waiting till




midnight. The respondent after
returning from the theatre, realising
that the centire armosphere was
thick with the charge of sexual
molestation against him and finding
him in a cul-de-sac volunrarily
confessed his crime stating thar he
had raped Tulna and also had
committed the same kind of sexual
assault on carlier occasions with
Richa, Priti and other girls of that
locality, but being 2 Doctor he had
been careful enough not to rupture
their hymen. When PW 3 on being
acerbated and mentally perturbed

on hearing the confessional
statement rushed towards che
respondent  to  atrack  him,

respondent’s brother and sister-in-
law fell ar the feet of PW 5 and
pathetically beseeched not to do
anything till che arrival of the
parents of the respondent in the
next morning.

7. Coming to know of the
the
respondent Bhagwan Dass (DW 2)

arrival of father of the
with his wife on the next morning,
Madan Gopal (PW 5) along with
PWs 6, 9 and 10 met DW 2 whe
wolk strong objection for PW 5%
behaviour on the last night. When
P 5 informed DW 2 that his son
(respondent) had raped his minor
daughter Tulna, DW 2 was not
believe  their

prepared to

PR I S
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accusation. Uhereafrer at che
request of PW 5, he alled his son
and questioned him, Though the
respondenc first  abjured  his
complicity, however, admirred his
abominable crime of sexual assaule
on Julna. Thercupon Bhagwan
[hass gave his stick ro Madan Gopal
and said that ic was for PYW 5 eicher
to show mercy or to give corporeal
punishment as he deemed fit and
also made an carnest appeal o PW
3 nor to precipitate any action
against his son. Presumably, PW 3
and his family members thinking
that the police might not take any
action against the respondent since
his brother was a Superintendent
of Police and his family was
wielding a high influence in that area
and also fearing that any publiciry
of this incident would bring only a
disrepute to their family and that
the future life of their daughter
wauld be completely shacrered,
suffered in silence for 2 or 3 days,
without approaching any authoriry.
However, on September 7, 1982
PW 5 maustered his strength and
decided to lodge 2 criminal
complaint againsc the respondent.
Accordingly, he handed over a
written complaint Ex. P-7 to his
friend, Subhash Bhujbal (PV 8)
=nd go it delivered at the police

station, On the strength of Ex. P-7

a case was registered by the SHO




of Jabalpur Pelice Station (PW 11)
and the investigation was entrusted
to AS!{PW 14). During the course
of the investigation the victim Tulna
(PW 13) was examined by Dr
Chitra Tiwari {PW 4) on September
7, 1982 on being sent by che
potice. According o PW 4 there
was a abrasion on the medial side
of labia majora about 1-1/27 in
length, redness present around the
labia majora with a  white
discharge, and hymen was inrace
and admitted tip of liule finger. PW
4 has opined that an atrempt to
rape had been made. Ex. P-6 is the
medical cerrificate. PW 4 has
further stated that she prepared a
slide for confirmagien of the whice
discharge found around labia
minora. in the cross-examination
she has deposed that the white
discharge was not flowing out, but
it was at the same place where she
nericed the redness and the
discharge could have been as a
result of infection which itself could
have caused the redness found
around labia minora. Further she
has srazed thac she did not find any
labia The

Examiner afcer

crest on majora.
Chemical
examination of dhe slide, sent his
report Ex. P-13 which did not
reveal any seminal stains in the
vaginal smear. PW2, a Medical
Officer examined the respondent

on September 13, 1982 and found
him as a virile person with well
built body capable of perforniing
sexual intercourse, buc found no
injurics on  his  person. The

Ofticer

examining all che witnesses and

Invesagaring after
completing the investigation filed
the  charge-sheet against  the
respondent for the offence of rape
punishable under Section 376 11°C.

8. The respondent ook his rral
on  the indictment that he
committed rape on lulna beoween
4 and 3 p.n1. on Seprember 2, 1982
in the drawing hall of the house of
the respondent. The totality ot the
cvidence on the basis of which the
prosecution Tests ity case CONSISS
of three categories, namely, (1) the
oral testimony of the PW 13
corroborated by PWs G and 125 (2)
the extrajudicial confession made by
the respondent on two occasiens;
and (3) the medical evidence. Of
the wirnesses examined Tulna (W
13) alone speaks about the acuual
commission of rape or her. Though
Tulna reporied this unpleasant
incident to Richa immediately after
coming out of the drawing hall,
Richa has nor been examined by
the prosccution obvicusly for the
reason rthat Richa is none other
than the nicce of the respondent
himself, The next set ol
corroborating witnesses who speak



abour the victinds reporting about
the mcident are PWs 6 and 12. On
the evening of the dare of incident
even though Tulna reported to her
mother that the respondent was a
bad man and that he asked her o
suck his penis, she did nor reveal
the other parc of the incident
relating to the commission of the
rape obviousiy fearing chat her
parents would beat her. It was only
on the third day, the mother (PW6)
came to know from Tulna about the
actual incidenr, presumably after
the victim girl started reporting this
incident to PW 12 and to her other
playmates. The second category of
the
confession made by the respondent
before PWs 5, 6, 7, 9 and 10 in

the hatse of the respondent himself

evidence  is extrajudicial

after he had been sent for from the
cinema hall. According to the
above witnesses, this confession
was made not only in cheir
presence, but also in the presence
of the respondent’s brather and
sister-in-law {(DW 1). (It 1s but
natural that the brother and sister-
in-law of the respondent would nor
figure as wimesses on the side of
the prosccution and depose against
the respondent.) According to the
witnesses the confession made by
the respondent was thus:

“I have raped the girl, but I

have not ruprured her hymen.

You should not be perplexed, |1
know what are my limits, I am
a doctor. You need not o go
to any doctor.”

9. Thercafter on the next
mommning the respondent made the
similar confession before  his
parents in the presence of PWs 5,
G, 9 and 10 when PW 5 asked the
cespondent o tell the ruth before
his father by catching hold of him.
On

respondent confessed in English “1

the two occasions the
have raped the girl but not ruptured
hymen™. The last categary of the
evidence is that of the Medical
Officer (PW 4), who examined the
victim girl “fulra on September 7,
1982 and opined that there was an
attempt of rape on Tulna.

10. The trial court for the
discussions made In its judgement
arrived at a2 conclusion that the
prosccution launched against the
respondent on account of some
enmity between the two families
and that the prosecution has not
adduced any acceprable evidence
for holding the respondent guilty of
the offence under Section 376 IPC
and consequently acquitied the
respondent. The reasons assigned
by the ¢rial court for such a
based on its

conclusion are

following findings:




(1Y The evidence of PWs 5, 6,
7.9 and 10 is highly rainred
and as such no safe reliance can
be placed on cheir testimony.

{2) The extrajudicial confession
which the respondent had
rerracted cannot be said to be
free from threat, coercion or
promise.

(3) The extrajudicial confession
as such seems to be unnatural
and it is wholly the product of
an iliegal advice and false
fabrication.

{(4) The evidence of the victim
(PW 13) is nort corrabarared
by other independent evidence.

(5) The First Information
Report has been belatedly
lodged and

reasonable explanation for such

there is no

a delay.

11. On being agprieved by the
judgement of the trial court
acquitting the respondent, the State
preferred an appeal before the High
Court challenging the order of
acquiriai. [t is seen from che
judgment of the High Court chat
the complainant who is the
appellant before this Court also
filed a

Revision No. 596/83 questioning

revision in Criminal

the legality of the order of acquittal

and further one Jay Rao of New
Yorle (U.S.A) on the basis of an
article relating ro chis incident that
appeared in a German Magazine
called ‘Der Spicgel’ and afrer
visiting Jabalpur sent a petition of
gricvance addressed o the Chief
Justice of India with a copy o the
Chief Justice of Madhya Pradesh.
On the basis of this petition,
Criminal

another revisien In
Revision No. 599/83  was
registered. The High Cours

disposed of the State appeal and che

two criminal revisions by a
common judgment, whereby it
allowed the State appeal for the

reasons assigncd therein accepting

the oral restimeny of the
prosecution witnesses particularly of
PWs 6, 12 and 13 and the

extrajudicial confession made by
the respondent. No separate orders
were passed in the criminal
revisions. However, the High Court
found the respondent guilty of the
offence only under Section 354 IPC
and sentenced him to pay a fine of
Rs 3,000, in default to suffer simple
imprisonment for 6 months and
also direcred a2 sum of Rs 2,000 cut
of the fine amount if collected 1o
be paid over as compensation to

PV S,

12. The State has not preferred
any appeal before this Court.

However, the father of the victim




girl, PW 5,

aggrieved by the judgment of che

namely, teeling
High Courr has filed this criminal
appeal mainly on two grounds,
namely, (1) The High Court has
erred in finding the respondent
guilty of a minor offence under
Section 354 IPC when all che
necessary ingredients to constitute
an offence punishable under
Secrion 376 IPC

satisfactarily established; (2) that

kave been
the sentence of fine alone imposed
by the High Court under Section
354 IPC for chis serious offence is
grossly inadequate and is not
commensurate with the gravity of
the offence committed by the
respondent. When the matrer came
up for admission before this Court
on August 25, 1988, the following
order was made:

“Special leave granted, confined
to the narure of the offence and
the sentence to be awarded.”

13. It is pertinent to note that
the respondent has not challenged
the findings of the High Court by
filing an appeal and as such the
findings of the High Court
rendered with reference to the
cvidence  adduced by  the
prosecution and the conviction
based upon those findings have

reached their finality so far as the

respondent is concerned.

14. Before pondering over the
question with regard to the nature
of the offence and the quantum of
punishment o be awarded, we fecl
that it is necessary 1o recall some
of the findings of the High Court:

(1) The High Courc afcer
observing, ‘there is no reason
as o why a small innocent girl
would have Iaid such a serious
charge against the respondent,
if it was not truce’, held chat the
evidence of Tulna has been
materially corroborated by her

fricnd Tarun Lata ("W 12).

(2) Referring te the confession
of the respondent, it has been
held by the High Courr,
‘Though  there  can  be
penetration withour rupture,
the absence of any sign of
injuries, negatives a case of

rape with a small girl.’

(3) As regards the evidence of
Tulna, the Court has held thus,
“The statement of Tulna can be
safely accepred to the exrent
that the respondent after
undressing himself and Tulna,
asked her to suck his organ
and he then lay over her. She
has been fully corroborated by
her mother Elsabech, father
Madangopal, friend Tarunlata
and neighbours Sadish and
Sapna. They have no axec to




arind against the respendent.
No adverse inference can be
drawn for lodging the report 5
days after the incident.”

(4) Then referring to the
corroboration required to the
extrajudicial confession made
by the respondent on two
occasions, the High Courr has
recorded  the  following
observation:

“After that his
misdeeds have been cxposed

realising

and he can no longer hide
himself, he had no option but
to confess. This was the only
oprion left when he was

cornered by his  own
neighbours and
relations.... There was no

question of any coercion or
inducement in piesence of his
family members in his own
house....The confession was
nothing but by
repentance for the wrongs done
to the young girls and other
girls. Tt appears that the
respondent was a perverted
person and was saslying his
sexual urge by outraging
maodesty of young girls who fell
easy prey to his designs.”

(5) Commenting on the finding
g 2
of the rrial court as regards the

confession, the High Court has

way of

satd,  The  cvidence  of
extrajudicial confession has not
been accepted because he
witnesses have not repeated
like parrots in the same words
what the respondent had
ustered but che substance 1s the
same i.e. the respondent
confessed that he had vielared
(sici the girl bur not ruptured
her hyimen. Wherher che
witnesses said the same thing
in Hindi or English would no

make any difference.”

(6) Coming to the probity
question of the evidence ot
Tulna, the Coure said thus:

“Although she was a child, she
had modesty allrighc and was
ashamed o cell everything o
her mother, She was also not
would be the

slre \’Vh‘dt

reaction of her mother,
Therefore, there was hesitation
on her part. But she did rell w
her classmare Richa and also
o her friend Tarunlata (PW 12)
about it on the next day.
Tarunlata has corrcborared her,
. We are also satisfied that
Tarunlata  has  deposcd
regarding what she was told by

Tulpa...”

15. The above findings and

observations made by the High

! Court clearly show thar the High




Courr was fully satisfied with the
evidence of the victim Tulna

{(PW13)
corroboration on all

and found sufficient
material
particulars from the evidence of
PWs 5, 6, 9, 10 and 12 and thar
the extrajudicial confession given by
the respondent was true and it was
not obrained by any inducement,
coercion or threat but on the other
hand it was voluntarily made and
that there could be pencrranion
without rupture. Having accepred
the enrire cvidence adduced by the
prosccution in toto, the High Court
nonctheless enrerrained a doubt
with regard to the accusation of
rape holding there was no sign of
injurics and held that the offence
is not one punishable under
Section 376 IPC or under Section
376 read wich 511 IPC but only
one under Section 354 IPC on the
ground that the respondent has
outraged the modesty of Tulna by
“fecling pleasurc in getting him and
the victim made naked, asking
unwary minor girls to fiddle with
his organ” taking advantage of the
absence of the other adult family
members in his house. Coming to
the question of sentence, the High
Court gave the following reason:

“The learned Government
Advocate has nothing o say
about the sentence. There can
be no doubt that the act of the

respondent is most

reprehensible, he was
attempting o corrupt innocent
and unwary minor girls and his
activities were menace to the
ncighbours, bur since he is
now gainfully employed and
there is nothing to show that
be iy indulging in his nefarious
acrivitics, no useful purpose
will be served by again sending
him ro jail and sentence of fine
will meer the ends of justice.”

16, As we have pointed out in
the preceding part of this judgment,
the findings of the High Court,
rendered in exercise of its appellare
jurisdiction are [indings of fact
which in our opinion cannot be
reopencd in this appeal especially
when the respondent has not
challenged those findings and when
there is absolurely no reason much
less compelling reason for holding
that those findings are either in utrer
disregard of the evidence or
unreasonable and perverse or any
part of the evidence in favour of
the respondent is jercisoned.
However, we would like to point
our that the trial court has allowed
some inadmissible evidence to be
ler in by the prosecution which
evidence has also been raken norte
of and discussed by the courts
below, such as the statement alleged
to have been made by Richa (not




examined) to Tulna abour the

respondent’s abnormal  sexual
behaviour with her despite the fact
thar she falls within the prohibired
degree of consanguinity and the
evidence rouching the characrer of
the respondent that he has sexually
assaulted not only Richa and Pric
but also a number of minor girls.
We, while analysing and evaluating
the evidence and considering the
findings of the High Court qua the
sexual assault committed on W 13
by the respondent, proceed anly on
the basis of the evidence legally
permissible  without  being
influenced by the inadmissible
evidence and some of the
cbservations made thereon by the
courts below. Before expressing our
independent opinion on  the
cvidence, we give a  brief
background of the status of the
witnesses  and  the  cordial
relationship between the family
members of the respondent and che

wltnesses.

17. The material prosecution
witnesses arc all highly educated
and respectable people of the same
locality within which the houses of
the respondent and the witnesses
arc situated. PN 5, the father of
the victim girl had been in
Germany working in the field of
journalism for nearly 18 years and

he is well conversant with Unglish,
Germany and Hindi Tanguages. 1 is
wife PW 6 is a German lady who
after having sevded in Indiz has
learnt to speak in Flindi W 7,
who is the sister of PW S, is akso »
well educated lady working as a
Teacher in a School. PW 6 was
enjoying the facility of a telephone
connection 1n his house. PV 9. a
Coneracror and his wife PW 10,
whao are the parents of Pritd are
very respectable people enjoying a
high social status and having cheir
house ncar about the house of the
respondent, provided with ali
modern  facilivies  including
celephone ewe, It is said thar che
people in thar Jocality inclusive of
the family members of the
respondent used to visit their house
to make use of their telephone. In
that way the family members of the
respondent, PWs 5, 9 and others
were having a very close and cordial
relationship «ill this incident
occurred. As carlier pointed out,
respondenc’s father was a retired
Prefessor and his elder brother was
then oceupying a key position in
the Police Force in the rank of a
Superintendent of Police posted in
the district of Rajgarh during the
relevant period. His sister-in-law
(DW 1) was a Lecturer and his
uncle was a leading lawyer. It is said

thar the family of the respondent




was wiclding high influence in chat
arca. There is absolutely no
evidence, even to remotely suggest,
that there was any cnmity or any
kind of misunderstanding berween
the families of the respondent and
PW 5 tll this incident o raisc the
the

accusing finger against

respondent either by the lirtle
innocenc gl (PW 13) or by PW 5
and te make chis ignoble allegations
at the rsk of their family honour
and the future prospects of W 13,
Of course, the respondenr has
suggested a motive against W 5
evidently drawing the same from
the fertlity of his imagination that
Tulna had told him that her parents
were geting money for spying for
German Embassy and PW 5 after
coming 1o know of this disclosure
of spying has fabricated chis false
story of molestation of his minor
daughter fearing that he would be
exposed to criminal prosecution by
the respondent’s brother, the
Superintendent of Police which
defence theory on the face of it has
to be thrown overboard and which
in fact did not find acceprance at
the hands of the High Court.

20. Though it is nor necessary
for us to enter upon a reappraisal
or reappreciation of the evidence
since the findings of fact of the
High Court have not been

SN

challenged, yer we after mosc
carchully and clescly scrutinising che
galaxy of the proven facts, have no
hesiration in agreeing with che High
Court that che exerajudicial
confession made by the respondent
which is not shown o have been
obtained by coercion, promise of
favour or false hope cte. is plenary
in character and voluntary in s
nature acknowledging his guile-i.c.
the gravely incriminating fact of the
commission of rape on Tulna-in
precise and explicit words. This
confession has been made in
presence of a body ef persons on
two occasions inclusive of the family
members of che respondent as well
as PWs 9, 6, 9 and 10. PW 7 was
present only on the first occasion
along with other witnesses. As ruled
by this Court in Prart Singh v. State
of Punjab' law docs not require thac
the evidence of an extrajudicial
confession should in all cases be
corroborated. However, coming to
the facts of the case, the confession
of is amply
corroborated by the evidence of the
victim (PW 13) whose testimony in
twrn s corroborated by PWs 3, 6,
7.9 and 10 and also by the medical
evidence.

the respondent

21. As regards the evidence of
PN 13 reladng to the incident, the

High Court has accepted only one




part ol the accusarions, namely,
that the respondent asked Tulna w
be an active agent of oral
copulation by sucking his penis,
norwithstanding the fact thar the

High

COI]]PL]]]CliOI’l has EICCEPTC{* (I]ﬁ

Court  without  any
evidence of PW 13 as being
substantially corroborated and the
extrajudicial confession of the
respondent as being free from any
vice and held that “ir is bevond
comprehension chat the
complainant would have laid a false
and reckless charge against the
respondent by involving his own
minor daughter Tulna in such
unsavory incident for nothing, not
caring abour her furure and kis own
reputation and honour. There is no
reason as to why a small innocent
girl would have laid such a serious
charge against the respondent, if it
was not true.” In our considered
view, the High Court was not at
all justified in reaching a distoried
conclusion which has resoeleed in
miscarriage of justice.

22, On a carcful scanning of the

cntire records, we have no

reservation in  accepting rhe

evidence of PW 13 in its endrety

and the extrajudicial confession of

the respondent which clearly males
out a case for an offence under
Section 376 IPC, the reasons for
which we will discuss infra.

23, There are a series ol
decisions to the effect that even in
cases wherein there is lack of ol
corroboration  to  thar ol 2
prosccutrix, a4 conviction can be
safely recorded, provided the
evidence of the vicoim does not
sufter frem any basic infirmity, and
the ‘probabilicies factor’ does not
render it unworthy of credence, and
that as a general rule, corroborasion
cannot be insisted upon, except
from the medical evidence, where,
hﬂ\"i“g ]'Cgii]'d o th(‘ L’iivCll”1S[ﬂﬂCCS
of the case, medical cevidence can
be expected to be forthcoming.
Vide (1) Rameshwar v. State of
Rajasthan’, (2) Bharwadn Bhoginbhai
Hirjibhai v. State of Gujarat®, (3)
Krishan Lal v. Swite of Haryand'.

24. We shall now briefly deal
with the principles regarding the
powers of the High Court o review
the evidence while examining an
order of acquittal sitting in its
appellate jurisdicton.

25. An appeal against acquicral
provided under Section 378 of the
Code of Criminal Procedure falls
under Chaprer XXTX under the
caption “Appeals”. This Chaprer
covers Sections 372 to 394, Whilst
Section 374 deals with the ‘Appeals
from Convictions’, Section 377
deals with the ‘Appeal by the State
Government against sentence’. As

Naval. Dubey and Hnosher



starcd above Section 378 of the
new Code {corresponding to Section
417 of the old Code) gives the High
Court full power to review at large
the evidence upon which the order
of acquirtal was founded and w
reach its own conclusions upon rhat
evidence either by reversing the
order ol acquittal or disposing of
the same otherwise as facts therein
warrant. In other words, the High
Court is clothed with the plenary
powers to go through che entire
evidence and to come to ity own
conclusions as warranted by rhe
facts of the case concerned but, of
course, subject to cermain guidelincs
the judicial
The
Council in Sheo Swarup v. King-

laid down by

Pronouncements. Privy

Emperor in dealing with the power
. - .

of the High Court to review the

cvidence and reverse the acquiteal

held thus:

“Sections 417, 418
the Cede give to the

and 423 of
High Court
full power to review at large the
evidence upon which the order of
acquittal was founded, and to reach
the conclusion thar upon thar
evidence the order of acquitral
should be reversed. No limitation
should be placed upon thar power,
unless it be found expressly stated
in the Code. Bur in exercising the

power conferred by the Code and

beftore reaching ity conclusions
upon [act, the High Court should
and will always give proper weight
ﬂnd C(Hl.\'i(lcl'ﬂ['i(}l] 10 SLICI] maftrers
as (1) the views of the tial Judge
as (o the credibiliny of the wirnesses;
{2} the prasumption of innocence
m favour ol che accused, a
presumption certainly not weakened
by the fact that ke has been
acquitted ac his wrial; (3) the righe
of the accused to the benetit of any
doube; and (4) the slowness of an
appellate court in disturbing a
finding of fact arrived at by a Judge
who had (he advantage of seeing the

{owitnesses.

26. In Wilayar Khan v. Swte of
{77 this Court while examining the
scope of Sections 417 and 423 of
the old Code pointed our that even
in appeals against acquittal, che
powers of the High Courr are as
wide as in appeals from convictions.
See also (1) Swungjpal Singh v. State
(2} Titlsiram Kanw v. State {3) Aber
Raja Khima v. State of Saurashira
(4) Radha Kishan v. Stare of U.R
holding that ar appeal from
acquirral need not be treated
different from an appeal from

conviction; {5) Jadunath Singh v.
State of U1 (6) Dharam Das v. State
of U.P{7) Barati v. State of UL
and (8) Sethu Madhavan Nair v,
State of Kerala,




28. Reverting o the nstanc case,
if the conclusion of the High Court
thar the offence made ourt is only
punishable under Section 354 [PC,
is scrutinised with reference o the
evidence  adduced by  the
prosecution and tested in the light
of the above principles of law faid
down by this Court, in our view,
the conclusion under challenge is
not a reasenable and justifiable one
since the towality of the evidence
demonstrably establishes a graver
offence. Moreover, the sentence of
finc alone imposed by the High
Courr even assuming thar the
offence is punishable under Section
354 is grossly inadequate and is not
commensurate with the serious
nature of the offence. OFf course,
this question of the inadequacy of
sentence under Section 354 docs
not come within the purview of our
consideration because we proceed
on the fooring that the offence is
not a mere outraging the modesty
of woman bur much more than
that. Furcher, we are constrained
te hold that the High Court even
afrer  observing  thar  “the
respondents activities were menace
to the neighbours” has shown a
misplaced  sympathy o the
respondent which is patendy
reflected from che penultimate
paragraph of its judgment and

which has led to the miscarriage

of justice. The impugned finding
that the offence 1s one ol outiaging

the modesty of woman ior which
senrtence of TMPprisonment s not
compulsory is erroncous and
untenable.

29. The next crucial queston
thac arises for our consideradion is
whether the proved faces establish
the offence of rape or only artempt
to commit rape. Before the High
Court, the learned Government
Advocate appears to have urged that
the offence was punishable under
Section 376G read with 511 1PC
though the charge was for a specific
offenice of rape punishable under

Section 376 [PC.

30, T'he medical officer PW 4
wlo was then only 28 years old,
on examining the victim after 5
days of the incident i.e. Seprember
7, 1982 has giver her opinion as
follows:

“From the above findings, it
seems an atcempt to tape has been
made.”

31. In the cross-examination, the
following answer is brought our

from the medical officer, PW 4.

“T concluded about attempt o

rape, on account of abrasion
and redness on lzbia majora
and minora respectively.”




32, It is true that this medical
officer who could not have gained
much expericnce by that time has
given her opinion that the abrasion
found would have been less than 2
days’ duration which opinion of
course is nor precise  but
approximate and probable. Though
the prosecutor who conducred the
case before the wrial court has nor
put any question clarifying her
opinion In the re-examination, it
has been clearly brought out in the
cross-examination itself that the
medical officer was basing her
epinion on the abrasion found on
labia majora and minora. It means
that the medical officer was of the
opinien  that
measuring one and a half inches in

the abrasion
length found on the medical side
of the labia majora and the redness
around the labia minora could have
been caused cven on Seplember 2,
1982. By this opinion, PW 4 has
given a margin of 5 days in fixing
the probable duration of the injury.
The defence counsel has not further
pursued and put any question
clarifying the subsequent answer
given by the medical officer
regarding the duration of the injury.

33. Though in the grounds of
appeal, it is specifically stated that
all ingredienss for constituting an
offence within the ambit of Section
375, punishable under Section 376

Mo Gl Kkl e

IPC are made out, alternacively a
hesicane plea 1s made chae che
offence at any rate would not be
less than Section 376 read wich 511
IPC. We also prima facic were of
the opinion that the offence may
be punishable under Section 376
read with 511 IPC buc after deeply
going through the evidence, we
have no hesitation in holding thar
the offence is nothing shore of rape
punishable under Section 376 1PC.
Merely because the inexperienced
medical officer has opined thar it
was an atempt to commit rape,
probably on the ground that chere
was  no  sign  of complere
penetration, we are not inclined ro
accept PW 4% legal opinion as to
the nature of the offence committed
by the respondent.

34, A medical witness called in
as an expert to assist the Court is
not a witness of facc and the
evidence given by the medical
officer is really of an advisory
character given on the basis of the
symptoms found on examination.
The expert witness is expecred to
put before the Courr all materials
inclusive of the dara which induced
him to come to the conclusion and
enlighten the Court on the rechnical
aspect of the case by explaining the
terms of science so that the Courr
although, not an expert may form
1ts own judgment on those materials




alter giving due regard to  the
expert’s opinion because once the
expert’s opinion is accepted, it is
not the opinion of the medical
officer bur of the Court.

35. Nariman, ]J.
Abwied Ally" while expressing his

in Queen v.

view on medical evidence has
observed as lollows :

“The evidence of a medical
man or other skilled witnesses,
however, eminent, as to what
he thinks may or may not have
taken place under particular
combination of circumstances,
however, confidently, he may
speak, is ordinarily a matter of
mere opinion.”

3G. Tazal AL, . in Prarap Misra
v. State of Orissa®® has stated chus:

“ DI s well sertled that the
medical jurisprudence is not an
exact science and ir is indeed
difficulc for any Doctor o say
with precision and exactitude
as to when a particular injury
was caused... as to the exact
rime when the appellants may
have had sexual intercourse
with the prosecutrix,”

37. We feel that it would be quite
appropriate, in this context, to
reproduce the opinion expressed by

2060 Madan Gopal Kakkad: Versus Naval:

Modi in Medical furisprudence and
%.xic‘r).!’ogjf ('I‘\,Vulﬂ)"f'.il’.\.l Edinon) au
page 309 which reads thus

“Thus to constiture the offence
of rape it s not necessary chat
there should be complete
penetration of penis wich
emission of semen and rupture
of hymen, Pastial penetration
of the penis wichin the labia
majora or the vulva or pudenda
with or withour cmission of
senien or even an atiempr at
penetration s quite suflicient
for the purpose of the law. It
is therefore quite possible o
commit legally the offence of
rape without producing any
injury to the genitals or leaving
any seminal stains. [n such a
case the medical officer should
mention the negative facts in
his report, buc should noc give
his opinion that no rape had
been committed. Rape is a
crime and not a medical
condition. Rape is a legnl term
and not a diagnosis to be made
by the medical officer treating
the victime. The only statement
that can be made by the medical
officer is that there s evidence
of recent sexual activity, Whether
the rape has occurved or not is a
legal conclusion, nor a medical
one.

(emphasis supplied]




38.1n Lavikhy Textbook of Medical
Jurisprudence and foxicology, the
following passage is found -

“Sexual intercourse. — In
faw, this term is held to mean
the slightest  degree  of
penetration of the vulva by the
penis with or without emission
of semen. Tt is therefore quite
possible to commit legally the
offence  of rape withour
producing any injury to the
genitals or leaving any seminal

stains.”

39. In Encyclopedia of Crime and
Justice ( Vol 4) ar page 1356, it is
stated :

“.. (Beven slight penetration
ts sufficient and emission is

unnecessary.”

40. In Halsburys Statutes of

Lugland and Wales, {(Fourth
Edition), Volume 12, it is stated that
even the slightest degree of
penetration is sufficient to prove
the

sexual intercourse wichin

meaning of Section 44 of the Sexual
Offences Act, 1956, Vide (1) R v
Hughei, (2) R v, Lines'™ and R v,
Nicholls"

41. See also Harriss Criminal
Law, {Twenty-second Edition) at
page 465.

adan Gopal Kakhad Versus Navsl- Dby and .

42, In American jurisprudence,
it is stared that slight penctration

Is sutficiene ro complete the crime
of rape. Code 263 of Pessal Code of
California reads thus :

“Rape; essentials — Penetration
sufficient — The essential guile
of rape consists in che outrage
to the person and feelings of
the victime of che rape. Any
sexual penetration, however
slighe, is sufficient o complete
the crine.”

43. The First Explanation rto
Section 375 of Indian Penal Code
which defines “Rape’ reads thus -

“Fxplanarion. — DPenetration is
sufficient ro constiture the
sexual intercourse necessary ro
the offence of rape.”

44. In interpreting the above
explanation whether complete
penerration  is necessary  to
constitute an offence of rape,
various High Courts have taken a
consistent view that even the
slightest penetration is sufficient o

make out an offence of rape and

the depth of penceration  is
immarterial.

45, Reference also may be made
w Prithi Chand ~v. Stare af H.P
though the facts therein are not
similar to this casc.

ot e




46G. In the case on hand, there
is acceptable and reliable evidence
that there was slight penerration
though not a complete penetration.
The following evidence found in the
deposition of PW 13 irrefragably
of

committed by the respondent:

proves the offence rape

“Nawal uncle untied his pyjama
and rook out his male organ and
pur in inside my vagina and
clurched me... Nawal Chacha put
his male organ inside my vagina and
since it was fat it kept slipping out.
After that my vagina was paining;

... When Nawal uncle held apart,
then there was some whire liquid
coming, our from his male organ...

Naval Chacha pressed my mouth
so 1 could not scream.”

47. In the cross-examinarion, the

following answer is given:

“1 suffered pain by what Naval
Chacha did...”

48. When the evidence of PW 1
is taken with the evidence of
medical officer who found ap
abrasion on the medial side of labia
majora and redness present around
the labia minora with white
discharge even after 5 days, it can

be safely cocluded that there was

218

partial penecration withinn the Tabia
majora or the vulva or pudenda
which in the legal sensc is sufficient
to constitute the offence of rape.
Moreover, the respondent himscelt
has confessed twice admitting the
of

the

COMMISSION rape  without

rupturing hymen  which
onfession is not disbelieved by the
High Court. The respondent s a
medical officer who has got the
practical knowledge of the anatomy
of a human being and the tender
sexual organ of a young, girl and
who must have been quite aware
of the implication of his confession
fully the
meaning of the word

having understood
‘rape’
Therefore, as admitred by rhe
respondent himself, he withour
forcibly and completely penctrating
his penis into the vagina of PW 13
had slightly penctrated within the
labia majora or vulva or pudenda
without rupruring the hymen and
thereby satisfied his fust after
emnission of semens. T this context,
it is nOt necessary (o enter into any
nice discussion as o how far che
male organ has entered in the vulva
or pudenda of PW 13 since it is
made that  there

clear was

penctration attracting  the
provisions of Secion 375 1PC. The
evidence of PW 13 is amply
corroborated net only by the
and  che

medical  evidence

corroboraring evidence of PW 1°2

- Madan Gopal Kikkad Verus Naval Dubey wid Another



bur also by the plenary confession
of the respondent himself,

49. From the above discussion,
we unreservedly hold char the
has
s

s;ltisf:;lctt)l'iiy
that

prosecution

established casc the
respondent has commitred rape on
PW 13 by proving all the necessary
ingredients. required to make our
an offence of rape punishable under

Section 376 IPC.

50. In the result, we ser aside rthe
judgment of che High Court
convicting the respondent under
Section 354 IPC and sentencing
him to pay a fine of Rs. 3,000
insread convict the respondent
under Section 376 IPC,

51, What would bhe the quantum
of punishment that would mcer the

circumstances of the case, is the next
question for our consideration.

52. 1t is very shocking ro note
from the judgment of the High
Court  that the
advocare did nor address on the
question of senrcnce. The High
Court thought of imposing fine only
on the ground that the respondent
“is now gainfully employed and

5 ¥ ploy é
there is nothing w show that he is
indulging in his nefarious activities”.
We regret to say that we are not

Government

in

reasons  which  are  nor

conformity with the concept of

sentencing policy in a grave case
g ) £

of this narure,

53. We are told at the bar thar
the victim who is now 19 years old,
afier having lost her virginity stili
remains unmarried undergoing the
untold agony of the traumatic
experience and the deathless shame
suffered by her. Evidently, the
victim is under the impression that
there is no monsoon season in her
life and rhat her furure chances for
getting married and settling down
respectable
completely marred.

in a family are

54. Though the Srare has kepc
silent after the disposal of the
appeal by the High Court, the
helpless panic stricken facher of the

ends of justice in the facts and | victim {PW 13) with a broken heart

has entered the portals of this Court
and is rapping the door, crying for

justice.

55. [t will be appropriate o refer
the following obscrvation of
Ranganarth Mistra, J. (as the then
was) in his separate concurring
judgment sitting in che seven-Judge
Bench in A.R. Anthulay v. R.S
Nayalk (SCC p. 672] para 83)

“No man should suffer because

Ex

of the mistake of the Courr ...

able to und_e[s[and the above ’ debito jﬂffiﬁ-’ﬂlc’?, we must do leS[iCC




to lim. 1F 2 man has been wronged

so long as it lies within the human
machinery of administration of
chat must be

Jl_lSl e WIong

rentedied.”

56. Accordingly, we, having
regard to the seriousness and gravity
of this repugnant crime of rape
perpetrated on PW 13 who was 8
years old on the date of che
comiission of the offence inl982,
while convicting the respondent
under Secrion 376 1PC sentence
him  to  undergo  rigorous
imprisonment for a period of seven
years and o pay a fine of Rs.
25,000 in defaalt o suffer rigorous
imprisonment for 1 1/2 years. The
fine amount of Rs. 25,000 if
reabised shall be paid o the vierim
girl who 15 not a major. 1f the fine
amount of Rs. 3,000 imposed by
the High Court which we have set
aside, has already been paid rhac
amount shall be adjusted with the

fine ameunt now imposed by us.

“JUSTICE DEMANDS, THE
COURT AWARDS

{Also reporfed in 1992 (3) SCC 204)

L1220

57. Belare parting with the
judgmeant, with deep concern, we
may point out that though all sexual
assaults on {emale children are not
reported and do not come o lighs
and

alarming

yet there is an
shocking increase of sexual offences
commitred on children. This is due
to the reasons that children ave
ignorant of the act of rape and arc
not able o offer resistance and
become easy prey for lusty bruces
who display the anscrupulous,
deceirful and insidious art of luring
female children and young girls.
Therefore, such offenders who are
menace to the civilised sociery
should  be  mercilessly  and
inexorably punished in the severest

rermns.

58, We feel that Judges who bear
the Sword of Justice should not
hesitate ro use thar sword with the
wrmost severity, to the fuli and o
the end if the gravity of the offences
so demand.

59, The appeal is allowed

accordingly.

Mudan Gojml :I(_'é!ekad. Versus ;Ném_l .'Dz_t_b_e;'y and Another .



Narayanamma (Kum)

Appellang;

Versus

State of Karnataka and Qthers

State of Karnataka

Versus

Muniyappa and Others

These two appeals by special
leave, one by the Srate of Karmnataka
and the other by the victim of the
crime, are directed against the
judgment and order of the High
court of Karnataka in Criminal
Appeal No. 157 of 1986 decided
on 20-11-1987 recording an order
of acquittal in favour of rhe
ACCUSC d -1es PO n (1(' s,

2. Kum. Narayanamma is the
prosecutrix, She was abour 14 years
of age on the date of the
commission of the offence. She is
Hliterate and used o eke out a
living, as did her other family
members, by working as an
agricultural iabourer {in common
parlance a “cooiic”). On 3-10-1983
at abour 3.30 p.m, she had gone
towards the fields to cur some grass
for her cartle, and while she was
returning at about 5.00 p.m. with
a basker full of grass, she found
accused 1, Muniyappa, aged about
23 years standing close ro a
“Honge” tree on the footparth.

Respondents

Appellant;

Respondent
When she got close to him, he

caught her by dhe hands, speaking
to her suggestively with an evil
design. Accused 2 Venkaraswamy
aged abour 17 years emerged from
a close-by (ence and caught her by
the legs. Both of them bodily fifred
the prosccutrix by her hands and
legs and took her a few feer away
in the field of one Gopalappa know
as the “field of stones”™. There
Sorghum {jowar) crop was standing
and chey dumped her on che
standing jowar plants which matced.
Accused 3, Somanna, aged about
20 years, who was already present
there, lifted her clothes, {orcibly
inserted his organ in the privace
parts of the prosecurrix as also
broke open the hooks of her blouse
and squeezed her breasts, while the
by
Muniyappa who held her by her

victim  was  immobilised
hands closing her mouth and
Venkataswamy catching her by the
legs. Having laid up on the

prosecurrix for somecime Somanna
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got up and immediately thereafter
Venkataswamy indulged in the same
act. At that time, Somanna stood
close by, and Muniyappa kept
the hands the
prosecutrix for her resistance had

holding of
somewhat waned away by that
time. She kept raising however
screams and cries all the same
which atiracted one the scenc a
grazier by the name of
Muniswamappa, PW 2. He had
seen Muniyappa

having
immobilised the prosccutriz,
Somanna standing close by and
Venkataswamy raping her. On
Sceing PW 2, the three accused ran
away. In the meantime the nephew
of the prosecutrix, a child abour 9
years named Yellappa PW 7 helped
her get up and made her wear her
clothes. Then came che sister of the
prosccutrix by the name Nagrathna
Pw o5

Venkaragiriamma, PW 6 to whom

and her mother,
the prosecutrix narrated as to what
had happened to her. They then
took her to the village. In the
meantime Krishnappa PW 8,
brother of the prosecutrix arrived
and he o was told by the

kad

happened to her. Then he taking

prosecutrix as o what
his sister, the prosccutrix as also
Nuniswarmappa PW 2 went to the
Police Station, Bangarpet having

travelled a disrance of abour 9 miles

H

on foot where first information
report was lodged on the stuement
of the prosecutrix much before
midnight. 'The police then went into
action by inspecting the spot
wherefrom they could recover some
pieces of broken bangles belonging
to the prosccutriz. The police also
took care of arresting the accused
and in having them medically
examined from Dr Basavaraju, PW
4 on the day following the day of
the occurrence at about 1.15 p.m.
Beforehand the police had taken
care to have rthe prosecutrix
examined by Dr C.V. Reera, TW 3
immediately after the recording of
the FIR within abeur six hours of
the incident.

3. On of the

investigation, the three accused

completion

respondents were put up for trial,
Muniyappa constructively with the
aid of Section 114 of the Indian
Penal code and the other two
accused directly for the offence of
rape, besides all the three accused
for peripheral offences. The trial
ended of

respondents under zll counts for

in conviction the
which they were awarded terms of
imprisonment as disclosed in the

judgment and order of the Sessions

i Judge, Kolar. The High Courc

reversed that decision and recorded
order of acquittal.




4. According to the High Court,
the prosecurrix was not a reliable
witness as her statement was not
correborated by medical evidence.
We on closer consideration of the
matter, with respecr, differ from the
High court. As we view ir, the
prosccutsix was a reliable witness.
She stood corroborated on all
material particulars not only by the
medical evidence bur by the
of PW 2

appeared on the scene of the crime

evidence who had
and scen it being commicted, by
the accused respondents. The
particulars which have accracred
adversc comments from the H igh
Court

smoothened in our efforc are as

and  which we Thave

follows -

() According to the prosecurrix,
she had been bodily lifted by the
Muniyappa and Venkataswamy,

respondents, taken ro the field of

Gopalappa swhere Somanna already
present in waiting raped her while
she was forcibly laid on the marted
jowar crop. Since therc were no
marks of injury on the back of the
prosecucrix and the field was
reported to be having stones on the
surface, the word of the prosecurrix
was doubred by the High Courr
about the manner in which the
crime was committed. The High

Court unfortunately did not

appreciate the importance of the
use of jowar stalks, which in che
month of Ocrober, when che
occurrence took place, would have
been more than a man’s height and
when tampled upon and mated
would provide sufficiently a cushion
for the crime being commirred
without the prosccutrix receiving
any injury on her back. The
surrounding crop would also
provide a  cover chstructing
visibility to a casual passer-by. Thus
that the absence of

back of the

prosecutrix  can  be of no

we  view
injuries on che

conscquence in the circumstances.

(7)) According o Dr. Reera, PW
3. the prosccuirix told her that she
had been caught hold of by
Muniyappa and Venlataswamy and
was raped by Somanna. When the
prosccutrix had laid claim in the
first information report, and to
which she stuck to ac the trial, thar
Somanna and Venkataswamy had
committed rape on her while
Muniyappa immobilised her, the
High Courr viewed that there was
a contradiction made by the
prosecutrix when naming only ane
person as her ravisher to Dr, Reeta,

PwW 3.

prosecutrix’s statement to Dr. Reet

Surprisingly, the

abour her naming onc person to
have commirted rape on her was




not Plll’ to thC PI'OSCCUU‘}X during

cross-cxamination. In rthe absence
of the same being put to her it
cannot be sald chat there was a
contradiction for there might well
have been an omission which the
prosecutrix could supply and render
a plausible acceprable explanation.
Besides the first assault in any case
was by Somanna which was correct;
and her statement to the docror
may not have been complered. Bur
that cannot be the end of the
matter. This particular, in our view,
cannor the

weigh

against
Prosecurrix.

{ii7) The prosecutrix having
supplied the details of the crime to
Ler mother PW 6, the mother
deposed at the wial char she was
told by the prosccutrix thar the

three accused by name had
commirred rape on her. This the
High Court termed as an
exaggration because as s the
version Muniyappa had not
commicted rape. In a sense,
Muniyvappa  facilitated  the

commission of the crime. He was
the initiator and had an active role
to play and was equally guilty. The
prosecutrix  could nor  be
condemned if she conveyed to her
mother that he was guiley of the
crime of rape commirted on her.

It could bhe a

difference of

perceptions. This particular also

does not weigh against  the

prosecurrix.

(i) According to Dr. Recr, PW
3 hymen of the prosecurrix was
ruptured, admitted two fingers, bled
on rtouch, was reddish in colour,
and was painful and wnder. On this
basis, the doctor opined tht these
were signs of rape. The ability of
admission of two fingers and the
hymen being ruptured was she did
notr qualify her statement thar it
stood ruprured as a of old or
With clear

objective in view, the doctor must

carried an old rear.
be presumed to have norticed the
hymen as freshly ruptured, as
otherwise, the doctor would not
have described it in that fashion to
be bleeding, tender and paintul.
The factum of admission of two
fingers could nort be held adverse
ro the prosecutrix for it would
depend upon the size of the fingers
inserted. Expericnce tells us that
when medical experts try to opine
abour the medical condition of a
woman used to sexual intercourse,
it is described as admission of two
fingers casily, but here the dector
qualified her statement by saying
that it was painful and bleeding on
touch. These conditions obviously
related to the hymen. The doctor
was thus clear in her opinion that




rape had been commicted on the
prosecutrix. There was no occasion
for the High Court in holding it to
the contrary.

() "I'hac there were injuries such
as irregular linear contusion on
boch the breasts of the prosecutrix
being 3 to 4 in number, reddish in
colour, is also suggestive of force
heing used on her while she was
subjected to the crime. The High
Court unfortunately did not give
weight to this piece of evidence as
it deserved.

(vi} With regard o the vaginal
smear examination conducted at a
different hospital, Dr. Reeta, PW
3 has reported that no spermarozoa
was seen on 1t, and the absence of
sperms has been viewed against the
version of the prosccutrix. o was
never eliciced from the prosecurrix
as to wherher the two persons who
committed rape on her had reached
orgasm emirting semen in her
private parts, No presumption can
be made that penetration of penis
in the private parts of a rape victim
must necessarily lead ro the
discover of spermatozoa. It is a
question of detail and has w be put
1o rest by cross-examination.

Qtherwise also there may be

various other factors which may
negative  the  presence of

spermarozoa such as faulty taking

Nm zzymmmmﬂ { sz K

of the smear, its preservation,
quality of semen cie. The absence
of spermatozoa prima facie could
not be ajlowed o el against the
version of the prosceutrix,

5. It cannot be Torgotten that the
prasecutrix was 14 years of age.
She had 1o axe w grind in accusing
the respondents of the crime and
describing rthe roles played by rthem
e FIR

was lodged by her at the carliest

in the commission ot ir.

possible time. She was medically
examined immediately thercalter
within six hours of the commission
She

corroborated not only by rthe

of  the crime. stood
medical evidence bur also by the
evidence of persons who came by
and who mer her immediacely alter
the occurrence. o particular
evidence of Muniswamappa, PW 2
is of grear significance. He is an
independent witness. There is no
reason why he should speak against
the accused respondents. The
reasons suggested that he had some
sort of il-will with the respondenss,
there. The

is neither here nor

prosecurrix also could not be
doubted on the supposition that her
crics should have artracted some
people from the neighbouring fields,
or people returning to the village
in the evening. Her word could not

© be dis believed on mere generalities,
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Whosocver was close by such as
Muniswamappa, PW 2

attracted to the scene. He saw what

was

was happening to the prosecurrix,
. g

Things spoke o him on their own.

The facr that he accompanied the

brother of the prosecucrix and the

prosecutrix to the police station

his

further lends credence to

testimony.

6. To conciude the aforesaid
discussion, we hold thac the High
Court fell into an error in rejecring
the clear and natural restimony of
the prosecutrix. We hold her to be
a reliable witness. Her evidence nort
only inspires confidence bur is
otherwise corroborated on all
material particulars. She being
below the age of consent, the
respondents cannot escape liability
merely because no marks on injury

(Also reported in 1994 (5) SCC 728)

on  cheir  person suggesting
resistance cotild be found. Thus we
have to reverse the judgement and
order of the High Court restoring
that of the Sessions Judge, Kolar
whereunder the respondents were
variedly sentenced, as is evidence
from his judgement. Though we
consider that the sentence awarded
by the Sessions Judge was not
adequare being barcly chree years'
rigorous imprisonment for the
crime of rape such as this, but ar
this point of time we do not wish
to enhajce it in these proceedings
and would be content in resroration
of the orders of the Sessions Judge,
Kolar and the conviction and
sentences  recorded hin.

by
Ordered accordingly.

7. For the ;1f}11'cgoi11g reasons,
these appeals are allowed in che
terms and manner abovementioned.
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State of U.P . Appellant
Versus
Babul Nath Respondent

The respondent Babul Nath a
young man of 32 years was charged
and tried for an offence punishable
under Section 376 of the Penal code
of committing rape on Kumari
Nirmala Devi, a child aged about
5 years , in the afternoon of 15-3-
1977 in the grove of ene Baleshwar
Pathak in village Rampa within the
jurisdiction of Police Sration
Bhadohi, district Varanasi. In
Sessions 1rial No. 26 of 1978 the
learned Session Judge, Varanasi
found the respondent guilty of the
offence  charged  with  and,
therefore, convicted him under
Section 376 IPC and sentenced
him to suffer imprisonment for five
years. On appeal by the respondent
the High courc rejected the
testimony of the sole eyewitness
Ram Lakhan, PW 1, ser aside the
conviction and sentence imposed on
the respondent and acquitted him
of the charge of rape. The State of
Uttar Pradesh
approached this Court in appeal

Article 136

constitution of India on grant of

has, therefore,

under of the

leave.

2. The prosecution case as it
emerges out of the written report

FULE Versus Bibul Nath = ©

made by Ram Lakhan, PW 1, is
that on 15-3-1977 at abour 4 p.m.
when Ram Lakhan, PW 1, Jokhan
Ram, PW 2, Kansraj, PW 3 and
Kauleshwar while passing by the
side of the grove belonging ra
Baleshwar Pachak of Village Rampa
they heard screams and cries of
some girl and, cherefore, they
rushed into the grove where they
saw the girl Nirmala lying down on
the ground in a semi-conscious state
with her privare part profusely
bleeding and the respondent Babul
Narh was scen running away
arranging his Dhoti from that place.
They arranged for a Khatola (small
cot) and proceeded on foot with the
girl to Khatola to the Police Stadon,
Bhadohi where Ram Lakhan, PW
1, made a wrirtin repert Ext. Ka-1
which was received by the Head
Coanstable Awadh Narain Singh,
PY 4. On the basis of said report
Head Counstable Awadh Narain
Singh prepared a formal chik report
Exr. Ka-2 and an offence under
Section 376 1PC was registered
against the respondent as per Ext

Ka-3.

3. Thereafter, the girl was wken
o the hospital, Bhadohi same day

s



where she was medically examined
by [r. {Mrs.) Santosh Kohali, W
6, at 1030 p.m. Dr. Kohali found
the girl in semi-conscious stare and
her general condition was poor, Her
pulse was 100 per minure. On
external examination the doctor
found hiymen compleiely torn and
there was laceration on all sides of
her vagina. There was fresh
bleeding, On internal examination
doctor noticed that a finger could
be casily inserted in her private
pare. The bloodstained discharge
was coming out, In the opinion of
the doctor the girl was subjected

o sex lli'l’ INLCrcourse,

4. Ac che wial che appellant
abjured his guilt and pleaded false
implication. He rook the plea that
he was o barber by profession and
since he had lefr shaving rhe beards
of

witnesses and, there being party-

the complainant and the
bandi in the village he was falsely
implicated on rhar accounc. The
appcllant, however, ted no evidence
in defence. The learned wial Judge
relying on the evidence of the
solitary wirness Ram {akhan, W
1, supported by the medical
evidence found the appeliant guilry
for the offence he was charged with
and, therclore, convicred and
sentenced him accordingly as said
On by the

above. appeal
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respondent, the Tigh conre ook a
different view ol the medical
evidence as well as the evidenee of
the sole cyewitness Ram Lakhan,
PW 1L The High Courr was of the
opinion cthar from rthe medical
evidence a reasonable pl'nlw;lhiiily
was made out that the givl was
subjected ro Indecent assaule and 1
was not proved beyond reasonable
doubr that she way subjecred 1o
sexual intercourse. With regard 1o
the sele eyewitness Ram Lakhan,
the High Court took che view that
he lodged the report in the police
station after more than 5 hours of
the incident and the explanation for
the delay in lodging the report was
tabricared and thae his evidence on
two  important facts was
contradicrory o the writeen report
lodged by him and thac his evidence
in cowrt 15 noc consisrent with the
first informarion repore and the
statement made under Sccaon 161
CrPC. On these premises the High
court reversed the findings and
recorded the order of acquitial of

ll]L’ l'ChP()ﬂ d(.’l'! {,

5. A the very outser we imav
mention that in an appeal under
Article 136 of the Coostitunion this
court does not nermaily reappraise
the evifence by iwself and go into
the question of credibilivy of the

wirnesses and the assessment of the
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evidence by the High court is
accepted by the Supreme Court as
of

appreciation of cvidence and

final unless, course, the
findiing is vitated by any crror of
law of procedure or found contrary
to the principles of naural jusrice,
errors of record and misreading of
the evidence, or where cthe
conclusions of the High court are
manifestly perverse and
unsupportable from the evidence on
record. In the instant case, on a
close scrutiny of the evidence on
record particularly the statement of
the cyewimess Ram Lakhan PW 1,
as well as the medical evidence and
the law relating ro rhe commission
of offence of rape, we are of the
definite view thar the High court
fell nto serious error in holding that
the victim of this case was subjected
only to an indecent assault and was
not subjected to sexual intercourse.
As regards the evidence of Ram
Lakhan, PW 1, and his reliabilicy,
the High Courr faulted in assessing
his evidence correctly as well as in
holding that he was not a reliable
resulting  into

WITness grave

injustice,

6. While appreciaring the
evidence of the lady docror smt
Kohali., PW 6 the High court
observed rthat the lady docror
conceded dhat the injuries found on

- State of U, Versus Babul Nath' =~

the private part of the girl could
also be caused by insoument Jike a
piece of glass and on thar basis ook
the view thac the opinion of the lady
docror that rape was commitred on
the girl becomes doubthul. This
finding is whotly unwarranted and
perverse for the reason that simply
because the injuries found on che
private part of the girl could also
be caused in scveral other ways
than the sexual assaulr on the victim
cannat lead ro the conclusion that
che injuries on her privare part
were not susiained by commission
of the rape bur by some other
instrument in the absence of any
material 1o supporc such o
conclusion. In the presens case
though the doctor deposed thar the
injurics could also be caused by
insteument like piece of glass bur
there were neither circumstances
nor any marerial to conclude or
even to suggest that the victim had
sustained the injuries by any piece
of glass. No picce of glass was
found at or near the place of
occurrence, On the contrary there
is positive and convincing evidence
showing that chere was sexual
assauft on the girt and the finding
that she was subjected to indecent

assault is absolutely incorrect,

7. In order to see whether there

¢ was sexual assaulc on the girl we

i 229"



may have look to the medical
evidence. Docror Sme Santesh
Kohli deposed that the vietim girl
wis brought o the hospital in a
semi-conscious state and her general
condition was poor. On external
examination of the girl the docror
found that the hymen was
complerely torn and there was
laceration on all sides of vagina. The
doctor noticed thar there was fresh
bleeding in her private part. On
internal examinarion the decior
found thac a finger could easily be
inserred in her private part and
bleodstained discharge was coming
Thus from the
evidence it 1s clear thar the girl was

our. medical
not enly subjected to an indecent
assault bur there was sexual activity
and the girl was subjected to sexual
assault, otherwise the docror would
not have found che hymen
completely torn, laceration on all
sides of the vagina and [resh
bleeding. There is yer another factor
which goes (o show that the girl was
subjccred o sexual intercourse.
According o the evidence of lady
doctor a finger could be easily
inserted nside her private part
which otherwise was not possible
in the case of a child aged 5 years
because according to the Medical
Jurispradence by Modi, 21sc Edn.,
p. 376, in a girl under 14 years of
age the vaginal orifice is usually so

smadl thar ic will hardly allow (he
passage of the licde finger through
her hymen. In dhe present case if°
the girl aged 5 years was not
£ g )
subjected to sexual intercourse the
finger could not have been casily
£
insereed in her private pare as
observed by the lady docror. The
High Court totally 1pnored this
aspecr of rhe martter also and on
wrong premises came o the
conclusion thar the victim wag
stibjected o indecent assault only.

8. It may here by noticed that
Scetion 379 of the [PC defines rape
and the Explanadon to Section 375
reads as follows -

“Explanation— Penerration
ts sufficient to constiruce the
sexual Infercourse necessary 1o
the offence of rape”

I'rom the Explanation reproduced
above it is distincdy clear that
ingredicnes which are essential for
proving a charge of rape are the
accomplishment of che act with
force and resistance. 1o constitute
ihe olfence or rape neither Section
375 of IPC nor the explanation
atrached thereto require thar there
should necessarily be complere
penetration of the penis inte the
private  part of rthe vicrim/
prosecutrix. In other words ro
constitute the offence of rape it is




not at all necessary that there should
be complete penctration of the male
organ with emission of scmen and
rupture of hymen. Even parsial or
slightest penetration of the male
organ within the labia majora or
the vulva or pudenda with or
without any emission of semen or
even an actempt at penetration into
the privace part of the victim would
be quite cnough for the purpose of
Sections 375 and 376 of IPC. Thac
being so it is quite possible to

commit legally the offence of rape
even without causing any injury to
the genils or leaving any seminal
stains. Bur in the present case
before us as noticed above there is
more than enough evidence
positively showing that there was
sexual activity on the vicim and she
was subjected ro sexual assault
without which she would not have
sustained injurics of the narure
found on her private part by the
doctor who examined her.

9. Now coming 1o the evidence
of the sole eyewitness Ram Lakhan

PW 1, we find that the observations
of High Court that he
fabricated the explanation for delay

the

in lodging the repors and that he is
not a reliable witness are not
correct. It may be pointed out that
the girl Nirmala Devi was torally 2

stranger for informant Ram Lakhan

- Stare of U Versws Babul Nuth

PYW 1 and the other persons who
actended on her when she was found
fving in semi-conscious state with
injuries on her private pare with
profuse bleeding. Ram Lakhan
deposed thac he, along with others
tOOk 111(.‘ glll 11[1({ I)l’ﬂ(:(‘,’(‘ld(‘(] (311 I'v()()l'
to the police stadon. They firse tricd
to trace out the identity of the gid
and
managed lor 2 Khatola {small cot)

her parentage and then
on which the girl could be raken o
the police station which was at a
distance of about 3-4 kms from the
place of accurrence. He stayed for
sometime near his village on the
expectation that some maore
villagers may also jein them for
taking the victim ro the police
station. Ram Lakhan categorically
stated that scores of persans arrived
and he has also given the names of

of

proceeded to the police station

some the persons. They
where he lodged & written report.
According to Ram Lakhan abour 5-
& hours were spent in all this before
reaching the police station. There
appears (o be 1o apparent rcason
for fabricating the explanation for
the delay in lodging the report
which was bound to occur in the
facts and circumstances stated

above.

10. The evidence of Ram Lakhan
has been held to be unrcliable as




the High Court found rhac his
stalcment was not censistent with
the report lodged by him and the
starement made to the police under
Section 161 CiPCL Bur strangely

encugh the High courr lost sight of

the fact that FIR or the written

report is nat substantive piece of

evidence bur it can be used only 1o
corroborate or contradict the maker
thercot. Ram Lakhan, PW 1, was
not confronted with the alteged
inconsistent statements contained in
Lis reporc or in his case diary
starement under Secrion 161 CrPC,
ver the High court relied on those
statements which is not permissible
under the law unless tnconsisrent
statements wers put ro the witness,
In (hese cireumstances the reasons
on the basis of which the High
court found Ram Lakhan as
unreliable witness could nor be
accepted as the High court made a
wrong, approach while appreciating
the evidence of Ram Lalkhan, Ram
Lakhan deposed that while he and
other persons were passing {rom
near the grove of Baleshwar Pachak
they heard the cries of the girl and,
therefore, they rushed to the place.
ook about 5-10 minutes to them
to reach at the place of occurrence
inside the grove and it appears that
during this period of 5-10 minutes
have

the  respondent  would

completed his sexual acrivity on the

2320

girl. According o the stacement of
Ram Lakhan when he reached ingo
the grove and near the place of
oocuarrence h(' sSaw th |‘CS|)()”(£C|‘”‘
running away from the place of
occurrence arranging his Dhot and
the girl was found in semi-conscious
condition in a pool of blood. This
statement of Ram  Lakhan s
correborated from rhe nedical
evidence rthat we have already
discussed in the carlier pare of this
judgment. Thus, the evidence of
Ramy Lakhan, PW 1, has o be
accepred as the same has been
corroborated by the medical
cvidence. Not only this but even
the other witness whe curned hostile
namely, Iokhan Ram, PW 2, has
also admirtred thar the girl was
found in a semi-conscious condition
and that he along with several
persons including the witness Ram
Lalkhan, PV 1, had taken the
unknown girl on a Khawla o the
police sration where Ram Lakhan
had lodged the written reporr. He
also stared that they had reached
the pelice station ar abour 8.30
p.m. In view of these facrs and
circumstances the High court fell
into a serious crrov in taking the
view that the explanation for the
delay in lodging the report was
tabricated or that the girl was not
subjected to sexual intercourse. The
cvidence of Ram Lakhan coupled

- State.of R Versus Babul Nath:;



with the medical evidence clearly
goes to establish rthat the
respondent was responsible for
sexual assault on the child Nirmala
aged about 5 years resulting into
serious Injuries on her private part
and, therefore, he was rightly
convicred and sentenced by the
learned trial Judge. The judgment
of the High court is based on
surmises and conjectures and irs
appreciation of the medical
evidence is absolutely faulty, The
acquitcal, particularly in crimes
against girl child encourage rhe

The

therefore, to be scasitive while

criminals. courts have,
dealing with such cases but the

High court in this case appears to

be far from being sensitive while
appreciating the material on the
record.

11. In  rthe facts and
circumstances narrated above the
appeal succeeds and is hereby
allowed. The judgment and order
of acquitral recorded by che High
court is set aside and the judgment
of the rrizl court holding the
respondent guilty for the offence
punishable under Section 376 and
imposing a sentence of 5 vears’
rigorous imprisonment is rescored.
The respondent shall be caken into
custody to serve the sentence. His

bail bond is herby cancelled.

{Also reported in 1994 (6) SCC 29)




Ranjit Hazarika Appellant
Versus
State of Assam Respondent

1. Through this appeal by special
leave, the appellant has called in
guestion his conviction and
sentence for the offence under
Section 376 1PC as recorded by the
trial court and upheld by the High

Court of Assam.

2. According o the prosecution
case, the prosecurrix, 2 young gi!‘l
of 14 years of age (according w the
medical evidence, rhe age was
clinicaly found to be berween 13 -
17 years) was subjected 1o rape by
the appellant on 18-5-1987. The
prosccutrix was  witnessing  a
performance along with her girl
friends at Dhanaising Chapori
which finished at about 3.30 a.m.
AS Shﬂ WaSs ICHVEHg FO{' hel' }1{_”]161
the appellant offered o walk with
ker to her house but on the way,
subjected her o sexual intercourse
without her consent and threatened
her not to inform anybody about
the occurrence. The prosecurrix,
after having been subjected to rape,
rushed to her house and informed
her parents abourt the occurrence.
The FIR was lodged at Teaok Police
Station. The investigation was taken

in hand. The PrOsecUrrix wis sent
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up for medical examinacion and
after completion of Investigation,
the appellant was tried for the

oftence under Sccrion 376 [1PC.

3. The prosccution, in support
of its case, examined apart from
the prosecutrix, her parencs, besides
the docror and the investigation
officer. The appellant, in his
statement under Section 313 CrPCC,

denied the prosceuton allegarions.

4. The prosecutrix has, in her
statement recorded ac che wial as
also her earlier statement recorded
under seation 164 CrPCL clearly
narrated the manner in which the
appellant forcibly performed sexual
intercourse wich her wichout her
consent on the roadside after wking
the prosccurrix forcibly in his arms
and removing her panties. Her
statement has remained virtually
unchallenged  in the  cross-
examinacion. The stacemenc of the
has been

prosecutrix amply

corroborated by her mocher and
her father, PW 2 and PW 3
respectively, who are the twao
persons (o whom the prosecutrix

immediately narrated the scory

Renjiv Hazarika Versus State of Assam



about the occurrence. Their
evidence was not challenged in che

cross-cxaminatton at all.

5. The argument of the learned
counsef for tie appellant char che
medical evidence belies thar
testimony of the prosecutrix and
her parents does not impress us.
The mere fact thae no injury was
found on the private parts of the
prosecutrix or her hymen was found
to be intact does nor belie the
statement of the prosccuirix as she
nowhere stated thar she bled per
vagina as a result of the penctracion
of the penis in her vagina. She was
subjected 1o sexual intercourse in
a standing posture and that iself
indicates the absence of any inquiry
on her private parts. lo constiture
the offence of rape, penetration
however slight, is sufficient. The
prosccutrix deposed about the
performance of sexual inrercourse
by the appellant and her statement
has remained unchallenged in the
cross-examination. Neither the non-
rupture of the hymen nor the
absence of injuries on her private
belies  the

parts,  thercfore,

restimony  of  the prosccutrix
particuiarly when we find chac in
the cross-examination of the
prosccutrix, nothing has been
brought our to doubr her veracity

of o suggest as to why she would

'._.Raﬁjix_Ham;f;_ikﬁ Versus Stiate of_)i;._v_a_m_f

falsely implicare che appellane and
put her own reputarion at stake.
The opinion of the doctor that no
rape appeared to have been
committed was based only on cthe
absence of rupture of the hymen
and injurics on the privace parts of
the prosecutrix. This opinion
cannot throw out an orherwise
cogent and crustworthy evidence of
the prosecuwrix. Besides, the
opinion of the doctor appears 1o
be based on “no reasons”.

6. The cvidence of the
prasccutrix in this case inspires
confidence. Noching has been
suggested by the defence as to why
she should not be believed or why
she would falsely implicare the
appellant. We are unable o agree
with the learned counsel for the
appellant thar in the absence of
corrohoration of the statement of
the prosecurrix by the medical
opinion, the convicrion of the
appellant is bad. The prosecutrix of
a sex offence is a victim of a ¢rime
and there is no requiremenc of law
which requires that her testimony

cannot  be  accepted  unless
corroborated.
7. Both the coures have

considered the evidence of the
prosecutrix and relied upon rthe
same. We see no reason to rake a

s



different view. Lven though no
corroboration of her restimony was
essential to record the conviction
of the appeliant, we find that in this
case there is sufficient corroboration
of the testimony available from the
evidence of her parents, PW 2 and

.

{Also reported in 1998 (8) SCC 635)

PN 3. The conviction and sentence
()F l’h(ﬂ llppﬂ“ﬁ[‘ll’ are \«VC” In(_'ri['(_'d
and have been recorded on a proper
appreciation of cevidence. This

appeal has no merits. Ie fails and is

dismissed.
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State of Tamilnadu

Suresh and Another

A young enceinte houscwife fell
from the top of a feur storeyed

building down on the pavement of |

a street at Madras during the odd
hours en the night of 9-G-1987 and
died in a trice with her skull and
the bones extensively broken into
pieces. Initially it was taken by the
neighbours and the police as a case
of suicide, bur eventually it became
a case of grucsome murder. Her
husband, a flourishing husinessman
at Madras (now Chennai} and his
brother (another businessman} and
two of their employees were put on
trial in the Sessions Court for
criminal conspiracy, rape and
murder. One of the culprits was
made an approver and he pave
of

prosccution case. The Sessions

evidence in  support the
Court acquitted the hushand of the
deceased bur convicted the other
two persons of murder and rape and

sentenced both of them to death.

2. A Division Bench of the High
Court of Madras heard
reference which was made under
Secrion 366 of the Code of criminal
Procedure on the sentence of death,

the

along with the appeals preferred by

Appellant;

. Respondent.

i the convicted persons as well as the
i appeal preferred by the State in
challenge of the acquicral. The

the

the

Bench confirmed
and

conviction and sentence passed by

division

acquirtal set  aside
the Sessions Court. Hence the

present appeals by special leave,

3. The first accused Ramesh
Kumar and his younger brother
Suresh Kumar (A-2) hail from
Rajasthan, and they have sercled
down in Madras. Cach of them
acquired business
cstablishments. Ramesh Kumar, the

scparate

eldest, had married Kamla Devj
{the deceascd) who was then only
19 and belonged 1o a less affluent
family in Rajasthan, about four
years before her death. Thereafter
the couple lived on the top tloor
apartment of a mulcistoreyed
building situated on Thulasinga
Mudali Street at Madras. The
second accused Suresh Kumar got
married to a girl from Rajasthan a
few monrths before the occurrence
but he did not bring his wife to
Madras from Rajasthan. He (oo
was residing with his elder brother

Ramesh Kumar on 4th floor of the




building. Kamla Devi {deceased)
had a little child (Sandeep) who was
only 4 years’ old when she died.

4, As the

accused expanded he started

business of first
entertaining a feeling thac il he had
married from a rich family he
would have get a handsome dowry.
This led to some estrangement
berween the spouses. The second
accused Suresh Kumar did not sec
eve to cye with Kamla Devi
{deceased) for cernain reasons of his
own, one among them alone has
come to the forefront in evidence
that he believed thar Kamla Devi
was injecting hatred in the mind
that A-2 was
becoming a habitual drunkard.

of his brother

5. In the above backdrop, the
synopsis of the prosecution case
having an ccric profile, can be
narrated as follows:

A couple of days prier to the
death of Kamla Devi her husband
Ramesh had  gone  abroad
(Singapore) in connection with his
business and before he left india
he and the other three culprics had
entered into a criminal conspiracy
to finish Kamla Devi off during his
absence. After he left, the second
accused informed the remaining
culprits that the best way to achieve
the target was to drop her down

938"

from the top foor of the building
sa thar it would appear w the rest
rh;u slw hzul

of rthe world

committed suicide.

6. On the midnight of 9-6-1987
when everybody clse was asleep the
three culprics (A-2 Suresh, A-3
Kuman Singh and PV 1 Bhoparam)
moved from the room on che 4k
Hoor where they were o sleep and
entered the room where the
deceased was sleeping wirth her litde
child Sandcep. They firse gagped
her mouth with a cloth but then
she woke up and instincrively
resisted che onslaughes of the
assailanis. Butshe was overpowered
and the third accused pressed her
neck and mouth on the direction
of the sccond who was holding her
in his grip while she was scruggling
to squirm out of the lethal grip. In
thar melec the bangles on her hand
broke down. PW 1 caught hold of
her legs and the second accused
sexually molested her in chat
condition. A-3 also ravished her on
being prompred by the second
accused. Though PW 1 was also
persuaded to do the same on her
he did nor do it as he found chat
she was unconscious. Then all the
three persons lifted her up and
brought her to the balcony and tried
to drop her down. But somehow
she regained consciousness then
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and gripped on the paraper [rieze
buc the assailants exerted greater
force in pushing her down and she
lost her grip and fell deep down
from such a height of the four-
storcyed building— she  died
instantancously.

7. The entire prosecution case
revalved on the solitary evidence of
the approver PW 1 Bloparam.
Learned trial Judge relied on his
cvidence wirh the aid of some
corroborative circumstances and
found A-2 Suresh and A-3 Kuman
singh guilty of rape and murder.

8. [t was difficult for the High
Court to act on the evidence of the
approver mainly for two distiner
reasons: {i) His version of the
occurrence  is  fraught  with
improbabilites and hence it did not
inspire confidence; (2} He being an
accomplice his ecvidence s
unworthy of credit even otherwise,
as it did not receive adequare
corroboration from any source.
Hence the conviction and sentence
were set aside by the High Court.

9. Learned counsel for the
appellant contended that the
Division Bench of the High Coust
did not make a pragmatic approach
to the evidence of PYW 1, and it

resulted in the improper rejection

" State of Taniilnadu Versiis Stresh.and Another . .

of the evidence of an eyewitness o
such a dastardly preperrated crime.
The counsel further contended thar
it strict adherence to the rule of
corroboration of the evidence of an
accomplice witness is inssisted, as
done by the High Coure in chis
Case, no RPP]’()VCI‘ L‘\fidchC W(JLI]d
stand scrutiny in any case and the
consequence would be miscarriage
of justice. Learned Judges expressed
a regretful note in the judgment by
way of an epilogue in the lollowing,
lines:

“We are really pained to note
that the prosecution was nor able
to bring home the persons really
involved in this crime. Even though
there is a lurking doubrt in our mind
as to rthe involvement of onc or
more of the accused in this crime,
they cannor be punished on such a
doubt, however strong it mighe be..,
Folllowing the high waditions of
criminal jurisprudence in our
country, we are not inclined to send
the accused ro the gallows on mere
suspicion, and on the evidence
stands uncorroboraced.”

have

10, We

evidence carcfully and considered

perused  the

the reasoning of the learned Judges,
but we are unable to pejsuade
ourselves to concur with the

judgment of the High Court.




11. IHow Kamla Devi would have
dicd can be inferred from the post-
mortem appearances noted by PW
22 D Cecila Cyril, (Additional
Professor in the Department of
Forensic Medicine of the Medical
College, Madras} who conducted
the autopsy on the dead body. the
docror found thar the deceased was
pregnant by 4 weeks. After listing
all the ante-mortem injuries in Ext.
P-41 (post-mortem certificate) the
doctor opined that her death mighe
have been on account of the head
injuries as well as asphyxia due to
smothering and compression of
neck. There arc enough data to
support the conclusion thar Kamla
Devi would have been smothered
by pressing her mouth and neck.
Injuries 1 to 7 are abrasions and
contusions and lacerations around
the lips. Injuries 17 to 24 are
similar injuries on the chin and
neck and also oo the lower part of
the nose. None of her teeth was
affected. From all the above features
we can unhesitatingly accept the
doctor’s opinion thar Kamla Devi
would have been subjected 1o
forceful smothering,

12. The skull of the dead body
had ecxtensive fractures and brain
matter was found protruding. There
were fractures on the sternum and
on the ribs. While giving evidence

th(ﬂ (;()Cl’()]' C()”L’l”'ri’d \Nill\ []]L‘
suggestion of the prosceution tha
“th(ﬂl't' WS \’L’l'y g()()d ChﬂnCC (]IV {ht‘
vicrim being,

the injuries due ro smothering and

alive after sustaining,

compression of neck when she
would have been ina condition of
shock. After smothering and
compression of neck she could have
for a few minutes

been alive

depending upon her power of

volition.™.

13. PW 1 Bhoparam nasrated the
evidence which preceded and
succeeded the occurrence and gave
a complete picture in vivid derail
of the occurrence. It would be
unnccessary to repeat his evidence
as it is consistent with  the
prosccution story summarised
above. PW 1 deposed that dhe
neighbours and relatives of the
deceased were informed of the
death of Kamla Devi and they all
arrived and her husband A-1 also
flew down from Singapore. He
further said that on the third day
he went o the house of his brother-
in-law (PW 0} and stayed there for
6 days and chen
Mahabalipuram ({a suburb of

went Lo

Madras) where he got a temporary
employment in the tea shop of PW
15. On 24-6-1987 he happened to
notice his phoro in a Tamil daily

and then he rushed back to PW 6%




house and made a shrift to him of

all what happened and with the help
of PW ¢ he surrendered to the
police.

14. The High Courr seems to
have accepted the contention of the
defence counsel that PW 1 would
have been in police custody from
10-6-1987 ll 25-6-1987 {when he
was  produced  belore  the
magistrate). The following reasons
were advanced by the High Court
for accepting the said defence
contention. The first is, as first
accused had offered money to PW
1 for carrying our the operation
PW 1]

remained in the house until che

would normally have

money was paid. {(PW 1 could not
have remained in the same house
as tension would have been
mounting up in his mind and it was
only natural that he would have
moved out of that jinxed house
instead of lingering on there as
money could have been collected
even ar a larer stage.) The second
is that PW |

remember the names of PW 67s

was unable to
employees, and if he had really
stayed in that house he could have
remembered those names. (This is
too fragile a reasoning as one may
or may not remember the names
of such employees particularly his
mind have been

would then

preoccupied with thoughts about

[I](.' h{)l'l'(‘l](i()llﬁ L'I’i mec¢ C()”—lljﬂil’rcd [):_\’
thenm.) The dhird s that he failed
Lo disclose the incidenr to PW 6
or w his employer PY 15, (It iy
too much to expect thar PN 1 would
have readily divalged it o anyone
else at the first instance because the
whole episode was perpetrated by
the culpries in seerecy.) The fourth
reason is that PYW | did not read
newspapers during the interregnum
and rhat indicates his absence in
the free world. {There is nothing
on record to show chat this
employee of A-1 was regular
newspaper reader, without which
such an inference is our of place.)

15. All the above reasons are
hence very tenuous grounds for
disbelieving the version of PW 1
that he had stayed with PW 6 and
PW 15, Tearned Judges of che High
Court should have appreciated his
testimony in the light of the
evidence of PW 6 and PW 15
against which nothing has been
pointed out cither by the High
court or before us as o why thosc
two witnesses should have perjured
in court about PW 1's sojourn with
them.

16. The High Court did not
believe the case of PW 1 that A-2
and A-3 would have sexually
ravished Kamla Devi. The sole
circumstance which the learned




Judges highlighted on that score is
the  absence  of semen  or
spermittozoa in the vaginal swab
coliccred from the dead body as the
resule [F laboratory analysis of che
swab showed. The High Court
scems to have overlooked the
following data available in the post-
mortem; report which is a very
telling circumstance regarding the
sexual molestation the victim would
have been subjecred ro:

“Bruising of tissues on right side
of vagina 2 x 1 x 1/2 enu; bruising
is reddish blue in colour, Bruising

over the anterior lip of the cervix.”

Dir Cecila Cyril (PW 22) had no
doubt thar the above features are
consistent with the victim offering
resistance against forcible sexual
intercourse. The doctor wirness
emphatically  repudiated  rthe
suggeston that such bruises could
have been caused in a fall. In view
of the above, the High courr wenr
wrong in negaaving the version of
PW 1 regarding sexual ravage
merely on the basis of non-
detection of semen or spermatozoa
in the vaginal swab. There could
be more than one explanadion for
absence of semen in the vaginal
swab. We have no deubr thar Kamla
Devi would have been made a

victim of a forcible sexual assault.

17. Oncee of the points which
dissauded the Fligh court from
believing the version of PW I s
the most abominable and despicable
act attributed ro A-2 vis-a-vis his
own sister-in-law. The High Coure
has stated thus on that aspect:

“Even if rthere was some reason
for A-2 to end che life of (he
deceased with a view 1o secure
peaceful life for his hrother,
certainly he would not have
resorted to the most inhuman
method of committing rape on his
own brother’s wife thar too, along
with two of his servanrs.”

18. lLearnced counsel for the
accused also repeared the same
reasoning before us in support of
his contention that such an act of
barbarity would be unthinkable and
counter to the social order for a
brather to do it on his sister-in-law.
We oo agree that if A-2 had done
those aces atcribuied ro him schen
it would have been woeful and
despicable of a human conduct.

19, We have considered the said
contention with the seriousness it
deserves. One thing is clear thar
semebody had done it on her
during that night. Whoever had
done those acrs during that nighr
i.e. by sexually molesting her and
then dragging her and throwing her
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living body down from the balcony,
the assatlant would have been
someone who was simmering with
unquenchable grudge towards her.
[t is extremely remote rhar a
burglar or a stranger rapist would
have gatecrashed into the house and
dene all those arrocities on that
helpless woman when the house was
oceupied by 3 adule male members.
Tt must be remembered in this
conrext that even rhe defence had
to suggestion that the deceased had
any enemy outside, [or, if she had
any such enemy that fact would not
have escaped from the knowledge
of her husband, if not of A-2 also.
If PW 1's version is true A-2 had
his own grudge towards the
deceased. T'he intensity of rthat
grudge was kaown only to himself
or perhaps the deceased also. I A-
2 had decided to kill his sister-in-
law in such a savage maoper by
thowing her from the balcony that
itselt would indicate the superlative
degree of gravity of his wrath
towards her. With such a mind
simmering with acerbity he would
as well have thoughr to subject her
ro excruciating mental pain by
devastating her womanhood in the
manner it was done on her, So the
degree of woclulness of the
onslaught is not enough o militate
against the horrendous nature of
the crime.

State. of Tamilnady Versus Suresh and Another

20, We are hence rotally unable
to agree with the view of the High
Court that che story narrared by
PW 1 lacked probability. Alter all
PW 1 is an accomplice and hence
his narracion would be

incriminating to him also.

21, The

accomplice 15, no

testimony  of an
doubr, 2
stigmatised evidence in criminal
proceedings. 1t is on account of the
inherent weakness which such
evidence is endowed with chat
Hlustration (&) to Section 114 of the
Evidence Acr suggests that it s
open to the court to presume that
the uncorroborated testimony of an
accomplice 1s unworthy of credit.
But the legislature had advisedly
refrained from including the satd
category of evidence within the
ambir of legal presumptions but
retained it only within the area of
factual presumptions by using the
expression  “the court  may
presume”. In order to make the
position clear the same enactment
has incorporated Section 133 saying
that ir is not iliegal to convicr a
uncorroborared

person on the

restimony of an accomplice. The
raison d'tre for such legislacive
marshalling is to cnable the court
ra have its freedom o act an the
evidence of an accomplice in

llppl'(]pl'iﬂt(.‘ ciases, even without
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corroboration if the court fecls tha
a particular accomplice evidence is
worthy of credence.

22. 'T'hus, the law is not that dhe
evidence of an accomplice deserves
outright rejection if there is no
corroboration. What s required is
to adopr great circumspection and
care. when dealing with the
evidence of an accomplice. Though
there is no legal necessity ro seck
corroboration of accomplice’s
evidence it is desirable thar the
court seeks reassuring
circumstances to satisty the judicial
conscicnce that the evidence is rrue.

23. A Bench of three Judges of

this Court in Dagda v State af

Meabarastira has laid down the legal
position afier making a survey of
the case-law by referring o
Ramestnoar v. State of Rajusthan and
a number of other decisions of chis
Courr as well as of English Cours.
Chandrachud,]. (as the learned
Chief Justice then was) has stated
for the three-Judge Bench as
follows: (SCC pp. 74-75, para 21)

ancithesis
Section 133 and
tlustration (#} of Section 114 of

“21. There is no

between

the Evidence Act, because the
illustration only says that the Court
‘may’ presume a certain stare of
affairs. Ic does nor seck o raise a

conclusive and  irrcebuaceabic

presumprion.

Reading the two wogether the
position which emerges s that
though an accomplice s a
competent witness and though a
conviction may lawfully rest upon
his uncorroborated testimony, yet
the Court is enritled to presume
and may indeed be justified in
presuming in the generzlicy of
cases thar no reliance can be phced
on the evidence of an accomplice
unless thar evidence is corroborated
in material particulars, by which is
mean rhar there has o be some
independent evidenee tending to
mertminate the particular accused
in the commission of the crime....
Al the same, it is necessary o
understand thar whar has hardened
into a rule of law is not thar the
convicrion is illegal il it proceeds
upon the uncorroborared testimony
of an accomplice bur thar the rule
of corroboration must be present
to the mind of the judge and that
corroboration may he dispensed
with only if the peculiar
circumstances of a case make
it safe 1o dispense with ic.”

24, This is not a case where
evidence of PW 1 is totally berefit
of any reassuring circumstance,
The occurrence as [eatured by PW
l‘ is supported by the following
clrcumstances:
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{/} Post-mortem appearances

noted by PW 22 Dr Cecila Cyril.

(2) Broken bangles found on the
floor of the room and on the
balcony.

{3) The admission of A-2 and A-
3 that they along with 'W | were
present in the same flat during that
night. {It is quite improbable that
any outsider would have made an
entry inco this aparrment during
that night and with or withour the
help of P\ 1 would have made all
those atrocious acts least distrubing
the sleep of her four yvear-old son
hubbling on the mother or the sleep

of A-2 and A-3))

{49) The statement by PW 6 that
on 24-6-1987 PW 1 told him of
this incident in which he involved
all the three culprits.

25. The scction envisages two

categorics ol  statements
witnesses which can be used for
corroboration.  First is  the
stacement made by @ witness to any
person “at or about the time when
the fact rook place”. The second is
the statement made by him to any
authority  legally  bound 1o
investigate the fact. We notice that
if the statement 1s made to an
authority competent to investigate

the fact such statement gains

. .Sm:tg.:qf_fnmifibmdu_ Versz 3

of

urcsb__éz'_ézd:flﬂé@fbgr AR

admissibilicy, no matter that ic was
made long after the incident. Bu
if the statement was made ro a non-
authority it loses its prebadve value
due ro lapse of rime. Then the
question s, within how much time
the statement should have been
g

contemporaneous

made
the
occurrence the statement has a

made it was

with

gl‘c.ltc]’ Vil]llC s res E_’,L'Slﬂ(f llnd th(‘ﬂ
g £

it is substanrive evidence. Buc it it
was made only after some interval
of time rthe statement loses ics
probative utility as res gestae, still
it is usable, though only for a lesser

Lsc,

27, What is meant by the
expression “ar or about the tume
when the facr took p]:lCc‘“? There
can be a narrow view that unless
such a starement was made soon

:-'lf[t‘l' I'I'Iﬁ occurrence it cannot be

used for corroboration. A broader
| view is that even if such starement
was made within a reasonable
proximity of rtime still such
statement be
corroborartion. The legistarure would

can used for
not have intended to limit the ume
factor o close proximity though a
leng distance of time would deprive
0[: F() r

corroboration purposes.

it its urility  even

28, We think that the expression
“at or abour the tme when the face

245



ook place” in Section 157 of the
Evidence Act should be understood
in the context according to the facts
and circumstances of each case.
The mere fact that chere was an
intervening period of a few days,
in a given case, may nor he
sulficient to exclude the statement
from the use envisaged in Secrion
157 of the Act. The rest 1o be
1id the
witness have the opportunicy io

adopted, cherefore, is chis

concoct or ro have been tutored?
in this context the observation of
Vivian Bose, J. In Rameshuwar v,

State of Rujasthan is apposite:

“There can be no hard and fast
rule about the “at or about” condidion
in Sccrion 157, Vhe main rest is
whether the statement was made as
early as can reasonably be expecied
in the cireumstances of che case
and betore there was opportunity
for  tutoring  or.......

{emphasis supplied)

29. Hence when PYW 1 disclosed
to his brocher-in-law (PW 6) on 24-
6-1987 about his version of rhe
GUCHUTTIenCe wo ]] ave not come
across anything to indicate thar PW
1 was eicher turored influenced by
anybody during the interregnum.
Looking at the statcment from that
perspective we are inchined to treat

it as a carroborarive picce of

evidence giving us a reasurrance
£ &8

regarding the truch off PW 17
cevidence in court so far as the
persons mvolved 1 the cpisade are

cancerned.

30, Sh Ranjir Kamar, learned
counsel for A-3, ook much pains
to impress us thae PN s version
thar they trekked along a comice
ro reach the deccased’s room, is
highly incredible as chey could
casily have walked chrough the

normal passage. PW 1 has an
¢
explanation for choosing (hay

circuitous route, Bur we are no
interested to know why they chose
a longer passage ro reach the
deceased’s room. Whar we know is
thar they reached her room during,
thar midnight hour.

31 The above discussion rakes us
ro rhe final conclusion thar the
High Court has seriously erred in
upserring the conviction entered by
the Sessions Court as against A-2
and A-3. The erroncous approach
has resubted in miscarriage of
justice by allowing che two
perpetrarors of a dastardly crime
comimitted against a helpless young
pregnant  housewite who  was
sleceping in her own aparrment
with her little baby slecping by her
side and during the absence of her
husband. We strongly feel thai the
error conumiteed by the High Court
must be undone by restoring the
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conviction passed against A-2 and
A-3, though we are not inclined, ar
this distance of time., to restore the
sentence of death passed by the rrial

court on those two accused.

32, In the resulr, we allow the
appeals and ser aside the judgment
of the High Court of Madras and
restore the conviction passed by
the trial court under Section 302
and 376 read with Secrion 34 of
the 1PC as against A-2 Suresh and

A-3 Kuman Singh, and we senience
them cach o undergo
imprisonment for life on the firs
count and rigorous imprisonment
for a period of 10 years on the
second counrt. Senrences of both
counts will run concurrently. We
direct the Sessions Judge, Madras
{now Chennai) te ke immediate
steps to put the aforesaid convicted
persans in jail for undergoing the

sentence.

{Also reporied in 1998 (2) 5CC 372)
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State of H.I. . Appellant;
Versus
Lekh Raj and Another : Respondents

2. T'he prosccutrix, a widow of
55 years of age was criminally
assaulred and subjected o forcibe
sexual Intercourse by rthe
respondents on 10-11-1993 near
her village Baadi in Gumanu Nalla,
District Mandi, Himachal Pradesh
when she was coming back o her
house afrer attending the marriage
of the daughrer of her husband’s
brother, The first informarion
report was submirted by her on the
next date against the respondents,
She was medically examined and
her torn salwar was senc for
chemical analysis. On medical
examination various injuries were
tound on her person. As the
prosecutrix was found habituated to
sexual intercourse, being an clderly
woman and mother of twe grown-
up children, no opinion was
possible about the last dare of sexual
act. However the doctor upon
cxamination of the injuries,
meationed in the medico-legal
certificate, was of the opinion that
the injuries reflected the signs of a
struggle. The wial court of Sessions
Judge, Mandi

respondenes  under  Sections

376(2){g) and 323 of the Indian

convicrted che

Penal Code and sentenced them o
undergo rigorous imprisonment for
five years and o pay a fine of Rs
5000 cach under Section 376 [PC
and  six  months”  rigorous
imprisonment under Sccdon 323
with a fine of Rs 500 cach. In
default of the payment of fine, rhe
appeliants were to undergo further
rigorous imprisonment specified in
the judgment. In the appeal filed
by the appeliants the High courr
vide order impugned in this appeal
set aside the order of Sessions Judge
and acquitted the respondents of
the charges framed againse them.
Alleging that the judgment of the
High Court was against law and
taces, the State has preferred this
acquiceal appeal...

5. We
opinion that the High Courc was

are, however, of the
not justified in holding chac the
prosccutrix had not been subjected
to forcible sexual intercourse or the
prosecution had failed to prove the
case against Respondent 1 also. To
hold that the prosecution had not
proved the case against the
respondent, beyond reasonable

St of ELP: Versus Lo Raj e dnother.



doubrt, the High Court mainly
relied upon the medical evidence
and finding that “no dead or alive
spermatozoa were scer. Absence of
such dead or mobile spermarozoa
either in the vagina or in the cervix
of the prosecutrix rules our the
possibility of the prosecutrix having
sexual

been to

intercourse on the date and time

subjected

alleged by the prosecution”. Such
a conclusion is not referable to any
evidence on record. No such
suggestion was put to the doctor
nor any medical authority referred
to in support of the conclusions
arrived at by the High Court. This
Court in Stare of Mabarashera v.
Chandraprakash Kewalehand Jain®
relying upon medical evidence
observed that “spermarozos can be
found i’ the woman is examined
within 12 hours after intercourse,
thereafter they may be found
berween 48 and 72 hours bur in
dead form”. if the prosccutrix
the
spermatozoa may not be found. In
thar case the Court after satistying

washes herself by then,

itself regarding rthe presence of
semen the clothes of rhe
prosecurrix held that “the absence

Ghn

of semen or spermatozoa in the
vaginal smear and slides, cannot
cast doubts on the creide worthiness
of the prosecurrix”.

FEviebee

his

6. Modi in Medical

{ Jurisprudince and Toxicology has
. noted ¢

of

“The

spermatozoa in the vagina alter

presence

intercourse has heen reporced
by Pollack (1943} from 30
minutes vo 17 days, and by
Morrison (1972) up to 9 days
in vagina and 12 days in the
certix, However, in the vagina
of a dead woman, they persist
for a Jonger period.”

It follows, cherefore, thar the
presence of spermarozoa, dead or
alive, would differ from person to
person and its positive presence
depends upon various
- circumstances. Otherwise also the
presence or absence of spermatozoa
1s ascertained for the purposes of
corroboration of the statement of
the prosecutrix. If the prosecutrix
is believed to be a truthful witness
in her deposition, no furcher
corroboration may be insisted.
Corroboration is admittedly only a

rule of prudence.

... The
which prevailed upon the High
i Court te pass the order of acquiteal
is that the sealing of salwar Fxhibic
P-1 was not properly established.

other circumstances




It is not denied thar the seized
salwar had stains of blood and
semen on it. The mere (act that
some different marks were noced
on the sealed packet was by iwself
no ground to discard the otherwise
reliable evidence of the prosccutrix.
The High Court appears to have
completely ignored the medical
evidence specifying the injuries on
the person of the prosccutrix which
proved and established the struggle
and resistance shown by her ar the
time of commission of the offence
of rape. The docror had noted the
following injuries on the person of
the prosccutiix.

4

‘1. There was a small abrasion
on right side of her forchead with
clorted blood.

2. There werce abrasions on
extensive surfaces on both legs and
left knees which were reddish-

brown in colour

3. There were multiple abrasions
on lareral surface of both thighs.

4. There

posterior surtace on left chigh.

was a Dbruise on

5. There was also bruise on left

buttock 47 x 37 in size.

6. Abrasion on left side of back

in lumbar region.
g

These injurics were sulficient
lend corroboracion to the testimony
of the prosccutrix particularly when
ne motive is areributed 1o her for
falsely involving Respondent 1 in
the commission of the crime. The
prosccurrix,  in o her o cross-
examination, had denied even che
suggestion  that  ithe  injurics
sustained by her were sustained
while curting grass in the jungle.
She had also denied thar she was a
Hiquor addict. The suggesiion
regarding the existence of a dispure
boetween Lekh Raj respondent and
her husband over che fishing ner
was alse not admited. She also
denied che suggestion rhat the
accused persons had neither met
her nor commirted any rape. The
SUYZESLIONS N Cross-examimation
were not rightly belicved by the
courts below to hold the existence
of a mortive for falsely implicating
the respondents. During the
arguments before us also the learned
counsel for the appellant could net
point out to the existence of any
morive for falsely implicating the
respondents. The fact that the
prosecutrix was a widow of about
55 years of age having two grown-
up children was a crcumstance o
be raken note of for the purposes
of satisfying the Court that there
was no Interior motive ol roping
the accused in the commission of

crime...
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9. One of the discrepancies
which persuaded the High Courr
to disbelieve the prosecution
evidence is the alleged shifting of
the place of occurrence from the
main road to 20 feet away from it.
The prosecurrix has categorically
stated rhat she was dragged from
the road down the path which was
about 20 feer away from the road
and raped chere. The discrepancy
or contradiction painted out is that
in the FIR which was submitted in
writing and was in the English
iang_uagc, the place of occurrence
was menrioned as road. Such
mention was based upon recording
of the complaint by Shri S.P,
Parmar, Advocare, after hearing the
narration of the prosecutrix whom
he found at thar time to be scared,
nervous and hesitant. Such a
discrepancy cannot be held to be a
major discrepancy amounting to
contradiction under the
circumstances of this case. It is not
disputed thar the statement of the
prosecuirix under Section 167 was
recorded immediately and in rhac
statement she had not alleged o
have stated thac the cccurrence had
taken place on the road and not
away from the road. She was
categoric in stating that the accused
persons grappled wicth her on the
path and took her down ar a
distance of abour 20 feer where
they commirted the crime. It is

“State of H.I Vers

alleged that such a discrepancy was
faral inasmuch as the road was
and had rthe
occurrence taken place there, a

motarable one
number of witness could have seen
the occurrence. The argument is
withour any substance inasmuch as
it has come in evidence that the
road was not a thoroughfare and
only one or two vehicles used o
ply on it

10, "The High Court appears to
have adopted a technical approach
in disposing of the appeal filed by
the respondents...

The criminal trial cannot be-
equated with a mock scene from a
stunt film. The legal trial is
conducred to ascertain the guilt or
innocence of the accused arraigned.
In arriving ac a conclusion about
the truth, the courts are required
to adopt a rational approach and
judge the evidence by its intrinsic
worth and the animus of the
witnesses. 'The hypertechnicalities
or figment of imagination should
not be allowed to divest the court
of its responsibility of sifting and
weighing the evidence to arrive at
the conclusion regarding che
existence or otherwise of a
particular circumstance keeping in

view the peculiar facts of each case,




the social position of the victim and
the accused, the larger inrerests of
the society particularly the law and
order problem and degrading values
of life inherent in the prevalent
system. The realitics of life have ro

be kepr in mind while appreciating”

the evidence for arriving at the
truth. The courts are not obliged
to make efforts either to give
faticude to the prosccution or
looscly construe the law in favour
of rhe accused. The traditional
dogmatic hypertechnical approach
has to be replaced by a rational
realistic and genuine approach for
adminiscering justice in a criminal
rrial. Criminal  jurisprudence
cannot be considered to be a
utopian thought but have to be
considered as parr and parcel of the
human civilization and the realities
of life. The courts cannot ignorc
the erosion in values of life which
are a common feature of the
present system. Such erosions
cannot be given a bonus in favour
ol those who are guilty of polluring

sociery and mankind.

11. The learned Additional
Sessions Judge has nored the
following facts to find the accused
guilty of the commission of crime;

“{(i) According o the
prosecutrix both the accused
persons had grappled with her

i

)

and she was made o Jie down

on the ecarth and in that
process she sustained injuries
on her body and these injuries
were noticed at the time of her
examination by DPW I
Dir. Maulshri Lara as stared
above,  which  are also
described in the medico-legal
certificare Lix.  PA  and
synchronise with the dme of
alleged incident. The possibiliry
of sustaining these injurics in
the agricultural operations is of
no use when there is direcc
evidence to show thar these
injuries have been sustained by
her in a particular way, as
stated by her when examined
in the court and she was alsa
subjected to a lengthy cross-
examination by the accused

ptﬁ I'SONs.

(it) At the time of contacting
her advocate, Shri 8.P Parmar,
PW 11, she was scared and
hesitant, ’

(iii) The place of the alleged
incident was pointed our 20-
feet down the road, by her w
the investigating officer on the
basis of which the site plan Ex.
PG was prepared.

(iv) The prosecutrix is a

widow. She was living with her




son. The alleged incident took
place on 10-11-1993 in the
She

complaint on 11-11-1993 and

evening. lodged the
on the same date, presented it
before the Superintendent of
Police, Mandi and thereafrer
the case was registered on the
samce day, Le., on 11-11-1993

In Police Szation Sadar, Mandi

{v) She did not consent to
sexual act, but complained
against 1t to the pelice as
aforesaid and also restified it
on oath. Since the case falls
under Section 376{2)(g) of the
Code,
presumption as required under
Scction 114-A of the Evidence

Penal thus  the

Act has to be drawn against the
accused person.

(vi) On 12-11-1993 the
Ex. P-1 of

Pl‘()SCCUU'iX was EEll((il'] into

salwar the

possession. fr was torn and

{Also reported in 2000 (1) SCC 247)

there were sonie stains over it
e was sealed in the prescnce
of S/Shri Babu Ram

Padam  Singh  with

and
seal
impression "M, This act has
not been dispured by the
accused persons. [t was sent for
examination to the Forensic
Sciences Laboratory, Shimia,
and on i examination report
Fx. PH was received which
showed presence of human
blood and semen. Further, with
reference to this, it is to be
noticed thar she was a2 widow.”

We agree with the conclusion

arrived at by the learned Sessions

Judge on proper appreciation of

evidence so far as Respondent | is

concerned. We have also critically

analysed the statcment of the

witnesses and have come to the

conclusion that the prosecution has

proved its case against RESPO]]dCIlt

1 beyond all reasonable doubts.

114
oo




State of H.P.

Appellany;

Versus

Mango Ram

This appeal has been filed by the
State of Himachal Pradesh against
the acquittal of the accused for the
offence under Section 376 [PC.
The respondent-accused was tried
by the Court of Sessions judge.
Chamba Division of Himachal
Pradesh alleging thar he commiteed
rape of a gitl aged 13 years.

2. The prosecution case is that
the prosecutrix was the eldest
daughter of Jagia Ram. Jagia Ram
is a small agriculturist residing with
his wife Smt Pinji and children in
a village by the name of Kuched.
He is a nadve of neighbouring
Village Bhadhad. The accused is his

brother-in-law being the brother of |

his wife, Smr Pinji. the accused was
aged about 17 years and was a
studenc of V1lith standard during
the relevant time. On 17-1-1993,
St Pinii asked her daughter o go
to Village Bhadhad and get the
plough kept in the house of Jagia
Ram. The prosccutrix left for
Bhadhad at about 6.00 p.m. on 17-
4-1993. The

accompanied the prosecucrix. When

accused also

she entered her father’s house at
Bhadhad to ger the plough, the

Respondent

accused followed her and when she
reached the cowshed, she was
caught by the accused from behind.
The prosccutrix tried 1o exiricate
herself from him bur she was
overpowered by the accused and
was made o lic on the floor of the
cowshed. The accused then untied
the know of her salwar and lift (5/¢)
it down and chereafter, committed
sexual act. There was bleeding [rom
her private parts. The prosecutriy
rerurned home immediately and told
her farher Jagia Ram about the
incident. Jagia Ram wenr to PW
4, Shri Devi Chand, Pradhan of
the Gram Panchyar of the area who,
in turn, advised to lodge a
complaine to the police. Jagia Ram
reported the martrer to the police.
As the prosecutrix was having a
severe pain and uncomiforr (sic), she
did not accompany her father o the
police station.

3. The police registered the case
and investigation was commenced.
The prosecutrix was subjected to
medical cxamination by PW 2 Dr
Veena Sehgal. The accused was

arrested and PW 1

examined

Dr Hemant

Sharma him. Police
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visited the place of oceurrence and
recovered a bloodstained piece of
cloth. 'I'be salwar and kameez worn
by the prosecutrix at the time of
the occurrence were also recovered.
In the course of investigation, the
police collected a family hiscory
book which indicated the age of the
prosecucrix and the accused.

4. The piece of cloth recovered
from che place of occurrence and
the kameez worn by the prosecurrix
were tound to be stained widh bload
and on scrological test found to
have blood of A +ve group. Even
though. there  were  some
bloodstains on the salwar, the
grouping could not be made. The
undergarments worn by the accused
during the relevant time were also
recovered and subjected to chemical
examination and they neicher

contained blood nor spermartozoa.

5. The prosecutrix was medically
examined by PW 2 Dr Veena
Sehgal. She observed as under :

w

She was a girl of average build,
conscious, well oriented in
place and cime. Heighe 47
10%27, weight 31 kg breascs
and papillac were elevated as
small mounds and there was
(_)F

diamerer. Axillary hair were not

enlargement areolae’s

developed. Pubic hair were not

developed. She was referred (o
dentist for examining her
denral age. There were no
ﬂiill‘l\'ﬁ ()(: \’i()lt'l](:{': aver r}‘EL'
breasts, nipples, cheeks and
I_ipx. No marks of violence
were seen on rhe exrernal
senitals, perineum, abdomen,
chest, back, limbs, neck and
fact. Menarche

notr  vet

atrtained.
Perineal examination

T'here were no marks of injary
over vulva. Hymen found inracr
with a small laceration at &
' o'clock position. Clotred blood
was scen at vaginal orifice,
which admiveed tip of the finger
with grear difficulty.”

6. On the basis of the above
examinaton, PW 2 Dr. Veena

: Sehgal (_)pincd as under :
g

“From the above, 1t

difficult

Was

to  say  whether
intercourse had taken place or
not. Vaginal swab slide was
prepared and got examined
microscopically in the Diswict
Hospiral Chamba under which
no dead or alive sperms were
seen. Her blood group was
Axve. She was also referred for
to determine  her

X-ray
radiological age.”




Sdeddid ¥

7. PV 2 Dr Veena Schgal was
of the view that the age of the
prosecutrix at the time of the
examination would have been 13
years  or PW 3
Dr. Lokender Badotra, a Senior
Medical Officer (Dental) opined

that the prosecutrix was about 13

14 years.

years of age and issued a certificace.
PW 13, Medical Officer-cum-
Radiologist, X-ray
examination of the prosecutrix,
that age of rthe

based on
stared the
prosecutrix must be within 14 to
16 years.

witnesses

8. Fourteen were

examined on the side of the
prosccuden. The prosecutrix was
examined as W 5 and her father
Jagia Ram was examined as PW 7.
Both of them firmly supported the
prosccution. The other items of
medical

evidence include the

evidence.

9. The Sessions Court acquitted
the accused on the ground thar the
ingredicnts of the offence of rape
had nor been cstablished and chere
was no penctration as alleged by the
prosecution. The learned Sessions
Judge was of the view that the
prosecutrix must have been above
the age of 16 years and the evidence
as a whole indicated that there was
a consent on the part of the

prosecutrix to have the sexual act.

'
i

The learned Single Judge belore
whom the appeal was filed by the
State did not interfere with the
findings of the learned Scssions
Judge by holding that the view taken
by the rrial court was not cither
perverse or grossly wrong. The
learned Single Judge also observed
that the medical evidence did not
positively point out the commission
of the atleged offence on che
prosecutrix.

10. The above findings are
challenged before this Court, We
heard the counsel for the appeliant
and also Mr. U.U., Lalit for the
accused who was appointed as
amicus curize. The counsel for the
appellant conrended that the
findings entered by the learned
Sessions  Judge which  were
confirmed by the icarned Single
Judge are unsustainable and that
there was ample evidence to show
thar the accused had commirted the
offence of rape. It was contended
that the prosccutrix was below the
age of 16 years and there was no
consent an her part for any sexual
act and she was physically
overpowered by the accused and
medical evidence clearly indicated
that she was ravished by the
accused. Whereas the counsel for
the respondent-accused contended

that the absence of spermartozoa




either on the clothes worn by the
prosecutrix or on the undergarment
of the accused which were
subjected o chemical examination
clearly showed that the accused had
not commitced any sexual act. The
counsel for the respondent-accused
had not committed any sexual act,
The counsel for the respondenc-
accused submitted thar this is a
false case filed against the accused
to get at his property,

11, We carefully considered the
rival contentions and also pursued
the records and the impugned
judgments. The verdict of not guilty
has been enrered by the learned
Sessions Judge mainly based on two
grounds that the prosecurrix was
aged above sixteen vears and if ac
all there was any sexual act, it must
have been with her consent. Both
these findings are erroneous and
incorrect.

12. As regards the age of the
prosecutrix, there 1s evidence of
PW 2 Dr Veena Sehgal who
examined the prosecurrix and afrer
taking note of the physical fearures
stated that the prosecucrix must be
of the age between 13 wo 14 years.
PY 3 Dr Lokender Badotra, who
examined che prosecutrix also
supported this version. This view

is more sirengthened by the family
history which showed that she was

born in the year 1979, Therctore,
the ﬁnding ol the learned Sesstons

¢ Judge that the prosecutrix was

above the age of sixteen is based

on faulty  reasons  and s

Llll.\'llp P() lTL‘d by CVi dCl‘l cel

13. Even if it 1s assumed that
the prosecutrix was above 16 years,
the reasons attributed by the
learned Sessions Judge to prove that
she had given consent for the sexual
act arc not true. According to the
prosccutrix, she resisted the
accused by scracching him with her
nails bur as no nail marks were
found on the body of the accused,
the learned Sessions Judge was of
the view that for this reason, it is
to be assumed cthar there was
consent on the part of the
prosecutrix. The accused was
examined on 20-4-1993. As the
incident occurred on 17-4-1993,
even if there were any marks of
violence on the bady of the accused,
the same wouid have been
obliterated and were not so
prominent so as o be noticed by
the Medical Officer who examined
him. Therctore, the absence of nail
marks or minor injuries on the
bady of the accused is of not much
significance. From the oral evidence
of the prosecutrix (PW 5) it is
proved that the accused caught her

from behind and he lifted her and




pushed her down and despite her
attemipt to cover herselt’ with che
salwar, the accused pulled it down,
She also stared that the accused
gageged her mourh when she
attempted 1o ery aloud. The
subscquent  conduce  of  the
prosecutrin also shows char she was
very much resistant o the sexuzl
onslawght on her. She came o her
father immediately and rold che
entire ncident as to how she was
ravished by the accused. The
evidence as a whole indicares chat
there was resistance by the
prosccurrix and chere was no
voluntary participation by her for
the sexual act. Submission of the
bedy under the fear of terror
cannot be construed as a conseneed
sexual act, Consene for the purpose
of Scction 375 requires voluntary
participation not only after rhe
exercise of intelligence based on the
knowledge of the significance and
moral quality of the ace but after
having fully exercised the choice
between resistance assent. Wherther
there was consent or nor, is to be
ascertained only on a careful srudy
of all relevant circumstances. From
the evidence on record, it cannor
be said that the prosecutrix had
given consent and thereafrer the
turned round and acted against the
interest of the accused. There is
clear credible evidence that she

._5.258.:::-_ AT

reststed the onslaughe and made all
possible elTorts o prevent the
accused from commiuing rape on
her. Therctore, the finding encered
by the learned Sessions Judge tha
there was consent on the part of

the prosecurrix is withoue any basis,

14, The learned counsel for the
accused argued that there were no
marks of violence over the breases,
nipples, or checks and lips or orher
external genitals of the prosceurriy
and that she hersell had not deposed
anything about the extenc of
penetration and rhis would indicate
that there was no commission of
the offence. Tt was argued thar the
absence of spermatozoa on the
clothes worn by the prosecucrix and
rthe accused also indicared rthat there
was ne sexual act and ar the most
this would have been only an
attempt to eutrage the modesty of
the girl. We are nor inclined to
accept this contention.

15. The medical certilicate
issued by PW 2 Dr Veena Scheal
clearly indicates that chere was
laceration of the hymen ar 6 o'clock
position and clotting of blood was
scen at the vaginal orifice. This item
of medical evidence is to be
appreciated in the background of
the oral evidence given by PW 5
the prosecutrix. She deposed that
the accused lifred (s70) down her
szea HPVers;;s R




salwar and had sexual act with her.
Tt is not known whether these
clothes were washed before they
were  subjected to chemical
cxamination. A piece of cloth
which was recaverad from the place
of the occurrence and the wearing
apparel worn by the prosceurrix
were stained with bleod. The
learned Session Judge made a casual
observation thar these bloodstains
might have been caused duc 1o the
menstruation of rhe prosecutrix.
P 2 D Veena Sehgal staved thac
she had no history of menstruarion
and there was no suggestion also
on the part of the accused as to
whether the prosccutrix sustained
injury on account of any ocher
violent act. The evidence of PW 2
Dr. Veena Sehgal on these facts is
nat seen challenged In the cross-
examination.

16. In view of the evidence of
the prosecurrix (PW 5), which is
corroborated by medical evidence
and other items of evidence and in
the absence of any consent on the
part of the prosecurix, ivis clearly
established that the accused had
committed rape on the prosecutrix
and Is liable fer the offence
punishable under Section 376 1PC.
The finding given by the learned
Sessions Judge is not based on
preper appreciation of evidence
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and, theretore, unreasonable and we
are ol the view thar the Sessions
Court deale wich dhe case so lightly.
The offence ol rape being a serious
one, the case should have received
carclul auention and the fearned
Sessions judge and che learned
Single Judge should have shown
ereater sensitivity o these type of
cases. The evidence should Thave
been appreciated on broader
probubilities and not 0 be cairied
away by insignificant

coneradictions.

17. In view of the {oregoing
conclusion, we reverse the findings
of the fearned Sessions Judge wlhich

were confirmed by learned Singic

Judge and find thar the accused s

guilty of the offence punishable
under Section 376 1PC. As regards
the senrence, we rake a lement view
for the reason chat the prosccutrix
and the accused are related. They
were both teenagers with an
prosecutrix and the accused are
related. They were borh teenagers
with an age difterence of about 2-3
years. Both were immarture and
voung,. Evidence indicates no marks
of violence at all on any part of the
body of the prosecutrix. The
incident happened in 1993, After
the acquirral by the passage of dme,
the members of the two families
must have buried the hatcher, if

sy




any, arisen on account of chis

incident, ‘The learned counsel for the |

respondenc argued that a further
order for custodial senrence at this
distance of time may cause rupture
to social harmony in the village life
and may only help to rekindle the
flames of anger which have been
smouldering for so long berween

i
H
H
i
i
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{Also reported in 2000 (7) SCC 224)

near refatives. Having repard 1o all
these matters, we hold chat (he
sentence already undergone by rhe
accused would be sufficient (o meer
the ends of justice, and we do
accerdingly.

18. The appeal is accordingly
disposed of.




4
Sentence






A‘f‘tcr the trial the sentence is extremely important, Tois crucial chat
adequate sentence is given considering the grave nacure of the crme.
It has te be borne in mind that no punishment can compensare the loss
the child or the waman has sulfered. Tt would be an added insule alter the
entire ordeal the accused gets a minimal sentence.

Tt has been held by the Court in many judgements that as a matter ol
practice, the sentence should not be lower than chat prescribed in the
penal code. There have to be extremely special reasons assigned for granting
a lesser sentence and these reasons have to be recorded.

In Ram Kishan Aggarwala versus State of Orissa™, the cowrt held tha
even though the accused was 70 years of age. the beastliness of the crime
did not warrant reduction of sentcnce.

In Swte of AL versus Bodem Sundara Rao™, the Court held:

“In recent years, we have noticed chat crime against women are on the
rise. These crimes are an aflront to the human dignity of the socicry.
Impositian of grossly inadequate sentence and particularly against the
mandaze of the legislature not only is an injustice o the victim of the
crime in particular and che society as a whole in general bur also ar tmes
encourages a criminal. The courts have an obligation while awarding
punishment to impose appropriate punishment so as to respond 1o the
society’s cry for justice against such criminals. Public abhorrence of the
crime nceds a reflection through the cowrt’s verdict in the measure of
punishment. The courts must not only keep in view the rights of the
criminal but alse the rights of the victim of crime and the sociery at large
while considering imposition of the appropriate punishment. The heinous
crime of committing rape on a helpless 13/14 year old girl shakes our
judicial conscience. The offence was inhumane, There are no extenuaring
or mitigating circumstances available on the record wheh may justify
imposition of sentence less than the minimum prescribed by the legislature
under section 376(1) of the Act. ‘

10.We thus consider it our plain duty to enhance the sentence in this
case.”

S197G (23 SCU 177
51095 (6) SCC 230




in State of Mabarashtra versus Rajendra Jawanmal Gandhi ™. the
Supreme Court enhanced the sentence reversing the order of the High
Court which had granted sentence under section 354 and ordered
imprisonment of the accused only for 33 days. The Supreme Court held
that in a case of attempr to rape, the courts have to sencence under
section 376 read with 511 even though a charge has not been framed for
the attempt to rape. It would be incorrect to convier under section 354,
IPC which has a minimal punishment.

In State of Karnataka versus Krishnappa™ . the Court held thar courts
should impose sentence commensurate with the gravity of the offence
having regard ro the facts and circumstances of the case. There should be
no leniency showed on persons committing heirous crime of rape on
innocent helpless girls. The status of accused is irrelevane for the sentence.
The sentence should serve as a deterrent for commission of like offences
by others. The courr also held that courts have an obligation to respece
the legistative mandate in the macter of awarding of sentence and recourse
to the proviso must be had only for special and adequate reasons.

In Kamal Kishore versus State of H.P, the court held that the fact
that the offence had taken place 10 years ago, and that the accused might
have by then sertled in life did not amount to adequare and special reasons.
The court held that there is no discretion to award a lesser sentence and
also that there cannot be either adequate or special reasons for a lesser
sentence. The reasons should be both adequate and special.

in Kommarajula Narasaiah versus State of AP ™, the courr held thac
the reasons for reducing sentence or awarding a lesser sentence cannot be
arbicrary.

The principle was also upheld in Stace of AP versus Polamala Raju
@Rajarae™ . The Courr, while disapproving the manner in which High
Courr reduced the sentence, laid down guidelines for awarding the
senrence,

MO1997 (8) SCC 386
2000 (4) SCC 75

2000 (4} SCC 502
2000 (9) SCC 756
2000 (7)

SCC 75

. Harpal Singh and Awosher Vorus Suite of Hiniachal Pradesh
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State of A.P.

Appellant;;

Versus

Bodem Sundara Rao ..

1. Leave granted.

2. On 16-12-198%  the
prosecutrix, PW 2, aged between
13-14 years was sexually assauleed
by rthe respondent in broad
daylighr. The prosecurriz was
carrying lunch for her father, who
was grazing cactle in the fields when
the respondent all of a sudden
cauglit hold of her and commiced
rape  on  her despire  her
protestations. The prosceutrix, wheo
was biceding profusely from her
vagina on account of the rape
committed by the respondent,
reported the incident to her facher,
PW 3 and to her mother PW 4.
The first information repore was
thereafter lodged with the police.
The prosecutrix was medically
examined and the docror vpined
that she had been subjecred ro
rape. The respondent was sene up
for trial under Section 376 Indian
Penal Code. The trial court atter
appraising the ¢vidence on the
record found the respondent guiity
of an offence under Section 376
Indian Penal Code vide judgment
dated 7-2-1986 and imposed the

sentence Of- ren }’C’d].'S! l'ig()l'()LlS

Respondent.

imprisonment  on him. The
respondent filed an appeal in the
High Court against his conviction
and sentence. While maintaining the
conviction of the respondent, rhe

14

sentence to a period ol four years,

igh Court, however, reduced the

While reducing the sentence the

Fligh Courr merely observed

10

years, which is on a higher

"However, senrence of
side, is reduced o 4 years” R

with this modificarion (he

appeal is dismissed.”

3. The Stare has come in appeal
by spectal leave complaining abow
the inadequacy of cthe sentence
imposed upon the respondent by
the High Court. [t is subniirred that
the High Courr was nor as all
justificd in reducing the sentence
and that in any even should nor
have imposed any senrence less
than the prescribed minimum
under Section 376(1) 1PC (Atter
amendement) Despite service the
respondent chose not to appear
before us. We, therefore, directed
the appointment of an amicus curiae

w rep resent him.



have heard learnced

A, We

cotmnsel for dhe pareics,

5. Prom the evidence of che
prosecueriy and her parenis and the
medical  evidence, iv o stands
cstablished thar the respondent
committed rape on her and
therctore his conviction is well
recorded, Prosccurion evidence s
cogent, reftable and wusoworchy.

W,

canviction of the respondent as

therefore, find that the
recarded by the trial court and
upheld by the High Coures i well

foumded.

6. After s amendment, Secton
376(1) provides for a minimum
senience of seven vans which may
cxtend o e o for a wrm which
niay extend o 10 vears beskdes tine
for the olfence of rape, The proviso
to sub-seetion{ 1) fays thae the courr
may for adequare and spedial
reasons 1o be recorded in the
judgrent, mmpose a
impisonment for a term ol less

[i]:m SUVCHT Vears.

ToOReoping i view the nature ot

thee offence and che helpless

condian In which the prosecutris

a4 voung gie ol B3 VeIrs wwas

placed. the thigh Court was clearly
in crror in reducing the senrence
imposed spon the respondent and

rhar too withour assigning any
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sentence of

reasons, nuch less spectal and
adeguinte rasons. The Thigh Cour
HP})C;]E'.\ 48] hil\'i' L)\'K'I"()(J1§l'(| ll]L'
mandate of the Legislature as
reflected tn Section 376010 1PC

have

9. In

noticed thar arime against women

Fecent o yeirs we
are on the rise. These orimes are
an affrone o the human dignity of
the sociery. fmposition of grossly
inadeguate sentence and parncufary
the ol the

againse mandate

Legislature not ondy s an injustice
ro the victim of dhe crime in
particular and rhe society as a whole
in general bur also ac dwmes
encourages a crimnal. The courts
have an obligadon while awarding
l‘mnishmcm L tmpose appropriate
punisiient so as o espond w the
sociery's cry for juseice against such
criminals. Public abhorrence of the
crime needs a reflection chrougl the
courts verdict in the measure of
punishment. The courts must not
only keep in view the righes ol the
criminal bur also the |'igi1l’s of the
victim of arime and dhe socieey w
large while considering impasition
of the approprinte punishment. The
heinous crime ol commnuicing rape
on a helpless 13714 year old gird
shakes our judicial conscience. The
offence was inhumane. There are
Ho CoXlenualifg Or mirigating
circumsrances available an the
record  which

may  justify

© State of AP Versus Bodem Sundara Rao



imposition of sentence fess than (he

mintruim presceibed by dhe
Legislature under Section 376(1) of

the Act.

10. We, thus, consider it our
plain duty to enhance the senrence
in this case. Keeping in view rhe
facts and circumstances of this case
and the submissions made by the
curiae, while

learned amicus

maintaining the conviction of the

(Also reporfed in 1995 (6) SCC 230)

: Smt_e'of/i_.]_? Versuy f_i’pdeﬁz Sundara-Raa_ -

respondeni for the offence under
Section 376, Indian Penal Code,
we enhance the sentence of 4 yeary”
Rl 1o 7 years’ R, which is che
mininuim prcscrihcd sentence
under the secrion, for we find no
adequate or special reasons o
impaose a sentence less than che
preseribed minimum. Necessary
warrants shall be issued o take che
respondent into custody to undergo
the remaining period ol senrence.
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State of Maharashtra

Appellang

Versis

Rajendra Jawanmal Gandhi

2, Rajendra Jawanmal Gandhi
(the accused) was convicted by the
Sessions Judge, Satara for offences
under Scccion 376 Indian Penal
Code (HC) and Section 57 of the
Bombay Children Act, 1948 for

having committed rape on a girl of

eight vears of age and sentenced o
undergo rigorous imprisonment for
7 years and o pay fine of Rs. 3000
and 1 defaube of payiment of fine
o undergo migorous Imprisonment
for six months and for offence
under Scction 37 o! the Bombay
Children Act, he was sentenced o
undergo rigorous imprisonment foor
one year aird fine of Rso 500 and
in defaule  thereof rigorous
imprisomment for one month. The
substantive senrences were ordered
to run concurrenty. The Marun car
in which rhe offence of rape was
committed was ordered 1o be
forfeiied and confiscated by the
State. The accused appealed o the
against his
A
Divisien Bench ol the High coure
by judgment dared 4-10-1994
upheld the convicrion of the

!
‘L_’!Il codrt

and

Bombay Hi

Conviction SCHLCIICE,

accused under Section 37 of the
Bombay Children Act and upser the

conviction under Section 376 1PC
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and instead convicted him for an
olfence under Section 354 1PC and
sentenced him o sufter rigorous
imprisonment which he had alieady
undergone (which was 33 days in
all) and 1o pay fine of Rs. 40,000.
In default of Ry of fine, the
accused was sentenced o undergo
rigorous imprisonment for three
monrhs, [t was ordered that out of
the fine so realised, a sum of Rs.
25,000 shall he paid w rhe
complainant wha was the father of
the girl. For an offence under
Scerion 57 of the Banbay Children
Act, sentence was reduced 1o
amprisonment already undergone
and the accused was nor required
10 Ui‘ld(’:l’g() 11“)" St’pill’ﬂi’\'
imprisonment for this offence. The
Maruei car was ordered o be
returned to rhe accused and the
order of forfeiture and confiscauon

was set aside.

3, The marrer did oot end ar cha.
Nagrik Kirti Samic. Kolhapuar

which had been lormed was

agitated abour the acquicial of the
accused for an offence under
Section 376 IPC. The convenor ol

Mr. P.D.

to  the

the Samir, Hankare

represented State

State of Maharashtra Versus. Rajendra fawanmal Gg;ﬂdbz'



Governmment to file an appeal o rhis
Court agalnst the scquittal of che
accused under Section 376 1PC. In
the meantime the accused had
deposited the fine, of Rs. 40.000
as ordered by the High Courr and
out of this amount a sum ol Rs.
25,000 had been withdrawn by rhe
p— , I)

father of rhe gni

the considerarion for the Srare

crhaps this was

C‘:O\’l'l'l‘lﬂ](,’ﬂ[ nor (o IE]C alll}’ llPP(_’i'li
in the Supreme Clourt. Since there
was no response [rom the Srare
Government, Mr. 21D Hankare,
Convener of the Nagrik Kirr
Samiti, Kothapur approached rhis
Court, He was granted pormission
to hie special leave petition againse
the convicrien and sentence
imposed on the accused by the
High court as aforementioned.
After notice of this appeal was
State  of
Mzharashtra and che accused, boch

served  upon  the
filed separate appeals in this court.
While the State of Maharashtra
filed appeal againsc the conviction
and sentence of the accused by the
High

conviction under Section 376 [PC

court  praying for his

and for enhancement of his
sentence to a minimum of 10 vears,
the accused filed appeal against his
very conviction and sentence under
Secron 354 IPC and Section 57
of the Bombay Children Act.

4, Since the State iwself has fled
an appeal praying for conviction of

the accused under Seetion 376 10O
and for his punishment ander
Secrion 376(F) as the girl child was
less than 12 years of age, leave

i), Hankare,
Convener, Nagrik Kirt Samid,

gl'ﬂlllk'd to

Kolhapur loses 1ts signiticance and

we direct dhat the feave [‘A_‘ revolsed.

5. 1t may be noticed ac the

outsct  that  the offence  was
committed ar Kolhapar and he
accused was to be tied dhere i che
court of Scsston. But because of
Pl]l‘“( ()U(L’l’l\'. rl](‘ Plk“d ()f‘ {i}l_'
accused thar he may not ger fair
rial at Kohlapur was accepred and
the case was anslerred o the e
ol Sessions Judge. Sawara...

Section 37 of the Boembay
Children Act, 1948 s as under :
“357. Whoever seduces or

imdulees in immoral behaviour

2
with a girl under the age of
cighteen  years  shall,  on
convicrion be punished with
imprisonment  of  either
description {or a term which
may exiend o two vears or with
tine which may extend w one

thousand rupees or with both.”

8, "lmmorzl behaviour” is
detined under Section 4()) of chis
Act and it includes any ace or
conduce which is indecent or

obscene.
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9. The accused was charged for

having commirced rape on a girl of
& years of age in a Marud car of ¢

chocolate celour on a road leading,
to Ragala Park at Kolhapur at about
930 a.m. on 24-9-1986, thus
commicting offences punishable
under Scction 376 and Section 57
ol the Bombay Children Act.

10. In support of the charge the
P}J‘UHC(‘U“O” CXZ“]}i”C({ a8 1]111[])-’ as
24 The
witnesses would, however, be (1)

WILHICSSCS, material

the complainant Shrikant
Deshpande, father of the girl, (2)
prosecutrix, (3} Folice Inspector
Labde who inigally investigared the
case, (4) Dr Mrs Sahaswrzbudha
(family doctor of the complainant,
(3} Dr Gunda {Mcedical Officer,
Civil Hopital, Kolhapur), {6) Dy
Hoshing (Civil Surgeot, Kolhapur),
(7) Vishakha Kulkarni who gave the
registration number of the marut
(8)

{earlier

car of chocolate colour),

Parashuram  Jadhav

registered owner of the car but had
sold the same to the company of
which rthe accused was a Direclor),

(9 Meena Bornvankar (Additional

S.I2. Kolhapur) and (10}, Police -

Inspector Karambale (Investigating,

Officer).
11, The prosecutrix, a student of

4th class, had gone for ruition at 8.15
am. on 24-9-1986 to a privatce

270

teacher in the colony where she was
living with her PUCTELS. Alter her
private taition, which was from 8.15
a.m. to 9.015 am., she was coming
back to her home and then go o
school with other children ina cycle-
rickshaw hired For the purpase.
When rhe prosccutrix was going
along the colony road ac the
intersection of rthis road aud a by~
l’dl](_‘, \\"h‘l(fh Wdas i SCCllldL'd SP()[’. th'
accused caught hold of her on the
I)I_CLCXl [hﬂl’ ]1('I' LlSSiS[lll1CL' Was
required for puthng eicher the pipe
or the wires in the Marut car which
was patked there. The girl was
pushed inside the car. At that dme
she was wearing a midi-frock and
knickers. ‘T'he accused pulled down
her knickers and laid her on the sea
in rthe car. She did oy o resist by
5;1}"i”g [h!lt SI]C ShUUld I)C ;lil()\‘\,’t‘d 10
go and that she would be Tate in
reaching home. The accused then
apened the zip of his panrs and
starred pressing his penis on her
private parts. When the girl cried
thar she would be lace 1o reaching
home, the accused said “wait”, “one
second”. According e her, therealter
the accused urinated. She felt
werness on her private parts, After
the girl was released she came home
weeping. She embraced her father
and narrated the whole incident o
- him. The parents of the girl examined
her private parts and the garments
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and noticed the siicky substance
{(semen) on some parts of the midi-
frock as well as on the kaickers,
There was redness on her privaie
Peﬂ'f:ﬁ. The girl described the person
who commicred such bashiul (/e
shametful) act on her. Shrikant
Deshpande, the facher of e gird
took her on his scooter and came
to the spor where the incidene ook
place but there was nobody. They
returned home. The morher of the
airt gave her a bach and she went w
her school as usuwal. Deshpande.
however, did not stop ar thatand he
made moce enquiries. He went ro
the spot again and chere he was told
by Vishakha Kulkarni, 2 college
student, who was living in che

vicinity that a Maruii car of

chocolate colour was scen rhere
which bore registracion No. MGR-
942, Deshpande went to RTO and
came to know that rhe car was
registered  in  the
Parashuram Jadhav. Thercafrer he
met Meena Bornvankar, Additional
ST who at the relevant tiime was
holding the charge of 5 Kolhapur.
She sent him to the police stadon
to lodge a formal complaint.
Parashuram Jadhav was traced.
From his interrogation, it transpired
that the Marut car had been sold
by him and further investigation
revealed that at the relevant ame it
was in the possession of the accused.

name  of

P2 ACabour 730 pom. oon he
same day Despande 1ook her
danghrer o family doctor D

Mrs.

eximination as atter rerurning, from

Sahastrabudha forr

the schoal the prosecurriv wag
complaning of pairr in her private
parts. Dy Mrs Sahascrabuadhba had
been informed i the morning of
the neident of rap. She noticed
inlTammation of Tabium minus
(labia minorad, It appears, as hokd
by rhe Sessions Judge, thay dhis
doctor did not Fully examine the
prosccutrix for when she way
apprised that Deshpande had Jondgged
a repore with rhe police she advised
him o ger the girl examined by the
Chavil Surpeon as it was o medico-
fegal case. T Guonda was the
Medical Officer ai Civil Hospiul,
Kolhapur and be examined the
prosecurn at 9 poan. on 24-9-1986
iselt, This he did on the basis of
police ‘yadi’, On examination he
found -

(i) Labia minova was inflamed

and reddened.

(i) External urechral meatus was

reddened and swollen.
() Hymen was inracr.,
(1v) PPV examination was not

possible. He cherefore took the
swab [rom introitus (opening of the
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vagina} and not from inside the

Vagia.

13. He, however, did not issue
the medico-Tegal certificate on the
same day. On 2-106-1986, he issued
the certificate and under the head
“Chiel complaine™ he had writen;
“Complains of burning micturition
sinee abternoon today”,

Then an the following day he
certified thar rape was committed
with the following reporr :

“Conclusion Rape
covrmitted.
‘I'his conclusion [ have drawn
alter ¢linical examination of the

g rl.”

14, Report about the incident
appeared in che newspaper of the
town on the tollowing day, i.e., 25-
9-1986 and there was an immediare
outcry in the public and “morchas”
taken out.

15. Dr Hoshing was the Civil
Surgeon, Kolhapuar. who, it would
appear under intense  public
pressure formed a panel of three
private docrors o again examine

The pancl

examined her aon 29-9-1986. This

the  prosecurrix.

panei consisted of . Naganonlkar,
M.D. in Gynecology, [ Kudalkar

and  Dr. Maladkar, both senior

doctors and the result of (heir
examination is as under

“(1) Labix minora inilamed.

(i) Lxternal arerhral mearus
inflamed.

(i) Fouwrchete showed abrasions
with signs of inflammacion,

{ivi Infected linear verdeal ear
on right para-urcthral region,

an d

(v} Tear of hymen at 3 o clock

position.”

16. The midi-freck and the
knickers of the prosecutrix were
E’le\rt'rl iﬂr(_) I_)(_JSSCSSE(’]“ in th‘ COUTSC
of investigation and so also the
underwear, “F-shirt and pants which
the accused was wearing ar the tme
he was taken into custody. The
semen stzins of blood Group B
were lound on the knickers of the
prosccutrix. The semen stains of
Bleod Group B were also found w
the spot where the penis of the
aceused  was  wouching  his
underwear. The blood group of the
accused is Group B.

F7. 1t may be noticed thar the
trial court came heavily on the
conduct of IDr Gunda, the Medical
Officer in his not submitring the
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medical repore at the earliest and
also to an extent of Dr Hoshing,
the Civil surgeon. It justilied the
medical  examination ol the
prosecutrix on 29-9-1986 by a
panel of private doctors.

18. The rial court also noticed
the l'h”n\-\fing cbservations in the
commentary on Medical
Jurisprudence

“Mere redness of the labia
minora is nor indicative of
recent sexual activity and it
may be no more than an
indication of a lack of personal
hygiene, especially in young
girls.”

19. After examining the evidence
and considering the argumencs
advanced, it came o che
conclusion thar it was the accused
who indulged in sexual inwercourse
with the prosecutrix and thac there
was penetration. The Courr,
therelore, held thar dhe accused was
guilty of an offence of having
commitred rape on the prosecurrix.
The trial courr also found rhav it
was proved that the accused
indulged in immoral behaviour with
the prosecutrix. Ig, therefore,
and

convicted the accused

sentenced him as aforesaid.

20. The accused appealed to the
High Court. It did not agree with

the trial courr rhat considering, the
statcement of rhe prosecuiriy,
examination of the clothes she was
wearing and the medical evidence,
any offence of rape wirhin che
mezning of Scetion 375 1PC was
commiteed. The High court nodecd
rhe medical examination of the

ProSecurmx in the [_u”()wing words:

“The girl was taken o the
family  doctor  Shashikzla
Sahastrabudha (PW 7) by her
father in the evening ar 7.30
p.m. whe clinieally examined
her and found her private pares
had become reddish. In the
night of 24th September, 1986
at abouc 9 pom., X7 was
examined by Dr Gunda (PW
14), — Medical ofticer, Civil
Hospiral. He has also deposed
that the case papers are ar Ex.
56. He says that on internal
examination of "X, borh labia
minora were found intlamed
(reddened) and external urethral
reddencd and

meatus was

swollen. Hymen was imtace.”

21, The High Courc then
referred to the clothes which the
prosecutrix was wearing at the time
of the crime and 1t was found that
there were two semen stains on her
undergarments. The High Courr
also cxamined the clothes of the
accuscd and it found chat the semen
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stains found on the undergarments
of the prosecursix and underwear
of the accused were of the same
Blood Group B which was the
blood group of the accused. One
semen stain on the underwear of
the girl was about 2 cm in diamerer
ncar  the waistband  of her
undergarment. From the
examination of the evidence, the
High Courr also came ro the
conclusion rthac it was the accused
who indulged in the perpecration
of the crime which was commitred
on 24-9-1986 ar about 9.30 a.m.
as was the charge laid by the
prosccution. On the question, if it
was 2 rape or an offence under
Section 354 IPC — outraging the
modesty of a woman the High
Courr referred to the starement of
the prosecurrix and thar of her
father, Deshpande, who lodged (he
FIR. As to what the FIR recorded,
we may refer to the following
obscrvations of the High Court :

“In the FIR, Lx. 26 filed by
the farher, it s mentioned thar
the girl informed that che
accused slept her on sear and
then he slept on her body and
began to struggle with her. The
accused then pulled away her
underpants and pulled the
chain of his pants and took our
his male organ and put it in

$274,

her private parts and pressed
it. Her privawe part was then
aching. After some time he
passed his urine on her privase
parts and he rubbed his organ
to her Irock. Then she took her
underpants onwards and came
home running. However, the
C.A reporr. Ex 82, shows tha
there was no semen found on
the frock. TTe evidence of the
girl, her farher and the VIR
show thac the legs of the
accused were on the road. The
knickers of the gl were only
pulled and not removed. This
the CLA.
that  her

is also clear from
repore,  Lx. 82,
knickers were having two stains
of semen. If che knickers,
would have been removed then
thee would have been no stains
as it is not che case of the
_prosecution that it was used by
the accused for wiping his
£
organ. Her legs were neither
g £
liled. The

cvidence shows that he took

separaced  nor
out 15 organ and pressed it
against her body and within
seconds he discharged.”
22.The High Court then noticed
that che gird was given a bath and
she went to school and thar she anly
complained of some pain or burning
seasation and chat if chere was
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anything scrious noticed by the
parents on examination, they would
not have allowed her to go to school
’Jlld |'ll[|1(‘l’ W(')llld h'd\"L' tﬂi(cn l‘lL'lr
immediately to the docror. When
the parents examined her privace
part they found only reddishness.
Her [ather took her o the family
docror 12r Mrs Sahasrrabudha at
about 7.30 p.m. on the same day
and the doector noticed only some
portion of her private part had
bCCOHlC l'Cd. N(‘) i)l(‘)od WwWas ll()[i(cd.
Then the girl was examined by Dr
Gunda at abour 9.00 p.m. on that
very day. Afrer examining rhe
report of Dr Gunda, the High
Courr concluded thar clearly ruled
out the actual rape. The High
Court disapproved the constitution
of the pancl of doctors which it
held was done under pressure From
the public and that Dr Hoshing,
Civil Surgeon succumbed ro that
pressure. The High Court was
critical of the statement of Dr,

Naganonkar who was member of

the panel. The High Court referred

to the fact that ar the rime of

examination by the panel of three
doctors neither Dy Sahastrabudha
nor Dr Gunda was called. Dr
Naganonkar stated that some
respectable citizens of Koihapur had
approached him with a request that
come for examinacion of the girl.
No reason was recorded as to why
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girl. The High courr noticed that
Dy Naganonkar was evasive when
he was asked whether he could say
that the mjurics noticed by the
panel were present on 24-9-1986.
He however admited chac if the
ear was 17(’}’()”({ lI]C Slll‘(’.’]’f‘i(ﬁilll
layer, then it was bound o bleed
As there was no bleeding it was an
abrasion involving the superficial
layer. He admirred chac such
abrasion was possible due 10
scrarching. e also agreed chae
rupture of hymen was almost
invariable accompaniced by bleeding
and chat bleeding was brisk,
visible. Dr

Naganonkar also agreed wicth the
£ g

immediare  and

proposition rthar the clothes

immediately would have
bloodstains. The High coure
commended that Dr Naganonkar
was ‘required ro make various
acrobarics just 1o supporo the

opinion and rhar while d(')ing so he

. virtually admirred that there was a

rape” . The High Court held thac
there was no ruprure of hymen and
the girl was a virgin. The accused
was also cxamined and there was
no injury to her private part. It
of Dr
Naganonkar where he agreed with
the opinion in Medical Jurisprudence

noticed the statement

quoted above and further the
“excisation (sic excision} of this type




is common in young children as o
result of poor local hygpiene,
scratching due to worn infection”,
For all these reasons the High
Court rejected the conclusion
arrtvedd at by the panel of doctars,
As to the conduct of Dr Gunda
which we have noticed above the
High court was of the opinion that
it scemed that he was required o
bow before public pressure and rhe
official

therefore rejecred the opinion given

internal pressure. v,
by him on 3-10-1986 which

certified  thar the rape was
committed. The High Court said
that a great disservice had been
done o the little ¢irl because of
public agitation and which tended
to make the future of the girl bleak.
The Court, thercfore. held rhat
there was no rape as consemplared
by Section 375 commitred or
proved. Then the High Court
concluded that in its opinien, the
evidence on record would, at the
most show cthat rthe accused
attempted to commit rape. Bu

then added thar .

“However, as the cvidence
shows char her knickers were
not completely removed, her
legs were not separated or lifted
and the act was sought o be
done standing on the road, we
hold that the act of the accused

would fall within Scotien 394
of 1°C
ariminal force as covered by
Section 330 of 1PC knowing

and chat he used

[ull well that it would cause
mjury to the girl. He knew cha
it would thereby ourage the
modesty of the gl He pulled
down her knickers and opened
his panes and laid himsell on
her and discharged. The gir
suffered pain. Therefore, we
find the accused guilty under
Section 354 of 1PC”.

On the question il an offence
under Section 57 of the Bombay
Children Act was committed, the
High Coure held thac similarly as
in the case of the offence under
Section 354 1PC, rhe offence of the
accused would also under Seciion
57 of Act. The
therefore, held thar the accused

that court,
acted indecenty and was tuas guilty
under Section 57 of the Bombay
Children Acr, 1948.

23, Borh rhe Sessions Court and
the High Coure uccepted the
prosecution evidence as ro how and
who commited the crime. They,
however, diflered on the approach
as to whar olfence was committed.
While the trial courr holds the
accused guilty of an offence under
Section 376 IPC, the High court
Lolds him guilty under Section 354

. 276 . R _Smre__cf Mz_z)'gnms_btm Versus [\’rgjm_::irz;_ Jawanmal Gandbi.



1PC. Borh the courts did nor actach
any importance to the discrepancies
in the starements of cthe witnesses
which were insignificant and, did
not damage or impair the case of
the prosecudon. The courts have
considered  alb the  relevane
circumstances to come to the
conclusion that che crime was
committed and it was the accused
who did so. The High Courr.
however, does say thar there was
attempr to commit rape which
would be an offence falling under
Scction 376 read with Section 571
IPC. Bur by

reasomng, the High Court proceeds

some  curious

te hold the accused guilty for an
offence under Secrion 334 [PC. We
think that the High Courr is right
in irs approach thar from rhe
medical evidence and the starement
of the prosecurrix and arrendant
circumstances, it cannot be said
thar there was penerration and there
was. therefore, no  sexual
intercoursz though che ingrediencs
of attempt to commit offence of
rape are there. The High court had
see aside the order of the Scssions
Court confiscating the Marwi Car
in which the offence of attempt to
rape was committed as the car was
owned by a company of which the
accused was a Direcror. Since there
is no appeal against this parc of the
order, we need not go inw the

scope and intent of Section 452
CePCoif the court could order
confiscation of the car it having
been “used for the commission” of
the offence of rape particularly i
the car had been awned by the

accused.

24. The circumstances show (hat
the accused intended ro commit
rape on the girl. In the commission
of that crime, he laid the girl on
the seat in the Maruti car and then
faid himself over her. He pulled
down her knickers and also opened
the zip of his pants and wok out
his male organ. He pressed his male
organ on the private pacts of the
eirl. But since he discharged, he
could nor penctraie and was unable
to complete the offence of rape.
However, it is clear thatr he did
ATEMIPr 10 COmMMIt rape...

26. In 1983, law was amended

p I'v:scribing more severe
punishments for the perpetrators of
the crimes of rape and other sexual

offences.

27. The Law Commission of
India in its 42nd Report on Indian
Penal Code submitted in June 1971
suggested amendments to Sections
375 and 376 IPC, cxpanding the
definition of rape and promising for
more severe punishment. The
also

COMIission suggested
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mcorporation of other offences
reliring 1o sexual oflences in the
IPC Indes 69th Repore on the
Indian lLividence Acr, 1872, the
.l_.'J\’V

recommended reform in che law.

Commission  had  also
Nothing, however, was dene and
the law not amended. Then rthe
subsequent Law Commission in its
84th Report suggesred changes in
the law on rape and allied offences

and amendments o the laws of

procedure and on rape and allied
olfences and amendments o the
laws of procedure and evidence.
The Commission submitced ics
repore in April 1980 ro the Cengral
Government. Afrer thae the [PC,
CrPCoand Evidence Act were
amended by the Criminal Laws
(Amendment) Act, 1983 In the
Statement of Objects and Reasons
while presenting che Bill, it was
mentioned that recommendations
of the Law Comimission had been
examined in consultarion with the
State Governments and suggestions
on the subject received. 1t was
mentioned  thar the  changes
proposed in the Bill had been
formlated principally on che basis
of the following considerations,

“(1y The law should be made
moge stringent wichout jmpardising
considerations of fair trial:

(2} rthe delinidon ol rape should
be amended to remove corain
loopholes and inadequacies and 1o
ensure thar consent should be
vitiated unless it s real and given

out of [ree choice

(3) mintmum punishmens lor
rape should be prescribed;

{4} che prosecureix should be
prorected from  the glare of
embarrassing publicity during rthe
investigatory as well as crial stape

g ) g
and any information leading 1o
identificarion of the victinm should

not be disclosed;

(5) 1 the case of rape of a police
officer or by 2 group of persons or
by a person having custodial control
by virtue of his special position
over the victim, once it is proved
that sexual intercourse has taken
place, the onus should be on the
accused to prove thar the sexual
mtercourse was wirh the consent of

"
[]]C WOIman.

28. It will be uscful ro quote the
following passage from the 84th
Report of the Law Commission

“Itis often stated thar 4 woman
who is raped undergoes two
and the

crises —the

subsequent trial, While the first

rape

seriously wounds her dignity,
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curbs her individual, destroys
her sense of security and may
often ruin her physically, the
sccand is no less potent of
mischicl, tnasmuch as it nat
only forces her to relive
through the  rraumatic
exparicnee, bur also doces so in
rhe glare of publicity in a
totally alien aumosphere, with
the whole apparatus and
paraphernalia of the criminal
justice system focussed upon
her.

[n Particular, it is now well
established thar sexual activities
with young girls, of immarure
age have a traumatic effect
which often persists through
lite, leading subsequenty to
disorders, unless there arc
counrter-balancing factors in
family lifc and in social
arritudes which could act as a
cushion against such traumatic
cHects.

Rape is the ‘ultimare violadon
of the scif”. It is a humiliating
even 1 a woman's life which
leads to fear for existence and
a sense of powerlessness. The
victim needs empathy and
safetry and &  sense of
reassurance, In the absence of
public sensitivity to these
needs, the experience of

figuring in a repore of the
offence may itsell become
another assault.

Forcible rape is unique among
crimes, in the manner in which
its vicrims are dealt with by the
criminal justice system. Raped
women have o undergo certain
eribulations, These begin with
their treaunent by rhe police
and continue through a male-
dominared criminal justice
system. Acquittal of many de
facro guilry rapists adds o the
sense of injustice.

In effect, the focus of the
faw upen  corroboration,
consent and characrer of the
prosecutrix and a standard of
proot  of  guilc  beyond
reasonable doubr have resulted
i an increasing alienation of
the general public from the legal
system, who find the law and
legal language difficult to
undersrand and whe think that
the courts are not run so well
as one would expeet.”

35. In our opinien, therefore, the
High Court after having come to
the conclusion thar the accused was
guilty of an offence under Section
376/511 of the IPC could not have
convicted the accused for an offence
under Secrien 354 1PC. Secrion
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511 1PC provides punishment for
attempring o cemmit offences
punishable with imprisonment for
life or other imprisonment. In this
case since the girl was under 12
vears of age and the Sessions Judee
having found that offence of rape
had been committed could nor have
awarded sentence of 7 years when
the law  prescribes minimum
sentence of rigorous imprisonment
for a rerm not less than 10 years,
unless exceprional circumsrances
existed. However, we find that the
State of the complainant did not
come up in appeal in othe High
Court lor enhancement of the
sentence, Though there was no
charge under Section 376 read with
Section 511 IPC, under Section
222 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure when a person is charged
for an offence he may be convicred
of an attempt to commir such
offence although che attempr is not
separarely charged.

36. Having come rto  the

conclusion rchat the accused

committed an  offecne under
Sections 376/511 1PC, the question
arises as to what sentence should
be impesed upon him. It was
submitted before us that the time

when the offence was committed

the accused had also a daughter of

8 years of age. If that be so,
perversion of the mind of the

accused does not appear ro have
any lunie, le was submited that a
long time had clapsed since che
offence was committed and tha in
terms of the judgment of the High
Court the accused deposited R
40,000 out of which Rs 25,000 had
already been withdrawn by rthe
father of the prosecutrix. It was
submicted chac if the Court came
to the conclusion that the sentence
hllLI ro bﬁf C{1l1l]]1{l('({ [i]Cﬂ amaountr
raised. We,

chink so. A

of fine could be

however, do nor
heinous crime has been commited
and the accused muse sulfer for the
consequences. A rapist not enly
violates rhe victim's personal
integrity but leaves indelible niarks
on the very soul of the helpless
female. The girl of 8 years musi
traumaric

have undergone a

The question of

imposition of sentence after lapse

experience.

of 11 years of the offence rroubled
cur mind a grear deal. Keeping che
objecrs of the amendment of 1P
in view and rhe law as it exists
today, the decisions of this Court
referred to above on the question
of sentence, the message is loud
and clear that no person who
commits o attempts o commit
rape shall escape punishment

37. We agree with the High
Court that a great harm had been
caused to the girl by unnecessary




publicity and taking out of morcha
by rhe public. Even the case had w
be transferred from Kolhapur ro
Sarara under the orders of this
Court.
established by law governing the

There s procedurc
conduct of rrial of a person accused
of an offence. A tial by press,
electronic media or public agiration
is the very ancithesis of rule of law.
It can well lead to miscarriage of
justice. A Judge has ro guard himself
against any such pressure and he is
to be guided strictly by rules of law.
It he finds che person guilty of an
offence he 1s then to address himself
to the guestion of sentence to be
awarded to him in accordance wich
the provisions of law. While
umposing the sentence of fine and
directing payment of whole or
certain portion of it to the person
aggrieved, the court has also o g0
into the question of, damage caused
to the victim and even to her
family. As a matcer of fact the
crime is not only against the victim
it is against the whole socicry as
well. Since late, there has been a
spurt in crimes relating ro sexual
offences.

(Also reparted In 1997 {8) SCC 404)

H

38. Considering the whole aspect
of the marcer, we are of the opinion
that a sentence of five yeary'
rigorous imprisonment and fine of
Rs 40,000 will meet the ends of
justice. The fine has already been
paid, ouc of thar Rs 25,000 has
been withdrawn by the father of the
girl as per direction of the High
Court which we uphold. We,
thercfore, allow the appeal of the
State conver: the conviction of the
accused-respondent from one under
Secticn 354 IPC to that under
Sections 376/511 1PC and sentence

 him as aforesaid. Since fine has

already been paid, no sentence of
imprisonment in lieu of payment
thercof nced be imposed. The
conviction and sentence of the
accused under Scction 57 of the
Bombay Children Act as ordered
by the High court shall, however,
stand. The sentences shall run
concurrently. {n this view of ihe
matter, appeal filed by the accused
is dismissed. The accused will be
taken into cuscody and would
undergo the remaining portion of
his sentence.

&
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Kamal Kishore

Appellany;

Versus

State of H.P.

The victim of a rape had just
crossed single digit in her age. So
render was that lass when she was
ravished. Burt the damage caused to
her genitalia was woeful. The girl
narrated the story before Ms Kiran
Agarwal, Sessions Judge, Una
{Mimachal Pradesh) who tried the
case, but the story wld by her did
not impress the Sessions Judge and
hence her testimony was jettisoned
and the man who was arraigned as
the rapist exonerated. However, a
Division Bench of the High court
of Himachal Pradesh dissenred
fromt the said verdict and convicted
him under Secrion 376 of the
Indian Penal code. Nonetheless, the
Division Bench was not disposed
to award the minimum scntence
prescribed by law for the offence
on the premise that the accused
who was rwenty-five “might have
sctrled in life”. So the High court
directed him ro undergo rigorous
imprisonment for three years and
to pay find of rupees ten thousand.

2. The verdict of the High court
did noc satisfy both sides — the
accused and the State of Himachal
Pradesh. The former because of the

Respondent

reversat of the order of acquittal and
the larter because of the inadequacy
of the sentence. So both sides filed
separate appeals by special leave.
We heard both appeals together.

3. I'he case put forward against
the accused can be summarised in
the following lines :

Shishna Devi {(PW 2) is the
eldest of the three children of Sher
Singh and his wife Kunta Devi.
During the year of occurrence
Shishna Devi was studying in the
41k class. Accused Kamal Kishore
was running a flour mill locared
adjacent to his house. The incident
happened on 21-5--1989. Shishna
Devi after taking her evening meals
proceeded to the house of ber aunt,
but an the way she stepped into the
house of the accused presumably
for viewing a TV film. Lither at the
end of the film or a litde before it,
Shishna Devi was asked by the
mother of accused to fetch some
cooking utensils from the flour mill.
So she went and brought the
ucensils to the kitchen, Tt was the
right time and the accused followed

her up to the kitchen. He caught
hold of her from behind, muffled




her mourth, lifted her up and ok
her to four mill and after dragging
her to a side room stripped her off
and he commitred rape on her.

4, When the wearing apparels of
Shishna Devi became wet with the
blood accused brought a bucker of
watcer and washed the dress. He
threatened ker not to reveal it to
anybody else. The house of her aunt
(Kaushalya Devi — PW 4) was
located close by and Shishna Dewvi
instead of going back to her own
house went to that aunt’s house and
spent the night there.

5. Next morning Shishna Devi
returned home. Here mother Kunta
Devi (PW 3) noticed bloodstains
on her dress and she enquired
about the cause of it. Shishna Devi
then narrated the incident to her
mother. Her husband (father of
Shishna Devi) was not in the house
then as he had gone for his work.
{(He is a
labourer). Next day when he

daily-wage-earning

recurned home the story was
narrated to him. On hearing the
same he wanred to report the
martrer to the police and hence he
took his wife and Shshna Devi to
Bangana Police Station and lodged
Ex. PC complaint.

G. Shishna Devi was examined

by PW 14 Dr ].S. Kanwar of Iadira

Gandhi Medical College (Shimla) ar
4.30 p.m. on 23-5-1989. The
dog;tor noted the follewing features

on her person :

1. Congestion (contusion) of
labia minora both sides.

2. Fear 1in

fourchetre in midline involving

the  perennial

vagina mucosa and perineal
(sie) skin (¥h cm long in skin).
Swelling and renderness noted
ar thar site.

3. Congestion and oedema of
vestibule around urethra.

4. Hymen showed lacerations
on the left side. There was
vedema and renderness. [t was
bleeding on rouch.”

7. According to PW 14, the
injuries could probably had been
sustained 24-48 hours prior to his
examination of the girl. The doctar
coflected the from the
posterior fornix of the vagina, and

swab

that along with the wearing apparels
of Shishna Devi were sent for
chemical tests. The result of such
test showed spermatozoa and
semen.

8. The aforesaid materials are
sufficient to show, beyond any of
douby, thar Shishna Devi was




sexually ravaged by a man. Hence
the only question which fell for
consideration is whether it was the
accused who did the act on that
little girl. No question of consent
of the vicim need vex the judicial
mind in chis case as the age of
Shishna Devi then was far distal
from the age of 16.

9. For the narrowed compass of
consideration in this casc i.e.
whether accused was the rapist, the
most decisive evidence is the
testimony of the victim herself.
None else will be more comperent
than her 1o tel! the court as to who
raped her. There is no scope for
doubting rhat she would not have
seen the person who seduced her.
PN 2 Shishna Devi pointed at the
accused in unmistakable rerms as
the persen who ravaged her. On
that there
discrepancy in the evidence. Bur the

dspect Wwas 1o

Sessions Judge went into the derails
of

dweiling on certain features thercof

the occurrence and  after
the case was dubbed as highly

improbable.

10. Learned Sessions Judge
peinted out from the evidence of
PW 2 that the rime of her visit to
the house of the accused was 6 p.m.
for viewing the TV film, and then
referred to the evidence of her aunt

Kaushalya Devi (PW 4) thac

i Shishna Devi reached her house at

L p.m. The Sessions Judge made

- the following comment on that
aspect :

“Now ir remains a mystery
where the prosecurrix remained
11
watching of the film on rhe

up o p.m. Even if the
television by the prosecutrix in
the house of accused for some
ume is construed to he one

10-15
minuzes in bringing the urensils
ging

hour or two hours,
from che flour mill and half and
hour in the process when the
accused-petidoner drageed her
from the kitchen o the room
by the side of the flour mill and
raping her and then bring a
bucker of water with which he
washed her shire, even then
there remains a considerable
period of abour twa hours ll
1 o'clok at night when the
prosecutrix reached rhe house
of her aunt Kaushalya Devi
where she slept for the night.
Thus the unexplained dme gap
makes the deposition of the
prosecutrix highly improbable.”

11, The Division Bench of the
High Coure, after referring to
the evidence on that aspect, has
observed thus :

d()

“We find

unexplained time gap as held

not any




meiienee

Judge.
Morcover, the prosecutrix and

by rhe Sessions
her mocher had not given the
time when the prosccurrix
reached the house of her aunt
Kaushalya Devi. T is only
Kaushalya Devi who has stated
that the prosecutrix had come
to her house ar abour 11 p.m.
when she was asleep. In the
absence of her Ffurther
statement that she has noriced
the time as 11 p.m. in her
wrist watch or in any other
watch or clock, the possibility
cannot be ruled ouc that she
gave the time only as per her
estimarc and the margin of
error might be from half an
hour to one hour.”

12. After referring to cerrain
other derails of the occurrence the
Sessions Judge expressed her
mnability te believe the STOry
narrated by Shishna Devi and chen
observed that “there are a few
important missing links in the
prosecution case and no arrempr
has been made by the investigading
officer to collect those [inks”. As
an example the trial Judge pointed
out that “none from the family of
the accused or the locality has been
examined in order to prove the
presence of dhe prosecutrix in the
house of the accused on the evening

of the occurrence for watching the

television.” Bur the High Court
torally disagreed with the said
reasoning and stated @ “It is o0
much to expect that any member
of the family of the respondent or
from the houses in the
neighbourhood would appear as
witness in support of the statement
to the prosecutrix that she was

the

respondent for watching TV." The

present in the house of
learned Judges pointed out that
prosecurrix is the daughrer of a
poor daily-wage-labourer. whereas
the

praprietor of a flour mill and

landlard.

RCCUSt’d is the sone OF 4

13. We have no doubt thar the
Sessions Judge had reached an
Erroncous conclusion by
approaching the question from a
wrong angle. The evidence of the
adolescent girl — che victim of
rape, as duly corroborated by the
testimony of her mother and aunt,
and adequately confirmed by the
medical evidence, had conclusively
established that she was subjected
to ravishmenrt by the accused and
none else. The reasons adverted to
by the High Court are far sturdier
and stronger than thosc suggested
by the Sessions Judge to rely on.
The Division Bench of the High
Court has thus rightly reversed the
order of acquitral and convicted the
accused under Section 376 of the




Setitiie

IPC.

14. While considering the
sentence we have to bear in mind
thar the offence was committed
after the enforcement of Criminal
Law Amendment Act {CLAA) 43
of 1983. So the

prescribing More rigorous sentence

provision

must apply if the offence falls within
the purview of sub-section (1} of
Section 376, and then he “shall be
punished with imprisonment of
cither description for a term which
shall not be less than seven years’.
If the offence falls under sub-
section (2)(ff (commits rape on a
worman when she is under 12 years
of age) the offender is liable to be
“punished with rigarous
imprisonment for a term which
shall nor be less than ten ycars but
which may be for life and shall also

be liable to fine”.

15. The question of the age of
Shishna Devi therefore,
imporrant in this area. If she was
below the age of 12, on the date of

15,

occurrence the minimum sentence
would be rigorous imprisonment
for 10 years. PW 14 Dr J.S.
Kanwar has fixed up the above of
P 2 Shishna Devt as 10 years on
the date of her examination. This
was testified to by the doctor on
the strength of clinical examination

conducted by him. But the docter

did not conduct either ossification

test or any other pathological tests
to reach ar least the approximare
age of the victm. So his assessment
regarding age is based on fragile
premises,

16. According to Ext. PH (school
certificare of Shishna Devi) her
date of birch is 11-11-1978, which
of
occurrence she was below 11 years
of age. Bur Lxt. PH lost its
credibility when Ext. PO (the
certificare issued by the Panchyar)
was produced in which the date of
birth of PW 2 is shown as 24-11-
1978, But the evidence of PW 2’
mother Kunta Devi (PW 3) shows
thatr Shishna Devi was 12-13 years
old. The Sessions fudge found her
age as put forth by Kunta Devi, the
mother of PW 2, and the High
Court did not interfere wicth thar
Therefore, we have to follow the
said finding on fact. Even then. the
sentence prescribed under sub-
section {1)a of Secrion 376 TPC has
stipulated a minimum limic that it

means that on rhe date

“shall nor be less than 7 years™.

17. However, learned counscl for
the
endcavour ro bring the case within
the proviso o Section 376 IPC
which reads thus:

IICCLISE‘C] I]’l‘dd(‘.‘ a  serious

“Provided that the court may,

for adequate and special



St

reasons to be mentioned in the
judgment, impose a sentence
of imprisonment for a term of
less than seven years.”

18. As pointed out earlier, the
Division Bench of the High Court
reduced the sentence from the
minimum limit, on a premise that
“in view of the fact char the
occurrence is of 21-5-1989 when
he was 25 years of age and he

might have setded in life™....

has

to

Parliament
the

plummet below the minimum fimit

21, As
disfavoured sentence
prescribed Parliament used the
expression “shall not be less than”
which is  premprory in tone. The
court has, normally, no discretion
even to award 2 sentence less than
the said minimum. Nonetheless
Parliament was nor oblivious of
certain very exceptional situations
and hence o meet such exrremely
rarec contigencies it made =2
departure from the said stricr rule
by conferring a discretion on the
court subject to two condirions.
One is that there should be
“adequate and special reasons”, and
the other is that such reasons
should be mentioned the

judgment.

n

22. The expression “adequate and

. »o- - ..
specml reasons  indicates thar it is

not enough ro have special reasons,
nor adequate reasons disjunctively.
There should be a conjunction of
borh for enabling the court to
invoke the discretion. Reasons
which are general or commeon In
many cases cannot be regarded as
special reasons. What the Division
Bench of rhe High court mentioned
{i.e. occurrence took place 10 years
ago and the accused might have
settled in life) are not special to the

be

situations in this case. Such reasons

accused in this case or to
can be noticed in many other cases
and hence they cannot be regarded
as special reasons. No catalogue
can be prescribed for adequacy of
reasons no instances can be cited
regarding special reasons, as they
may differ from case to case.

23. As the reasons advanced by
the Division Bench of the High
court could not be supported as
adequate and special reasons,
learned counsel for the accused
projected an alternatdive profile in
order to support his contention that
there are adequate and special
reasons. He submirted the

following;

Shishna Devi (PW 2) has since
been married to another person and
she is now mother of children and
1s well-serded in life. The accused
was aged 23 when the offence was
commirted and now he is 34, but




he remains unmarried. He §dys [h’dL

on two occasions his marriage had |

reached the stage of engagement but
both had w be dropped off before
reaching the stage of marriage due
tw the social sigma and disrepute
which surrounded him. These are
the reasons which he advanced for
extending the benefit of the proviso.

24 Those circumstances pleaded
by him are not special reasons for
tiding over the legislative mandare

the

sentence, We, therefore, enhance

for imposing minimum
g

the sentence for the offence under i

Section 376 IPC tw imprisonment
for 7 years.

25. The long time lag which
clapsed subsequent to che dawe of
offence and the face chat the
prosccutrix got married and is well
settled in life and thac she s now
mother of children — all these
things which happened during the
mtervening, period, may be factors
for consideration by the executive
or constitutional authorities if they
have to decide whether remission
of the sentence can be allowed 1o
the accused. We make it clear char
we have imposed che enhanced
sentence on him withour prejudice
to any maortion he may make for
such remission of the sentence
before the auchoritics concerned.

{Also reported in 2000 (4) SCC 502)
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Kommarajula Narasaiah .

Versus

State of AP

1. The Peuitioner along with
another accused was tied for the
offences under Sections 366-A and
376 1PC. Both of them were
however acquitted under Secrion
366-A but the petitioner was
convicred for the otfence punishable
under Section 376 IPC by the
Assistant Sessions Judge, Jangaon
and was sentenced to seven years'
Rl as also to a fine of Rs 500, On
defaulc in payment of fine he was
to undergo a further two months’
simple imprisenment.

2. The petitioner preferred an
appeal. The learned Sessions Judge
Warangal who disposed of the
appeal on 15-10-1996 reduced the
sentence from seven years to five
years. The reasons for reducing the
sentence set out in the judgment by
the learned Sessions Judge are as
under :

“lnsofar as the punishment
part of the judgmenr of the
lower court is cencerned, the
fearned Assistant  Sessions
Judge has imposed seven years
of imprisonment as
contemplated. Section 376 1PC
provides that for any adequare

Petitioner;

Respondent.

llnll .\pL'L’illl reasons {o hL‘
mentioned i rthe judgment the
COTHt C{)lli(i i|]1|)()SL' dOSUCHTCIIC
of fess than seven years. Here
it is a case where, [rom the
angke of the appellant we could
see that it is not our of tel
fust owards the proseaurrix, A-
U lappencd ro conmic rape on
her. It s on account of (otal
abandonment of lis wile thar
happened duc to PW 1
developing illicit intimacy wich
A-T's wife, A-1 has waken the
step of taking away Swaroopa
and commiuting rape on her.
further A-1 did not wanr o
rape Swarcoepa; and rorally
abandon her. Lven as per her
evidence A-1 artempred 1o (e
thali and give Swaroopa a status
in the society. It is also be
mentioned thar both A-1 as well
as Swarooepa belong ro the
same caste - Waddera. Thus
the circumstances of the case
would clearly show that it is nor
our of roral lust, the offence has
been committed, but due o
Cil‘CLll‘DS[:ll]CES n;lrr'dde ilbO‘v’C,
and these circumstances can be
taken for lessening the sentence
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imposed by the learned

Assistant Sessions Judge.”
3. Revision filed by the
petitioner was dismissed by the
High Court by the impungned
judgment dated 11-12-1998.

4. By order dated 7-4-2000 this
Court had issued notice to the
petitioner o show cause why the
sentence be not enhanced.

5. We have heard the learned
counsel for the petitioner and we
have alse gone through rhe

s .
judgments of the trial court, the
lower appellate court as also thac
of the High Court. The reasans on

the basis of which the seneence of

seven years was reduced ro five
veurs have been set out by the
Sessions Judge which indicare that
he was impressed by the fact that
the rape was commirred not for Juse
alone but on account of other
circumstances which are that his
wife had abandened him, perhaps,
on account of PW ldeveloping
illicit intimacy with his wife. Bur
that shouid not have given him a
cause to rtake away Swarcopa
(prosecutrix) and commit rape on

hero 1o is a hemous crime and,
therefore, for this reason alone the
sentence could not have been
reduced from seven years to five
years. Secrion 376 i specific werms
provides that the sentence shali not
be less than seven years. The
provise which enables the courr 1o
impose the sentence of less chan
seven years does not give arbicrary
discretion o the courr to reduce
the sentence on irrelevant grounds.

6. This Court in Stare of
Karnataka v. Kiishnappa and Stare
of Rajasthar v. N.K. has already
considered the circumstances in
which a sentence less than thar
preseribed under che Act could not
have been imposed.

7. Having regard 1o the
circumstances set out by che
Assistant Sessions Judge in his
judgment by which the peirioner
was in crror in reducing che
sentence to five years.

8. For the reasons stated above,
we do not find any meric in the
special leave petitions and dismiss
the same but enhance the sentence
to seven vears as imposcd by the
learned Assistant Sessions Judge.




T.K. Gopal Alias Gopi ..

Appellant

Versus

State of Karnataka .

2. The appellant was found guilry
of the affence under Secton 376
IPC and was sentenced to 10 years’
rigorous imprisonment and to pay
a fine of rupees one thousand, in
defaulr of which he was to undergo
RI for another three months, by the
Additional Sessions Judge, Tumkur,
by her judgment dated 30-9-1994.
This has been upheld by the High
Court by the impunged judgment
dated 24-1-1997. The appellanc is
in jail and it is from the jail that
he has filed the present appeal. Mr
Secaj Bagga has appcared as
counsel for the appellant and it was
in his presence that the order dated
10-9-1999 was passed by this Court,

which reads as under:
“Dielay condoned,

The victim of rape in chis case
a child of one-and-a-half years. The
petitioner has been convicted under
Section 376 TPC and sentenced o
ten years rigorous imprisonment.
Section 376 [PC provides that on
the offence of being
established, the court shall sentence
with

rape

the accused Flgorous

imprisonment for a term not less
than ten years, but ‘which may be

Respondent.

for Tit¢" and shall also be Table 10
fire. The proviso to sub-secrion {2,
however, allows the court o impose
a sentence of imprisonment of
cither descriprion for a rerm which
may be less than ren years,

Having regard to the facts of this
casc, especially the age of the
vicrim, we issuc nofice io the
petittoner te show cause why the
sentence of ten years rigorous
not be
enhanced 1o life imprisonment. The

imprisonment  should

notice shall be returnable wichin six

weeks.”

3. Mr Seeraj Bagga has argued
the case with full vehemence at his
command and has also filed writcen
submissions in which he has set out
the extenuaring circumsiances on
the basis of which he has prayed
that the sentence may not be
enhanced to life imprisonment.

4. The victim in the instanc case
is an infant child. Yashoda of the
tender age of one-and-a-half years.
Her mother, Uma (PW 1} lived wich
her husband in a rented house at
Konehallt Village wich her children,
a son aged about four years and the




infant daughrer, Yashoda, The
appellant, ac thar time, was a mistry
working in that village. Uma was
working as a maidservant in the
house of Gowramma (CW 2), She
also worked as a mason-labour
under the appellant. Her husband
worked as a Waterman in che Warer
supply Department. The cae of the
prosecution is that the appellant, as
a mistry, used o provide ration to
Uma (PW 1} who used to cook
food for the appellant and his
collengues, including CW 7 Raja,
CW 8 Gandhl as alse another
person, Murchy, The appellant and
his associates used to go to the
house of Uma for lunch berween
1,30 pom. o 3.00 pan. On 22-6-
1997, av zhour 3 p.m., the appellant
came o the house of Uma, but did
nor express any desire o have his
meal. The appeilant, on the
contrary, indicared to her that he
would take rest for a while. Her
childrun were sleeping in the house
and Uma, while allowing the
appellant to whke rest, went o the
neighbours house gl‘ind rice for
preparing “idlis” for the nexe day.
She retuned o her house at about
4.45 pan. and was shocked o see
the appellant lying over her
daughter, Yashoda, who was lying
below his private parts. She rushed
towards the appeliant and pushed
him aside, She found her daughter
bleeding from the private parts and

also noticed bleeding, near her lips.
She cried for Telp whercapon the
appellanc ran away, The child was
raken to Arasikere Hospital where
the doctors intimated the pofice and
on the police reaching the hospirad,
the complainant narrated the whole
incident whercupon a case way
registered againse the appellang
under Section 376 1PC. The case
was investigared and a charge-sheet
was subscquendy submicted against
the appellant;, who was tried for the
offence under Section 376 [PC and
ultimarely convicted and sentenced
o ten years RL The appeal filed
by him was dismissed by the High
Court. The trial court as also the
High  Court have  recorded
concurrent findings of face that the
appellant committed rape on a child
of one-and-half vears. These
findings are based on the evidence
brought on record. The medical
report as also the statement of the
complainant clearly establish the
commission of the offence by che
appellant.

5. Having recard o the facts of
this case, the question thar arises
now 1s whether the Additional
Districr Judge was justified in
awarding a sentence of 10 vears’ R1
to the appeliant or he should have
been awarded life imprisonment,
which is the maximum sentence
prescribed under 1PC Section
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376(2) 1P provides, inter alis, as
under:

“376, /’m.!fa‘/)m.mﬁf('ﬁ‘ rape — (1)

{2} Whocver, —

(a)-(e}

() commits rape on a woman
when she is under rwelve years

of age;

shall be punished wich rigorous
imprisonment for a term which
shall not be less than ren years but
which may be for life and shall also
be liable to finc.

Pravided that the court may, for
adequate and special reasons o be
mentioned in the judgment, impose
a sentence of imprisonment of
either descriprion for a rerm of less
than ten years.”

6. A perusal of the above
provision would indicate thar where
the victim is a woman of less chan
12 vyears of age, the minimum
sentence that can be awarded to the
accused is ten years, bur it may also
extend to life imprisonment apart
from a fine which may also he

imposed upon him. The  proviso
to this scction, however glves a
discretion o the cowrr to award 1o
sencence of less chan 10 years {or
adequate and special reasons which
have to be mentioned in the

judgment.

7. Since the viaiim in the instant
case was an infane child of onc-and-
hall years, the wial coure as also the
High Court both were righe in
awarding a sentence of 10 vears (o
the appellant. That was wholly m
consonance with (the provisions of
Section 376(2) 1PCL The question,
howoever, is that iF the Taw gave the
court rh(‘ di.‘i[;r‘.,‘li(‘)“ 10 ii\'\"illrd cven
tife imprisonment for the offence
of rape under Secrion 376(2) 1PC,
why was thac discretion nor
exercised by ihe trial court or the
High Courr in the msmant case
where the victim of rape was an
infant child? The orial court, while
awarding ren years’ Rl te rthe
appellant has observed as under -

2" In view of che submissions
made before me, though 1 have 1o
agree with the submission of the
learned counsel for the accused thar
there is reformarion in the mind
of the accused as he is in custody
as undertrial prisoner for more than
a year and there are dependants
depending upon him., as the office
committed by him is of such a
grievous nature that lemiency with
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regard o the
punishment cannot be exercised
and also as the victim of the offence

awarding  of

was hardly one-and-a-hall years old
at the rime of commission of
offence without having the capaciry
of sell-defence and the vicrim for
no faule of hers has been made o
suffer a black mark of the tncident
throughoue her life, who knows,
even at the cost of her furure
comfortable living, In a decision
reported in Gajanand Maganlal
Mehia v, State of Gugarar in the very
opening of the judgment, their
Lordships have observed that :

‘Human weakness or wickedness;
¢ither of the two or both of them
rogether may be the cause of sexual
offences. 1f the offence is on
account of wickedness, the accused
naturally deserves no sympathy.”

In this case, the fact of the
accused could only be artribured o
wickedness. As such, the accused
deserves no sympachy at the hands
of this Court. Such acts should be
put down with a strong  hand and
a deterrent punishmenc should
generally be awarded. [ a decision
reported in Navayaw Franna
Pothanthi v. State of Maharashva in
a similar case, where the victim
was hardly aged 7 ycars, cheir
Lordships while awarding sentence
have cbserved as hereunder:

294

.o Qur attention was invited to
the provisions contained in Section
376(2) of the Indian Penal code,
which made child rape punishable
under clause (f) thereof, punishable
with rigorous imprisonment for a
term which shall not be less chan
10 years, but which muay be for life
and shalf also be the liability w fine.
Thus, when the legislature irseli has
indicated the minimum limic of the
leniency that could be shown in
such cases, it would nov be
justifiable to show more leniency
than what is deserved in a case of
the present cype, on the ground that
the revision petitioner was a young
man.’

3. In the circumstances, in view
of the above decision and wking
mnto consideration the narure and
gravity of offence committed by the
accused and the tender age of the
victim, | am not inclined to show

awarding

leniency in [

any
punishment o the accused.”

8. The High Courr, while
upholding the findings of facr
recorded by the trial court did naot
advert itself to the quesrtion of
enhancement of sentence as,
perhaps 1n its opinion, the sentence
of ten years’ RI was sufficient for
the offence commirted by the

appellant.

pi Versus:Srate of Karvatak




9. Mr. Sceraj Bagga, Advocate,
appearing as amicus curiae, in this
casc has in his written statement
pointed the
extenuarng circumstances on the

out following
basis of which it is prayed that the
sentence may not be enhanced:

“Reformation of the peittioner

5. That the petitioner is in
judicial custody from the date of
his arvest after 22-6-1991 and has
been undergoing the senrence since
then. That there
reformarcion in the mind of che

has been a

accused since he is in custody. In
this regard the observation of the
trial court is reproduced below:

(p. 38, para 2}

‘In view of the submission made
betore me, though I have (o agree
with the submission of the learned
counsel for the accused thar there
is reformation in the mind of the
accused as he is in custody as
undertrial prisoner for more than
a year.

It is respecthully submitted thar
this observation was recorded by
the erial court on 30-9-1994, ie.,
after abour 3 vears from the date
of incident and it is very likely that
after such a long period in the
judicial custody, after having
pondered over the whole matter,
self-realisation and introspection,

TI{' Gupril A/:mGapz _Wm'us State of 1(4;-;@@:#&4 _. P

the reformation ol che peitioner
cannot be denied as it is well
known that nowdavs religious
discourses, meditation and orher
reformatory  programmes arc
undertaken for the benefit of the
prisoners confined in jails, Thus,
in this view of the martcer, it is
respectfully submirred thar che
Court rake a
sympathetic and lenient view of the

Hon'ble may
matter and discharge the norice of
enhancement of sentence.

Mitigating circumsrances
galing

6. That it is respectfully
submitted rthat in view of the
following mitigating circumstances,
the Hon'ble court may take a lenient
view of the matter as the petitioner
is the sele breadwinner of his
family, which includes besides his
wife, his two daughters aged about
16 and 10 years respectively. There
i5 no other source of help to the
petitioner’s family and the wife of
the peritioner is with greac difficulty
running the family by doing labour

WO l'k.

That this Hon'ble Court in the
casc entitled Bharwada Bhoginbhai
Hijibhai v. State of Guraraj reduced
the sentence awarded in view of the
special circumstances which existed
in favour of the appellant therein.
It may be stated that in that case,
the conviction under Section 376




read with Scerion 311, 354 and
342 1PC was upheld by the Hon'ble
courr bur the senrence was reduced
in  view of the special
circumstances which were as under:

() The appellant lost kis jeb in
view of the conviction recorded.

{/, The incident occurred some
7 years back from the date of the

decision of the appeal; by this
Hon'ble court.

(o) A long ame had elapsed after
the dismissal of the appeal by the

High Courr.

(ef) The appellant was to be sent

back to the jail afrer six-and-a-hall

)-’L"J rs.

{e) "The appellant must have
suffered great humiliation in che
s0CICLY.

(ff The prospects of geuing a
suitable match for the appellants
own daughrer had perhaps been
marred in view of the stigma in the
wake of the finding of guilc
recorded 1n the context of rthe
ollence.

The Hon'ble court raking

cumularive effecr of all these
special circumstances, reduced the
sentence for an offence under

Section 376 read with Seccon 511

[PC from owo-and-a-hall years” R
te 19 months’ RI.

That on behall of the petitioner,
it is respecthully submited that even
though the offence and rhe
conviction recorded in rhe above
mentioned case are different from
that in the present case buc similar
special niidgating circumstances
also arise in the present case which
should be taken 1into consideration
by the Hon'ble courc at least for the
purpese of discharging the notice
of enhancement of sentence which
the Hon'ble court has issued o
the petitioner as in the present case,

it is quite evident

() Thar as a resule of rhe arrest
and convicrion of the petitioner,
who was the sole breadwinner and
was mainwdining the family, his rwo
daughters and wife are suffering and

are without any help.

{(#) That che incident oceurred
around 9 years back and the record
of rthe case reveals chat he
Peticioner is in custady since the

date of incident.

(¢} That the petitioner and his

family  have suffered greac

humiliation in the socicty.

(d) That the pedtioner has two
daughters aged abour 16 and 10
vears and the prospects of gering
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a switable march for them have
bCCI] l]]lll‘l{'d o a gl‘t‘:lf exrenyt il]
the wake of this convicrion and
sentence and the fact that the
petitioner is in custody for the last
about 9 years.

{¢) That the senrtence of 10 years'
RI awarded to the petitioner would
be over within a vear or so and if
the Hon'ble court ar this stage
enhance the sentence o life
imprisonment then the family of
the petitioner and particularly his
two daughters and their future
would be ruined for no faule of
theirs.

That in view of the above special
mitigating circumstances which
exist in [avous of the petitioner and
his family, it is respectfully prayed
that the Hon'ble court may rake a
sympathetic view of the mater and
discharge/withdraw the notice of
enhancement of sentence issued to
the petidioner.”

10. Mr Seeraj Bagga has also
pointed out that the State has not
filed

enhancement of the senrence.

any appeal  for the

11. Crime can be defined as an
act thar subjects the doer 1o legal
punishment. it may also be defined
as rhe commissien of an act
specifically forbidden by law; it
may be an offence against morality

or soctal order. In Swre of Punjul
v Cuermit singh Anand, . (as his
Lordship then was), observed in
para 21 ol the Report as under:

(SCC p. 403)

“27. OF fare, <rime againse
wamen in general and rape in

particular is on the increase. Tt is
an irony that while we are
celebraring women’s rights in all
spheres. we show litde or no
concern for her honour. 1t 15 a said
reflecrion on the atitude of
indifference of the society rowards
the vielation of human dignity of
the victims ol sex crimes. We must
remember that a rapist nor only
violates the vierdm's privacy and
personal integrity. bur inevitably
causes serious psychological as well
as physical harm i the process,
Rape is not merely a physical
assaule — iz is ofien destructive of
the whole personality of the victim.

A murderer destroys the physical body

of Bis victim, a vapist degrades the
very soid of the helpless female. The
courts, therefore, shoulder a grear
responsibifity while orying an accused
on charges of rape. They must deal
such with wtmost

with CHSEs

sensitivity. " {emplasis supplied)
12, In Bodhisartwa Gautam v,
Subhra Chakraborty one of us (S.
Saghir Ahmad, J.) while delivering
the judgment, observed as under:

(SCC p. 300, paras 9-10)
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“9. Unforwunately, 2 worman, in
our country, belongs to a class or
group of seciety who are in =z
disadvantaged position on account
and
impediments and have, therefore,

of scveral social barriers

been the vietim of oyranny ar the |
) Y

hands of men with whom they,
fortunately, under the Constitution
enjoy cqual status. Women also have
the right ro life and liberty; they also
have the right to be respecred and

treated as equal citizens. Their |

konour and dignity cannoi be
touched or viclated.

They also have the right to lead
an honourable and peaceful lite.
Women, in them, have
personalities combined. chey are
mother, daughter, sister and wife
and not playthings for cencre
spreads in various magazines,
periodicals or newspapers nor can
they be exploited for obscene
purposes. They must have the
liberey, the freedom and, of course,
independence to live the roles
assigned to them by nature so thar
the society may tlourish as they
alone have the wmients and capacity

many |

to shape the destny and character

Of nen lll]_‘)’WhEl’C 11[1d in CVCTY Dart

of the world.

16 Rape 1s thus not only @ crime
against the person of a woman

victim, 1t 1§ a crime against the |

entire society. Ir destroys the enrire
psychology of a woman and pushes
her inte deep emotional crisis, T¢
is only by her sheer will power that
she rehabilitates herself in che
society which, on coming 10 know
of the rape, looks down upon her
in derision and contempt. Rape is,
thercfore, the most hated crime. It
is a crime against basic  human
rights and is alse violative of the
victim's most cherished of (he
Fundamental Rights, namely, the
right te life concained in Article 21,
to many feminises and
psychiatrists, rape is less a sexual

ggresson

offence than an act of 4
aimed at degrading and hu miliating
women. The rape {aws do not,
unfortunacely, take care of the social
aspect of the macter and are inept
in many respects.”

4. Under the punirive approach,
the rationalisation of punishment is
based on retributive and urilizarian
theories. Deterrent theory which is
also part of the punitive approach
proceeds on the basis that the
punishment should act as a
deterrent not only o the offender

but also to others in the community.

15. The therapeutic approach

aims  at curing the  criminal

rendencies which were the product
of a diseased psychology. There may
be many facrors, including family
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problems. We are nor concerned
with rhose factors as therapeuric
approach has since been treated as
an effective methods of punishment
which not only sacisfies che
requirements of faw that a criminal
should be punished and the
punishment prescribed musc be
meted our to him, bur also reforms
the criminal through various
processes, the most fundamencal of
which is that in spite of having
committed a crime, may be a
heinous should be
treated as a human, he should be
treated as a human being entidled
to all the basic human righus,
dignity and
sympathy. It was under this theory

crime, he

human human
that this Court in a stream of
decisions, projected the need for
prison reforms, the nced to
acknowledge the vital fact thar the
prisoner, after being lodged in jail,
does not lose his fundamental rights
or basic human rights and that he
mst be treated with compassion
and sympathy. (see: Sunil Bata v.
Delbi Adwmn., Sunil Bartra (1I) v.
Delhi Admn., Charles Sobraj v.
Supdr., Central Jail Tihar and
Francis  Coralie  Mullin  v.
Adminisrraror, Union Tevritory of

Delhi)

16. Sexual offences, however,
constitute an altogether different
kind of crime which is the result

of a perverse mind. The perversity
may resulc in homosexuality or in
the commission of rape. Those who
commit rape are psychologically
sadistic persons exhibicing chis
tendency in the rape [lorcibly
commirted by them.

17. In some States in the U.S.A.,
therefore, emphasis was laid on
psychotherapeurtic treatment of the
while he under
For that
psychopath sexual offender laws

offender was

detention. purpose,

have been enacted in certain
jurisdictions in U.S.A. These laws
treat the sex offenders as neurotic
persons  and  psychotherapic
treatment is given to them during
the period of their detention which
may, In some cases, be an
indefinite period, in the sense that
they would not be released il chey
are cured. Bur the provision for
idefinite detendion even beyond the
maximum period of imprisonment
for that offence was seriously
objected to by a group of lawvers
and, therefore, in many of the
States, this provision was dropped

from the saratute.

i8. Here, in India, satutory

provision for psychotherapic
treatment during the period of

incarceration in the jail is nort

available, but reformist activitics are
systematically held at many places




with the intenton of treating, che
offender psychologically so thae he
may not repeat the offence in futare

and may feel repentant of having,

commiteed a dastardly crime.

19. The question of sentence in
such cases was considered by
Krishna Lyer, J. In Phud singh v. Stave
of Heryana in which he observed

that sentencing efficacy in cases of

lust-loaded criminality cannot be

simplistically assumed by award of

long tucarcerarion, for, often chac
remedy aggravates the malady. He
furcher observed that a hypersexed
homo,  sapien  cannot  be
rehabilitated by humiliaring or harsh
rrearment. In char case it was found
that the appellant was a young man
of 22 ycars with no criminal
antecedents save the offence of rape

commitred by him. The learned -

Judge thought char given correcrional

courses  through meditational
therapy and other measures, his
erotic abdrrations may wither away,
particularly as the appellanc had a
reasonable prosepct of shaping into
a balanced person. Bug, this cheory

was not followed in larer decisions

as it was found that in spite of |

devices having been employed and
adopted within the jail premises so

as to reform the offenders, there !

was negligible improvement in the
commission of crime. Crime,
instead of declining, had increased
and, rtoday, it has  assumed
dangerous proportions. While one
person is reformed and moves our
of jail another offender is born.
Consequently, in two  recent
decisions, relating o the offence of
rape, onc rendered by the presen
Chiel Justice of India and che ather
by brother Lahoti, the sentence was
enhanced I Stare of Kirunatabu v.
Krishmappa while in the other case,
namely, State of Rajasthan v. N.K,
the order of acquittal passed by the
High Court was ser aside and
substituted by an  order of

conviction.

20. However, having regard o
the extenuacing circumsrances
pointed our by Mr Seeraj Bagga in
the instanc case, specially the fact
that the appellants two daughrers
have come of age and are o be
marricd, we feel that the present
period of incarceration of che
appeliant in jail is cnough and he
should not be made to (urther suffer
the consequences of his besriality.
We therefore, while dismissing the
appeal, recall the notice issued w
the appellant for enhance of his
sentcnce.
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State of A.P.

Appellant;

Versus

Polamala Raju Alias Rajarao

1. A litde girl of five years of
age was ravished by the respondent
on 4-1-1985 at abourt 2..00 p.m.,
taking advantage of her helpless
state.

2. The respondent, a neighbour
of the prosecutrix living almost
opposite her house was tried for an
offence under Section 376 IPC on
an FIR lodged by the father of the
prosecutrix. The version of the
prosecutrix  regarding  the
commission of offence by the
respondent, as narrated in court
through her mother, PW 1 received
ample corroboration from medical
evidence and other evidence led in
the case. We are not repeating the
prosecution version of the case or
gist of the evidence led in the case
for the simple reason that the
learned Assistant Sessions Judge,
West Godavari, after recording
evidence and hearing partties, both
on the question of conviction and
sentence, vide order date 9-9-1985,
convicted the respondent for an
offence under Section 376 IPC.
After taking into account the report
of the District Probabtion Officer,
relating to the character, conduct
and antecedents of the respondent,

Respondent.

the trial court awarded a sentence
of 10 years’ RI and a fine of Rs
10, and in default,
imprisonment for one week for the
said offence. The convict filed an
appeal, challenging his conviction
and sentence, which came to be
heard by a learned Single Judge of
the High Court of Andhra Pradesh.
The learned single Judge, vide
judgment dated 15-9-1987,
“entirely” agreed with the
conclusions arrived at by the trial
court and confirmed the conviction
of the respondent for an offence
under Section 376 IPC. However,
the sentence was reduced to a
period of five years’ RI. while
maintaining the sentence of fine
and imprisonment in default of
payment of fine.

simple

3. The respondent has not filed
any appeal challenging his

conviction and sentence.

4. The State is in -appeal against
reduction of sentence of the
respondent by the High court.

5. We have, with the assistance
of learned counsel for the parties,
examined the record.
opinion, both the trial court and

In our

State of A.P. Versus Polamala Raju Alias Rajarao s




the High Courr were justified in
convicting the respondent for an
offence under Section 376 1PC as
the prosecution has established irs
case against the respondent beyond
a reasonable doubr through cogent
We,

accordingly, alsa confirm (he

and reliable  evidence.
conviction of the respondent [or the

offence under Secdon 376 [PC.

6. Was the High Courr justified
in interfering with the discredion
cxercised by the rrial courr by
reducing the sentence from 10
yearss RI to 5 years’ RI for an
offence under Section 376 1PC, is
the only question requiring our
consideration.

7. Secrion 376(2) 1PC reads thus

“376. Punishment for rape.—-

ORI
{(2) Whoever.—
(a)-{ey = = 7

(/} commits rape on a woman
when she is under owelve years
of age; or

(K) L T

shall be punished wich rigorous
imprisonment for a term which

shall not be less than ren years

but which may be for life and
shall also be liable o (ine

provided that the court may, lor
adequate and special reasons (o
be mentioned in che judgmenr,
mmpose a2 sentence ol
imprisonment o cicher
deseription for a term of loss

than ten years.”

8. The age of the prosceutrix in
the instant case was ad mittedly five
years at the relevant time. Normal
sentence under Scerion 376(2) 1PC
in case where rape is committed
on a child below 12 years of age,
is "ot less than 10 years™ RI7, an
expression which is pre-coiprory in
nature. The courts are obliged to
respect his legisiative manadate
when the case falls under (he
provisu [Sic Section 376(2)}, The
sproviso to Scerion 376(2) [PC,
down thar in
exceprional cases, “for special and

however  lays
adequarte reasons™ sentence of less
than 10 years’ Rl may also be
awarded in a given case. The
proviso, in our opinion, would
come 1nto play 7 when the are
“adequate and special reasons”
available In a case, Those reasons
nced to be disclosed in the order/
judgment itself so that the appellate
forum is in a position to know as
to what weighed with the court in
awarding a sentence less than the
minimum prescribed under the Act.




9. We are of the constdered
opinion that it is an obligation of
the sentencing court to consider all
relevanr faces and circumsrances
bearing on the question of sentence
and mpose a sentence
commensurate with the gravicy of
the offence. The sentencing court
rust hear the loud cry for justice
by the society and more particularly,
in cases ol heinous crime of rape
of innocent helpless children, as in
this case, of the vicim of the crime
and respond by imposing 2 proper
sentcnce.

10. In the presenc case, rthe
reasons given by the High Court
in the instant case for reducing che
sentence from minimum 10 years
15 contained in the last para of the
judgment which reads :

“T entirely agree with the
concilusions arrived ar by the
learned Assistant Sessions
Judges. | accordingly confirm
the conviction imposed by the

Court below. Bur, having

regard to the circumstances of |

the case, the sentence of ren
years Rl imposed by the Court
below is reduced to a period
of five years’ RI and the
sentence of fine of Rs 10 shall
stand.”

(empha:is ours)

 Versus' Polamile Rajie Alias Rejara"

11 To say the least, the order
contains no reasons, much less
“special or adequate reasons”. The
sentence has been reduced in a
rather mechanical manner wichout
proper application of mind. [t
appears that the provisions of
Section 376(2) 1PC were not ar all
present to the mind of che Court
This Court has time and again
drawn attention of the subordinare
cotirts to the sensitivity which is
required of the court ro deal with
all cases and more particularly in
cases involving crime against
women. In Siute of AP v. Bodem
Sundara Rao' this Court said
(SCC pp.232, para 9)

“9. In recent years, we have
noticed that crime against women
are on the rise. These crimes are
an affront to the human dignity of
the society. Imposition of grossly
inadequate sentence and particularly
against the mandate of the legistature
not only is an injustice to the victim
of the crime In parsicular and the
saciety as a whole in general but also
at times encourages @ criminal. The
courts have an obligation while
awarding punishment to impose
appropriate punishment so as o
respond to the society’s cry for
justice against such criminals.

Public abhorrence of the crime needs

a reflection thiough the court’s verdicr
in the measure of punishment. The




courts must not only keep i view
the rights of the criminal bur also
the rights of the victim of crime
and the society ar large while
considering imposition of the
The

heinous crime of commiting rape

apvropriate punishment.

on a helpless 13/ 14-years-old girl
shakes our judicial conscience. The
offence was inhumane.”

. (emphasis ours}

4. We

cansideration to the plea raised by

have given duc
learned amicus on behalf of che
respondent thar it being an old casc
the order of the High Courr need
not he interfered with, We arc
unable to persuade ourselves o
agree with the submission. We do
not find any extenuarting or
mitigating clrcumstances available
on the record which may justify
imposition of sentence less than the
prescribed  minimum  on  the
respondent. 1o show mercy in a2

case like this would be trevesty of

justice. 'I'here are no reasons, nuch
less sufficient and adequate reasons
available on the record o impose
a lesser than che
prescribed minimum.

SENence

13. The High Court, in the facts
and circumstances of the case, was

not at all justified in interfering witl
the proper exercise of discretion by
the trial coure. We, stherefore, set
aside the order of the High Court
insofar as the reduction of sentence
is concerned and restore the
sentence of 10 years” RIL as imposed
by the trial courr. The respondent
shall be taken into custody to
undergo the remaining scntence.

16. The learned amicus lasdy
submitted that because of the long
time which has clapsed subscquent
to the date of offence and the
possibility chat the prosccutrix, as
also the respondent, may have got
married and sertled in life during
the pendency of chese proceedings,
fine instead of sentence he
mmposed. We cannot agree. These
factors may be relevanc for
consideration by the executive or
constitutional authorities, if they
choose to remit the sentence on
being so approached, as opined in
Kamal Kishore v. Sutie of H P2 (SCC
Pr. 25) but insofar as our judicial
conscience is concnered, we find
no reason e go against the
legislative mandace and award any
lesser sentence.

17. The appeal succeeds and is
allowed n the above terms.

{Also reported in 2000 (7} SCC 75)
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- Supreme Court on Rape Trialis a book comprising some of the

judgements of the Supreme Court of India passed in the period
1950-2000 relating to rape trials. These are published to enable
judges and prosecutors to have access to some of the best
judgements of the Supreme Court on rape trials and apply the

same in theircases.

The judgements have been put together by Aparna Bhat, who
is an Advocate practicing in the Supreme Court for the last 11
years. Aparna specializes in child rights and has been working
towards ensuring better frial for child victims of sexual abuse.
She heads the child rights initiative of the Human Rights Law
Network, which is a NGO providing legal aid across the
Country. With Human Rights Law Network, she has filed some of
the leading public interest cases in the Supreme Court. She is
also the convenor of the National Campaign AgoinsT',ChiId
Sexual Abuse which is a network of concerned NGOs and

individuals working towards prevention of child sexual abuse.
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